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1934
Or
X Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(dhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934
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Unless otherwise specified, all monetary amourgseapressed in Canadian dollars.

Financial information is presented in accordancthwiccounting principles generally accepted in @anaDifferences between accoun
principles generally accepted in Canada and inJhiéed States, as applicable to the Company aréogétin Note 14 to the accompany
Consolidated Financial Statements of Platinum Gidepals Ltd.

The following table sets forth certain standardvaysions from the International Systemlbfdits (metric units) to the Standard Imperial Ur

Conversion Table
Metric Imperial
1.0 millimetre (mm) 0.039 inches (in)

1.0 metre (m) = 3.28 feet (ft)

1.0 kilometre (km) = 0.621 miles (mi)

1.0 hectare (ha) = 2.471 acres (ac)

1.0 gram (g) = 0.032 troy ounces (0z)
1.0 metric tonne (t) = 1.102 short tons (ton)
1.0 g/t = 0.029 oz/ton

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forwarboking statements within the meaning of the Uniftdtes Private Securities Litigation Reform Act1&Ot
concerning the Compars/’exploration, operations, planned acquisitions atiér matters. These statements relate to arsabsé othe
information that are based on forecasts of futasellts, estimates of amounts not yet determinalddleaasumptions of management.

Statements concerning mineral resource estimatgsafea be deemed to constitute forwéwdking statements to the extent that they inv
estimates of the mineralization that will be endeved if the property is developed, and based amiceassumptions that the mineral def
can be economically exploited. Any statements &éxgiress or involve discussions with respect taipt®ns, expectations, beliefs, ple
projections, objectives, assumptions or future &sen performance (often, but not always, usingdsar phrases such as “expects” doé:
not expect”, “is expected”, “anticipates” or “domeet anticipate”, “plans”, “estimates” or “intendsdr stating that certain actions, event
results “may”, “could”, “would”, “might” or “will” be taken, occur or be achieved) are not statenoémtistorical fact and may be “forward-
looking statements.” Forwaldoking statements are subject to a variety ofsriskd uncertainties, which could cause actual svantesult

to differ from those reflected in the forward-longistatements, including, without limitation:

o risks and uncertainties relating to the interpretaof drill results, the geology, grade and couitiy of
mineral deposits;

. results of initial feasibility, pre-feasibility arfdasibility studies, and the possibility that figu
exploration, development or mining results will et consistent with the Company’s expectations;

. mining exploration risks, including risks relatedaccidents, equipment breakdowns or other
unanticipated difficulties with or interruptions pmoduction;

. the potential for delays in exploration activit@sthe completion of feasibility studies;

. risks related to the inherent uncertainty of exgiion and cost estimates and the potential for peeted
costs and expenses;

. risks related to commodity price fluctuations;
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o the uncertainty of profitability based upon the Qamy’s history of losses;

. risks related to failure to obtain adequate fineg@n a timely basis and on acceptable terms;

. risks related to environmental regulation and lighi

. political and regulatory risks associated with mghand exploration; and

. other risks and uncertainties related to the Coryiggarospects, properties and business strategy.

Some of the important risks and uncertainties tloald affect forward looking statements are desdtifurther in this document under



headings “Risk Factors”, “History and Developmerittbe Company”, “Business Overview”, “Property, R and Equipmentanc
“Operating and Financial Review and ProspectSHould one or more of these risks and uncertaimtiagerialize, or should underlyi
assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may waaterially from those described in forwdobking statements. Forward look
statements are made based on managesneeliefs, estimates and opinions on the datettttersents are made and the Company unde
no obligation to update forwaldeking statements if these beliefs, estimatesapidions or other circumstances should changeesiors ar
cautioned against attributing undue certainty tverd-looking statements.

Glossary

Except as otherwise identified, the following terméen used herein, shall have the following megsiin

“Amalco” refers to the company formed by the amalgamatioPlatinum Group Metals Ltd. and New Millennium Mst&orporation calle
“Platinum Group Metals Ltd.".

“Amalgamation” refers to the amalgamation of Platinum Group Met#ds and New Millennium Metals Corporation undiee Company A«
(British Columbia).

“Amalgamation Date” is February 18, 2002he date shown on the certificate of amalgamatsndd by the Registrar of Companies u
the Company Act.

"Commission" refers to the British Columbia Securities Commissio
"Common Shares" refers to the common shares in the capital of the@any.
"Company" refers to Platinum Group Metals Ltd.

“Company Act” refers to theCompany Ac(British Columbia).

"Exchange" refers to the TSX Venture Exchange or its predexssshe Canadian Venture Exchange or the Vancobteak Exchange,
applicable.

"flow through" as defined in subsection 66(15) of tiheome Tax ActCanada), includes the issuance of common sharéseigapital ¢
natural resource companies or the issuance of apeeirants entitling the holder thereof to acquftr no additional consideration, st
common shares, in respect of which the naturalureeocompany agrees to incur and renounce res@xglration and developme
expenditures to the Company including certain espsnincurred for the purpose of exploring for detrmn or natural gas in Cans
(including certain drilling expenses), certain expes incurred for the purpose of determining thetemce, location, extent or quality ¢
mineral resource in Canada; and certain expensesréd for the purpose of bringing a new mine imiaeral resource in Canada i
production in reasonable commercial quantities.

“hectare” is an area totaling 10,000 square metres or 106esby 100 metres.

“km” is an abbreviation for kilometre.

"m" refers to metres.

“NMM" refers to New Millennium Metals Corporation, a canp incorporated under the laws of the ProvincBrifsh Columbia on Marc
11, 1998 under the name “Harvey Creek Gold Placets. Pursuant to an order by the Supreme Court of Brifielumbia, a new compa
under the name “Platinum Group Metals Ltdias formed on February 18, 2002 to facilitate thralgamation of New Millennium Mete
Corporation and Platinum Group Metals Ltd.

“NSR” is an abbreviation for net smelter royalty.

“PTG” refers to Platinum Group Metals Ltd., the compamyoirporated under the laws of the Province of &ritColumbia on January :
2000 as 599141 B.C. Ltd. Pursuant to an ordehbySupreme Court of British Columbia, a new compamger the namePlatinum Grou
Metals Ltd.”was formed on February 18, 2002 to facilitate thealgamation of New Millennium Metals CorporationdaRlatinum Grou
Metals Ltd.



“PTM-RSA” refers to the Company'wholly owned subsidiary incorporated under tiveslaf the Republic of South Africa under the n.
Platinum Group Metals (RSA) (Proprietary) Limited.
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“Registrant” refers to Platinum Group Metals Ltd., the compaogmied by the amalgamation of Platinum Group Metats and Nev
Millennium Metals Corporation under ti@mpany Ac(British Columbia).

“RSA” is an abbreviation for Republic of South Africa.

"special warrants" are issued for cash consideration by a companyrungeospectus exemption. They entitle the hdid@cquire commc
shares or units consisting of common shares ande gharchase warrants upon the conversion of theigpwarrant. No addition
consideration is payable by the warrant holdergherconversion of the special warrant. The spacgatants are converted on or immedie
after the effective date of a prospectus, whichiifiea the issuance of the shares (and any shamhpse warrants) on the conversion of
special warrants.

“ZAR” is an abbreviation for South African Rand.
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Glossary of Technical Terms

“AEM” is an abbreviation for airborne electromagnetic.
"Ag" refers to silver.

“anomalous” refers to a sample or location that either (i) tbacentration of an element(s) or (ii) geophysioalasurement is significan
different from the average background values irettez.

“anomaly” refers to the geographical area corresponding@anatous geochemical or geophysical values.
“anorthosite” is a rock comprised of largely feldspar minerald arinor mafic iron-magnesium minerals.
"As" refers to arsenic.

“assay” is an analysis to determine the quantity of onmore elemental components.

"Au" refers to gold.

“BIC” is an abbreviation for the Bushveld Igneous Comjate®outh Africa, the source of most of the waslglatinum and is a significe
producer of palladium and other platinum group sglaGM’s) as well as chrome.

“breccia” is a rock type with angular fragments of one contfmssurrounded by rock of another compositiortexture.

"bulk placer sampling” (in the context of placer properties) refers topghecess of obtaining individual gravel samplethig order of 5 to 1
cubic yards using an excavating machine and runtiegamples through a concentrating device to unedke placer gold content per ct
yard.

“chalcopyrite” is a copper sulfide mineral.

“channel sample” is a surface sample which has been collected btintaus sampling across a measured interval, aedrisidered to t
representative of the area sampled.

“chargeability” is a measure of electrical capacitance of a roek ithay indicate the presence of disseminated sulfitherals but not ¢
chargeability features are caused by such sulfides.

"cm" refers to centimetres.

"Cu" refers to coppe!



“early-stage exploration property” refers to a property which has been subjected limiged amount of physical testing and systern
exploration work with no known extensive zone oheralization.

“EM” is an abbreviation for electromagnetic.

“exploration stage” refers to the stage where a company is engagdteindarch for minerals deposits (reserves) whiemat in either tr
development or production stage.

“fault” is a fracture in a rock across which there has blésplacement.
“fracture” is a break in a rock, usually along flat surfaces.

“gabbro” is an intrusive rock comprised of a mixture of mafiinerals and feldspars.
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“gossanous’refers to a rock outcrop that is strongly staingdron oxides.
“grab sample” is a sample of selected rock chips collected frdthiwa restricted area of interest.

“grade” is the concentration of an ore metal in a rock dapgiven either as weight percent for base métalsCu, Zu, Pb) or in grams |
tonne (g/t) or ounces per short ton (oz/t) for fes or platinum group metals.

"g/t" refers to grams per tonne.
“highly anomalous” is an anomaly, which is in approximately the®ercentile of the sample or measurement population.

"ICP" refers to inductively coupled plasma, a laboratehnique used for the quantitative analysis ofgas(soil, rock, etc.) taken duri
field exploration programs.

“intrusive” is a rock mass formed below earth’s surface fronttenanagma, which was intruded into a ppasting rock mass and coolec
solid.

"IP survey" refers to induced polarization survey, a geophysiethod of exploring an area in which physicalgandies relating to geolo
are used.

“lode mining" refers to mining in solid rock.
“mafic” is a rock type consisting of predominantly iron amagnesium silicate minerals with little quartZeidspar minerals.

“magmatic” means pertaining to magma, a naturally occurriigasé melt, which may contain suspended silicaystals, dissolved gases
both; magmatic processes are at work under thi’sarust.

“mid-stage exploration property” is one hosting a known zone of mineralization, wuhi@s been subjected to a limited amount of phi
testing and systematic exploration work.

“mineralization” refers to minerals of value occurring in rocks.

"Mo" refers to molybdenum, a hard, silver-white metal.

“Ni” is an abbreviation for nickel.

“outcrop” refers to an exposure of rock at the earth’s sarfac

“overburden” is any material covering or obscuring rocks fromwwi

"Pd" refers to palladium.

"PGM" refers to platinum group metals, ie. platinum aatigglium.

"PGE" refers to mineralization containing platinum graipments, ie. platinum and palladium.

"placer mining" is the mining of unconsolidated material, which iiies solid rock (bedrock



“ppb” refers to parts per billion.
"ppm" refers to parts per million.

"Pt” refers to platinum.
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“pyrite” is an iron sulfide mineral.

“pyroxenite” refers to a relatively uncommon dackloured rock consisting chiefly of pyroxene; pyeoe is a type of rock containi
sodium, calcium, magnesium, iron, titanium and ahum combined with oxygen.

“quartz” is a common rock-forming mineral (Si)

"Rh" refers to rhodium, a platinum metal. Rhodium sba@me of the notable properties of platinum, idicig its resistance to corrosion,
hardness and ductility. Wherever there is platinarthe earth, there is rhodium as well. In factstithodium is extracted from a sludge
remains after platinum is removed from the ore.ightpercentage of rhodium is also found in certaakel deposits in Canada.

“ultramafic” refers to refers to types of rock containing rekly high proportions of the heavier elements saglmagnesium, iron, calcit
and sodium; these rocks are usually dark in caidrlzave relatively high specific gravities.

“VLF" means very low frequency.

Part |

Item 1 — Identity of Directors, Senior Management ad Advisers

See “Item 6 — Directors, Senior Management and Bygas”.

Item 2 — Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable

Not applicable

Item 3 — Key Information

Selected Financial Dat:

Selected financial data of the Company for theafisears ended August 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001aieed from the consolidated financ
statements of the Company which have been auditedéhoitte & Touche LLP as indicated in their in@eplent auditorsteport which i
included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Thedelkfinancial data set forth for the period froomenencement of operations on March
2000 to August 31, 2000 are derived from the Comisaaudited consolidated financial statements émhsperiod which are not includ
herein.

The selected financial data should be read in cmtijon with the financial statements and notesetteas well as the information appea
under the heading “Item 5 — Operating and FinarRR@liew and Prospects.”

The Company has not declared any dividends sincerporation and does not anticipate that it will stoin the foreseeable future. -
present policy of the Company is to retain futuaenengs for use in its operations and the expansidts business.

Summary of Financial Datz

The financial statements of the Company and thie tedt forth below have been prepared in accordafitbeaccounting principles genere



accepted in Canada ("Canadian GAAP"), which diiifiecertain respects from those principles thatGoeenpany would have followed had
consolidated financial statements been preparedcaordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States ("U
GAAP"). The major differences between Canadian ®Aadnd U.S. GAAP that would affect the measureménhe Companys financia
position, loss or cash flows are set forth in Nbteto the accompanying Consolidated Financial 8tatgs of the Company.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(CDN$)
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended March 16, 2000 tc
August 31, 200: August 31, 200: August 31, 200: August 31, 200(
Revenues nil nil nil nil
Working Capital 984,33: 1,284,91¢ 1,526,79¢ 154,50¢
Net Loss
Under Canadian GAAP: 1,748,99: 1,501,62( 482,687 39,95¢
Under U.S. GAAP: 2,580,49¢ 2,466,75¢ 960,20 270,43t
Loss Per Share
Under Canadian GAAP: 0.07 0.1 0.09 0.03
Under U.S. GAAP: 0.10 0.17 0.17 0.60
Dividends per Share
Under Canadian GAAP: nil nil nil nil
Under U.S. GAAP: nil nil nil nil
Total Assets
Under Canadian GAAP: 5,086,42: 4,373,04 2,762,96¢ 657,28¢
Under U.S. GAAP: 3,173,66: 3,316,06¢ 2,056,22( 426,80¢
Long Term Liabilities
Under Canadian GAAP: 359,00( 431,40( 310,00(¢ nil
Under U.S. GAAP: nil 60,00( nil nil
Mineral Properties (included in Total Assets)
Under Canadian GAAP: 3,891,65! 2,951,08¢ 1,067,35° 419,37(
Under U.S. GAAP: 1,912,89: 1,894,10¢ 360,61 188,891
Shareholder’s Equity
Under Canadian GAAP: 4,557,87: 3,830,21¢ 2,302,41( 590,04«
Under U.S. GAAP: 2,964,12° 3,144,63t 1,905, 66¢ 359,56¢
Share Capital
Under Canadian GAAP: 9,005,07¢ 6,430,48: 3,132,45! 89,00(
Under U.S. GAAP: 9,005,07¢ 6,430,48: 3,132,45! 89,00(
Number of Securitie®) 27,831,26 22,225,63. 9,790,48: 1,395,00:
Notes:
(2) There are 32,116,208 Common Shares issued anduoditsg as of the date of this Form 20-F Annual Repo

Foreign Exchange Ratt

All dollar amounts set forth in this report areGanadian dollars, except where otherwise indicaldte following tables set forth, for the f
most recent financial years, (i) the average e (Average Rate"pf exchange for the Canadian dollar, expressed $ dollars, calculate
by using the average of the exchange rates oragtedy for which data is available for each mahitting such periods; and (ii) the high
low exchange rate during the previous six montigach case based on the noon buying rate in New Gity for cable transfers in Canad
dollars as certified for customs purposes by ttaeFad Reserve Bank of New York.
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The Average Rate is set out for each of the peilindisated in the table below.

Year Ended December 31
2002 2001

US$0.6368 US$0.6368

The high and low exchange rates for each montinguhe previous six months are as follows:

2003
US$0.7186

2000
US$0.6442

1999
US$0.6725

Month High Low
September 2003 US$0.7424 US$0.7207
October 2003 US$0.7667 US$0.7418
November 2003 US$0.7692 US$0.7484
December 2003 US$0.7738 US$0.7460
January 2004 US$0.7880 US$0.7496
February 2004 US$0.7629 US$0.7439

On February 27, 2004, the noon buying rate in NemkYCity for cable transfer in Canadian dollarscastified for customer purposes by
Federal Reserve Bank of New York (the “ExchangeRatas Cdn$1.00 = US$0.7459.

Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable

Reasons for the Offer and Use of Procee

Not applicable

Risk Factors

The following is a brief discussion of those distime or special characteristics of the Compamyperations and industry which may ha
material impact on, or constitute risk factorséspect of, the Company’s future financial perforoman

The Company, and thus the securities of the Compslmyuld be considered a highly speculative inveatnand investors should carefi
consider all of the information disclosed in thisnal Report prior to making an investment in th@mPany. In addition to the ott
information presented in this Annual Report, théofeing risk factors should be given special coes&dion when evaluating an investmer
the Company'’s securities.

General.
Resource exploration and development is a speeelbtisiness, characterized by a number of sigmifidaks including, among other thin

unprofitable efforts resulting not only from thdld@e to discover mineral deposits but also fromdfng mineral deposits, which, thot
present, are insufficient in quantity and qualdgyréturn a profit from production.

16
The Company’s business is subject to explorati@hdevelopment risks.

All of the Companys properties are in the exploration stage of dgrekmt and no known reserves or resources havedissyvered on sur
properties. There is no certainty that the expgenes to be made by the Company or its joint venfeeirtners in the exploration of
properties described herein will result in discie®iof precious metals in commercial quantitieshat any of the Company’properties wi
be developed. Most exploration projects do notltéa the discovery of precious metals and no wsste can be given that any partic
level of recovery of precious metals will in fact bealized or that any identified resource will egaalify as a commercially mineable
viable) resource which can be legally and econoltyiexploited. Estimates of reserves, mineral d#jgoand production costs can alst
affected by such factors as environmental permiulegions and requirements, weather, environmefaelors, unforeseen techni
difficulties, unusual or unexpected geological fatrons and work interruptions. In addition, the dgaof precious metals ultimat



discovered may differ from that indicated by dnigliresults. There can be no assurance that peenietals recovered in smaltale tests wi
be duplicated in large-scale tests under on-siteliions or in production scale.

The Company’s business may be affected by polaimdleconomic instability in South Africa.

The Companys activities in South Africa are subject to risksranon to operations in the mining industry in gahesis well as the politic
and economic uncertainties of operating in SouthicAf South Africa has recently undergone sigaificchange in its government since
free elections in 1994. At present, Mining Ledisla in South Africa is undergoing change. A neung&tal Bill and Charter were publist
in 2002 and it is expected that this legislatiofl s promulgated in 2004. The regulation and apen of these new laws is uncertain. C
time, a target of 26% ownership in the mineral stdy by “Historically Disadvantaged Persorsds been set out in the Mining Charter,
the mechanisms to effect this objective remainesicl Accordingly, all laws may be considered reddy new, resulting in risks related to
possible misinterpretation of new laws, unilatenabdification of mining or exploration rights, opéra restrictions, increased tax
environmental regulation, mine safety and othetsrigrising out of new sovereignty over mining, amyall of which could have an adve
affect on the Company. The Companypperations may also be affected in varying degbgepolitical and economic instability, terrorit
crime, extreme fluctuations in currency exchangesrand inflation. The Comparsydperations and exploration activities in Southicaf are
subject to South African federal and provincial $aand regulations governing protection of the emrnent. These laws are continu
changing and, as a general matter, are becoming rastrictive.

The Company is subject to the risk of fluctuationihe relative values of the Canadian dollar asngared to the South African Rand.

The Company may be adversely or favorably affettgdoreign currency fluctuations. The Company isnarily funded through equi
investments into the Company denominated in Canadialars. Several of the Comparydptions to acquire properties in the Republ
South Africa may result in option payments by thempPany denominated in South African Rand to be nadg the next three yes
Exploration and development programs to be cormliby the Company in South Africa will also be faddn South African Rand. Th
fluctuations in the exchange rate between the danadbllar and the South African Rand may have dveese or favorable affect on
Company.

The Company’s properties are subject to title risks

The Company has investigated title to all of ithiemal properties and, to the best of its knowledige,to all of its properties and propertie:
which it has the right to acquire or earn an irger@re in good standing. However, the Compamyroperties may be subject to p
unregistered agreements or transfers and title meagffected by undetected defects. These defeatd adversely affect the Compansytitle
to such properties or delay or increase the costeotievelopment of such properties.

The Companys properties may also be subject to aboriginaltsighat may be claimed on Crown properties or othpes of tenure wit
respect to which mineral rights have been conferfEde Company is not aware of any aboriginal latadms having been asserted or
legal actions relating to native issues having bestituted with respect to any of the mineral mdjes in which the Company has an inte
The Company is aware of the mutual benefits affdrdy coeperative relationships with indigenous peoplednducting exploration activi
and is supportive of measures established to aeliesh co-operation.
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The mineral exploration industry is extremely cotitpe.

The resource industry is intensely competitive lino& its phases, and the Company competes withyn@mpanies possessing gre
financial resources and technical facilities thtself. Competition could adversely affect the Camys ability to acquire suitable n
producing properties or prospects for exploratiothie future. Competition could also affect tharany's ability to raise financing to ful
the exploration and development of its propertie®dire qualified personnel.

Judgments based upon the civil liability provisiafithe United States federal securities laws meadifficult to enforce

The ability of investors to enforce judgments ofitdd States courts based upon the civil liabilitpyisions of the United States fed:e
securities laws against the Company and the direetnd officers of the Company may be limited duehe fact that the Company an
majority of these persons reside outside of thaddnBtates and, in respect of the directors arideof, their assets are located outsidkt
United States. There is uncertainty as to whe@aeradian courts would: (i) enforce judgments oftéthStates courts obtained against
Company or its directors and officers predicatedrughe civil liability provisions of the United S&s federal securities laws, or (ii) enter
original actions brought in Canadian courts agaihetCompany or such persons predicated upon tlerdksecurities laws of the Uni
States, as such laws may conflict with Canadiarslaim Canada, civil rights are within the legislatjurisdiction of the Provinces a
Territories. The Province of British Columbia,vitich the Company and all of its directors anda&ffs are resident, does not have law
the reciprocal enforcement of judgments of Unitéaté® courts.

The Common Shares may be subject to the U.S. "Finnl” rules.

The Company's Common Shares are "penny stock"fasedey the Securities and Exchange Commissias;status might affect the tradi



market for the Common Shares. Penny stocks arerginequity securities with a price of less th#® $5.00 (other than securities regist
on certain national securities exchanges or quottethe NASDAQ National Market, provided that cutrprice and volume information wi
respect to transactions in such securities is gea/by the exchange or system). The SecuritiefEanbdange Commission has adopted |
that regulate broker-dealer practices in conneatith transactions in penny stocks. The pennykstates require a broketealer, prior to
transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exemgoh fthe rules, to deliver a standardized risk disete document prepared by the Secu
and Exchange Commission that provides informatiooua penny stocks and the nature and level of liskkbe penny stock market. 1
broker-dealer also must provide the customer witlient bid and offer quotations for the penny stdbk compensation of the brokdeale
and its salesperson in the transaction and morttdpunt statements showing the market value of paohy stock held in the custom
account. The bid and compensation information rbasgiven to the customer orally or in writing bref@r with the customer's confirmati
In addition, the penny stock rules require thadmto a transaction in a penny stock not otheneisempt from such rules, the broldwale
must make a special written determination thatpdeny stock is a suitable investment for the pusehand receive the purchaser's wr
agreement to the transaction. These disclosungiresgents may have the effect of reducing the lefdrading activity in the second:
market for a stock that is subject to the pennglstales, such as the Common Shares, which aradsoed "penny stock,and therefor
make it more difficult to sell those shares.

Metal prices affect the success of the Com’s business.

The mining industry in general is intensely comipeti and there is no assurance that, even if comialeguantities of mineral resources
developed, a profitable market will exist for thadesof same. Factors beyond the control of the gz may affect the marketability of ¢
minerals discovered. No assurance may be givamtbtal prices will remain stable. Significantgarifluctuations over short periods of ti
may be generated by numerous factors beyond theotofi the Company, including domestic and int¢ior@al economic and political tren
expectations of inflation, currency exchange flations, interest rates, global or regional consionppatterns, speculative activities
increased production due to improved mining andipetion methods. The effect of these factors enptice of minerals and therefore
economic viability of any of the Compasyéxploration projects cannot accurately be predictAs the Company is in the exploration st
the above factors have had no material impact esgmt operations or income.
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The Company will need additional financing.

At August 31, 2003, the Company had working camfe$984,333. The Company has limited financiabreces, has no source of opere
cash flow, and has no assurance that additionalirfignwill be available to it for further exploratiand development of its properties bey
its current programs. In the past, the Companyréléed on sales of equity securities to meetatshcrequirements. There can be no assu
that future operations will provide cash flow saiiint to satisfy operational requirements and cashmitments.

Subsequent to August 31, 2003, the Company clodethiacing for $2,040,000 and received approxinya$d, 400,000 from the exercise
stock options and warrants. See “Significant Cleai\gThe Company believes that these funds will be cigffit to cover general a
administrative costs and fund its obligations amdppsed exploration programs on its propertiesh® énd of calendar 2004. Shc
additional properties be acquired or programs lertaken, the Company will require additional furgdi The exploration and developn
of the Company’s properties depends upon the Coypability to obtain financing through any or alltbe joint venturing of projects, d¢
financing, equity financing or other means. Theaa be no assurance that the Company will be ssfttés obtaining any required financi
now or in the future. Failure to obtain additioffimlancing on a timely basis could result in delayindefinite postponement of furtt
exploration and development of its mineral progsitiwith the possible loss of such properties,herinhability to acquire any additior
properties.

The Company’s operations are subject to environadetd government regulation.

The current or future operations of the Compangjuising development activities and commencementarfimercial production on

properties, requires permits from various goverrtaleauthorities and such operations are and willsbbject to laws and regulatic
governing prospecting, development, mining, proidmGt exports, taxes, labour standards, occupatidwelth, waste disposal, to
substances, land use, environmental protectiong reafety, restrictions and prohibitions on releasemissions of various substar
produced in association with certain mining operagiand other matters. Companies engaged in tredagenent and operation of mines
related facilities generally experience increasests and delays in production and other schedwdes @esult of the need to comply v
applicable laws, regulations and permits, the @xtérwhich cannot be predicted. There can be rsurasice that approvals and per
required to commence commercial production on rsperties will be obtained. Additional permits asiidies, which may include 1
environmental impact studies conducted before pgerndn be obtained, may be necessary prior to tperaf the properties in which t
Company has interests and there can be no assutatcite Company will be able to obtain or maimtail necessary permits that may
required to commence construction, developmentperation of production facilities at these propeston terms which enable operatior
be conducted at economically justifiable costs.

Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulatiars permitting requirements may result in enforeetnactions thereunder, including orc
issued by regulatory or judicial authorities cagsaperations to cease or be curtailed, and maydectorrective measures requiring ca
expenditures, installation of additional equipmentemedial actions. Parties engaged in miningatfmns may be required to compen
those suffering loss or damage by reason of thdyaten activities and may have civil or criminadds or penalties imposed for violation:



applicable laws or regulations.

Amendments to current laws, regulations and perrgiiserning operations and activities of mining camigs, or more stringe
implementation thereof, could have a material aslvémpact on the Company and cause increases italoapenditures or production cc
or reduction in levels of production at producingperties or abandonment or delays in developnmieméw mineral properties.

The Company has not made any material expenditreesrivironmental compliance to date. However, éhean be no assurance
environmental laws will not give rise to signifidefinancial obligations in the future and such ghtions could have a material adverse a
on the Company's financial performance.
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The Company has a history of losses

The Company has a history of losses including ostds of $1,748,993 in the year ended August 313;281,501,620 in the year en
August 31, 2002 and $482,687 in the year ended #tugd, 2001. At August 31, 2003, the Company hadaecumulated deficit
$4,489,256. The Company anticipates that it vahtaue to incur losses for the foreseeable futund it can successfully place one or r
of its properties into commercial production onrafipable basis.

The Company has a lack of cash flow, which magtitfeability to continue as a going concern.

The Company is an exploration company with a hystifrlosses and no history of revenues from itsrati@ns. None of the Comparsy’
properties are in production or expected to be ld@eel in the near future, if at all. During theayended August 31, 2003, the Company
a loss of $1,748,993 and used $679,810 in cashferating activities and $1,782,903 in cash foesting activities. Historically, the or
source of funds available to the Company has be®ugh the sale of its equity shares.

The auditors’ report on the CompagsyAugust 31, 2003 annual consolidated financidaestants includes additional comments which ind
that the financial statements are affected by d¢@rdi and events that cast doubt on the Comgaatlyility to continue as a going concern.
financial statements do not include any adjustm#ras might result from the outcome of this undetta The continuing operations of
Company and the recoverability of the amounts atipéd for mineral properties in the Compangbnsolidated financial statements, prep
in accordance with Canadian GAAP, is dependent upenCompanys ability to obtain the necessary financing to meetiabilities ani
commitments as they become payable, to completlmetipn and development of its properties anduccessfully place one or more of
properties into commercial production. There camb assurance given that additional funds wilhb&ilable to the Company in the future
available on favorable terms to the Company.

The Company is required to contribute its sharexgfloration costs to maintain its interests in eartproperties

The Company may, in the future, be unable to neethiare of costs incurred under agreements tawitis a party and the Company ma
a result be subject to loss or dilution of its tigyto acquire interests in the properties subgestich agreements.

None of the Compa’s properties contain any known reserves.

All of the Companys properties are in the exploration stage meaimagthe Company has not determined whether any gugerty contair
mineral reserves that are economically recoverabBhlilure to discover economically recoverable mess will require the Company to write-
off costs capitalized in its Canadian GAAP finahstatements, which at August 31, 2003 totaled $B &b3.

The Company depends on its key management employees

The nature of the Comparsybusiness, its ability to continue its explorataord development activities and to thereby devel@gpmpetitiv:
edge in its marketplace depends, in large paritsombility to attract and maintain qualified keyanagement personnel. Competition for ¢
personnel is intense, and there can be no assuthate¢he Company will be able to attract and resich personnel. The Company’
development to date has depended, and in the fufilireontinue to depend, on the efforts of its kepnagement figures: R. Michael Jo
Chairman, President, CEO and Director of the CompBrank R. Hallam, Chief Financial Officer and &itor of the Company, Dennis G¢
Manager of Research and Project Acquisitions fer@wmpany and John Gould, Managing Director PRSA. The loss of any of the k
management figures could have a material advefeetein the Company. With the exception of Frardffl&in and John Gould, the Comp
has entered into management contracts with the dafinectors, officers and employees. See “ltem Birectors, Senior Management
Employees” and “ltem 7 — Major Shareholders anchiRel Party TransactionsThe Company does not maintain key man insuran@ngro
its management.
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The Company’s directors may be associated withratiieeral resource companies.

Certain officers and directors of the Company magdme associated with other natural resource compémat acquire interests in mine
properties. Douglas J. Hurst, Director of the Camp is a director of International Wayside Goldnkt Ltd., a public company with g
properties near Wells, British Columbia. R. Michdenes, Chairman, President, Chief Executive @ffand Director of the Company is ¢
a director of Radar Acquisitions Corp., a publienp@ny with a coal and heavy mineral project in Cado, and MAG Silver Corp., a put
company with silver properties in Mexico. Frankllban, Chief Financial Officer and Director of theo@pany, is also an officer of MA
Silver Corp. and a director of Sydney Resource @@on, a company which, prior to Mr. Hallasrappointment, acquired the Simlock Ci
Property from the Company in December 2003. Amyflazis, which may arise, will be dealt with asdised below.

Such associations may give rise to conflicts afri@st from time to time. The directors of the Campare required by law to act honestly
in good faith with a view to the best interestdhdd Company and to disclose any interest, whick thay have in any project or opportui
of the Company. If a subject involving a conflidtinterest arises at a meeting of the board afadlars, any director in a conflict will disclc
his interest and abstain from voting on such mattedetermining whether or not the Company wilttfggpate in any project or opportuni
the director will primarily consider the degreerisk to which the Company may be exposed andntnitial position at that time.

The Company has outstanding options and warrantshwif exercised, could cause dilution to existiangreholders.

At February 27, 2004, the Company had 2,070,00beptissued and outstanding with a weighted aveexgecise price of $0.54 per sh
and 2,514,324 warrants issued and outstandingamitRighted average exercise price of $0.92 peeshaptions and warrants are likely tc
exercised when the market price of the Common Shexeeeds the exercise price of such options aawe. The exercise of such option
warrants and the subsequent resale of such ComimaresSin the public market could adversely affaet prevailing market price and
Companys ability to raise equity capital in the futureaatime and price which it deems appropriate. Tlen@any may also enter i
commitments in the future which would require tsuiance of additional Common Shares and the Compeyygrant additional she
purchase warrants and stock options. Any shangaim®s from the Compamsy'treasury will result in immediate dilution to sting
shareholders.

The Company does not expect to pay dividends.
The Company has not paid any dividends since imratipn and it has no plans to pay dividends fanedime. The directors of t

Company will determine if and when dividends shookddeclared and paid in the future based on thap@ays financial position at tt
relevant time. All of the Common Shares are eattito an equal share of any dividends declaregaitd

Item 4 — Information on the Company
Introduction

The head office of the Company is located at S80@ — 409 Granville Street, Vancouver, British @ohia, V6C 1T2, telephone (604) 899-
5450. The address for service and the registenrddecords office is Gowlings Lafleur Henderson P ISuite 2300, 1055 Dunsmuir Str
Vancouver, British Columbia, V7X 1J1. The Companyiebsite is www.platinumgroupmetals.net. It igeporting issuer in Britis
Columbia, Alberta and Quebec and currently tradethe Exchange under the symbol “PTM”.
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The Amalgamation

On October 22, 2001, NMM entered into a letter agrent with PTG proposing the terms of an amalgamatursuant to the provisions of
Company Act for the purposes of forming one compaxpalco, under the name “Platinum Group Metals.'LtlIMM and PTG had bo
been working independently in the Lac des Mésmnder Bay and Sudbury, Ontario areas for the ipusvtwo years and both par
recognized the synergy between them and the adaleé wvffered by the Amalgamation. An Amalgamatigreement dated December
2001 was entered into between the parties, whighdbzed the terms of Amalgamation.

The Boards of Directors of PTG and NMM, respeciivebncluded that it would be in the best interedtthe amalgamating companies
their respective shareholders to bring togethear ansingle public company the mineral propertyriedés held separately by PTG and NI
with a view to achieving certain benefits, whicklirded the following:

(@) Consolidating the property interests of PTG and NfiMDntario, which would facilitate the financingquired for the exploratic
and development of Amalco’s properties.



(b) Forming a strong management group with extensiygemgance and expertise covering various aspectsladtinum group met
exploration.

() The shareholders of PTG and NMM would become sluddehs of a company with a substantially larger lipuBloat than wa
available to either PTG or NMM individually, whichay provide enhanced liquidity for Amalco shareleotd

(d) Operational efficiencies would be achieved by eliating the duplication of accounting, legal, cogier and administrati
procedures for NMM and PTG.

(e) The Amalgamation would result in the creation afcapany with a larger asset base and capitalizatimreby facilitating bett
access to capital markets. Amalco would be betbsitioned strategically, operationally and finatlyi to explore, and if warrante
develop, its mineral properties.

The Amalgamation received shareholder approval3amuary 28, 2002 and court approval on Februa@0®@2. Pursuant to an order by
Supreme Court of British Columbia, Amalco was fodhan February 18, 2002 at which time both NMM afdsRceased to exist. Amal
assumed all of the rights and obligations of NMMI&TG. As consideration to the shareholders of NMivhalco issued and deliver
5,468,421 common shares to acquire all of the 9g®%2common shares of NMM issued and outstandifigs represented a ratio of 1
common shares of NMM for every one share of Amal€he shareholders of PTG received one share ofiémia exchange for each shart
PTG. All of the continuing obligations of NMM withegard to share purchase options, warrants ane gigyments were convertec
obligations of Amalco at a ratio of 1.65:1. All thfe continuing obligations of PTG with regard ae purchase options, warrants and ¢
payments were converted to obligations of Amalca aatio of 1:1. The property, assets, rights pridileges of each of NMM and P1
continued to be the property, assets, rights aivilgges of Amalco.

The business combination was accounted for aschase transaction, with PTG as the acquirer and NddNhe acquiree. The considera
tendered by PTG in the share exchange was valu&d, 41,710 including $231,325 in transaction co#imalco’s financial yeaend it
August 31.
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History and Development of NMN

NMM was a mineral exploration company engaged éabquisition and exploration of mineral properti®8MM had a history of losses &
no revenues from operations.

In 1983, NMM acquired several placer claims locatadHarvey's Creek, located approximately 100 éimhketres (60 miles) northerthwes
of the City of Williams Lake in the Cariboo MininQivision of British Columbia. Placer gold refers gold found in gravel and ott
materials overlying solid rock, as opposeddde gold, which is found in solid rock. Placeainils are mining claims located in areas |
called "placer areas"), which have the potentialdotain economic quantities of gold and other calities in the gravel and other mater
overlying solid rock. These claims were acquinenirf the four founding shareholders of NMM, two diam remained as Directors of NM
in exchange for 750,000 common shares of NMM (esjaivt to 454,545 Common Shares).

During the course of placer gold exploration by NMMwas determined that the most likely source tfee placer gold which had be
deposited in the gravels of Harvey's Creek waslad gch strata (rock unit) cross cutting a brané¢hhe Harvey's Creek. This branch cre
which forms part of the drainage basin, is Siml@kek. As a result of this determination, NMM uridek an extensive lode mineral claim-
staking program, which resulted in NMM's acquisitaf all 21 of the mineral claims currently comprgsthe Simlock Creek Property.

Between 1983 and 1989, NMM carried out all onsiékiag, prospecting and most exploration work om 8imlock Creek Property. Duri
1983, 1984 and 1985 most of the work related tspeoting and staking. A geophysical survey whidasured the magnetism of
Simlock Creek Property was completed and variolisdper access pads were constructed. Duringpei®d, exploration emphasis was
placer gold. Based on results from previous plaeenpling work, a bulk placesampling program was undertaken in 1986, 1987 &38
At the same time an extensive ssdlmpling program was paid for by Logan Mines Limhifgirsuant to an option agreement with N}
which has since expired. NMM hired several worlard purchased equipment to carry out its work.

NMM constructed many kilometres of road, laid libtetres (5,000 feet) of water pipe, built a pgiag site, a reservoir, and a taili
dump and moved many thousands of cubic yards ofnahtn order to access a favorable placer ardahwkiMM's previous work had locat
on NMM's claims. Although initial samples from dHavorable area returned positive results, it beralear by 1988 that unrecorded pli
mining activity by others in the 1920's and 193@id removed the most valuable placer material ftoerarea. NMM could not economic:
justify an earth moving exercise of the size reggiibased on the projected amount of gold lefténatea. By 1989 all work had ceased ol
placer claims and reclamation work was carried out.

The nature of the gold recovered from the bulk @aampling suggested that the lode source of ¢kek\gas local and of significant si.
NMM continued its efforts to locate the primarypdsit and began to sell off its heavy equipmentciwhivas not immediately required
work on the Simlock Creek Property. The equipniead been purchased from the proceeds of sharekdlmmns, and thus upon sale,
proceeds from the equipment was returned to traelsn



After 1989, NMM continued the search for the prignbode gold deposit at Simlock Creek. NMM bore tiosts of several soil sampli
programs and by 1992 a substantial area of higth galues had been delineated at Simlock CreekceSWMM was a private company w
very limited funds and had no access to public etarkt the time, it was required to option the 8eklCreek Property in order to advance
project. In 1993 Northern Dynasty Minerals Ind\N@tthern Dynasty") of Vancouver, British Columbiptioned the Simlock Creek Prope
For the next two years, NMM stood by while North@&ynasty carried out a small amount of exploratiark at Simlock Creek. Except-
management's efforts to maintain books and recandsto retain title to the Simlock Creek PropeMyM was inactive between 1993 ¢
1996. Northern Dynasty carried out and paid fbrirdi and check soil sampling programs, soil piafil and the completion of one excavi
trench approximately 70 metres in length. Aftelirig to identify a bedrock source, Northern Dyryastected not to complete the exercis
the option. After the Simlock Creek Property réedrto NMM again in 1996, Management of NMM madéeaision to go public in order
raise the capital required to explore the areagif bold values in soils, which had been previowsiineated at Simlock Creek.
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During the 1997 field season, 627.3 metres (2,@80) fof new access road were constructed by NMNherSimlock Creek Property. T
new access road ended at the edge of the aregho§bid values in soils, which NMM intended to extgl for lode gold deposits.

During the year ended December 31, 1997, NMM isduedvay of a private placement 950,000 units atieepof $0.25 per unit for tot
proceeds of $237,491, net of issue costs. Eadhconsisted of one common share and one share gaecharrant. During the same y
NMM issued 491,200 common shares at an ascribeg @t $0.25 per common share in settlement of sloéder loans. A total of 750,0
performance escrow shares were issued to two diseof NMM at an ascribed value of $0.01 per share.

NMM entered into a sponsorship agreement dated TLJy1997 with Haywood Securities Inc. ("Haywoodi)respect of their of NMM
application to the Exchange for listing. Pursu@anén agency agreement dated July 11, 1997, asdendtovember 11, 1997 and Febrt
11, 1998 between NMM and Haywood, Haywood was appdias NMM's agent in selling an initial publidesing of 600,000 commc
shares at $0.50 per share through the facilitiegheExchange.

Pursuant to its prospectus dated March 4, 199gaarkeceipt for which was issued by the CommissiarMarch 6, 1998, NMM completed
initial public offering of 600,000 common sharesNi¥IM at a price of $0.50 per share on June 12, 1988 common shares of NMM wi
listed and commenced trading on the Exchange oa 18n1998. A total of 4,000 common shares of Nisiiva deemed price of $0.50
share and warrants to purchase 120,000 commonssbBNMM at a price of $0.50 per share expiringeld®, 1999 were issued as corpc
finance fees pursuant to the agency agreementHaglivood.

With some of the proceeds from the Haywood inpialblic offering closed on June 15, 1998, NMM comuesha program of exploration tr
building, trenching and sampling on portions of tHel6 and HH8 mineral claims on the Simlock Creekerty. This work progra
commenced on August 12, 1998 after all relevankvwparmits had been obtained. The purpose of t88 pgogram was to investigate an :
of high gold values in soil samples taken in 1992total of 223 rock samples were taken from trexschnd trail cuts and analyzed for ¢
(fire assay) and 32 other elements (ICP).

The trenching program was designed to investigegasaimmediately up-slope from high gold valuesail. A total of 10 crossenche
delineated a soutbeutheast trending zone of multiple quartz veirg silicified phyllitic wallrock over a length of gpoximately 450 metre
This zone is open in both directions. Mechanicahches were dug at 50-meter (165-foot) interaat®ss the soutkeutheast trending zo
of multiple quartz veins. Within the trenches, gtas were taken across widths ranging from 5 cingRes) to 100 cm (39 inches) depent
upon the nature of material being sampled. Sigaifi gold values were detected in quartz vein ri@téncluding an assay of 2.286 0z./
gold across a fivésot width of vein. The main objective of surfageploration is to delineate targets, which can x@ared at depth usit
drilling techniques in order to measure the tonnaige average grade of the potential mineralized/ lowdbodies. Information from drillir
can also aid in determining whether or not the dém@an be mined and processed at a profit. Qdwmiques such as bulk sampling ma
employed to assist in making this determination.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated March 1, #899'Agnew Agreement") between Harvey Creek Géiiters Ltd., Donald Hawke &
Gregory Campbell (collectively, the "Agnew Optioadr NMM was granted the sole and exclusive righd aption to acquire up to a 9!
interest in and to the Agnew Lake Property. Thenéwy Lake Property initially comprised of 201 mirdec&ims totalling 3,216 hectar
overlays a mafic intrusion which has charactesstavourable for the concentration of PGM mineglian located near Sudbury, Onta
Subsequent to the execution of the Agnew AgreenivitM staked an additional 16 claims totalling A)Atectares on March 5, 1999, wt
are subject to the terms of the Agnew Agreemerte ‘$tem 4 —nformation on the Company, The Agnew Lake Prope@utario”. Oi
March 1, 2004, the Company notified the Agnew Qmiis that it had completed its obligations under Agnew Agreement and had ves
its 99% interest in the Agnew Lake Property.

NMM changed its name to New Millennium Metals Caigtdn on March 22, 1999 to reflect its new objeetof concentrating on platint
group metals properties.

During the year ended December 31, 1999, NMM iss&#6,589 special warrants at prices ranging f8@#5 to $0.52 per special wartr
for net proceeds of $543,450. The proceeds ofpthate placements were used to fund exploratioth@tAgnew Lake Property and
general working capital.
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On September 3, 1999, NMM acquired a 100% inténeste Salter Property by staking three mineraihtatotaling 352 hectares (869 ac
located within 10 kilometres of Massey, Ontario avithin 40 kilometres of the Agnew Lake Propertyitial geological investigations of t
property failed to locate mineralization of econormiterest and the Salter claims were allowed padan September of 2002. Exploration
acquisition costs totaling $10,667 were expensed.

On September 3, 1999, NMM acquired a 100% inténetbte Victoria Property by staking two mineralinta totaling 256 hectares (632 ac
located within 10 kilometres of Massey, Ontario avithin 40 kilometres of the Agnew Lake Properfite Victoria Property was allowed
lapse with no work having been completed on thenty. Acquisition and exploration costs totali2,009 were written off subsequen
December 31, 2001.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated effectiveugep 7, 2000, as amended June 24, 2002, among ldMtle optionee and Don Leishn
Kenneth Fenwick and Don Chorkawy as the optiondidM was granted the sole and exclusive right antioopto acquire up to a 10
interest in and to the Taman Property. The Tanrapd®ty is comprised of 12 claim blocks coverintptal of approximately 2,272 hecta
(5,609 acres) approximately 80 km north-northe&dthminder Bay, Ontario and 20 km west of North Aitan Palladium’s Lac Des lles Pd-
Pt Mine.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated effectiveugep 7, 2000, as amended June 24, 2002, among ldMtle optionee and Don Leishn
Kenneth Fenwick, Stephen Stares and Michael Staréise optionors, NMM was granted the sole andusket right and option to acquire
to a 100% interest in and to the Taman East Prppefhe Taman East Property is comprised of 6 clalotks covering a total
approximately 1,280 hectares (3,160 acres) appteiyn 80 km northrortheast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 15 km wedtath Americal
Palladium’s Lac Des lles Pt Mine. The Taman East Property has been retumttk project vendors and exploration/acquisitosts wil
be expensed in the current fiscal year.

On March 2, 2000 NMM acquired a 100% interest | Swan River Property by staking two mineral clatotaling 7,440 hectares (18,:
acres) located on Reindeer Lake, 60 km east oft®diorth, Saskatchewan. The Company elected nprdoeed with the Swan Ri\
Property and the claims were allowed to lapse imdklaf 2002 with no exploration work having beemgteted. Acquisition costs of $18,7
were expensed.

On March 20, 2000, NMM acquired a 100% intereghim Senga Property by staking 17 claim blocks emamsing a total of 3,744 hecte
(9,243 acres) located approximately 85 km norththeast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 20 km west ofttNmerican Palladiung Lac De
lles Pd-Pt Mine.

On March 20, 2000, NMM acquired a 100% interesthi@ Tib Property by staking 12 claim blocks encosspgg a total of 2,640 hecta
(6,518 acres) located approximately 100 km norttiheast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 20 km west ofttNAmerican Palladiuns’ Lac De
lles Pd-Pt Mine. The Tib Property has been drogsedf August 31, 2003, resulting in a write-offooimulative costs to date of $29,726.

Pursuant to an option and joint venture agreemartgddeffective March 29, 2000 between NMM as th#oope and Fort Knox Ga
Resources Inc. as the optionor (“Fort KnoXMM was granted the sole and exclusive right antibopto acquire up to a 60% interest in
to the Dog River Property. The Dog River Propartnsists of 9 claim blocks located approximatelyk®® northwest of Thunder Be
Ontario and about 18 km west of the Lac Des llePd®PMine. The Dog River Property is subject to adarlying agreement between F
Knox and Kenneth Fenwick pursuant to which Mr. Fihwvas granted a 2.5% net smelter return roydity2002, the Company, Fort Kn
and Mr. Fenwick revised the Dog River Agreement iehg Fort Knox agreed, at no cost, to abandon alyadl interest in the Dog Riv
Property in favour of Mr. Fenwick subject to anioptagreement being completed between the Compathyi. Fenwick. Pursuant to 1
terms of the amending agreement dated Februar@®® between the Company and Mr. Fenwick, the Compaas granted the sole ¢
exclusive right and option to acquire up to a 100%rest in and to the Dog River Property by makiagh payments totaling $35,000
issuing 60,000 Common Shares to Mr. Fenwick. AMaf 5, 2003, the Company made its final paymer¥ito Fenwick and now holds
100% interest in the Dog River Property.

25

Pursuant to an option agreement dated April 6, 20@Deffective June 14, 2000 between NMM as thoee and Canadian Golden Dra
Resources Ltd. as the optionor (“CGDNMM was granted the sole and exclusive right antibopo acquire up to a 60% interest in and tc
Ottertooth Property. The Ottertooth Property wasgrised of 35 contiguous claim blocks coveringt@ltof approximately 7,968 hecta
(19,672 acres) located approximately 50 km of Aromgy, Ontario and 170 km north of Thunder Bay, @ataThe Ottertooth Property w
returned to the vendor in May of 2002 after initiglological investigations failed to detect miniztion of potential economic significar
on the property. Acquisition and exploration caxt$180,581 were expensed by the Company in FRA@2.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated effectivel 20r 2000 among NMM as the optionee and Don Lmish, Kenneth Fenwick and k
Tweedie as the optionors, NMM was granted the aald exclusive right and option to acquire up to08% interest in and to the Milfa



Bullseye Property. The Milford Bullseye Propersydomprised of 4 contiguous claim blocks coverirtgtal of approximately 832 hecta
(2,054 acres) located approximately 90 km norththeast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 12 km west ofttNAmerican Palladiung Lac De
lles PdPt Mine. The Milford Bullseye Property was retuin® the optionors effective April 12, 2002 aftaitial geological investigatic
failed to located mineralization with economic putal. Exploration and acquisition costs totalB®l,245 were expensed by the Compal
Fiscal 2002.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated effective M&000 between NMM as the optionee and Ted Ahapéisnor, NMM was granted t
sole and exclusive right and option to acquireaup 100% interest in and to the Buck East Propeftye Buck East Property is comprise
3 contiguous claim blocks covering a total of apiprately 624 hectares (1,541 acres) located apprately 85 km nortmortheast ¢
Thunder Bay, Ontario and 20 km west of North AmamidPalladium’s Lac Des lles Ft-Mine complex. The Buck East Property

returned to the optionor effective April 15, 20Gainitial geological investigations failed todate any mineralization of potential econa
interest. Exploration and acquisition costs to@$59,951 were expensed by the Company in FifitH.2

Pursuant to an option agreement dated effective Ba000 between NMM as the optionee and East Wesburce Corp. and Ma,
Minerals Inc. as the optionors, NMM was grantedgbke and exclusive right and option to acquirgaip 60% interest in and to the Lac
lles River Property. The Lac Des lles River Propés comprised of 16 contiguous claim blocks cawgra total of approximately 2,8
hectares (7,110 acres) located approximately 80nknth-northeast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 20 km soushived North America
Palladium’s Lac Des lles Pd-Pt Mine complex. Séemi 4 — Information on the Company, Lac Des llegjétt, Ontario”.

On June 18, 2000, a Letter of Intent was enteredbietween NMM and Pacific North West Capital CqfpPFN") with respect to the Agne
Lake Property. The terms of the Letter of Interdrevsubsequently formalized in an Option Agreenftrg “PFN Option Agreement”
executed between NMM and PFN on August 15, 200@slRnt to the terms of the PFN Option AgreemeiM\granted PFN the sole a
exclusive right and option to acquire 50% of ights and interest in the Agnew Lake Property winctudes both the claims under optiol
NMM pursuant to the Agnew Agreement and 16 add#iataims staked by NMM. Se‘ltem 4 —Information on the Company, The Agn
Lake Property, Ontario”.

Between June 9 and August 25, 2000, NMM acquird®@®6 interest in three small properties adjoinitsgTiaman Property. The Tan
North, Taman South and Taman Northwest propertieifeCtively referred to as tt“Taman Margin Propertiestiyere staked to cover possi
extensions of the Taman Lake Intrusion off the eelja Taman Property. The Taman North property allasved to lapse in August of 20
with no significant work having been completed be property.

On June 28, 2000, a Letter of Intent was enteredbatween NMM and New Claymore Resources Ltd. {N&aymore”)with respect to tr
Shelby Lake Property. The terms of the Lettembémt were subsequently formalized in an Optioneggnent (the “Shelby Lake Agreemént”
executed between NMM as the optionee and New Claymas the optionor effective July 26, 2000. Pumstathe terms of the Shelby L
Agreement, NMM was granted the sole and exclusigigt and option to acquire up to a 60% interestrid to the Shelby Lake Property. -
Shelby Lake Property is comprised of 10 contigudlasn blocks covering a total of approximately )1tectares (5,333 acres). The Sh
Lake Property is located approximately 75 km nonintheast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 18 km soustwéNorth American Palladiurs’
Lac Des lles Pd-Pt Mine. See “Iltem 4 — Informationthe Company, Lac Des lles Project, Ontario”.

On September 22, 2000, NMM acquired a 100% intereite Wakinoo Property by staking a single cldilock totaling 192 hectares (4
acres) located approximately 75 km north-northeasthunder Bay, Ontario and 25 km southwest of Ndkmerican Palladiuns Lac De
lles Pd-Pt Mine complex.

26

On September 22, 2000, NMM acquired a 100% inténeite Hottah Property by staking three contigudagm blocks totaling 672 hecta
(1,659 acres) located approximately 75 km norththeast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 18 km southwe&btorth American Palladiums’Lac
Des lles Pd-Pt Mine complex.

Pursuant to an Agency Agreement dated for refer&eggember 29, 2000 (the “First Delta Agency Agreett) between NMM and Fir
Delta Securities Inc. (“First Delta”), First Delk@as appointed to act as NMMagent in selling 2,200,000 units of NMM at a eraf $0.4!
per unit. Each unit consists of one flow-througimenon share and ortelf warrant. Each whole warrant, plus 60 centgllsentitle th
holder to acquire one ndiew through common share of NMM for a period of t®nths from the date of closing. On December22®0
NMM closed a portion of this private placement &&6,223 units were issued. An additional 35,44@sunere issued as a fin(s fee, a
well as $15,953 cash, and 100,000 warrants exéteisa $0.45 per share for two years expiring Ddmam29, 2002 were issued to First D¢
For a period of twelve months following the refece date of First Delta Agency Agreement, Firstt®ehd a right of first refusal to prov
any further equity financing required by NMM.

Pursuant to an agreement dated for reference Qc#)e2000 among NMM, MTAX 2000 Mineral Limited Paership (“MTAX") anc
578161 B.C. Ltd., MTAX had the right to commit toflaw-through private placement before December 31, 2000 fixed price. MTA
confirmed that it would subscribe for 285,714 flthveugh share units of NMM at $0.35 per unit. Eadit consisted of one flowhrougt
share and onkalf flow through share purchase warrant. Eachlevia@rrant, plus an additional $0.44, will allonetholder to purchase c
additional flowthrough share at any time for a period of 12 moritbe the date of closing. In consideration foraaging the prival
placement with MTAX, Strand Securities Corp. ree€iwa finde's fee of 8%, payable in flow through units at thens price as the prive



placement. On December 29, 2000, $100,000 wasdgbliactrust and the funds were subsequently tramesféo NMM on March 2, 2001.

A Heads of Agreement was entered into on Decem®glQ00 pursuant to which NMM and PFN proposedptioa a 60% interest in tl
Agnew Lake Property to Kaymin Resources Ltd. (“Kayth) a subsidiary of Anglo American Platinum Corption Limited, the world
largest producer of platinum group metals. Thedde# Agreement outlined the basis on which théiggwvere prepared to negotiate in g
faith a definitive earn-in agreement. In June 20@@armin Agreement was executed among Kaymin, NMM and Pkhich set out tt
definitive earn-in terms and legally binding obligas. See “Item 4 — Information on the Comparilye Rgnew Lake Property, Ontario”.

Including the private placements with First DeltelaTAX, NMM issued 2,444,672 units at prices rarggfrom $0.35 to $0.50 per unit
net proceeds of $1,015,436 during the year endezkiber 31, 2000. The proceeds of the private plaots were used to fund n
acquisitions, exploration of the Lac Des lles Proj@operties and for general working capital.

Pursuant to a letter agreement dated FebruaryQd,, s amended November 27, 2002 between NMMeasptionor and Sydney ResoL
Corporation (“Sydney”as the optionee, Sydney was granted the sole aridsére right and option to acquire up to a 60%eiest in th
Simlock Creek Property. During the year ended bdumr 31, 2001, NMM wrote off acquisition and explibon costs of $1,123,275, I
recoveries of $68,464, relating to the Simlock ®rBeoperty, however it retained title. Pursuanah amending agreement dated Dece
12, 2003 between the Company and Sydney, Sydneayiradga 100% interest in the Simlock Creek Propartgxchange for 1,200,0
common shares of Sydney at a deemed price of $&26hare.

Between July 24 and September 21, 2001, NMM acduwré00% interest in the Vande Property by stakiggen claim blocks totaling 1,3
hectares (3,358 acres) located approximately 6% drth-northeast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 15 ks of North American Palladius’
Lac Des lles Pd-Pt Mine complex.

Pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding datedb@ct21, 2001 (the “ProAm Agreement§MM and PFN were granted the s
exclusive right and option to earn a 100% inteirestnd to 3 claim blocks internal to the Agnew Lakeperty (the “ProAm Propertyfjom
ProAm Explorations Corporation. See “Item 4 — mfiation on the Company, The Agnew Lake Propertyafor.
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On October 22, 2001, NMM entered into a letter agrent with PTG proposing the terms of an amalgamatursuant to the provisions of
Company Act for the purposes of forming one compamalco, under the name “Platinum Group Metals.'LtdtNMM and PTG had bo
been working independently in the Lac des Mésnder Bay and Sudbury, Ontario areas for the ipusvtwo years and both par
recognized the synergy between them and the adaled wffered by the Amalgamation. An Amalgamatfggreement dated December
2001 was entered into between the parties, whiahdbzed the terms of Amalgamation. See “The Araalgtion”. On November 7, 200
NMM entered into a loan agreement with PTG for $000 secured against NV's share of PFN. The successful completion o
Amalgamation has made this loan irrelevant.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, NMM isst#&014 units for net proceeds of $141,096 puistaaprivate placements 15,C
common shares on the exercise of warrants for neeepds of $7,500 and 2,690 common shares of NMIhermexercise of stock options
net proceeds of $1,560. The flalwough shares issued by NMM were priced at maakeltt did not bear a premium as a result of theiw
through nature. The proceeds of the private placesnwere used to fund exploration programs orL#fieDes lles Project properties and
general working capital.

History and Development of PTG and the Compse

PTG was incorporated under the laws of British @dlia on January 10, 2000 as 599141 B.C. Ltd. aadgéd its name tdPlatinum Grou
Metals Ltd.”on March 16, 2000 at which time it commenced op@nat It was in the business of acquiring, expigrand evaluating mine
properties. PTG focused on acquiring a broad plotbf mineral properties and mineral propertyenests where there is geological pote
for platinum and palladium deposits. The geograpbaus of PTG was in Canada, however it consid@mejects in the USA, Brazil al
South Africa without the acquisition of any interes

PTG issued 1,000,000 common shares to its fourade$<0.01 per share in connection with incorporati&ee “ltem 7 Major Shareholde
and Related Party Transaction®®TG then completed a seed round of financing inilAgmd May 2000 which raised a total of $600,00!
issuing a total of 3,000,001 Special Warrants cditMe into common shares of PTG as follows: 2,608, Special Warrants convertible
2,605,000 common shares of PTG for no further etamation sold at $0.20 per Special Warrant and@@35¢common shares of PTG soli
$0.20. From March to June 2000, PTG acquired éstsrin exploration properties in Ontario and tleethlvest Territories targeted for tt
platinum and palladium mineralization potential eTproperty interests where obtained in variousomgtito purchase an interest or by sta
mineral claims directly.

PTG acquired mineral rights to properties in thal&uy-River Valley area in March 2000 by a series of aptagreements and stak
mineral claims. These properties were part of emdof PTG’s initial public offering in Canada.

Pursuant to an arm’s length agreement dated Ma&¢cBQDO0 (the “Davis Agreement”) amoRJ G as the optionee and John and Marie E
and George Van Lith as the optionors (collectivelierred to as the “Davis OptionorsBTG was granted an option to acquire up to a 1
undivided interest in 29 units in the Sudbury MmiDistrict, which formed part of the 37 claims hetDavi-Janes Block (th*Davis Brad!



Property”). PTG can exercise the option by paymthe Davis Optionors $60,000 in cash payments a\&year period from the date of 1
Davis Agreement (of which $20,000 had been paid) iasuing a total of 100,000 common shares of PTtRirwtwo years of the Dav
Agreement (of which 70,000 common shares of PTG leeh issued). The Davis Optionors retained a 23R Nvith advance royal
payments of $10,000 per year, commencing in th& d®nth at a rate of $5,000 payable every six motitegeafter. PTG can acquire 1%
the NSR up to commercial production for $1,000,000e Company has elected not to maintain the Dagi®ement past March 29, 2(
and exploration and acquisition costs of $77,05Feweitten down subsequent to February 28, 2002lidl maintain claims it staked direc
adjoining the Davis Brady Property and the roygitgnted under the Davis Agreement attaches to tassas.

Pursuant to an Option Agreement dated March 290 2&®ended October 31, 2000 and December 3, 2001Rebble Agreementhetweel
PTG as the optionee and East West Resource CapofaEast West")as the optionor, PTG was granted an option to aequp to a 60¢
interest in the Pebble Property. The Pebble Ptpecomprised of seven contiguous claim block&l portions of 4 additional claim bloc
covering a total of approximately 1,536 hectareg93 acres) located approximately 35 km east-nasthef North American PalladiushlLac
Des lles PdPt Mine in the Thunder Bay Mining Division of Novilestern Ontario. The Pebble Property forms pathefEast Lac Des Il
Project.
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Pursuant to an option agreement dated April 10028d amended October 31, 2000 between PTG asptitmee and Canadian Golc
Dragon Resources Ltd. as the optionor, PTG wasteglagn option to acquire up to a 60% interest é@@Slouth Legris Property. The Sc
Legris Property is comprised of 23 contiguous cladifocks covering a total of approximately 4,032 taees (10,307 acres) loca
approximately 75 km north-northeast of Thunder Bagtario and 11 km south of North American PalladaiLac Des lles P&t Mine. Thi
South Legris Property adjoins the Shelby Lake, ¥adde Properties and forms part of the Companyts Das lles Project. See “ltem-4
Information on the Company, Lac Des lles Projecttatio”.

On April 17, 2000, PTG entered into a joint ventareangement with Norcal Resources Ltd. (“NorcaVhereby Norcal paid the costs
staking certain mineral claims. PTG received a 4084rest in 376 units staked by providing cert@ichnical information on target area:
McWilliams, Crerar, Notman, Gladman and Hammell fships in the Sudbury, Ontario area. All of thpseperties were abandonec
Fiscal 2002 and related acquisition and exploratimsts totaling $5,702 were expensed by the ComjpaRiscal 2002.

Pursuant to an arm®’length agreement dated June 7, 2000 and amended7]) 2001 and July 15, 2002 among PTG as therggian
Messrs. Bill Kizan and Lloyd Anderson as the opticn PTG was granted an option to acquire up t0@dlinterest in the Rutledge Le
Property in the Northwest Territories. PTG stakedadditional 21 claims covering 17,584 hectar@4&0 acres), which are subject to
terms of the Rutledge Agreement.

In October 2000, Apex Geoscience Ltd. completedndependent report on the Rutledge Property (thpe3AReport”).The Apex Repo
confirmed the earlier reports of a high-grade plati occurrence on the property, which returned egauktween 480 g/t platinum. Th
report recommended a $900,000 exploration prograrthe property. The Apex Report and the Rutledgmé&ity were part of the PT&’
initial public offering in Canada. On October 180D, PTG sold a right of first offer on the Rutled@roperty to Impala Platinum Holdir
Ltd. of South Africa for $300,000. PTG drilled boles totaling 1,072 meters (3517 feet) duringgheod of March 1 to April 16, 20C
Drilling results were not of economic interest lnatsed on the geological setting more work was reeended. No further exploration
planned for the Rutledge Lake Property. Acquisimd exploration costs totaling $551,307 were rgpé by the Company in Fiscal 2002.

Pursuant to an arm’length agreement dated June 14, 2000 betweeraBTit& optionee and Roland Dubeau as the optiBii@, was grante
an option to acquire up to a 100% interest in 2s in the Sudbury Mining Division which formednp of the Henry Block by paying M
Dubeau $38,000 in cash (of which $14,000 has beéd) and issuing 30,000 common shares of PTG (a€lwh0,000 shares have b
issued) over a fouyear period. PTG also granted Dubeau a 5% neitpinferest royalty. The Property was returneth®vendor in June
2002. Acquisition and exploration costs totalid@®41 were expensed by the Company subsequersdal 2002.

In June 2000, PTG acquired (by staking) a 100%rastein 16 mineral claims in two nawontiguous blocks totaling approximately 3,
hectares (8,302 acres) (the “Leckie Property”jhe Lake Nipigon area of Ontario. During 2002 {Company elected not to proceed '
exploration of the Leckie Lake Property. Acquimitiand exploration costs totaling $25,180 were Bgpé by the Company subsequel
Fiscal 2002.

On September 22, 2000, Clark Exploration Consultfgrhunder Bay, Ontario, completed an independgtlogical report (the Clark
Report”) on the exploration potential of the South Legrisckie and Pebble and Properties. The South Ldggikie and Pebble Properi
were part of PTG Initial Public Offering in Canada in February 200The Clark Report recommended exploration exiperes of $150,0C
on these properties.

Pursuant to an arm’length agreement dated September 27, 2000, exkontOctober 1, 2000 and amended October 4, 28fMebn PTG ¢
the optionee and Frank Racicot as the optionor, R&6 granted an option to acquire up to a 100%esten the Racicot-oughrin Propert
in Loughrin Township (the “Racicot-Loughrin Propgjtby paying $62,500 in cash over a foggrar period (of which $12,500 has been |
and issuing 80,000 common shares of PTG over a frear period (of which 20,000 common shares haea issued). The optionor retait
2% NSR, of which PTG can acquire 1% up to commémiaduction for $1,000,000. In September of 2002, Company elected not
proceed with any further exploration and returrtezliroperty to the vendor. Acquisition and explioratosts totaling $39,662 were exper



by the Company subsequent to Fiscal 2002.
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On November 3, 2000, PTG entered into an agen@eagent term sheet with Goepel McDermid Inc. forghke of up to $2,700,000 of P
common shares at $0.50 per common share and up46G000 of Flow Through Special Warrants at $@&5Special Warrant, each Spe
Warrant convertible into one PTG common share. fitid agency and sponsorship agreement was exeautdéebruary 15, 2001 w
Raymond James Ltd. when it acquired Goepel McDetrdd

In the Flow Through portion of the offering, PTGregd to spend the funds in Canada and pass thdethiction on to the subscribers.
corporate finance fee of $25,000 was payable torivay James Ltd. as well as an 8.0% commission esi&ebwarrants for 10% of the to
number of PTG Flow Through Special Warrants androom shares issued. Raymond James Ltd. also hiais tig oversell the offering |
15%, which they exercised. As a result, a tota?,883,090 Flow Through Special Warrants, eachammertible into the same numbel
common shares of PTG, were sold and issued invatprplacement in December 2000 and a total of53384 common shares of PTG w
sold and issued in February 2001.

PTG filed and received a receipt for a prospeatuBritish Columbia and Alberta, Canada on Februby 2001 for the public offering
securities covering: the 2,605,000 common sharésT@ to be issued under the exercise of the 2,6053pecial Warrants previously iss
at $0.20 per Special Warrant, the 2,383,090 Flowodgh common shares of PTG to be issued on theetsion of 2,383,090 Spec
Warrants previously sold at $0.55 per Special Wuraad the 3,195,391 common shares of PTG issugd.5® per share on the Initial Pul
Offering. PTG was listed and called for tradingtbe Exchange on March 6, 2001.

Pursuant to an agreement dated March 22, 2001 betR€G as the optionee and Jobin Bevans & Co.asghionor, PTG was granted
option to acquire up to a 100% in the Stré8tProperty consisting of 77 units located in thell8iry Mining District, Ontario by payi
$49,400 in cash (of which $9,400 has been paid)issuing 60,000 common shares of PTG (of whicha® shares have been issued) o
two-year period. The Company has elected not to miairitds option agreement and the property has bre¢urned to the vend
Acquisition and exploration costs totaling $68,583te expensed by the Company in Fiscal 2002.

Following the Initial Public Offering, PTG contindets exploration and evaluation of the Sudburyagreperties from April 2001 to Augt
2001. A program of geological mapping, geochemsaahpling and prospecting was carried out acras$StidburyRiver Valley Propertie
This work outlined an area of increased platinurd palladium values on the Davi3anes block, and on a block held under option fa
private landholder under the Landholder AgreemeBysAugust 31, 2001, PTG had spent a total of $278,0n mineral exploration in t
Sudbury area. Only $25,000 in exploration was deteg in the Sudbury region from August 31, 200d Eebruary 28, 2002. On Febru
28,2002, the Company reduced its property holdingse Sudbury region and wrote off $160,000 inlesqtion and acquisition costs.

From April 2001 to August 2001, PTG continued ixpleration and evaluation in the Thunder Bay areattee South Legris and Peb
Properties. Exploration consisted of geologicappiag, geochemical sampling and prospecting andstiet of a drilling program at Sot
Legris. By August 31, 2001, PTG had spent a tofa$218,000 on the Thunder Bay Properties. WorkPyG in the summer of 20
discovered a palladium occurrence at surface orStheh Legris Property. PTG expanded its explonatitvestment in the South Lec
Property from August 2001 to November 2001 withriflidg program. The drilling intersected anomadoplatinum and palladium valt
below economic thresholds for grade thickness. Hewneurther exploration, including additional diri, was recommended at South Legris.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated Septemb@0R1,between PTG as the optionee and CanplataiResoCorporation (“Canplatsge
the optionor, PTG was granted an option to acquiréo a 51% interest in the Stucco Property, a [@ackage of 298 claim units of optior
unpatented mining claims and 65 units of stakedatenied mining claims. During Fiscal 2003, the @any terminated its option agreernr
on this property and recognized a write-down of glative costs incurred to date of $394,678.

On November 7, 2001, PTG entered into a loan ageaemith NMM for $100,000 secured against theidimgs of common shares of Pac
North West Capital Corp. The successful completibthe Amalgamation has made this loan irrelev

On December 20, 2001, PTG received Exchange appfmyaand completed, a non-brokered private plaseinof 1,327,500 flovthrougt
common shares at $0.25 per share. PTG was oldigateomplete $331,875 in exploration expenditimeSanada and has renounced the
deduction for such expenditures to the subscriteerthe flow through common shares.
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On January 29, 2002, PTG closed a non-brokeredterpacement for 250,000 common shares at $ @2Share.
Pursuant to an option agreement dated Februar@@®, 2he “Ruza AgreementBetween PTG as the optionee and Mr. Jerry Ruzée

optionor, PTG acquired the right and option to agsrto a 100% undivided interest in two mineralgaies (the “Levack Propertydgnd thi
“Windy Lake Properi’) along the outside of the western rim of the Sudi®mgin, Sudbury Mining District, Ontario. PTG alaoquired



100% interest in a third property (the “Cascademistic Property”)by staking one claim block covering a total of apgmately 224 hectar
(553 acres) along the western rim of the SudbursirBea February of 2002. In February 2002, PTGuieq an additional 28 claim units
staking 448 hectares (1,107 Acres) contiguousadNindy Lake Property. PTG holds 100% intereghase claims, which are not subjec
the Ruza Agreement.

The Amalgamation was completed on February 18, 2@ “The Amalgamation”.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated Februarg @2, (the “LB Agreement’petween the Company as the optionee and 686715t4
Ltd. as the optionor, the Company was granted tie and exclusive right and option to acquire u@tb00% undivided interest in 3,k
hectares (8,852 acres) in Nunavut, northern CafthddLB Gold Property”y paying $100,000 in cash and issuing 150,000 Com&hare
over a fouryear period. A 3% net smelter return royalty we ayranted to the vendor with a buy back optiorupfto 2% at a rate
$1,000,000 for each percentage point. In Augug062, the Company elected not to proceed witthéusrexploration on the LB Property ¢
the property was returned to the vendor. Acquisiiad exploration costs totaling $39,661 were egpdiby the Company in Fiscal 2002.

On April 24, 2002, the Company reported it had mrtanto a best efforts agency agreement with Raleifernational Securities Inc. as It
agent of up to 4,000,000 Common Shares at $0.25h#e. The Company closed this private placemerdune 6, 2002, issuing 3,200,
Common Shares at $0.25 per share for gross prooé&$90,000. A commission of $51,837 cash and@I®agents warrants exercisabl
$0.25 per share expiring June 6, 2003 were paddimection with this brokered private placement.

On May 30, 2002, the Company closed a bovkered private placement for 1,403,572 unitsCa2& per unit for gross proceeds of $393,
Each unit consisted of one Common Share and dhefiane share purchase warrant. Each full warnaay be exercised into one Comr
Share at a price of $0.36 per share expiring on 803y2003.

An option agreement dated May 30, 2002, as ame@dtaber 16, 2002, was entered into between the @oynand Goldrush Resources |
(“Goldrush) (formerly Arcata Resources Corporatiamspant to which the Company granted Goldrush éheand exclusive right and opti
to acquire 60% of its rights and interest in thentli Lake, Levack and Cascadptinistic Properties in the West Sudbury basin oftabio.
During the term of the option, Goldrush made paytsi¢o the Company of $3,000 and 200,000 sharelsadarther payment of $2,000 to
underlying vendors. This agreement was termin8eggtember 3, 2003 prior to Goldrush earning argrést in the properties.

On June 6, 2002, the Company closed a private plactof 3.2 million Common Shares at $0.25 peresifargross proceeds of $800,000
connection with this private placement, the Compmsyed brokersivarrants to purchase 319,000 Common Shares at $@r2share un
June 6, 2003. Issue costs related to this priplaisement totalled $70,038 and were recorded adwction of the gross proceeds.

On August 15, 2002, the Company entered into a sleadgreement with Africa Wide Mining (Pty) Ltd'Africa Wide”), a largely black-
owned South African mining company, on the Twedspald War Springs Properties. The industry stah@znt venture was structured o
30:70 basis, with Africa Wide having a 30% partitipg interest and the Company 70%. On SeptemBe?P@3, the Company agreed
negotiated settlement of the title dispute on thar\8prings property by reducing Africa Wideparticipation in the project from a 3
participating interest to a 15% interest carriedbankable feasibility, then granting the claimarit546 interest carried to bankable feasibi
The Company’s 70% interest remained unchanged."“I8m 8 — Financial Information, Significant Clugs”.

On August 16, 2002, the Company acquired a 100%rast in the Norman Property by staking two comtiguclaim blocks totaling -
hectares (118 acres) located approximately 40 ki rod Sudbury, Ontario along the northern rimtad Sudbury Basin.
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Between September 6 and October 3, 2002, the Comgzayuired a 100% interest in the Coldwater Prgpeytstaking three contiguous cle
blocks totalling 480 hectares (1,185 acres) locafggroximately 80 km northwest of Thunder Bay, @otand 30 km southwest of No
American Palladium’s Lac Des lles Pd-Pt Mine.

On October 3, 2002, the Company acquired a 100&¢dst in the Thumper Property by staking a sintdércblock totalling 128 hectar
(316 acres) located approximately 80 km northwédthoinder Bay, Ontario and 13 km southwest of N@utherican Palladiuns Lac des lle
Pd-Pt Mine.

Between September 6 and November 20, 2002, the @oynacquired a 100% interest in Thread Propertgthking 11 contiguous cla
blocks totalling 2,288 hectares (5,649 acres) Etapproximately 95 km north of Thunder Bay, Omtand 35 km east of North Americ
Palladium’s Lac Des lles Pd-Pt Mine.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated Septemb20(2 between the Company and Ledig Minerale Re@& H) (Pty) Ltd. (Ledig
Minerale”), the Company may earn a 55% interedtadig Minerales holdings on the Ledig Farm Property located e\tfiestern Bushve
area near Sun City, RSA, approximately 100 km weet of Johannesburg. As at February 28, 2003;dh&ngencies were not satisfied
the Ledig Agreement was terminated.

During Fiscal 2002, the Company focused its actjaisiefforts on the Republic of South Afric*RSA"). The Company formed a 10(



South African subsidiary named Platinum Group Me(®SA)(Pty) Ltd. for the purposes of holding madeiights and conducting operatic
on behalf of the Company in the RSA. The Compasg antered into an exclusive services contradh videoActiv Dynamic Geologic
Services, a South African company, whereby GeoAgtowvides expert geological consulting to the Conyptor the purposes of acquirit
exploring and developing mineral properties inR®A. This agreement was terminated effective Aug&s2003.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated June 3, 2802mended July 3, 2002, between the Company andNRtchell, Jeffrey Alexandt
Howard, James Robert Home Whitehouse and Christofaidrew Whitehouse, the Company was granted titg tb earn a 100% interes!
two properties located in the Northern Limb or Rdef area of the Bushveld Complex near Johannesbilhig properties are comprised of
2,396hectare War Springs Property and the 2,177 heTiaezspalk Property, both located on the postulextension of the Platreef near
PPRust Platinum Mine operated by Anglo Americartiflan Corporation Limited. See “Item 4lrformation on the Company, Republic
South Africa Properties”.

During Fiscal 2002, the Company focused its Camadigploration efforts on detailed geology, geoctstmiand drilling work on i
properties located near Thunder Bay, Ontario. fbteis of attention has been the Shelby Lake and #iwedes lles River Properties. ~
exploration and drilling programs were completed tone and on budget. Exploration results have bpesitive and further work
recommended. On the Agnew Lake Property locatext wfeSudbury, Ontario, Joint Venture partners fRadlorthwest Capital and Kaymr
Resources Limited, a subsidiary of Anglo AmericdatiRum Corporation Limited, conducted a $1.25 iwill second year explorati
program.

The Company acquired many of its Thunder Bay ardb8ry properties through its amalgamation with NMBee “The Amalgamation”At
February 18, 2002, these properties had a netsitiqnicost to the Company of $1,930,444. Including NMM properties, acquisition co
incurred and deferred during Fiscal 2002 totaled $2,517 (2001 -%71,722). Exploration and development costs dedeioethe year totale
$977,795 (2001 - $783,590). Of that amount, apprately $721,000 was incurred on the Companhunder Bay properties, approxima
$112,000 was incurred on the properties near Sydand approximately $114,000 was incurred on then@anys new South Africa
properties.

Approximately $31,000 was spent in the Northwestiltgies. Cost recoveries on mineral propertiesrdpuFiscal 2002 amounted to $198,
(2001 - $300,000). During the year, $1,090,87D120%$7,325) in net deferred costs relating to mahproperties was written off.
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Pursuant to an option agreement dated NovembedG2 Between the Company as the optionee and Mrd&ebilbert as the optionor, 1
Company was granted the sole and exclusive rightog@tion to acquire up to a 100% interest in anth&éFarmer Lake Property. The Far
Lake Property is comprised of 2 contiguous claimcks covering a total of approximately 496 hectdig225 acres) located approxima
100 km north of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 40 km @&dtiorth American Palladium’s Lac Des lles PtMine. On November 4, 2003,
Company made a decision not to proceed with thimomn the Farmer Lake Property as a result of tiegaxploration results. The prope
was returned to the vendor and acquisition andogapbn costs totaling $14,563.96 were expensed.

On November 26, 2002, the Company entered intoeS8abscription Agreement with Active Gold Group .L{tActive Gold”) pursuant t
which the Company acquired 1,461,904 shares atvarage price of $0.11 per share for a total supgor price of $160,327. Tt
represented approximately a 27% interest in AdBeéd at November 30, 2002. Active Gold is relatedhe Company by way of a comn
director and officer. Active Gold's Republic of @b Africa subsidiary, Active Gold Group RSA (Ptyimited (“AGG RSA”) had bee
working to acquire and successfully permit a 5,0@@tare exploration and development project narhedRooderand Gold Project.
project is located near the town of Potchefstronrthe central Witwatersrand Basin and is knowndstlgold bearing conglomerates of
Kimberly Reef Formation, based on the work of pgstrators. Subsequently, AGG RSA failed to ach&yermit for the Rooderand G
Project and has decided to abandon the projeaighréquidation and termination of all existing g and assets related to the project.
result, the Company has written off its investmamd advances totaling $211,725 at August 31, 2003.

On November 27, 2002, the Company entered intosh dféorts agency agreement with Pacific IntermatloSecurities Inc. and Haywac
Securities Inc. as clead agents for a private placement of up to 1@@®flow through units at $0.65 per flow throughtand 3,000,00
non-flow through units at $0.50 per unit. EachMlthrough unit consisted of one flow through Comn&irare and one ndiew througt
share purchase warrant. Each non-flow throughesparchase warrant is exercisable into one additioanflow through Common Share
$0.85 per share for a period of twelve months fadosing. Each nofflew through unit consisted one Common Share aretaidf of a sha
purchase warrant. Each whole share purchase wasrarercisable into one additional Common Shai®0a75 per share for a period of
months from closing. The Company closed this peiyaacement on December 23, 2002, issuing 1,18%|8%-through units and 2,062,5
non-flow through units for gross proceeds of $1,729. A commission of $118,939 cash and 304,3&ntEywarrants exercisable at $C
per share expiring December 23, 2004 was paidnmection with this brokered private placement.

On December 13, 2002, the Company entered intoptinroagreement to purchase 100% of the 296 he&tiamdsfontein property locat
adjacent to the Bafokeng Rasimone Platinum MintaénWestern Bushveld area of South Africa. The @amy’s interest in this property
been referred for settlement under the bindingtiation provisions of the agreement. See “ltemldfermation on the Company, Republic
South Africa Properties”.

On December 18, 2002, the Company announced thinglof a private placement for proceeds of $500,@0total of 1,000,000 units we



issued at a price of $0.50 per share. Each umiisted of one common share and one half of onermmshare purchase warrant. E
whole warrant is exercisable into one Common Sha price of $0.75 until December 17, 2004. Nwldir's fee or commission was p
with respect to this private placement.

On November 4, 2003, the Company closed a priviaigement for proceeds of $2,040,000. A total dfrRillion units were issued at a pr
of 85 cents per unit. Each unit consisted of onm@on Share and ort@lf of one share purchase warrant. Each wholeantis exercisab
into one Common Share at a price of $1.10 per simatieOctober 31, 2004. No finderfees or commissions were paid with respect &
private placement.

On November 6, 2003, the Company entered into éioropgreement with Western Prospector Group lddiaquire up to a 62% interes
the 3,017 hectare Lakemount property located neawv&y Ontario. Under the terms of the agreemeatCtbmpany may earn up to 51%
the property by completing $2.5 million in expldcat and development expenditures and by makingedt@gyments totalling $150,000 i
150,000 common shares by December 31, 2008. Adommitment to incur $100,000 in exploration work the project by December !
2003 has been met. The Company may acquire aricaddi 11% interest in the property by making arpant of $3.3 million to &
underlying holder. The leases comprising the Lakemh property are subject to net smelter returralt@s ranging from 1.5% to 3.0% an
net sales royalty on precious stones of 1.5%. dhegalties are subject to buy-out and buy-dowrvigions.
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Business Overvie\

The Companys Canadian property portfolio includes the Agnewe pint venture near Sudbury, claims along theterasim of the Sudbu
basin, the Lakemount Property near Wawa, Ontaribaafarge land position in the Lac Des lles PGHErigis Ontario. In South Africa, ti
Company has options to earn interests in the Wain@p Tweespalk, Onderspoort, Zandriviersprood &fandsfontein properties, all
which are located within the Bushveld Igneous Caxl'BIC"). The BIC is the source of most of the@md's platinum and is a significe
producer of palladium and other platinum group sg@GM’s) as well as chrome.

Exploration on the South Africa and Ontario proarare not affected by seasonal changes althou@mtario, heavy equipment may or r
not be moved over the soft ground for approximasetyweeks in the spring during thaw.

To conduct its exploration, the Company is depehdensubeontractors for drilling equipment and supplieshe3e are generally availa
but vary in price and immediacy of availability gedt to demand.

The Company does not earn any revenues from opesatit does, however, earn interest from cash siepoFor the three years en
August 31, 2003, the Company earned interest amel @dcome of $60,582 (Fiscal 2001), $23,028 (Fig2682) and $177,068 (Fiscal 20(
The Company has financed its operations pringiphitough the sale of its equity securities. While Company believes it has suffici
capital and liquidity to finance current operatipnsvertheless, its ability to continue operatindependent on the ability of the Compan
obtain additional financing. See “ltem 3 - Keydrhation — Risk Factors.”

At this time, the Company has limited financialoesces, and there is no assurance that additiandirig will be available to it for the furtt
exploration of its properties. The Company hakdelipon external financing, including the issuaatequity securities, to fund its activit
to date. The Company will continue to rely upontstorms of financing for the foreseeable futuidhe Company intends to obtain financ
for its planned work in 2004 through any or allj@ifht venturing projects, debt financing, equitpdncing or other means. There can b
assurance that the Company will succeed in obtgiadiditional financing, now or in the future. kaé to raise additional financing ol
timely basis could cause the Company to suspendpigsations and eventually to forfeit or sell, air fmarket value, its interests in
properties.

The material effects of government regulationsten@ompany’s business are identified in “Iltem 3yHKnformation — Risk Factors.”

Organizational Structure

The Company has one wholly owned subsidiary inaateal under the laws of The Republic of South Afumder the name Platinum Gr
Metals (RSA) (Proprietary) Limited (“PTM-RSA”). Ehregistered and records offices of PTM-RSA aratkedt at 4" Floor, Aloe Grove, 1¢
Louis Botha Avenue, Houghton Estate, Johannesi20Q0, South Africa. The principal business addiEsBTM-RSA is Suite 800, 4(
Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6T2L

Property, Plants and Equipmer

The Company's executive offices are located inegkrmiremises of approximately 2,359 square feetuite 800, 409 Granville Stre
Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 1T2, telephone (68995450. The Company began occupying this facilityDmtember 1, 2001 or
three-year lease and the current annual obliga&iapproximately $60,000. It is considered adegf@t current needs.

The Company has no significant plant or equipmentits operation. Equipment used for exploratiordolling is rented or contracted
needed
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Republic of South Africa Properties
Information italicized below has been excerptednfra Report dated February 20, 2004 entitlétbépendent Technical Report on
Elandsfontein, Onderstepoort, Tweespalk, War Spri@prlogsfontein) and Zandrivierspoort Platinunogarties, North West Province ¢
Limpopo Province, Republic of South Africa” by Mkl McWha, PrSciNat, of MSA Geoservices.

The South Africa Properties contain no known boflga@mmercial ore. All exploration programs condutby the Company to date h
been exploratory in nature.

Property Descriptions and Locatio
Elandsfonteir

This property is located 50km to the north of thern of Rustenburg (a town 120km to the Naktbst of Johannesburg, Republic of S
Africa. This property is centred at Latitude °26’ (S) and Longitude 2704’ (E) and the mineral rights cover 296.9682 Hakient.

Onderstepoort

This property is located 50km to the north of thern of Rustenburg (a town 120km to the Naktbst of Johannesburg, Republic of S
Africa. This property is centred on Latitude °27’ (S) and Longitude 2702’ (E) and the mineral rights cover 1,085.2700 iH&xtent.

Tweespalk

This property is located near the town of Mokopéoemally known as Potgietersrus), approximately) Zdometres north of Johannesbt
Republic of South Africa, in the Limpopo (NorthelPmpvince. The Tweespalk Property is centred ontuge 23 °42’ (S) and Longitude 28
54’ (E) and the mineral rights cover 2176,7861 IHaektent.

War Springs

The War Springs (English translation of the farrmm@aOorlogsfontein) property is located just to soeith of the town of Mokopane (form
known as Potgietersrus), approximately 200 kilowemorth of Johannesburg, Republic of South Afiitéhe Limpopo (Northern) Provinc
The War Springs property is centred on 24’ (S) and Longitude 2902'(E) and the mineral rights cover 2,395.9798 Haktent.

Zandrivierspoort

This property is located 50km to the north of thern of Rustenburg (a town 120km to the Naktbst of Johannesburg, Republic of S

Africa. This property is centred on Longitude °© 00’ 00” (E) and Latitude 2% 20’ 00” (S) and the mineral rights cover Portion 1 wt
measures 175.8503 Ha and Portion 2 which measw2@$546 Ha in extent.
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Figure 1— Zandrivierspoort, Onderstepoort and Elandsfonteinperty
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Obligations

Elandsfonteir

A Prospecting and Option Agreement was signed obBd@mber 2002 to purchase 100% of the mineraltsigi portions 12 and 14 of t



farm Elandsfontein 102 JQ (296 ha) by first payit,000 ZAR to the mineral rights holders in pragipg fees. The contract also gave F
the option to purchase the surface rights at 6,58 per hectare or portion thereof upon the grantha mining permit. Prospecting fee:
150,000.00 ZAR were paid. PTM was also obligated #00,000 ZAR exploration programme. That programmommenced in Februz
2003.

PTM exercised the option provided in the optionesgnent by way of written notice on June 26, 2068. 0% of the purchase price for
mineral rights was later tendered in terms of thgreement. The vendors on 8 October 2003 claimed tthe purchase price w
unascertained or unascertainable and that the agwe® was therefore void. Among the clauses caubmdasis for the disagreement wi
clause requiring PTM to pay a base price of 43 Z8R7.70) per tonne of open castable economic resoan the property, to a minimun
4,000,000 ZAR. PTM was also required to pay 4.3®R Z%r tonne on any economic underground resourc¢thattime of a minir
authorization.

The parties agreed to refer the matter for Expegtddmination as provided for in the agreement. tTgracess is now underway.
Onderstepoort

Option agreements have been signed with the ovaf@he mineral rights on portions 3, 4, 5, 6, 8,d 15. The agreements are valid fi
period of three years from the granting of a Pragpey Permit. The option agreement over portionsn8 8 require a payment of C$1,(
after signing, C$1,000 after the granting of thegpecting permit and C$1,000 on each anniversarnyageeement. The option agreement
portions 4, 5 and 6 requires a payment of 5,014 A& signing, 3,500 ZAR on the first anniversah@00 ZAR on the second anniver:
and 4,500 ZAR on the third anniversary. The optgreement for portions 4, 5, 14 and 15 requirgsagment of 117,000 ZAR after sigr
and payments of 234,000 ZAR and 390,000 ZAR wiithatays of the effective date of 1 March 2004.

Tweespalk and War Springs (Oorlogsfontein)

The freehold title to Tweespalk (Registered as $padk 733 LR) is held by the State (Republic oftlS@édrica). War Springs has be
subdivided and numerous small landowners holdrgehbld title and an ongoing entitlement to thegemds of future mining.

The commercial obligations regarding Tweespalk &vdr Springs are recorded in a Notarial Prospectisgd Option Contract (protoc
1026, Deneys Reitz, Chris Stevens, Johannesbury) BSween Saenger and Sacke Minerals (partnersmg) Platinum Group Mete
Limited and notarized on 23 June 2002. The agretisemith a private partnership that has broughgjédher previously fragmented mine
rights. PTM has a thregear period in which option monies of US$2.50/HaJ®%$3.25/Ha are required to be paid. The costsxpfagatior
are for PTM5s cost and PTM is obliged to spend a minimum ddQ,@0.00 ZAR (one million South African Rand) imitbne year of tr
effective date (date of notarization and amendmtraseafter). If the mineral rights were purchasadyear three the cost would be &
million USD for War Springs and $1.5 million USD foweespalk. PTM has also agreed to pay a 1% Neft8nReturn Royalty (NSR) to-
mineral rights holders (including the landownersipgect to PTMS right to purchase the NSR at any time for $1@0@0,USD. The miner
rights holders may require PTM to purchase the NBn the commencement of commercial productioi$ig00,000 USD. The effect
date is defined as the date of the grant of a pgospg permit from the DME. A 5% findsrfee is due to the consulting firm GeoActiv fs
assistance in the War Springs and Tweespalk adiunsi

In November 2002 PTM entered into a Joint Ventugee@ment with Africa Wide Mining (Pty) Ltd., a letg HDSA qualified South Afric
mining company, on the Tweespalk and War Springpétties. The industry standard joint venture Ww#l structured on a 30:70 basis, v
Africa Wide having a 30% participating interest aR@M 70%.
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Zandrivierspoort

The commercial obligations required over the projae included in the Notarial Prospecting Contrasigned on 9 April 2003, (protoc
254, Salomina Adriana Groenewald, Pretoria, RSA)which PTM is obliged to pay (over a period of #hrgears) ZAR25.00/Ha
ZAR35.00/Ha as prospecting fees.

Survey

Elandsfonteir

Elandsfontein is registered with the deeds offRE84) under Elandsfontein 102, registration numk@y North West Province and meast
296.9682 (two hundred and ninety six comma (Sofiilbaéy vernacular for the decimal point) nine thamsl six hundred and eighty tv
hectares. The farm can be located on the Governti&0t000 Topo-Cadastral Sheet 2527AC Sun Cit) Elition 1996) which is publish
by the Chief Directorate Surveys and Mapping (PievBag X10, Mowbray 7705, RSA, Phone: (RSA)-214388), Fax: (RSA)-21-689351
or e-mail: cdsm@.sli.wcape.gov.yarhe approximate coordinates are 205’ 00" (E) and 25°26’ 00" (S).

Onderstepoort



Onderstepoort is registered with the Deeds OffR8A) under Onderstepoort 98, registration divisiéy Northern Province and measu
1,085.2700 (one thousand and eighty five comman{pbienty-seven) hectares. The farm can be locatethe Government 1:50,000 Topo-

Cadastral Sheet 2527AC Sun City'{&dition 1996) which is published by the Chief Diczate, Surveys and Mapping. The approximate co
ordinates (WGS84) are 202’ 00" (E) and 25°27’ 00" (S).

Tweespalk

Tweespalk is registered with the Deeds Office (R8#)er Tweespalk 733, registration division LR, tNern Province and measul
2176,7861 (two thousand one hundred and seventyxa@ixma (point) seven eight six one) hectares. &@nm ftan be located on t

Government 1:50,000 Topo-Cadastral Sheet 2328B@a@il(2" Ed., 1983) which is published by the Chief Direater Surveys ar
Mapping. The approximate -ordinates (WGS84) are 2&4’ 00" (E) and 23°42’ 00” (S).

War Springs

War Springs (Oorlogsfontein) is registered with teeds Office (RSA) under Oorlogsfontein 45, regfisin division KS, Northern Provin
and measures 2,395.9798 (two thousand three hurafrddhinety five comma (point) nine seven ninetpiggctares. The farm can be loce
on the Government 1:50,000 To@adastral Sheet 2429AA Mokopane (3rd Ed., 2000¢hwvis published by the Chief Directorate, Sur
and Mapping. The approximate co-ordinates (WGS8428°54’ 00" (E) and 23°42’ 00” (S). The western portion of the farm is also fc
on the Government 1:50,000 Topo-Cadastral Shee8BBZTinmyne (29 Ed., 1981). The publisher of the plan is as indidaabove. Tw
Survey General diagrams are also available, refeeerL,G Nr. A. 2823/57 (1957) and S.G. NO. 1616/8898) that show the farm co-
ordinates and portions

Zandrivierspoort

Zandrivierspoort is registered with the Deeds @GffigRSA) under Zandrivierspoort 210, registratiowision JP, Northern Province a
measures 527.5546 (five hundred and twenty sevemeo(South African vernacular for the decimal ppfive thousand five hundred &
forty six) hectares. The farm can be located onGbeernment 1:50,000 To-Cadastral Sheet 2526BD Mabaalstad!{&dition 1996) whic
is published by the Chief Directorate, Surveys Mapping. The approximate co-ordinates (WGS84) af€ B0’ 00” (E) and 25° 20’
00" (S).
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Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrasttuce and Physiograph

Topography, elevation and vegetation

PTM's properties are located on a central plateau cluteazed by extensive savannah, with vegetatiosisting of grasses and shrubs v
few trees. The climate is temperate with low rdirgfiad high summer temperatures, resulting in ai-arid environment.

The terrain for all properties is almost flat. Fre War Springs and Tweespalk total elevation fédi@nly 60m with elevations ranging fr
1020 to 1080m. For the Elandsfontein property thtaltelevation relief is greater since promineriishoccur in the northernmost portion
the Property. Topographical relief is minor limitéal low gently sloped hills. Elevations range fra680 to 1156m with an average of 11(
on the Elandsfontein and neighbouring properties.

Acces:

South Africa has a very large wastablished mining industry. Equipment and sesviegjuired for mineral exploration or mining projs
are readily available. Infrastructure is well estmhed with abundant wethaintained highways and roads as well as elecyridistributior
networks and telephone systems.

The Elandsfontein, Onderstepoort and Zandriviersp&yoperties are easily accessible from Johanneghy travelling 120 kilometrt
northwest on the Regional Road 24 to the town stdilburg and then a further 35 kilometres to thepRrties. Numerous gravel roads cr
both properties, which provides for easy access.résort of Sun City is located approximately 10rarth of the Elandsfontein Property.

The Elandsfontein property borders Anglo PlatinuB&okeng-Rasimone Platinum Mine.

The Tweespalk and War Springs Properties are easitgssible from Johannesburg by travelling nortittee N1 highway.

The Tweespalk property is located approximatelyk#i@metres north of the town of Mokopane (Potgietes) and 25 kilometres north
Anglo Platinun's Potgietersrust Platinum Mine. The property isilyagccessed from Mokopane (Potgietersrus) by iiene north along
Regional Road 35, which crosses the property. A highway to Polokwane (Pietersburg) follows thethern boundary of the town
Rustenburg and numerous other gravel roads on tbpesty provide for easy acce:

The War Springs property is located approximatelkildmetres south of the town of Mokopane (Potgsetss) and 17 kilometres south



Anglo Platinun’s Potgietersrust Platinum Mine. The N1 highway sessthe property, as well as numerous gravel reaasprovide for eas
access.

Climate

The climate is mild throughout the year and carclassified as senarid. South Africa has summer from November to IABouth Africal
winter runs from May to October. In summer the dareshot and generally sunny in the morning, witteimoon showers or thunderstor
Daytime temperatures can rise to°C (100°F) and night temperatures drop to aroundCL%68-77F). The afternoons can be humid
winter, days are dry, sunny and cool to warm, wieNening temperatures drop sharply. Daytime tempeea generally reach 20°C (68°
and can drop to as low as 5°C (4F) at night.
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History

History of Platinum Mining in the Bushveld Comp

The first record of platinum occurrence in the B&svin 1906 when there was a report of assays afrobrore containing 1.86 g/t Pt. The {
discovery was in 1923 when platinuquartz bodies were found near Naboomspruit, leadlinthe discovery of the Waterberg Deposit, w
was mined, between 1923-26. In 1924 Dr. Hans Mégediscovered platinurbearing dunite pipes at Mooihoek, Driekop and Omaaht, a
well as the Merensky Reef on the farm Maandagsbodke Eastern Limb of the BC. From there Merensdged the Reef north and south
some 80 kilometres. In 1925 he moved to Potgietensthere he found what was for a long time takdpeta similar layer, the Platreef. T
led to a shortived mining operation. During 1925 and 1926 helexed the Western Limb of the BC near Rustenbuttgre furthe
extensions of the Merensky Reef were discovered.

The start of actual mining of PGE’s had been dedagg the complex mineralogy of the very refractorgs. It was not till the 1928'tha
suitable metallurgical techniques had been devealdpeviably extract PGE. Platinum mining on a large scale began arouné6l@nd b
1930 seven mining operations had started in Sofitiead Initial production was almost exclusivetpiin the Merensky Reef. It was not L
1970 that the first mine (Lonmin) on the UG2 platinreef began production; largely because of metgital difficulties. The current maj
South African producers began production in thdofeing years: Anglo Platinum (1926), Implats (196Rdnmin (1970), Northam (199
Aquarius (1999) and Southern Era (20C

Most of the platinum mining has been from undergtbaperations on the Western and Eastern LimbeeBIC. There is only one mine,
opencast Potgietersrust Platinum Mine (PPRust)trenPlatreef on the Northern Limb of the BC. Anglatinum began mining at PPRus
1992 and ore processing began in 1993. To datésh o6 eight open pits have been developed.

Anglo Platinun's BafokengRasimone Mine (BRPM) began construction in 199 ddncentrator plant began operations ahead of dale
with the first concentrate produced on 12 Decemb@$9. On August 12, 2002 Anglo Platinum and theaR8afokeng Nation (RBI
announced that an “in principleagreement had been reached to form a 50:50 Jointwe to mine the Boschkoppie and adjoining Stft
farms owned by Anglo Platinum and the Royal Bafgkeation respectively. The workings at BRPM willused to gain access to the f:
Styldrift. In addition to the existing infrastructy a new decline shaft and a 230 000 tons per moancentrator capacity upgrade will all
the Joint Venture to attain a steady productiori@pated at 485 000 ounces of refined platinumgemum some 5 years after commence
of the Joint Venture.

Although there have been a few slumps, most notb®R¢-1932 (Great Depression) 1958-1963 and 19874 Platinum mining ar
exploration has increased steadily to a point wh8oaith Africa is the dominant platinum producer%’6f world supply — 2002) and ¢
major palladium producer (45% of world supply — 2D0The BC contains the workllargest known deposits of platinum group mi
(PGMs) comprising more than 55% of the worlds kn&®@M resources.

Prior Ownership and previous owners explorat

Exploration History of the Elandsfontein, Ondersted, and Zandrivierspoort propertie

Because the Elandsfontein, Onderstepoort, and Zeiedspoort properties are privately owned recowmd reports of previous explorati
are largely unknown. The area has been geologicalbpped at a scale of 1:250,000 by the South AfriCauncil for Geoscience. T
mapping shows the BC traversing the Elandsfontespgrty.

Two paper borehole logs, recording drilling on tRé&andsfontein property by JCI in 1966, have bearated in the open file section of
Council for Geoscience in Pretoria.

The Elandsfontein property adjoins the Anglo Platin Bafokendrasimone Property that is currently in productiohnglo Platinun
previously mined the UG2 platinum reef to withifeea tens of metres (approximately 30m) of the E&ordein property boundary (this of
pit is now filled in and rehabilitated). The profed strike of the UG2 reef is expected to extetalthre Elandsfontein propert
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In 2002 mapping and a ground magnetometer surveRtyal Mineral Services CC on behalf of the ori¢itendholders indicated ¢
approximate 600 m strike length of the UG2 reefrsea@face under soil and clay cover.

A drilling programme was conducted on the propértthe past yeai
Exploration History of the Tweespalk Prope

Because the Tweespalk property is privately oweednds and reports of previous exploration are wwm. The area has been geologic
mapped at a scale of 1:250,000 by the South Afriéauncil for Geoscience (Map No. 232&ietersburg covers the Tweespalk area).
mapping shows the BC footwall contact and the Bkitiraversing the Tweespalk property. The onlgoéxploration that PTM has a rep
for is a High Resolution Airborne Magnetic and Radetric Survey completed by GAP Geophysics in 200RTMs behalf covering tt
Tweespalk Property. A total of 720 liker of survey were completed with lines spaced Zpant and a mean terrain clearance of 5C
Magnetic data was collected every 110f second (approximately every 5 m) and radiometsita collected every second (approxime
every 50 m). Interpretation of this data indicatke BC/basement contact as well as the overlyipgdd Zone and Main Zone BC mafic |
contacts. Such information will be most usefydlamning for future exploration programs designedrace and explore the platinum bear
Platreef.

Exploration History of the War Springs Prope

Because the War Springs property is privately owmedords and reports of previous exploration amkmown. The area has be
geologically mapped at a scale of 1:250,000 bySbath African Council for Geoscience (Map No. 2— Nylstroom covers the War Sprir
area). This mapping shows the BC and approximatiety of the platinum bearing Platreef zone travegstme War Springs property.
Geological Setting

Bushveld Igneous Complex Geol¢

Units of the Bushveld Complex underlie the genarad, including the Project farms. The Bushveld @lexwas intruded about 2,060 milli
years ago into rocks of the Transvaal Supergroug aomprises a basal mafic phase and an upper ab@b@ the latter being large
granites. The total estimated extent of the Bush@eimplex is 66,000k The mafic rocks of the Bushveld Complex host layeinsin PGEs
as well as chromium and vanadium, and constitutentbrld's largest known repository of these metals.

The mafic rocks, collectively termed the Rustentuargered Suite (RLS) are divided into five zomesn fthe top downwards the Upper, M:
Critical, Lower and Marginal Zones.

Marginal Zone

The Marginal Zone comprises generally finer grainedks than those higher up in the sequence anehadbntains host/countmpck
xenoliths and hybrid mixtures of magmatic and medasentary rocks. The zone is variable in thicknasd is absent in some areas.
known economic mineralisation is present in the.uni

Lower Zone

The Lower Zone is dominated by pyroxenite with @ased olivinerich lithologies including harzburgites and duniteMinor chromitite
segregations are present in some areas.

Critical Zone
The Critical Zone is characterized by regular anflen finescale rhythmic, or cyclic, layering consisting afnwulus chromite with

pyroxenites and olivir-rich rocks. It hosts the majority of the chroneitiayers of the Bushveld Complex, including theem®@aring UG:
Chromitite and the Merensky Reef.
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The uppermost cycles of the Critical Zone are theredvisky and Bastard cycles. The former contaiesRBEbearing Merensky Reef
variably pegmatoidal pyroxenitic interval, with ooe two thin chromitite stringers or layers. Thesfénterval comprises a sulphidezaring
zone, generally in the order 0-1.5m in thickness. The Merensky Reef can be tratmdy strike for 280km and is estimated to cor
60,000t of platinu-group metals to a depth of 1,200m below surf



The top of the Critical Zone is generally takenths top of the Giant Mottled Anorthosite (GMA), iceession of between 50 and ¢
comprising mottled and spotted anorthosites.

Main Zone

The overlying Main Zone consists of a sequenceifes grading upwards into gabbronorites. Sevenarker horizons are present, the ¢
of which are the Main Mottled Anorthosite (MMA),eTRorphyritic Cluster Norite (PCN) and the Upper ftled Anorthosite (UMA).
ubiquitous pyroxenite layer is present towardsttigeof the zone, termed the Pyroxenite Marker.

Upper Zone

The base of the overlying Upper Zone is definethbyfirst appearance of cumulus magnetite abovePyrexenite Marker. There are
magnetite layers in the Upper Zone; the fourth tie sequence from the base is the Main Magnetiter layhich is the most latera
continuous. The immediate footwall to this magaetibmprises anorthosite, often containing minombide mineralisation. The Mg
Magnetite is mined in both the western and eadBershveld for its vanadiur

Economic Geology of the Bushv

The BC contains significant deposits of chromeanthdium in addition to PGM: In 2000 South Africa ranked No.1 in the worlddeerve
of PGM'’s, chrome ore and of vanadium. Although P3Mtimary exploration target will be PGM'on these properties, the poss
occurrence of chrome or vanadium deposits on theperties will also be kept in mind during the lexation programme. One of t
anticipated prime targets on the Elandsfontein, &stepoort and Zandrivierspoort properties is th&2 Chromitite Layer, which contai
significant PGM concentrations and chromite as gobyduct.

World setting for Magmatic Platinum Group ElemeRGM) deposits

The Platinum Group Metals or elements (PGM'include platinum, palladium, osmium, iridiumdamuthenium. Although they ¢
concentrated in a variety of geological setting&NP-dominant deposits are associated mainly withiertafultramafic intrusives.

Nine-tenths of the current world production of PGES from PGM dominant ores, with the bulk of temainder recovered from magmi
nickel-copper sulphide or alluvial deposits. Mostiadian production of PGE’s is recovered as a bgeorct from the nicketopper sulphid
deposits of the Sudbury area, although a significanount of PGE’s, mainly palladium, is produceahfrthe Lac des lles Mine.

There are two principal deposit types of magmati@MPdeposits. The most important type consists efftype or stratiform PGM deposi
such as the Merensky Reef and UG2 Chromitite Laj¢he Bushveld Igneous Complex, South Africa, taedJM Reef of the Stillwat
Complex, Montana. The second type, referred tosaper solidus breccia" type (SIB type), is exenegliby the Lac des llles Mine n
Thunder Bay , Ontario and River Valley PGM minesation near Sudbury, Ontario.

Reef and sup-solidus intrusion breccidype PGM deposits share a number of geologicalifeat but they contrast with each other in se\
important respects. Rebfpe deposits occur as conformable zones withinipdayers in large layered mafic to ultramafiatiusions such ¢
the Bushveld and Stillwater complexes that extendeins to hundreds of kilometres. The 8lBe deposit at Lac des lles forms irreg
crosscutting zones associated with pegmatitic mafid ultramafic dykes and complex intrusion brescia a funnekhaped mafic
ultramafic intrusion about 10 km across.
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The majority of PGM deposits and their hosting eraftramafic intrusions or intrusive complexes areePambrian in age; the Tertia
Skaergard Intrusion is an exception. For régfe deposits, the host intrusions are generallyentiban 200 Ma younger than the country r
reflecting a stable cratonic setting at the timeeaiplacement. In contrast, the Lac des lles intmugind supersolidus intrusion brecdige
mineralisation are nearly coeval with adjacent gitas; and regional granitoid rocks are only ca. Bia older.

Genetic models for PGM-dominant deposits involvth bnagmatic and volatile-related processes. A aurm@odel for reefype deposi
invokes injection of a plume of new mafic magme atarge, densitgtratified magma chamber. During the subsequertiui@nt mixing
minor amounts of immiscible sulphide liquid separand scavenge PG&from the magma. With further cooling and cryation, the
PGM-enriched sulphides descend to the base of thesian, forming a PGMich layer, the PGM reef. Pegmatitic textures anditous
minerals common to PGM reefs are likely productexafess volatiles produced by the crystallizatibassociated volatileich phases in tr
magma.

Magmatic Chromite Deposits

South Africa has about 80% of the world total cheoreserves; most of it derived from the BC oresnkined with Zimbabwe, South
Africa has 90% of global chrome reserves and predua0% of the world's chromite o



Chromite seams were deposited along specific magtagers during the formation of the layered Busdvgneous Complex. These chrol
seams and layers can extend for many tens of kitesjewhich result in the very large deposits thatve been discovered. Exten
geological studies throughout the BC have establighe stratigraphic location of the chromitite ¢ag.

Chromite is mined primarily from the UG2, LG and Mromitite seams of which only the UG2 contaigsigicant amounts of PGM’s.

Samancor is the world’largest integrated ferrochrome producer operatigyen mines on the Eastern Limb of the BC (JagdWsntrose
Doornbosch, Steelpoort, Annex Grootboom and Twésfgn and five mining operations on the Westermthiof the BC (Waterklor
Buffelsfontein, Elandsfontein, Millsell and Mooinddines). Samancor has sufficient reserves to sttppoarent mining activity for well ovi
200 years at current rates of extraction. Sevetatipum mines produce chromite as a by-product.

Two former chrome producers, Ruighoek and Sandspate located about 25 km northwest of the Elamuisiin Property in the Weste
Limb. The Grasvally Mine is a former chrome produoeated about 10 km southwest of P s War Springs Property in the Northern Lim

Magmatic T-Fe-V Oxide Deposits

Magmatic T-Fe-V Oxide Deposits are in general formed by ttegpessive differentiation of liquids residual franorthositenorite magm
which leads to late enrichment in Fe and Ti andTypically plagioclase crystallization results inrezentrations of Fe and Ti in resid
magmas which typically crystallize to form ferradlies and ferrogabbros. Layers form by crystal lsggtand accumulation on the floors
magma chambers and the disseminated deposits fexdxto have formed isitu. Two genetic models have been suggested; isation
of the crystal cumulates into cracks or fractureemplacement as an Fe-Ti-oxideh immiscible melt with little silica. The keyntol is the
development of a late, separate Ti andrie&-liquid from a fractionating magma under statdenditions. In layered intrusions such as
BC, the titaniferous magnetite seams are commoithinsthe upper stratigraphic levels of the complé4thin the BC the vanadium depo
are associated with the 24-magnetite layers founithé Upper Zone of the Complex.

South Africa is the only vanadium producer in Adriproducing 17,000 t in 2000 from reserves estuat 3 Mt. Production in South Afri
is dominated by Highveld Steel and Vanadium andt&iic Minerals Corporation (Stratcor). Highveld exates the Vantra mine, near Br
Xstrata also have two mining operations, Vantecth Rhovar
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Lower Zone PGE Mineralisation on the Northern Li

PGM mineralisation occurs within ultramafic rock$ the Lower Zone of the Rustenburg Suite, locatethé southernmost portion of
Northern limb. This mineralisation occurs at a lovgtratigraphic level in the BC compared to the esky, UG2 and Platreef mineralis
horizons, which occur within the Critical Zone oaM Zone of the Rustenburg Suite. This represemteva PGE exploration target on !
Northern Limb. One such zone about 20 m thick dostap to 0.24% Ni, 0.11% Cu, 1.4 ppm Pt and 1.t @dgpd (Hulbert and vc
Gruenewaldt, 1982).

In 2002 Pan Palladium drilled two PGE mineralisazhes of this type on their Grass Valley Propertgl§gruit Farm) on the southernm
portion of the Northern Limb, south of the War 8gs Property. The mineralisation occurs within ¥aspruit Pyroxenite, which is witt
the Lower Zone of the BC. Significant chromite osdn the overlying Drummondlea Harzburgi@romite, which contains two chromi
seams that were mined by Samancor on the adjoifdegveld and Grass Valley Farms. See Section Adijdm®perties for detalils.

Satellite Bodies of Lower and Critical Zone BC

Satellite bodies of Lower and Critical Zone rockswr within the footwall rocks underlying the B@&n example occurs on the Zwartfon
Farm. This body contains two 30 cm chromitite seaittsin a 900 m thick silicate sequen

Footwall Base Metal Mineralisatio

Recently base metal, cop-rich sulphide mineralisation has been discovereduodng along or near the footwall contact of th&€ BThe
sulphide accumulations are often associated withcstral traps within the footwall rocks. On the @efontein Farm massive, coppéch
sulphide veins occur in the immediate footwall Hiels) with similar veins occurring within the untigng iron formation. Such mineralisati
was originally thought to be hydrothermal in origout is now interpreted to represent footwall, effsineralisation. Similar coppeieh
sulphide veins have been discovered on the TowslBadn.

Base Metal Mineralisation Associated with Ultranedfitrusives in the Footwa
Ultramafic intrusives occurring within the basemeobtwall Transvaal Supergroup rocks have been arpl for base-metal (NGu)
potential. These intrusives are postulated to hafferent origin from the nearby BC intrusives.2001 Falconbridge drilled two holes

the Uitloop 2 ultramafic body, situated on the Ttamals farm north of the War Springs Property.

Hydrothermal Golc



The Pilanesberg Gold deposit is located on portiafisthe Zandrivierspoort and Mahobieskraal Farm® Bm west of Sun City a
approximately 7 km west of PTM’s Elandsfontein rop

The deposit consists of a series of en echelorfematis quartz lodes, localised along a NW to NN®@hding fault zone that separa
quartzite’s of the Pretoria Group in the west from the BGhe east. Much of the gold is concentrated in loaesociated with a subsidiz
fault within the Bushveld norites, parallel to thmin bounding fault. Government geology maps siisvfault and other faults in this ser
as extending and crossing PT&/Elandsfontein Property. Oxidation extends to ptdeof 40 m, with transition to unoxidised ore & 15
depth.

The goldbearing quartz lodes have been traced for 1,400angastrike and drilled to a depth of 200 m. Loti&kness varies widely, w
some quartz blows reaching up to 22 m across. rafic dykes of different generations (both pre- podtquartz lodes) trend parallel to t
fault zone. The mineralisation is believed to bst-BC.

Surface Weathering

Surface weathering of both the Merensky and UG2sReet0 m or more is quite common. Historical opé&mining of such weathered zo
indicates an increase in Pt/Pd for both the Mergn8lp to 5) and UG2 (up to 3.2) Weathering destrbhes sulphides and remobilises
PGE's (preferentially Pd and Rh). Secondary silicatamerals may encapsulate some of the PGE'’s.
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Structural Geology

Large-scale regional faults, such as the Steelpoort andtéhburg Faults, and the Brits Graben, are weltwoented. These structures
well as local structures, have been mapped by thehSAfrican Council for Geoscience at a 1:250:G@le. Other structural studies h:
been published in geological journals. The preveéemmagnitude and density of faulting varies acribgs complex. The area south of
Pilanesberg Alkaline Complex in the vicinity of P's Elandsfontein property includes a number of fathit have affected the locatior
geological units. Similarly several faults have bheeapped in the vicinity of PTs War Springs Property.

Recent studies have suggested that fault structhee® influenced the Platreef mineralisation to r@ager degree than was previot
recognized. Regionally there are two principal fadts that were active before, during and afteritiirusion and fractionation of the BC.

Dolerite dykes (up to 30 m wide) and lamprophyrkedy(up to 2 m wide) commonly occur throughoutB8e Pegmatite dykes or veins
also not uncommon. Late hydrothermal quartz-feltisipaveins have been reported associated with therdef.

Potholes

Potholing is a term applied to subsidence or slwstipictures, occurring within both the Merensky Raed UG2 Chromitite. Potholes ¢
generally circular areas, of varying diameter a favetres to hundreds of metres across, where cuenldgers appear to have sunk into
underlying units. When the reefs are affected, thayand pinch out on the edges of the potholeraagt be thicker towards the centre of
structure. “Potholes” are an important structuraddture of the Merensky and UG2 Reefs.

The phenomenon sometimes leads to ground contoblgms during mining, related to increased fraatgriand alteration, possibly due
altered cooling histories and the passage of hyronal fluids. PGE grade distribution is often dipted, although the overall PGE cont
of the potholed area is reportedly close to undtstd reef. The degree of potholing can be as me@b&o, as is the case at Lebowa Platil
Mines (previously Atok Mine). Many of the poth@es not mined

Dunite Pipes

Transgressive units of coargeained ultramafic and mafic pegmatite bodies ocitumany areas. These include platiniferous dupitees
which have been identified in both the Western Bastern Limbs. Mining has been confined to fouegjmamely Onverwacht, Mooihc
Driekop and Maandagshoek, all in the Eastern Lirvbning of the pipes ceased in the early 1930s. Betidn was insignificant |
comparison to that from ore bodies in the layeredks. However, some of the highest ore gradeserBth (up to 30 ppm Pt) have b
recorded from the pipes. The Pipes are perpendidol¢he layering in the enclosing Rustenburg Stoteks and are surrounded by envelc
of olivine-bronziteplagioclase. The study of chromite in the pipedciaugs that chromitite layers continue across thigep. It has bee
suggested that the pipes formed by reaction ofdtiidrmal solutions streaming through the layeregussce. Similar dunite pipes have k
discovered in the Stillwater Complex, another lal@gered igneous complex with significant PGM ressrlocated in the Western U.S.A.

Alteration and Post Depositional Structur

Ultramafic Pegmatoid

This is the term applied to (local) replacementhef original lithologies, caused by iron rich ultrefic replacement pegmatoids (IRUP),
late stage in the emplacement history. These floidg variably modify the PGE distribution, as wedl obliterate the BC stratigraphy a



structure. The resultant pipe shaped, discordaohcordant or irregularly shaped disruptive IRUP lieslcommonly occur above, below
at the reef horizons.

IRUP bodies are iro-rich, generally containing abundant magnetite. bfiml assemblages usually include clinopyroxenejiredi and FeFi
oxides. They have variable diameters up to 300esetviushroom shaped bodies are common. In genbekeplacement process seerr
prefer the anorthositic rocks. The P-chromite layers resist the replacement processsamples of replaced reef still return significarGE
values, however, metallurgical recoveries can lmhioed significantly.
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Mining is disrupted due to the difficulty in iddging the reef zone. Becausemore limited mining of the Merensky and UG2 Reefthé
eastern lobe of the Bushveld Complex, relativatie lis known about regional variations within theefs. The precious metal, nickel .
copper grades reported generally appear to be epoopbut the depth of the Reefs and their faultetine, together with a large kno
reserve base in the western lobe, have resultéichited exploration.

Geology of the Elandsfontein, Onderstepoort anddrigierspoort Properties

These properties adjoin Anglo Platinum’s Bafoké&tasimone Mine and Styldrift property on the Westeémb of the BC. Anglo Platint
have opencast mined the UG2 horizon up to the Bfamdein boundary on the Bafokeng-Rasimone Mine.

The area has been geologically mapped at a scale2%0,000 by the South African Council for Geoscee Map No. 2526 Rustenbury
covers the Elandsfontein area. The geological nrmalicates the PTM properties to be underlain by ofafiramafic rocks of the Rustenbi
Suite of the BC bounded to the northeast by thenBdberg Alkaline Complex and bounded to the westsauthwest by faults and footv
rocks of the Transvaal Supergroup, predominaterigite’s of the Magaliesberg Formation. The Metlgnand UG2 platinunbearing Ree’

occur in the area. The regional dip in this portiofithe Western Limb is 220 the NE.

Structurally the area occurs at a “hinge” zone inet BC where there is a marked swing in the strikéhe BC from northwest to west-
northwest. This “hinge” zone is characterized bgexies of NW and a series of N to NE trending $atllat transect the BC.

There is a Dunite Pipe intruding the BC on the Baftg-Rasimone Mine side of the Elandsfontein baynda

Mapping and a ground magnetometer survey by Royiakmdl Services CC in 2002 on behalf of the origitendholders indicated ¢
approximate 600 m strike length of the UG2 reefosed on surface continuing on strike for 1200mhes NW from the Bafokerigasimon
Mine.

On the western side one of the NW-trending faslexpected to cut off the Rustenburg Suite rooktu@ing the Merensky and UG2 Reefs).
The UG2 Reef can occur up to 400 m below the MkyeRsef. Available geological maps indicated the Reefs coming close to each o
on the Bafokeng-Rasimone Mine near the border witindsfontein. On Elandsfontein drilling indicatdge two reefs have a severetre
middling.

Geology of the Tweespalk Property

The area has been geologically mapped at a scalel®0,000 by M.J. van der Merwe (1976) and atalesof 1:250,000 by the South Afric
Council for Geoscience (Map No. 2328%ietersburg covers the Tweespalk area). This mapphows the footwall of the BC including
platinum bearing Platreef horizon traversing theélespalk property for a strike length of approxinha&5 km.

Upper Zone rocks of the BC underlie the westertipoiof the property, Archaean granites and granghneiss underlie the eastern portiol
the property. A High Resolution Airborne MagnetimeRadiometric Survey completed by PTM in 2002icnafl the location of the Platre

host zone. It is expected to dip@26 40°to the west.

A strike length of approximately 3.5 km of the Midagnetite Seam (MMS), which occurs as a minerdlsarizon within the Upper Zo
rocks, may be another potential target. It is hafssignificant Vanadium/TiQdeposits elsewhere in the BC but there is no dagdl@ble or

the vanadium content of the MMS on the Tweespalge?ty.

There small faults, but no significant structurdigated on the property, by any of the availablgopiag, or by the geophysical survey.
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Geology of the War Springs Property

The area has been geologically mapped at a scalel1df0,000 by M.J. van der Merwe (1978) and at 0;2B80 scale by the South Afric
Council for Geoscience. (Map No. 2428\ylstroom 1978). A 5.2 kilometres strike lengthB@f footwall contact (which is the prospec
Platreef host zone) is shown traversing the Waiirfggrproperty. There are differences in detaivmdn the two maps, the 1:100 000 |
der Merwe) mapping is considered the most accurate.

The western side of the property is underlain leyNrain Zone of the BC. The eastern side by thievdbto the BC, here comprising shale’
and quartzites of the Magaliesberg Formation (Transvaal Supeugio The property occurs in an area where thekstof the BC chang
from NNW to N, to SW. This hinge area is marked bgries of northeasterly and southeasterly tregdaults. The Platreef is expected to

westerly at 2% to 35°.

Two limestone/dolomite occurrences are shown omdwvernment geological maps, near the western ptpf®undary, in the immediate |
footwall. These footwall rocks are elsewhere asdedi with higher grade of Platreef PGM mineralisati

There is a possibility of Merensky or UG2 type ma@feralisation occurring in Critical Zone BC onethvestern side of the property.
Deposit Type!

The BC contains three main PGM rich reefs or hargothe Merensky Pyroxenite Layer, The UG2 Chrotndtger and the Platreef.
addition to the PGE mineralisation associated witle Merensky Reef, most chromitite layers in théidalt Zone carry significar
concentrations of PGE, to varying degrees, howdlvertUG2 chromitite is the only chromitite layer ths significantly exploited for PGE
present

The PGM horizons in the Critical Zone come to stefaear the margins of the complex and then diplyydown towards the centre. Ove
the Merensky and UG2 horizons show remarkable coityi in along strike and depth.

UG2 Chromitite

The UG2 Chromitite Layer is possibly the largeshaining PGE resource on earth. It occurs betweaway through the Critical zone, w
a dip varying between 10° at Rustenburg and 2&Rémorthwestern lobe. Dips in the Western Sedtthe Eastern Bushveld range fronf55
to overturned.

The UG2 Chromitite is generally around 1m thickdamlatively impure, containing much interstitialicate gangue. The interval m
comprise one or more chromitite layers, along vettingers and disseminated chromite within pyroteenh pegmatoidal pyroxenite usui
forms the footwall to the chromitite layer and aftgontains additional mineralisation. The P’s are generally interstitial to the chrom
grains, and are concentrated at the base of themiitite layer. PGE content of the UG2 Chromitismges from 3ppm to 19ppm, ant
generally dominated by -Pd sulphides.

Merensky Ree

The Merensky Reef has traditionally been the mmgtortant platinum producing layer in the Bushveldngplex, exploitation havir
commenced in the Rustenburg area in 1929. Seisonieys undertaken by the Council for GeosciengetdRa) show that reflecto
associated with the Merensky Reef can be tracddras 50km down dip, to depths of 6,000m beloasar

The Merensky Pyroxenite Layer typically 1.5 metingsk (up to 10 metres at Crocodile River). It occbetween 15 and 400 metres abowv:
UG2. It is a regular, persistent pyroxenitic as®dsge occurring near the top of the Upper Grouptleé Upper Critical Zone of tt
Rustenburg Suitt
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The Merensky “Reef” normally consists of a proxeridtyer, with a basal chromite stringer of a cemire thickness. The “reefis generall’
only 30cm to 80cm in thickness. Where the pyréxesnd chromitite do not directly overlie footwaticks of anorthosite or norit
harzburgite or pegmatoidal pyroxenite with furthmmroxenite may underlie the basal chromitite stengA second or upper stringer may ¢
be developed near the top of the Merensky Pyroxesgspecially where the pyroxenite is thick.

The Merensky Reef itself is characterised by @b IHGM grades compared to the chromitite layerth&nBC and the high ratio of platinurr
the other PGM’s. Sulphides, with PGd/Are associated with the top and bottom chromlitiyers, but the mineralisation can also extend
the footwall and hangingwall.

Platreef

The origin and nature of the Platreef platinum maisation differs completely from that in the Mesky Reef and U-2 chromitite laye



(von Gruenewalt et al., 1985). Although the roghess within this discordant reef are similar to skcencountered in the upper critical z
(Gain and Mostert, 1982), mineralisation is cons@teto have formed in response to contaminatiath@fmagma by country rocks (Bucha
et al.,, 1981). Correlations between the Platreedl Merensky Reef based on geochemical characteriatie meaningless (Vermaak et
1999). Platreef mineralisation occurs as soontds in contact with soft sediments that are capatifl providing a source of sulphur, sim
to a reaction-type skarn (Vermaak et al., 1999).

The nature of the magma transgression across liig fs important. Softer shale and dolomitic sednts have been eroded or compre
into synformal-like, (possibly) pressuirduced basins along the floor of the chamber aadehcontributed sulphur and volatiles to
magma. So that the best mineralisation occurs vamomite is the footwall (in a synform) or when aliths of dolomite have been floated
and occur involved with the remnants of the Pldtsgd@rn lobules.

Resistant quartzitic sediments (and the graniteghfantiforn-like abutments into the magma chamber and were lan@bcontribute th
sulphur and volatiles. Dolomitic xenoliths thaidted into the magma but away from the sulphuraoidtile rich synforms in the floor do r
appear to have reacted to the same degree and alig&tion is inevitably sub-economic

The primary source for dolomite is obviously theltatani Subgroup (Chuniespoort Group) but it shouddrimted that virtually all the thi
shaley sediments (Smelterskop, Dwaalheuwel ang@u#nd Formations) that form the floor of the Buedd Complex at Mokopane cont
limestone or dolomite layers.

Dolomitic xenoliths seem to have floated northwaaltsg the contact of the Bushveld rocks with tteaigic floor. These possibly assistes
giving rise to the lower grade mineralisation oétlarea although the precise model is not undeickt

Mineralisation

There are no publicly available historical recordsdocumentation of any mineralisation on any @ fpinoperties. The northeastern bounc
of the Elandsfontein Property is located within 3@fmone of Anglo Platinuma’ open pits, where the UG2 Reef was mined durir@g.
Tweespalk and War Springs are both situated atbegPlatreef strike and there is current vigoroupleration on the neighbouring farms.
Exploration

Elandsfonteir

See “Drilling” on the following page.

Onderstepoort

No exploration has been carried out on this farmimtythe reporting period
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Tweespalk

The Company has been compiling soil sampling adbgécal exploration completed by the previous apers on the War Springs Platin
Project. It was anticipated that this work wouldchgeate targets for drill testing

The initial sampling work in rock and soil samplimentified elevated platinum, palladium, nickedacopper values in the area near wt
the Platreef contact area was indicated by grourapping and airborne geophysical surveys. Howevergtwere issues with the data ar
has not been passed for public release. The prableawe to do with the survey of the grid and wétimgling and assay procedures.

Grab rock samples taken from an outcrop close ® BIC basal contact returned assays ranging fromkgesund to 0.62 g/t platinut
palladium and gold (0.193 g/t Pt, 0.378 Pd, 0.049A31). 400 metres spaced soil sample grid linesiified areas with anomalous platint
palladium, nickel and copper values (more than gb pt+Pd, more than 50 ppm nickel and more than @@ copper)

Previously Magnetic and Radiometric Survey was deta@ by GAP Geophysics on P’s behalf, covering the Tweespalk Property. A
of 720 linekm of survey were completed with lines spaced Bpant and a mean terrain clearance of 50 m. Maigneata was collecte
every 1/10" of second (approximately every 5 m) and radiometsta collected every second (approximately evéryn3. Interpretation
this data indicated the BC/basement contact as agthe overlying Upper Zone and Main Zone contacts

War Springs
No exploration has been carried out on this farmimtythe reporting period

Drilling



Elandsfonteir

The author has had no involvement with any of thekwen this project. The information under thisnit is a synopsis from Snowden Mil
Industry Consultants (Pty) Ltd reports dated 16dbetr 2003 and 17 December 2003 (Snowden have aggbadlvcomments and reference
their reports in this filing).

PTM commissioned a surfe-drilling programme consisting of 36 shallow diamoddll holes with the Merensky and UG2 reefs
Elandsfontein as targets. This programme, managed feological contracting company, was complete® June 2003. The drilling w
done in two adjacent blocks of ground, with borehgpacing from 100 down to 50 metres. Area Adsettireme northeastern corner of
property. Area 1 is adjacent to and to the sodtAmea A and adjacent to the Bafok-Rasimone Mine.

Snowdens were engaged by Platinum Group MetalsFR@BAtd to complete a review and audit of all af technical work up to 30 June 2(
on the Elandsfontein Property; and to make an asmest of the UG2 and Merensky Reef resources oprtperty. This is still work
progress, however some has been compl

Snowden's have completed drilled four twinned hoteger their own custody and control. This twinmiilling confirmed that some of t
original holes had been stopped short of their &isg

The technical audit highlighted several issues tha&nowdens opinion would have a material effecaoy Resource Estimate being der
from the exploration data in its current state. eTiemedial steps taken included the validatiorhefdrillhole collar positions, the review
the drilling records, the review and validationtbe geological logs, an assessment of the restitteecexisting Quality Assurance and Qui
Controls (QA/QC) of the analytical procedures amdexternal QA/QC programme implemented by Snowden.
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A draft Technical Audit Report from Snowdens waiked by PTM on 17 December 2003. Snowden recondedehat their boreho
logging be used rather than the original logging Resource modelling. The results for the extermquality assessment were favourable
the Pt and Pd repeatability (less so for Rh) arat tverall the assay results from both laboratonesed for the assessment constituted ¢
to medium risk in any Resource Estimate that magebived from the results.
Snowdens have also completed a preliminary MinResource estimate for Area 1.

No illustrations, aside for the general localityapl have been prepared for this project for th-101. Technical work on this project is
complete.

PTM is continuing to advance the project towargsogential mining authorization as required by theghase option agreemel
Onderstepoort

PTM has not completed any surface exploration aptoperty and there is nothing to report in tbisction.

Tweespalk

On 4™ October 2003 the company announced that it wamtitig a drilling programme on the Tweespalk Platim Project in the Northe

Limb of the Bushveld Complex South Africa. The $padk drill programme is planned for 1000 meterthve further 500 meters in phase
This drilling is aimed at getting stratigraphieformation. It is still in progress and there igthing to report.

War Springs

PTM has not completed any surface exploration aptoperty and there is nothing to report in tbisction.
Zandrivierspoort

PTM has not completed any surface exploration @ ptoperty and there is nothing to report in tbesction.
Sampling Method and Approac

See “Mineral Resource and Mineral Reserve Estimaigew.

Sample Preparation, Analyses and Secul

See “Mineral Resource and Mineral Reserve Estirfiigsw.

Data Verification



See “Drilling” above.

Mineral Resource and Mineral Reserve Estima

Work towards a Mineral Resource was completed erElandsfontein property only, during this repogtiperiod.

The author has had no involvement with any of thekwn this project. The information under thisnt is a synopsis from Snowden Mi

Industry Consultants (Pty) Ltd reports dated 16 dgbetr 2003 and 17 December 2003. No detailed irdition is being presented he
Snowden have approved this commentary.
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Snowden completed a Mineral Resource estimate fhmmcontractor managed drilling program and theiwm twinned drilling on th
southernmost Area 1, adjacent to the Bafokeng RamnMine lease area. This is a very small triaagydiece of ground, measuring €
metres by 300 metres. Their preliminary estimatéor an Inferred Resource, containing 153 000 &mnof UG2 over an average 66
thickness at 1.31 g/t 3PGE+Au with an SG of 3.88say QC has not yet been completed for the digllsampling.

An additional Resource estimate is being prepacedte northernmost Area A. The core in this awes less affected by IRUP and t
UG2 and Merensky Reef was present.

Area 1 has been drilled with 17 shallow diamondlldoies of the original program and two twinned ésldrilled by Snowdens (drillii
predominantly using an NQ barrel). Drillholes raadjfrom 32 metres to 101 metres length. Theirmfyilprogram suffered from very pc
core recovery and poor core management by theralgiontractor.

The Snowden report details high anticipated gealagioses within Area 1. These are estimated telb¥, resulting from the combir
effects of IRUP replacement, weathering and fagltjto put this into context. geological losses oarfWestern Bushveld were repol
ranging from 22% to 35%).

IRUP replacement is estimated as the most serieakgical loss. This could be due to proximitghi$ block of ground to a dunnite pipe
neighbouring property. Core in most of the holeswéfected by IRUP, which replaced from 0.1% to 7@%he core. IRUP replacem
increased in a trend from south to north.

Weathering has affected the BC rocks to an avedageh of 28 metres below surface. NE trending$dahd to additional geological losses.
Recommendation

The following exploration programs are recommenfigd®TM'’s Elandsfontein, Onderstepoort, Tweespalk, Wamgprand Zandrivierspoc
Properties. The objective of these programs will tbeconfirm the presence of platinum orebodiesatdisth favourable geology a
stratigraphy and where possible locate and traceRBtatinum Reefs on surface.

Elandsfontein, Onderstepoort and Zandrivierspc

Exploration programs as laid below are recommerfidethese properties.

War Springs and Tweespalk

Exploration programs as laid out below are recomdehto test for Platreef and other targets on thepprties.

Phase 1 Initial fieldworl

Establish the position of the footwall contact.

Identify anomalous concentrations of sulphide natisation.
Identify potential structural features.

Identify priority drill hole positions.

Commence sample assay lab quality control procedure

Phase 2 Confirmatory fieldwol

Confirm the presence of Platreef mineralisationgaesied by the previous phase by diamond drilling.
Establish downdip and along strike continuity oheralisation.

Identify potential structural features.

Identify priority drill hole positions
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Phase 3 Resource drilling and resource categorise

Confirm the presence of Platreef mineralisationgesjed by the previous phase.
Establish downdip and along strike continuity oharalisation.

Identify potential structural features.

Identify priority drill hole positions.

Classify a Resource (Indicated or Measured) to SERIRIORC and NI 43- 101 standards

The Agnew Lake Property, Ontario
Property Description and Acquisitic

Agnew Agreement

Pursuant to an option agreement dated March 1, {9@9"Agnew Agreement") between the Company anddlb Hawke and Gregc
Campbell (collectively, the "Agnew Optionors"), t®mpany was granted the sole and exclusive rigttaption to acquire up to a 9!
interest in and to the Agnew Lake Property. Th&éw Lake Property was initially comprised of 20Inaral claims totalling 3,216 hecta
overlying a mafic intrusive complex located neadl®ury, Ontario. Pursuant to additional stakinghms Company and the ProAm Agreen
described below, the Agnew Lake Property now cosgsrb51 minerals claim unit in 219 claim blocksitotg 8,816 hectares. See Figure 3.

In order to earn the first 51% (the "First Optiom)and to the Agnew Lake Property, the Companytrmesir expenditures of not less thar
million on the Agnew Lake Property, by no specdate, and pay the Agnew Optionors additional casiibn as follows:

(@) Cash payments totalling an aggregate of $155,080 a¥ive-year period as follows:

(i) $25,000 on March 1, 2000; (paid)
(if) $25,000 on March 1, 2001; (paid)
(iii) $25,000 on March 1, 2002; (paid)
(iv) $35,000 on March 1, 2003; (paid)
(v) $45,000 on March 1, 2004; (paid)

(b) 54,545 Common Shares as follows:

0] 9,091 Common Shares if and when the first phasanofexploration program on the Agnew Lake Propedg bee
completed and a duly qualified engineer or geotogfmll have recommended that a second phase ddratipn on th
Agnew Lake Property or a part thereof be undertakenin any event no later than September 1, 198% exploratio
program was commenced but not completed prior pie®eber 1, 1999. The 9,091 Common Shares weredssu Augus
17, 1999;

(i) 15,152 Common Shares if and when the second pHaae exploration program on the Agnew Lake Propéidg bee
completed and a duly qualified engineer or geotaghisll have recommended that a third phase obextibn on the Agne
Lake Property or a part thereof be undertaken tany event no later than March 1, 2000. The I5@Bmmon Shar
were issued on February 29, 2000; and

(ii) The balance of 30,303 Common Shares if and wheththet phase of an exploration program on the Agheke Propert
has been completed and a duly qualified enginegeologist shall have recommended that a furthegnam of exploratio
on the Agnew Lake Property or a part thereof beewatten or recommends that a study to determindethsibility of
commercial production of any mineral deposit in,oorunder the Agnew Lake Property or a part thebeofindertaken but
any event no later than March 1, 2001. The 30@B83mon Shares were issued on March 1, 2001.
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Once the Company has satisfied the requiremerttsedfirst Option, it may earn the remaining 48%siest (the "Second Option"), for a t
of 99% interest in and to the Agnew Lake Propettg, Company must incur an additional $1 milliorekpenditures by no specific date.
Agnew Optionors will retain a 1% carried interestia 2% net smelter royalt



In the event of the termination of the Second Gptad provided that the First Option has been éeildoy the Company, the parties <
enter into a formal joint venture agreement withi20 days of the termination of the Second Optiod #re Company will, as of tl
commencement date of the joint venture, be deembdve a 51% interest and the Agnew Optionors Sleatleemed to have a 49% intere
and to the Agnew Lake Property.

In March 1999, the Company staked an additionatlasns totalling 2,760 hectares covering the sauthpart of the Agnew Lake Intrusic
The Company owns 100% of these 16 claims.

On March 1, 2004, the Company notified the Agnewi@mwrs that it had completed its obligations untter Agnew Agreement and
vested its 99% interest in the Agnew Lake Property.

PEN Agreement

On June 18, 2000, a Letter of Intent (the "PFN DQV&s entered into between the Company and Pasdith West Capital Corp. (“PFN”
with respect to the Agnew Lake Property. The teofrithe PFN LOI were subsequently formalized inCgtion Agreement (thePFN Optior
Agreement”)executed between the Company and PFN on Augugx0D®), and further amended on August 16, 2001. Rotgo the terms
the PFN Option Agreement, PFN may acquire 50% laffahe Companys rights and interests in the Agnew Lake Propehtyorder to ve:
its 50% interest, PFN must incur exploration expeméds of $500,000 on or before the fourth anniagrsand become responsible for
fulfilment and completion of cash and share paywmeahie to the Agnew Optionors pursuant to the Agegweement. If exploratic
expenditures totalling $500,000 have not been necuby PFN by the fourth anniversary date, PFN pey the amount of the deficiency
NMM in cash or by the issuance of common shard2rii. Additional consideration to the Company parguo the PFN Option Agreem:
includes:

(@) Cash payments totalling an aggregate of $200,080 a¥our-year period as follows:

0] $30,000 upon the execution of the PFN LOI; (paid)
(i $35,000 on the first anniversary; (paid)

(iii) $35,000 on the second anniversary; (paid)

(iv) $45,000 on the third anniversary (paid); and

(v) $55,000 on the fourth anniversary.

(b) 350,000 common shares of PFN as follows:

0] 25,000 common shares of PFN upon regulatory appoftbe PFN LOI; (issued) and

(i) 25,000 common shares of PFN on the first annivergmsued)

(ii) 75,000 common shares of PFN on or before Octobe2®11; (issued)

(iv) 75,000 common shares of PFN within 45 days of Kayahécting to proceed with the 2002 explorationgpam; (issued)

(v) 75,000 common shares of PFN within 45 days of Kayetecting to proceed with the 2003 explorationgpam; (issuec
and

(vi) 75,000 common shares of PFN within 45 days of Kayahécting to proceed with the 2004 explorationgpam.

PFN was appointed the operator of the property ian@sponsible for completion of all assessment fdimy requirements as long as

remains operator of the Agnew Lake Property. PK¥ ataked an additional 11 claim blocks totaling32 hectares (3,043 acres) wt
became part of the Agnew Lake Property.
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Kaymin Agreement

A Heads of Agreement was entered into on DecemBer2000 (the “Heads of Agreementiursuant to which the Company and F
proposed to option a 65% interest in the Agnew LBkeperty to Kaymin Resources Ltd. (“Kayming, subsidiary of Anglo Americi
Platinum Corporation Limited, the workllargest producer of platinum group metals. Tlead$ of Agreement outlined the basis on w
the parties were prepared to negotiate in gootl faitefinitive earnn agreement. Until such time, there were no lgdaihding obligation
among the parties and the terms of the Heads aéekgent were to remain confidential while Kaymin aweted due diligence of the Agn
Lake Property.

In June 2001, a Farm-In Agreement dated May 251 4@t “Farm-In Agreementjvas executed among Kaymin, the Company and
which set out the definitive earn-in terms and ligghinding obligations. Pursuant to the termstioé Farmi Agreement, Kaymin m
acquire a 50% interest in the combined rights amerésts of the Company and PFN (or in other woeid$9.5% undivided interest in -
Agnew Lake Property) by funding or otherwise inaugrexploration and development expenditures onptitogperty of not less than $i
million by December 31, 2004 and making cash paymeh$200,000 to each of the Company and to PFNIimsvs:

€)) Cash payments of $200,000 to each of the CompadhyP&N within three days of the effective date & Farmin Agreement afte
which time Kaymin will have 30 days in which to e¢o fund a 2001 exploration program budgetedlat&million which would b
under the direction of PFN as project operatordpai

(b) Exploration expenditures totaling $6 million ovefoar-year period as follows:



() $226,205 for reimbursement of PFENprevious exploration expenditures on the AgnewelLBroperty which shall cot
towards the $6 million earn-in expenditures; (paid)

(i) a cumulative amount not less than $1.4 million lc@nber 31, 2001; (completed)

(ii) a cumulative amount not less than $2.65 milliorDiegember 31, 2002; (completed)

(iv) a cumulative amount not less than $4.15 milliorDegember 31, 2003; and

(v) a cumulative amount not less than $6 million by &aber 31, 2004.

The Company remains responsible for its underlyirgperty option payments to the Agnew Optionorg,tha expenditures of Kaymin w
be credited towards the Company’s and PFN’s eara¢uoirements.

Upon earning its 49.5% interest under the Kaymime&gnent, Kaymin may increase its interest in ttoperty to 57% by entering into a jc
venture with the Company and PFN, and completimgrzkable feasibility study. Kaymin may subsequeinttrease its interest to 60%
arranging for or funding all costs of developmend @onstruction to commercial production. The Campand PFN would be requirec
repay Kaymin their portion of these costs from acpetage of their respective shares of productromfthe project, as described in
Kaymin Agreement.

At the commencement of commercial production, asgliming PFN earns its full interest in the propetttg Company and PFN would e
retain an undivided 19.5% participating interest] he Agnew Optionors, as the original propertynerg, would hold a 1% carried intel
and up to a 2% net smelter returns royalty. Kayaiéo has the right to purchase a further 5% istdffer an aggregate 65% interest) in
initial or subsequent mining operations developedh® Agnew Lake Property, based upon the net presdue of the operations, accorc
to their respective feasibility studies. PFN remsahe operator of the property.

In the event that PFN does not incur its requirachen expenditures of $500,000 on its own accdust if another party incurs t
expenditures) PFN may exercise its earn in righpéyment of $500,000 worth of PFN shares to the @om at any time before PFNear
in deadline of December 20, 2004. By an amendnetite original agreement dated August 16, 200N R&s agreed to pay the Comp
incremental payments towards their earn in requérgm Commencing in 2001, 75,000 PFN shares wilbdid annually to the Company
four years (the first three installments of whicivé been received), unless PFN exercises its paight earlier. The shares will be vali
according to the ten-day average market priceet time of issue, but in no case at a value lleas $0.60 per share.
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The Agnew Lake Farnm Agreement was amended on October 10, 2001 &r §829,000 in exploration expenditures from 2@D2002 suc
that Kaymin was required to fund a minimum of $00®, exploration expenditures prior to DecemberZ01. The deferred expenditu
were rolled forward to 2002 with the required cuativie expenditures to December 31, 2002 remainimghanged at $2.65 million. As
June 2, 2003, the Company was notified by PFNKlagimin’s expenditures to December 31, 2002 toteH2d74,898.

The Agnew Lake Farm-in Agreement was further amdrateOctober 10, 2003 and November 25, 2003 so Kdgmequirement to comple
cumulative work commitments of $4,150,000 was ed¢eh from December 31, 2003 to December 31, 208#4nilarly, Kaymin’s
requirement to complete cumulative work commitmenfteiot less than $6,000,000 by December 31, 2084 extended to December
2005.

ProAm Agreement

Pursuant to an Agreement dated October 21, 20@1'RtoAm Agreement”)the Company and PFN were granted an option to sxqpito :
100% interest in three claim blocks internal to thgnew Lake Property (the “ProAm Propertyffom ProAm Explorations Corporati
(“ProAm”). Under the terms of the ProAm Agreement, the CompantyPFN can earn a 100% interest in the ProAmePtppy making cas
payments totaling $30,000, issuing 29,091 Commaarethto ProAm, issuing 21,000 common shares of AN0AmM, making certain pre-
production royalty payments annually and undertg§400,000 in exploration expenditures as follows:

(@) Cash payments totaling an aggregate of $30,000atwo-year period as follows:
0] $8,000 within 10 days regulatory approval; (paid)
(i) $10,000 on the first anniversary of the ProAm Agreat; (paid)
(iin) $12,000 on the second anniversary of the ProAm émgemnt (paid).
(b) 29,091 Common Shares and 21,000 common share\b&®Follows:
0] 8,485 Common Shares and 6,000 common shares ofritRiM 10 days of regulatory approval; (issued)
(i) 9,697 Common Shares and 7,000 common shares obRFe first anniversary of the ProAm Agreemerssied) and
(iii) 10,909 Common Shares and 8,000 common shares obRFe second anniversary of the ProAm Agreenissii€d).

(c) Exploration expenditures totaling $400,000 in exafion expenditures on the ProAm Property by thertfo anniversary of tt
ProAm Agreement (the Company has not been notifieBFN as to the extent of expenditures on the Rr&@4operty); and

(d) Beginning on the fifth anniversary of the ProAm Agment, making annual payments of $6,000 inppogluction royalties froi



which ProAm would be required to settle the advangalty payable to the underlying vendor (Mr. JarBend II).

Under the terms of the ProAm Agreement, the ProAop@rty became part of the Agnew Lake Property, sndubject to the Agne
Agreement and the Kaymin Agreement described ab&aymin has assumed the underlying cash propgtipo payments, which will al:
be credited to Kaymin's earn-in requirements, betshare installments remain the responsibilitthefCompany and PFN, respectively.

The ProAm Property is also subject to a 2.5% netlnroyalty in favour of the original propertynaor (a Mr. James Bond II), 1.5%
which may be purchased by ProAm for $1.5 millid#pon earning its interest, a 0.75% net smeltermnstuoyalty will be granted to ProA
The Company and PFN have the right to purchaseritigety of the initial 1.5% net smelter returegalty from Mr. Bond should the teri
of the ProAm Agreement be fulfilled, and by makargadditional cash payment of $100,000 to ProAm.
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Location and Descriptio

Information italicized below has been excerptedrfra Report dated July 15, 2002 entitldthase |l Surface Exploration Program, Ag
Lake Property” by Scott Jobin-Bevans, M.Sc., P.Gew Grant Mourre, M.Sc., a Report dated Octobe2B802 entitled Review of Phase
Drilling Results, Agnew Lake Property for Platinnoup Metals Ltd. as at August 31, 2008/ Derry, Michener, Booth & Wahl Consulta
Ltd and a report dated May 1, 2003 entitled Sumnadifghase 2 Diamond Drilling Program, Agnew Lakegderty by Grant Mourre, M.S
P.Geo and Scott Jobin-Bevans, M.Sc., P.Geo..

The Agnew Lake property is situated in the SudidMining Division of Ontario, in Shakespeare, Dunl@&hibananing, Gough and Por
Township (centred at 428193mE, 5135210mN — NAD@7e 27; NTS sheet 411/5).

The Agnew Lake property lies approximately 100 lestsouthwest of the city of Sudbury, and 9 km nortthefvillage of Webbwood. T
western part of the property is accessible from \Westbranch Road, and the southeast portion isssiigle from the Agnew Lodge Rc
Agnew Lake provides boat access to the east aridano parts of the property, and a Hydro One poliuee,, and a series of logging roe
cut the northern and central parts of the intrusioespectively. The Agnew Lake property is accssidar round. The climate is typical
the Southern shield. Four distinct seasons areestidSurface exploration can be conductedB™enths of the year with the optimum pe
ranging from early April until late October.

The Agnew Lake Property contains no known bodyoshimercial ore.

The following is a summary of the claims compristhg Agnew Lake Property as at the date of thisrF2®-F Annual Report:

Claim details for the Agnew Lake Property

Claim Numbers Units Size (ha) | Township Recording Date Due Date(®
S1229584 15 240 Dunlop July 12, 1999 July 12, 2004
S1229585 9 144 Dunlop July 12, 1999 July 12, 2004
S1229586 10 160 Dunlop July 12, 1999 July 12, 2004
S1236172 16 256 | Shakespearge March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236167 16 256 | Shakespearg March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236168 15 240 | Shakespearg March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236170 15 240 | Shakespeare March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236166 16 256 | Shakespearg March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236171 4 64 | Shakespeare March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236169 15 240 | Shakespearg March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236173 4 64 | Shakespeare March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236174 8 128 Gough March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236175 16 256 Dunlop March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236176 16 256 Dunlop March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236162 2 32 Dunlop March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236163 4 64 Dunlop March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236164 15 240 Dunlop March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005




S1236165 8 128 Dunlop March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S1236177 3 48 | Shibananing March 5, 1999 March 5, 2005
S953446 1 16 | Shibananing March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954067 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954074 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S953447 1 16 | Shibananing March 24, 1987 March 24, 2005
S954004 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954005 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954006 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
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Claim Numbers Units Size (ha) | Township Recording Date Due Date®
S954007 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954008 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954009 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954010 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2005
5954012 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954013 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954065 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2005
S954066 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954068 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954069 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954070 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S954071 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
5954072 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2005
5954073 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S1223075 10 160 Dunlop May 22, 1998 May 22, 2006
S1229506 2 32 Dunlop July 3, 1998 July 3, 2004
S1024194 1 16 | Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024181 1 16 | Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024182 1 16 | Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024183 1 16 | Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024190 1 16 | Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024191 1 16 | Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024200 1 16 | Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116166 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116167 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116168 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116169 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116170 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116171 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116172 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116173 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116174 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116175 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004




S1116176 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116177 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116178 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116179 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116180 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116181 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116182 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116183 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116184 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116185 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116186 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S$1116187 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116188 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116189 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116190 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116191 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116192 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116193 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
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S1116194 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116195 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116204 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116205 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116206 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116207 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116208 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116209 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116210 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116211 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116212 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116216 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116217 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116218 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116219 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116220 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116221 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116222 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116223 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116224 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116225 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116226 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116227 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1116228 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004




S1116229 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116230 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116231 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116232 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116233 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116234 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116235 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116236 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116237 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116238 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116241 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116242 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116249 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116250 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116254 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116255 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116256 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116257 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116348 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116349 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116350 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116351 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116352 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116353 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116354 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116355 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116356 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
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Claim Numbers Units Size (ha) | Township Recording Date Due Date
S1116357 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116361 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116362 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116258 1 16 Dunlop August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1116259 1 16 Dunlop August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1116260 1 16 Dunlop August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1116261 1 16 Dunlop August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1116262 1 16 Dunlop August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1116263 1 16 Dunlop August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1116373 1 16 Shakespearg August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1116374 1 16 Shakespearg August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1116375 1 16 Shakespearg August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119135 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119140 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119141 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004




S1119145 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119146 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119147 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S51119148 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119149 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119150 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119155 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119164 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119165 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119166 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119170 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
December 14, December 14,
S1224120 4 64 Porter 1998 2004
5953445 1 16 Shibananing March 24, 1987 March 24, 2005
S953448 1 16 Shibananing March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
S953449 1 16 Shibananing March 24, 1987 March 24, 2005
S953444 1 16 Shibananing March 24, 1987 March 24, 2006
S954011 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2004
5954064 1 16 Gough March 24, 1987 March 24, 2006
S1229970 6 96 Dunlop April 9, 1998 April 9, 2005
S1116202 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116203 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024184 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024185 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1024186 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024187 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1024188 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1024189 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1024192 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1024193 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1024195 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024196 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1024197 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1024198 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2008
S1024199 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1024201 1 16 Shibananing July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116200 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
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Claim Numbers Units Size (ha) | Township Recording Date Due Date®
S1116201 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2005
S1116239 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116240 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116243 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116244 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116245 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004




S1116246 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116247 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116248 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116251 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116252 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1116253 1 16 Dunlop July 25, 1989 July 25, 2004
S1119136 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119138 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2007
S1119139 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119143 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119144 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119185 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119186 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119187 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2005
S1119191 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2004
S1119137 1 16 Shibananing  August 4, 1989 August 4, 2006
S1119142 1 16 Gough August 4, 1989 August 4, 2007
S1246434 6 96 Dunlop October 30, 2000 | October 30, 2004
S1191269 2 32 Gough October 30, 2000 | October 30, 2004
S1246188 12 192 Gough October 30, 2000 | October 30, 2004
S1240237 7 112 Shibananing October 30, 2000 | October 30, 2004
S1244326 1 16 Shibananing October 30, 2000 | October 30, 2004
S1246494 8 128 Dunlop |November 8, 2000 [November 8, 2004
S1246496 2 32 Dunlop |November 8, 2000 |November 8, 2004
S1246515 5 80 ShibananingNovember 8, 2000 |November 8, 2004
S1246190 4 64 | Shibananing October 30, 2000 | October 30, 2004
S1246189 15 240 Dunlop October 30, 2000 | October 30, 2004
S1221504 15 240 Dunlop August 10, 2001 August 10, 2004
S1221505 4 64 Shibananing August 10, 2001 August 10, 2004
S1221506 10 160 | Shibananing August 10, 2001 August 10, 2004
S1221507 11 176 | Shibananing August 10, 2001 August 10, 2004
S1229998 12 192 Gough October 30, 1998 | October 30, 2004
S1229999 16 256 Shakespearg October 30, 1998 | October 30, 2004
S1230000 13 208 Shakespearg October 30, 1998 | October 30, 2004
Q) The due date is the date that the title to thenetawill lapse if no further exploration is carriedit on the claims and filed with the Provinc:

Ontario. All claims remain in good standing adts¢ date of this Form 20-F Annual Report.
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Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrasttuce and Physiograph

The Agnew Lake property is characterized by a rdakgscape interspersed with areas of low reliefupied by lakes, swamps, marsh
muskeg. Bedrock exposure within the property attsodior approximately 120% of the land surface. The remaining scene
characterized by dense forest of mainly birch, reappruce, poplar and pine trees. Approximatel6#d the northern contact is expo
along the NE-SW striking, Hydro One power line. Romew Lake property lies approximately 100 km wesathwest of the city of Sudbt
and 9 km north of the village of Webbwood. Thetevespart of the property is accessible from thestdeanch Road, and the southe
portion is accessible from the Agnew Lodge Roagnheiv Lake provides boat access to the east andherortparts of the property, anc
Hydro One power line,, and a series of logging reamit the northern and central parts of the intamsi respectively. The Agnew L
property is accessible year round. The climatgyjscal of the Southern shield. Four distinct seasare evident. Surface exploration cal
conduced -8 months of the year with the optimum period ragdiom early April until late Octobe



History

1954: Dominion Gulf Company completed 2 diamond drilldsain the southwest corner of the intrusion. Resare unknown.
1967:Broulan Reef mines Ltd. completed airborne magnetemelectromagnetic survey. Location and resaffesunknown.
1968:Broulan Reef Mines Ltd. conducted a ground elecagmetic survey. Location and results unknown.

1969: Falconbridge Nickel Mines Itd. completed a 380iétndond drill hole along the easentral edge of the intrusion. The hole intersd
214 feet of Huronian metasediment and 62 feet efrgd and highly altered gabbro containing finelgsgminated pyrite. Assay results
unknown.

1974:Inco Ltd. conducted a 8ay reconnaissance sampling program in ShakespEawenship. A total of 8 samples were collected eno
which were apparently assayed.

1986: As part of a regional examination of ‘Nipissingicks in the Sudbury area, BP Resources Canadaddohpleted reconnaissar
sampling in Shakespeare Township. Five samplesned values of >1 g/t combined Pt+Pd in the arkayt subsequently named th&Zdae
of the Agnew Lake Intrusion (Appendix 7).

1987: BP Resources Canada Ltd. acquired 27 claims in Goagd Shibananing Township. The company complatechirborne
magnetometer and VLF survey over part of the coxapke grid was established over the A-Zone andraéliees of inducedolarizatior
survey were completed. Reconnaissance prospegtisgearried out in the areas of the contact zoAassay results included 5 samples
combined Pt+Pd >1 g/t (105 samples in total). Dest result was 4.1 g/t Pt+Pd.

1988: BP Resources Canada Ltd. re-established the A-goideand completed 6.3 line km of indugealarization survey. Mapping a
sampling of the A-Zone outlined mineralization oae25-35 m wide interval extending intermittentdy 700 m along strike. Thirtgight (38
of 142 samples assayed over 1 g/t combined Pt+idl 9ssamples returned values >2 g/t Pt+Pd.

1989: BP Resources Canada Ltd. completed four diamoritraies totalling 542m on the Zene. Results from core samples ranged ug
g/t combined Pt+Pd. Based on the drill hole resuihost of the remainder of the Agnew Lake Intrusias acquired by staking or opt
agreement.
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1990:BP Resources Canada Ltd. established grids on #irgins of the complex in the areas they named th&B- (Brunne Option), Canc
D-Zones. A two man geological team conducted prospeat these areas as well as along four widelycsghtraverse lines through 1
central parts of the complex. A total of 923 saefaamples were obtained, of which 144 returnecbaoed Pt+Pd values >1 g/t. The m
significant results are summarized in Table 1. B#sources Canada Ltd. completed 28 diamond driéshtotalling 4801m on the B-, B2-, C-
and D-Zones. Significant results are summarizetahble 2.

1992-1993:BP Resources Canada Ltd. was dishanded and thewAglaéms transferred to Inco Ltd. Inco conductebudk channel samplir
program on the - and D-Zones. The bulk sample results indicatraye grades of 56 ppb Pt and 188 ppb Pd fatdBe mineralization, ar
634 ppb Pt and 163 ppb Pd for D-Zone mineralization

1998: The Inco claims over the Agnew Lake Intrusion veaguired by two local geologists, who staked addai ground including the B
Zone. Prospecting of the latter area returned ealup to 1.5 g/t Pt, 5.4 g/t Pd and 10.5 g/t An.idependent American prospector stak
small area in the south central part of the Agneake_Intrusion in late 1998 — the ProAm Property.

Table 1.Selected results from BP Resources Canada Ltd.
1990 surface sampling program.

A-Zone
Sample Au (ppb) Pt (ppb) Pd (ppb) Rh (ppb)
12152 [198 1869 5060  |120
B-Zone
12294 (388 1263 1777 37
12439 |318 750 2440 55
B2-Zone (Brunne Option)
12271 [307 867 5600 129
12313 |109 651 5410 95




12509 [35 717 |3860  |119
C-Zone
12762 [280 635 1653 41
12803 [154 1079 1564 54
D-Zone
12574 [396 2350  [339 50
12576 [206 3340 (356 62
12576  |306 4180 (432 58
12860 |68 3160  |411 132
12868 [229 2027 6440 686
O’Brien Zone (V31) — Nipissing Gabbro
13341 [635 1439 14220  |N/A
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Table 2.Selected results from drill core samples, BP ResmsiCanada Ltd., 1990.

B-Zone
DDH # Interval (m) Au (ppb) Pt (ppb) Pd (ppb)
90-B-15 30.0-31.0 23 552 2168
90-B-16 23.0-24.0 34 266 1620
90-B-17 7.0-8.0 6 326 1017
90-B-18 210.0-211.0 16 731 1749
C-Zone
90-C-01 | 83.95-85.0 | 14 | 174 | 903
D-Zone
90-D-02 46.0-47.0 15 524 1081
90-D-07 358.0-359.0 37 1321 4570
90-D-09 561.0-562.0 126 459 1518

Geological Setting and Mineralization

The Agnew Lake Intrusion, also known as the ShakesPunlop Intrusion, is a member of the PaleoprotefoZeast Bull Lake suite (EBL
of intrusions, which include the East Bull LakeydRiValley, Drury, May, Falconbridge and Wisnerrlgive Complexes. The intrusions
characterized by gabbronoritic to anorthositic fiflogies, in which plagioclase is the dominant cuwmsubhase. The members of the !
share a number of common characteristics in addito lithology, including typically sill like formsgneous layering and anomalous P
mineralization. They range in age from 2.49-2.484ad are most likely coeval with the volcanic rookshe Huronian Supergroup.

The Agnew Lake Intrusion is exposed as a crudéfpytiedl body measuring roughly 10 km by 6 km, wishlong axis trending about 110.
The complex is hosted by sulphur-poor granitickeoof the Ramseflgoma Granitoid suite, and the intrusion is ovarldy Matinend
Formation conglomerate, which forms part of the édowedimentary sequences in the Huronian Supergr®tgs-emplacement faulting a
late emplacement of mafic dykes and/or sills gdheodscure the contact relations at the base alwh@ the exposed contact of the comj

In a few locations, mainly along the northern @t quenching of the Agnew magmas is evidenceddasional exposures of highly alte
and chilled marginal gabbros. Some degree of astiéocalized partial melting of the country rodksvident with the rare occurrence of net-
textured granitic veins within the chilled margirralcks. At localities where the upper contacthaf intrusion is exposed there is no evid

of melting or metamorphic effects within the oviedyMatinenda Formation.

Geological mapping and sampling (Phase | and 11} lsanfirmed the presence of significant quantiteslisseminated and blebby sulpt
mineralization within the marginal environment adpthe north, west and southern contacts of the Wghake Intrusion. Mineralizatic
occurs primarily within a heterogeneous gabbro/mgalsbro breccia that is within 250 m of the basal contact of the intrusion.

mineralized gabbro/melagabbro breccia consists abarsegrained to locally pegmatitic matrix that commonhlysts up to 75% plagiocla
nodules (aggregates) and sub-angular to soimded melagabbro/pyroxenite fragments that apécglly <50 cm in diameter (long axis). 1
coarse-grained gabbro matrix commonly surroundgéafragments (>1 m) of mediugnained gabbro, which also contain smaller (<50
mafic/ultramafic fragments. Sulphide mineralizatioccurs primarily within the coar-grained to pegmatitic gabbro matrix, althot



regionally extensive sulphide mineralization occwithin both the matrix and fragment phases.
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Lithologic Units

The following is a brief summary of a few of thiedlogical characteristics of the Agnew Lake Intous For detailed descriptions, the rea
is referred to Vogel (1996) and Vogel et al. (1998pgel (1996) grouped the exposed rock typelseoAgnew Lake Intrusion into three
subdivisions: the Marginal, Main (or lower) and Uppseries. In each grouping, gabbroic to anorthiosiithologies, derived from tt
fractional crystallization of relatively evolveddleiitic magma, are the principal rock types. Thest significant compositional variations .
found in the relatively thin and poorly exposedelasyof olivine gabbro, which occur at the basehef tipper series and in the syenitic to al
granite rocks, which occur at the top of the UpBeries. Lithological subdivisions within the thpgéncipal groups are thus largely based
textural features. Inclusions of footwall granéed rocks variably described as pyroxenite, amphitdb@nd melagabbro are ubiquito
features of the Marginal Series and overly the usmr-bearing unit. In many instances, there is a directrelation between increasi
inclusion content and increasing visible sulphidatent.

Breccia Zone(2): Igneous breccia with an intrusive granitic mxat

Marginal Gabbronorite Zone(3): Massive, mediurgrained gabbro. Includes dykes and/or sills thavééntruded along the contact of
Agnew Lake Intrusion and the granitic footw:

Vari-textured Unit (4a): Varitextured leucogabbro leucogabbronorite with lesgabbronorite, anorthosite and melagabbronorite, h
inclusions and pods of melagabbronorite and footgednite. Irregular banding and slumping. Locallylphide-rich.

Mottled Unit (4b): Mottled and varikextured leucogabbronorite and lesser gabbronomeorthosite and melagabbronorite, with inclusi
and pods of melagabbronorite, footwall granite, andssive quartz.

Nodular Unit (4c): Leucogabbronorite comprising large glomeropberysts (nodules) of plagioclase set in a coateegpegmatiticgrainec
melagabbronorite or gabbronorite matrix. Local mgddobro norite pods. Sulphides and quartz. Occumarthwestern portion of ti
intrusion.

Inclusion-bearing Unit (5a): Varitextured and massive gabbronorite andctagabbronorite with inclusions of melagabbronoriteptwall
granite, and large plagioclas'nodules’. Sulphides and quartz are locally abund&rccurs in northwestern portion of the intrusion.

Massive Unit(5b): Massive, medium- to coarse-grained gabbraeacgind leucogabbronorite. Rare melagabbronoritdusions and pods.

Layered Unit (5c): Centimetre- to metre-scale layering of mediutn coarsegrained gabbronorite, leucogabbronorite, and le:
melagabbronorite. Features a vari-textured intdre@ntaining angular coarse-grained melagabbroneiitclusions.

Olivine Gabbronorite Subzonéd): Decimetre-scale layering of olivine gabbroiterand leucogabbronorite. Disseminated sulphide.
Dendritic Unit (5e): Vari-textured gabbronorite and lesser leucblgeonorite with pegmatitic pyroxene dendrites. Locaarse-to very
coarsegrained titanomagnetite and quartz crystals. Gramme is common. The unit may occur at differerdtgjraphic levels from base
top of the Lower Series.

Transition Unit | (6a): Heterogeneous lithological and textural intal comprising vari-textured, poikilitic, and plagilasephyric
gabbronorite and leucogabbronorite. W-like layering and abundant inclusions.
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Table 3.Lithostratigraphic subdivisions of the Agnew Lak&usion (Vogel, 1996).



Huronian Supergroup & Various

Fe-Ti Oxide Zone T Ferrasvenite Subzone -
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ﬁ
]
fidd Transition Unir 1T g
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dc Nodular Unit
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g 2
Marginal Gabbronorite Zone | 3 I-irf{."g.l.'f\-'ﬂ Gahbro r;ﬂ E
I~
Breceia Zone 2 Intrnsive Brecoia
Footwall ! Granitic couniry rocks

Porphyritic Unit (6b): Plagioclase-glomerophyric gabbronorite, legedbro, and lesser melagabbro. Local decimetreescal
layering at base and top with irregular decimetmde layering in main central sequence. Minor pidiki leucogabbronorite and
granophyre patche:

Podbearing Unit (6¢): Disruptively layered and slumped plagioclagemerophyric gabbronorite and leucogabbronoritethwi
distinctive rounded pods of coarse- to very coanssned, strongly glomerophyric leucogabbronorite.

Transition Unit Il (6d): Texturally chaotic interval comprising inteimgled porphyritic, poikilitic, and massive leucdgmo ( +
norite). Local gabbro with primary amphiboles.

Leucogabbro Subzon(7a): Massive, coarse- to very coarse-grained lgatibro (2 norite) and ‘clotty’ leucogabbro containing
abundant titanomagnetite. Minor poikilitic leucddaonorite and granophyre. Sulphides, garnet andrtg. Ferrosyenite
Subzone(7b): Fine- to medium-grained, locally foliated,ublgrey ferrosyenite to creamy-white alkali-feldspmanite with
varying proportions of quartz, and Fe-Ti oxide cagnetite.
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Recent and O-going Exploration

1999: Harvey Creek Gold Placer Ltd. (name changed tavNdillennium Metals Corporation in March 1999) amtied the Agnew La
property from the claim holders, and subsequertdkedd a large area of ground to cover most of thewkn intrusion; assessment total
$386,473 was filed against a number of these claMew Millennium Metals Corporation conducted aiosgl sampling program of tl
entire Agnew Lake property during which they cdéeca total of 980 samples. Of these 980 sampldsassayed in excess of 0.5 g/t Pt-
The primary focus of New Millennius’1999 exploration program was along the contadtveen units 7a and 7b where there was
potential for discovery of ¢PGE reef'. Stripping, channel saw sampling, and drilling alotigs contact resulted in anomalous

uneconomic PGE concentrations (i.e. <300 ppb Pt+Pd)

2000: Pacific North West Capital Corporation optioned thgnew Lake property from New Millennium Metals @wation and subsequen
staked numerous claims in order to cover areas thigiht include rocks of the Agnew Lake IntrusignPhase | surface program begatr

July 2000.

The Phase | Agnew Lake exploration program (208€uded the following:



1. Re-sampling previously identified PGM showings.

2. Line cutting (establishing new grids & re-estabing old grids).

3. Regional sampling.

4. Detailed mapping and sampling.

5. Ground-based geophysics (Induced PolarizatioM@&netometer).

A Phase 2 surface exploration program was completethe Agnew Lake property between June 1 andrivese5, 2001, and included:
line cutting; 2) regional geological mapping andnsgling; 3) stripping and cleaning of selected ooftrareas (5915 nd ); 4) detailec
mapping and sampling of cleared outcrop areas;nslucedpolarization (~13 km) and ground magnetometer (kiij geophysical surve)
6) a limited Phase 1 diamond drill program (~1000m1.0 holes); and, 7) lithogeochemical traversegéing (41 samples).

A total of 2639 grab samples were collected frogiaeal mapping and 1886 samples were collectedndudetailed sampling and mappi
Regional prospecting re-affirmed and expandedtieeiously known areas of anomalous PGE sulphidesralization.

Of the 2639 grab samples, 2413 assayed anomalous lswer limit of detection to 249 ppb 3E; 83 sagspassayed 25800 ppb 3E; 5
samples assayed 501-750 ppb 3E; 23 samples as3&yetio00 ppb 3E; 30 samples assayed 1001-1500 ppl6 3amples assayed 1501-
2000 ppb 3E; and, 22 samples assayed >2 g/t 3E.

Of the 2639 grab samples, the highest concentratfoRGM is 153 ppb Au, 8332 ppb Pt, 38ib Pd, 0.44% Cu and 0.25% Ni and
collected from the B-Zone. Of the 1886 detaileancielgrab samples, the highest concentration of PGM7i8 Bpb Au, 2085 ppb Pt, 47
ppb Pd, 2348 ppm Cu and 234 ppm Ni, collected tteerBZ4 area

Based upon the encouraging results of the Phas20@1)) surface exploration program, a Phase 3 swfexploration program comprisi
line cutting, prospecting and sampling, bedrock piag and sampling, stripping and detailed sampliggpphysics, and diamond drilling v
recommended for 2002

During the Phase Il exploration, program three elifint varieties of samples were collected througlioe Agnew lake Property. They
prospecting samples, channel samples and lithogeoidal samples. The following summarized the géneraracteristic of the thre
sampling programs.

Regional Prospecting: A regional sampling prograras implemented in order to test as much of theegnake Intrusion as possible
PGM and other mineralization. A total of 2639 grseimples were collected irrespective of geologgk type, sulphide content, mineralc
composition or location. During traversing 1kg &r samples’ were collected every 25-50m, provitiatithere was adequate exposure.
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Figure 3— The Agnew Lake Property
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Channel Samples: A total of 1886 samples were aeliefrom the six stripped areas on the Agnew lpakperty (BZ1, BZ2, BZ3, BZ4, A
and AZ4). Sample descriptions and assay resufisagailable from PFN. Samples were taken on a 2X6215 m detailed grid and samg
were collected using a cut-off saw (referred tochannel-grab samples). Each channel-grab sampleisted of approximated 1.5 kg o

material excluding the small representative santipde is kept and stored for possible future analysi
Lithogeochemical Samples: A lithogeochemical sangpfirogram was implemented in order to test thelgemical characteristics of spec

units within the ALI. A total 41 samples were calied during four separate traverses. Samples vedlected at 25m in areas that containe
little alteration, mineralization and structurepamssible (approximately 2.5 kg of material wasexkd at each site).

Drilling

Phase 1 Drilling Program Introductio

Drilling of 21 short exploratory holes on the Agnkake Intrusion, totalling 2846.5 m, was carried autwo stages as follows: Novembe-
December 13, 2001 (10 holes totalling 1001.5 m) lagldruary 3- March 20, 2002 (11 holes totalling 1845 m). ND@liDg of Timmins,
Ontario, supplied drilling services under contagtRFN for Phase I. Drilling was double shiftedt ebre produced was BQ Thin Wall (BTW)

diameter; holes were not surveyed, except for aafipat the end of the hole.

As described by PFN the purpose of the drillinggsaon was primarily to gain a better understandirfgite lithostratigraphy, geochemis

and mineralogy of the Agnew Lake Intrusion. Daligets were chosen based on the following charesties:
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. Targets were initially restricted to a distinctHilogical unit (Vari-textured Unit) that was viewad having the best

potential to host PGM mineralization.

° Holes were positioned to intersect the thickestigeof the distinct lithological unit for detailegeochemical and
petrographic studies.

. In general, holes were located in regions with poesly identified surface PGM mineralization.

° Some holes were located in areas associated wikreiP or magnetic anomalies.

Two areas were thus selected as having the beshpaitfor economic PGM mineralization: the B4-Zare the A4-Zone. Detailed core
logs, sampling and assaying were completed in Augus

Phase 1 Drilling Progran

Twenty-one drill holes were drilled into the twantact environments described above. Eleven oéthese drilled in the B4-Zone (1400 m)
and 10 were drilled in the A3- and A4-Zones (1500 All of the drill holes were collared within ~@&600 m horizontal and east of the
mapped surface footwall contact of the ALI. Allldroles were situated perpendicular to the fodiveantact and were drilled at a dip of
either -45°0r 90 °.
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Table 4-1:Summary of Phase 1 Drill Program, Agnew Lake Proper

DDH |Grid E |Grid N |Elevation| Easting |Northing|Depth Dip |Azmuth{#Samples Zone
AL-01 |-3003| -684 | 314.6 |426816 5136316 75 |-45| 270 80 Bz4
AL-02 | -3003 | -684 | 314.6 |426816 5136316 74.5 | -90 | 270 87 Bz4
AL-03 |-3003| -776 | 309.2 |426816 5136224 54 |-45| 270 55 Bz4
AL-04 |-3003| -776 | 309.2 |426816 5136224 68 |-90 | 270 67 Bz4
AL-05 [ -2953| -776 | 309.2 |426866 5136224 75 |-45 | 245 72 Bz4
AL-06 | -49 | 1863 | 325.7 |424523 5135255 114 |-90 | 245 147 | AZ3/4
AL-07 | -49 1863 | 325.7 |424523 5135255 117 | -45 | 245 143 AZ3/4
AL-08 | 64 1761 | 330.7 |424669 5135211 151 |-90 | 245 215 AZ3/4
AL-09| 64 | 1761 | 330.7 |424669 5135211 147 | -45 | 245 225 | AZ3/4
AL-10 | 45 1661 | 317.3 |424694 5135112 126 | -90 | 245 141 AZ3/4
AL-11 |-2916 | -856 308 |426903 5136144 123 | -45 | 250 81 Bz4
AL-12 | -2800|-878.3| 308 |[427018 5136122 166 |-45 | 270 148 Bz4
AL-13 [-2700|-878.3| 308 427118 5136122 179 | -45 | 270 169 Bz4
AL-14 |-2800|-773.3| 308 |427018 5136224 165 |-45 | 270 140 Bz4
AL-15|-2700|-776.3| 308 |427118 5136224 202 |-45 | 270 155 Bz4
AL-16 | -2800 |-684.4| 308 |427018 5136316 159 |-45 | 270 155 Bz4
AL-17 | 50 |1863.5| 300 |[424613 5135297 153 | -45 | 245 161 | AZ3/4
AL-18 | 50 |1863.5| 300 |[424613 5135297 198 | -45 | 290 232 | AZ3/4
AL-19| 50 |1863.5| 300 |[424613 5135297 114 |-45| 335 100 | AZ3/4
AL-20 | 150 |1863.5| 300 |[424704 5135339 209 |-45 | 245 268 | AZ3/4
AL-21 | 215.4|1761.5( 300 424806 5135275 177 | -90 | 245 148 AZ3/4

Total: 2847 2989

All location, depth and elevation reading are intere, UTVs are in NAD27.

The Phase 1 drill program targeted two specificaaavithin the contact environment of the Agnew lakeision, with the intentions being
intersect ‘high-grade’ surface mineralization atpdle. As outlined below slight geological variatioexist between the B4 and the A3/4 zones

Agnew Lake Intrusio

Rocks within the contact environment of the Agreke Intrusion (ALI) are predominately plagiocl- and amphiboleich (after pyroxene
and range in composition from anorthosite througlpyroxenite and texturally vary from very i-grained through to pegmatiti



The stratigraphic sequence of lithologies withie ttontact environment is very similar between theZBne and the A3/Zene, although tf
relative thickness of specific stratigraphic umitaries between the two locations. In general, shratigraphy of the contact environm
consists of an overlying massive gabbroic unitplethis is a gabbro/melagabbro breccia followedabgone of footwall breccia, immediat
below this is the Archean footwall (Ramsey-Algoman@es).
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The rocks of théayered Unitor Varitextured Unitare comprised of varying proportions of plagioclas®l amphiboleich (after pyroxene
rocks, compositionally ranging from anorthositedtgh to gabbro. Grainsize varies from figeined through to pegmatitic. These rc
occur as massive, poorly layered units above tleedia zone and as fragments (autoliths) withinkireccia zone. The rocks within the A3/4-
Zone display much more textural variations as com@do the rocks of the Bdene and as a result are referred to as varitexdu@verall
these rock units appear to be shallow dipping indgatowards the centre of the intrusion at about°id 30 °. Contacts between major a
minor units are typically gradational with occasa&n sheared contacts between units. Sporadic sudphichineralizatiol
(pyrrhotite+chalcopyrite+pyrite) occurs with the yared and Varitextured Units but is generally nemsible to trace. Occurring throughc
both the Layered and Varitextured Units are pyratennclusions that range in size from 0.1m to &h. and range in composition fri
medium-grained melagabbro through to medigirained pyroxenite and contain up to 10% blue quas well as up to 5% blebby sulph
predominantly chalcopyrite

The Breccia Zone occurs immediately below the madsi semmassive Layered and Varitextured Units, it is mdrkg an increase in tl
inclusion population as well as the transition tone mafic rock phases. Two relatively differene@iia units exist between the Bdne an
the A3/4-Zone.

B4-Zone: Within the B4-Zone the Breccia Zone is alBm wide zone of melagabbro breccia (although llggayroxenitic) occurs at tt
contact between the overlying Layered gabbroic su@ihd the underlying Footwall lithologies. It is mposed of a mediugrainec
melagabbro matrix that contains coarse-grained galibucogabbro, fine-grained gabbro/melagabbro amédiumgrained pyroxenit
fragments. Trace to locally 15% disseminated antlebby chalcopyrite + pyrrhotite occurs throughidhe unit. Up to 10% blue qua
occurs through out the B4 Breccia Zone.

A3/4-Zone: Within the A3/4-Zone the Breccia Zone is a820m wide zone of gabbro breccia (variable to maldgo) occurs at the conte
between the overlying Varitextured Unit and thearnydng Footwall lithologies. The breccia is doratad by a mediurgrained gabbro the
contains a wide range and size of xenoliths. Isid types include fine-grained gabbro, fine- todiam-grained melagabbro/gabbr
medium- to coarse-grained gabbro/leucogabbro anddiome-grained melagabbro/pyroxenite. Within the A3/4 BracZone sulphic
mineralization is typically none visible to tracdthough up to 10% blebby/disseminated sulphides @@eur primarily related to the medium-
grained to coars-grained, blue quartzich gabbroic phases, as well within the pyroxenfihases. Sulphide mineralization is predomin:i
chalcopyrite with minor amounts of pyrrhotite angipe.

TheFootwall Brecciaoccurs immediately below the gabbro Breccia Zongiamrmarked by a mixture of country and gabbroickio(possibl
belonging to the Agnew Lake Intrusion). The Foditvaeccia is dominated by granitic fragments ok tanderlying Ramseflgome
Formation occurring within a matrix of predominatdine-grained to medium-grained gabbro. In some loaaitexotic’ fragments, such .
quartzites and argillites occur, most likely reldtes the Huronian lithologies that occur along thastern contact of the intrusion. Within
B4-Zone the granitic component of the Footwall Brecearies from granite through to diorite in compamit. Occurring randoml|
throughout the B4 Footwall Breccia Zone ar@rrinclusions of melagabbro to pyroxenite that cositipnally and textually identical to t
overlying melagabbro/ pyroxenite breccia unit. deago 2% disseminated pyrite+pyrrhotite occurs tighout the Footwall Breccia where
up to 5% blebby chalcopyrite can occur within thelagabbro/pyroxenite inclusions within the B4-Zone.

In some locations, the main rock sequence of theevg ake Intrusion is separated from the Archeange footwall by a gabbroic ui
collectively called théMarginal Gabbronorite Zone (Unit 3Vogel et al., 1996). The Marginal Gabbronoritenooccurs as isolated dike-
like and/or sill-like bodies around the margin ofiet Agnew Lake Intrusion. The marginal rocks ameedfito mediungrainec
gabbro/gabbronorites containing Trace to 5% disseted pyrrhotite and/or pyrite. Chilled upper almver contacts are exhibited betw:
the Marginal Gabbronorite Zone and the surroundpimses.

The footwall to the Agnew Lake intrusion is composé Archean (2720-2660 Ma) granitoids and orthagses of the Ramséjgome
Granitoid suite. The rocks are overall pink to @mey-white, coarsgrained, and equigranular in texture. Mafic dikes, well as quartz ar
pegmatitic quart-feldspar veins impregnate the footwall granites.

Numerous mafic dikes crosscut all of the stratidgpiapinits within the B-Zone and he A3/Zone. Two types of dikes are predominant w
these environments:
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e Mafic Dike: fine-grained to medium-grained, gabbnelagabbro, 12% disseminated pyrite and/or pyrrhaotite, u|
40-50 m in width, sharp to chilled upper and lowentacts.

e Matachewan Dikes: medium-grained to fine-graineahlyo, Trace disseminated sulphides, pidgaic (up to 400
plagioclase phenocrysts), concentrations increasetds the centre, up to 20m in width.

Drill Assay Data

Analytical results of the Phase 1 diamond drilliigram (2989 core samples) are described and dised below

Background Resuli

Background values are calculated from the arithmatierage of 2074 core samples with low Cu conaéiptrs (<100 ppm Cu), which
considered a close approximation of low sulphurteah The average concentration from the 2074 sample$is? ppb Au, 24.1 ppb Pt, 3¢
ppb Pd (69.8 ppb 3E), 76.4 ppm Ni, 31.9 ppm Cu,.2fHpm S; average ratios include 1.43 Pd: Pt and2DCu: Ni. A previous estimate
based on surface samples was 3.0 ppb Au, 27.2 p[39® ppb Pd (69.9 ppb 3E), 84.5ppm Ni, 43.7 fun283 ppm S; average ratios
include 1.45 Pd: Pt and 0.52 Cu: Ni.

Precious Metal and Base Metal Resi

Anomalous PGM sulphide mineralization (>0.25 g/} ®ker significant widths (<5.0 m) was intersecte®0 of the 21 drill holes. Table-3
lists the major PGM intercepts from each of the &ha& diamond drill holes.

Palladium and Platinum concentrations constituteeay high percentage of the total PGM values: ager29.4 % Pt in 2981 assays (
(samples include all assays with >1ppb 3E), averag® % Pd in 2981 assay and average 14.9 % A981 assays.

Table 4-2: Summary of sulphide and PGE distribution within th&n breccia unit, B4-Zone and A3/4-Zone.

Zone [Ave Thickness Au Pt Pd 3E Ni Cu |Pd: Pt|Cu:Ni | %AuU
B4-Zone 13.58 11.2 |74.8 [125.3 P11.3 |[75.8 [184.6 (1.68 [|2.44 |5.3%
A3/4-Zone 46.1 8.4 |65.2 619 (1354 |92.3 [126.6 [0.95 |1.37 16.2%

Average Thickness measure in m; Au, Pt, Pd and &&Suare in ppb; Ni and Cu measure in p|

From the above it is apparent ththe breccia package in the B4-Zone is much thirthan in the A3/42one. The B4 breccia zone &
contains somewhat more PGM mineralization and Rillm is the dominant PGE phase as compared to 8Y@ Areccia zone whe
Platinum is the dominant PGE phase. Also, Pd curiteB4 is about twice that in A3/4; Pt is the sa

A review of the cro-sections shows that PGM mineralization occurs iwithr near a flatdipping gabbro breccia near the base of
intrusive section; in this sense there is sometigit@phic control. Mineralization, as yet, is teoratic to define a zone.
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Table 4-3: Drill Hole Intercepts >=250 ppb 3E

DDH From(m) To(m) Int(m) Au(ppb) Pt(ppb) Pd(ppb) 3E(ppb) 3E(g/t) Ni(ppm) Cu(ppm) Cu:Ni Pd:Pt %Au %Pt  %Pd S(ppm)
AL-01 12.85 14.50 1.65 4.4 163.3 238.3 406.1 041 71.8 6.7 0.1 15 13 395 59.2 0.0

AL-02 3.00 17.00 14.00 29.1 86.5 3405 456.1 0.46 104.9 29.3 0.4 2.3 21.0 30.2 488 169.6
incl. 6.00 17.00 11.00 23.2 105.1 427.4 5557 056 117.8 21.6 0.3 2.6 126 327 5438 115.9
AL-03 27.00 30.35 3.35 18.0 8.3 188.0 2143 021 1210 78.3 0.6 22.7 8.4 3.9 87.7 92.5

and 39.00 40.00 1.00 46.5 171.0 2915 509.0 051 118.0 926.0 7.8 17 9.1 336 573 800.0
and 41.00 42.50 1.50 41.7 269.3 289.0 600.0 0.60 94.3 1488.0 15.8 11 7.0 449  48.2 1666.7
AL-04 30.00 33.00 3.00 25.5 117.0 240.2 3827 0.38 74.8 488.7 6.5 2.1 6.7 306 62.8 616.7
and 39.65 41.00 1.35 18.0 141.3 1784 337.7 0.34 84.6 208.7 25 13 5.3 418 52.8 481.5
AL-05 57.00 62.50 5.50 25 95.5 233.3 3314 033 100.6 28.6 0.4 2.9 0.9 289 70.2 54.5

AL-06 66.50 77.50 11.00 29.6 226.6 1525 408.8 041 76.6 168.8 24 11 13.2 46.4 403 450.0
incl.  69.00 70.50 1.50 55.3 866.3 384.0 13057 1.31 93.7 220.7 24 0.5 4.0 66.0 29.7 300.0
incl.  69.00 7750 8.50 36.6 245.1 180.5 4622 0.46 71.4 212.3 3.0 13 105 432 461 576.5
AL-07 77.00 86.00 9.00 38.2 149.6 1654 3532 035 110.2 466.2 45 11 39.1 452 428 633.3
incl.  83.00 84.50 1.50 40.7 230.3 465.7 736.7 0.74 89.0 605.7 5.1 2.2 44.0 31.0 633 833.3
AL-08 103.00 103.50 0.50 6.0 877.0 149.0 1032.0 1.03 101.0 14 0.0 0.2 4.0 85.0 14.0 0.0

and 12450 14150 17.00 10.3 83.6 1711 265.0 0.27 81.6 170.7 2.0 2.7 7.2 29.2 64.2 488.2
incl. 129.00 132.00 3.00 14.7 175.2 305.8 4957 0.50 86.8 174.4 1.9 2.3 35 32.7 653 683.3




AL-09 93.00 96.00 3.00 5.5 146.8 2123 364.7 0.36 34.0 3.3 0.1 15 4.5 40.0 55.7 0.0
and 118,50 127.50 9.00 22.4 144.3 157.7 3244 0.32 62.2 177.6 25 1.8 4.8 41.7 53.6 200.0
and 13250 136.00 3.50 42.9 250.0 2124 5053 0.51 96.6 1211.7 12.3 0.9 103 479 416 1685.7
AL-10 75.00 76.00 1.00 3.0 195.0 465.0 663.0 0.66 76.0 33.0 0.4 2.4 0.5 294 70.1 200.0
and 78.00 80.00 2.00 2.0 182.0 146.5 3305 0.33 122.0 1375 11 0.8 0.6 55.1 443 250.0
and 94.60 98.00 3.40 14.8 126.4 90.9 2321 0.23 83.4 247.0 3.0 0.7 6.4 545 39.2 320.6
AL-11 23.00 36.00 13.00 18.9 165.3 164.7 3489 035 1195 503.1 4.3 13 3.8 415 54.7 942.3
incl. 3150 36.00 4.50 50.0 338.0 225.0 613.0 061 1371 13388 10.1 0.7 8.9 548 36.2 2577.8
AL-12 65.00 66.50 1.50 39.0 471.3 497.7 969.0 097 137.3 539.0 3.1 1.2 3.0 46.7 53.3 0.0
AL-13 68.00 70.00 2.00 58.5 686.0 19245 2669.0 2.67 48.5 22.8 0.5 2.2 15 33.0 655 150.0
incl.  69.00 70.00 1.00 115.0 1310.0 3760.0 5185.0 5.19 49.0 26.2 0.5 2.9 2.0 250 73.0 100.0
and 105.55 109.00 3.45 4.9 111.7 202.3 3189 0.32 95.6 108.7 1.3 2.9 0.7 341 654 196.0
AL-14 81.00 82.25 1.25 0.0 242.0 5140 756.0 0.76 109.0 12,5 0.1 21 0.0 320 68.0 100.0
AL-15 50.75 55.00 4.25 5.2 112.2 160.6 278.1 0.28 48.4 93.6 21 1.6 21 39.4 585 817.6
and 83.00 88.00 5.00 5.4 86.6 178.2 2702 0.27 68.8 40.1 0.7 2.2 2.0 33.0 648 460.0
AL-16 44.00 49.00 5.00 6.0 114.6 308.0 4286 043 32.6 93.2 2.8 1.8 0.8 434 55.6 240.0
and 110.00 11750 7.50 5.5 153.0 408.5 567.0 0.57 98.6 52.3 0.6 2.3 0.9 32.7 66.5 154.0
incl. 111.50 115.00 3.50 8.0 250.9 7419 1000.7 1.00 157.0 79.3 0.6 3.1 0.7 269 726 196.0
AL-17 101.00 135.60 34.60 22.8 1711 1102 304.1 0.30 1044 200.6 2.0 0.7 17.4 457 312 295.4
incl. 111.00 115.00 4.00 69.3 7775 371.3 12180 122 1053 283.0 2.7 0.4 3.3 69.3 275 400.0
incl. 111.00 133.00 22.00 34.7 2325 157.5 4247 042 1117 2925 2.9 0.8 165 49.8 315 415.9
incl. 127.50 130.50 3.00 39.8 148.5 2885 476.8 0.48 1823 450.6 25 1.9 8.0 313 60.7 650.0
AL-18 112.00 120.00 8.00 1.8 2234 87.1 3123 031 78.3 101.4 15 0.5 13 46.2 52.6 243.8
incl. 117.00 120.00 3.00 3.7 540.0 186.5 730.2 0.73 72.7 221.3 35 0.5 17 69.0 29.3 383.3
incl. 117.00 121.00 4.00 2.8 430.1 150.0 5829 0.58 71.3 170.0 2.7 0.5 13 68.3 305 3125
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DDH From(m) To(m) Int(m) Au(ppb) Pt(ppb) Pd(ppb) 3E(ppb) 3E(g/t) Ni(ppm) Cu(ppm) Cu:Ni Pd:Pt %Au %Pt %Pd S(ppm)
and 134.00 14145 745 153 182.1 3249 5223 052 1458 2492 1.6 1.8 4.4 38.8 56.8 806.0
incl. 136.50 14145 495 214 200.1 284.7 506.2 051 147.1 3492 2.0 15 4.9 421 529 1142.4
and 149.00 151.00 2.00 295 342.0 1104.0 14755 148 219.0 4478 1.6 3.3 15 235 750 900.0
AL-19 anomalous values
AL-20 12850 130.50 2.00 7.5 269.3 115.0 391.8 0.39 111.8 277.8 2.8 0.4 4.0 713 2438 350.0
and 13450 135.00 050 17.0 1070.0 460.0 1547.0 155 1340 318.0 2.4 0.4 1.0 69.0 30.0 300.0
and 139.50 149.00 9.50 22.6 188.8 1245 3358 0.34 84.8 481.0 5.5 0.4 13.8 443 419 870.5
and 139.50 150.50 11.00 19.6 165.8 118.3 303.7 0.30 89.6 425.8 4.9 0.7 12.0 405 475 760.9
incl. 14150 144.00 250 482 396.8 279.6 7246 0.72 131.2 8782 7.1 0.7 6.8 55.0 38.2 1160.0
incl. 147.30 149.00 1.70 29.9 364.8 2009 5956 0.60 129.0 829.1 6.8 0.6 4.8 61.3 339 1100.0
and 170.00 17400 4.00 27.6 121.4 357.1 506.1 051 1770 6434 3.4 2.9 6.4 256 67.8 1325.0
AL-21 109.50 113.70 4.20 5.3 195.3 93.9 2945 029 1741 1717 1.0 0.5 1.8 66.3 319 430.2

Phase 2 Drilling Progran

The Phase 2 diamond drilling program, completedrfraugust 14" to November 28', 2002, was aimed at further understanding the tion
and morphology of the basal contact of the Agnekeliatrusion and assessing the potential of thee\ghake Property to host econol
Platinurr-group Metal (PGM), Cu and Ni mineralization. Resultom this program have shown that the Agnew Lliakesion is a ver
complex and as yet not fully understood intrusidrichy, despite relatively disappointing results tael has the potential to host econc
PGM-Cu-Ni mineralization. The Phase 2 drill prograatalled 5,104.8 metres in 9 holes.

The primary focus of the Phase 2 drill program wasfold:

1) to locate ‘contact-stylePGM mineralization, similar to that discovered d&etRiver Valley Property located in Dana and Pe
Townships, about 60 km northeast of Sudbury. PGhnalization in the River Valley Intrusion is knowo extend nearly continuou
for several kilometres along strike and to deptifismmre than 400 m. Grades between 1 g/t and Pg/Pd+Au occur withit
mineralized breccias that have widths of 60 m orer(tocally >100 m wide). Similarities with thever Valley property suggest tl
the Agnew Lake Property also has excellent potefaticbulk tonnage, PGM mineralization.

2) to establish and correlate the stratigraphic urifshe Agnew Lake intrusion at depth and to confinmlocation and morphology of 1
footwall contact. In conjunction with this, the geérilling was also targeting possible deep sulghidineralization associated w
‘reef-structures’ and possible magmatic sulphidsesaaiated with ‘feeder structures’ toward the bakthe intrusion.

The Phase 2 diamond drill program was completedhenAgnew Lake Property between Augus®™, 2002 and November &1, 2002. Nin



drill holes totalling 5,104.8m were drill in thremeparate and geologically different locations witlihe Agnew lake Intrusion. Hole A2-
was collared along the south-east margin of the édgh.ake Intrusion and APR3 is located within the central portion of the A&gnLak
intrusion. Drill holes AL-24 through ABO focused on the contact environment along théhean margin of the Agnew Lake Intrusion. Ti

4-4 summarizes the nine holes drilled during thageh2 program.
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Table 4-4. Summary of Phase 2 Drill Program, Agnew Lake proper
DDH | Easting | Northing | Elevation | Depth Az Dip | Claim Twp
AL-22 [431837.5(05133627.60 285.00 |2,131.8QVertical| -90 | 1236167 | Shakespeare
AL-23 (430426.405135434.00 320.00 (1,567.00Vertical| -90 | 1236163 Dunlop
AL-24 1429516.405136739.90 307.00 | 191.00 | 360 | -45 |1116248 Dunlop
AL-25 1429416.405136739.90 309.00 | 155.00 | 360 | -45 |1116247 Dunlop
AL-26 |429316.405136739.90 314.00 | 197.00 | 360 | -45 |1116247 Dunlop
AL-27 1429216.405136739.90 310.00 | 200.00 | 360 | -45 |1116247 Dunlop
AL-28 1429116.405136739.90 307.00 | 221.00 | 360 | -45 |1116247 Dunlop
AL-29 1429016.405136739.90 300.00 | 221.00| 360 | -45 |1116246 Dunlop
AL-30 |428916.405136739.90 295.00 | 221.00| 360 | -45 |1116246 Dunlop
Total: 5,104.80

All locations, depths and elevations are in metef§Ms are in NAD8-Zone 17.

The Phase 2 drill program consisted of two sta@pas were designed to evaluate and test two geddlgidifferent areas of the Agnew L
Intrusion. Stage 1, which consists ot-22 and AL23), was designed to gain a better understandinfp@bverall geology of the Agnew L
Intrusion, including stratigraphy, location of thiotwall contact, petrography, geochemistry and thessible source of geophysi
anomalies. Stage 2, which consists of holes Ato244_-30, was designed to test the vertical extent oiknsurface mineralization within t
contact environment of the northern C-Zone.

Stage 1 Drilling

In 1999, the GSC/OGS performed a gravity and aegpratic survey over the Agnew Lake Property. Assaltef this study, a large grav
anomaly was identified along the eastern margithefintrusion corresponding to the centre and dsepertion of the Agnew Lake Intrusi
In March 2002, Pacific North West Capital Corp. aogd, with the assistance of JVX Ltd., all therave data from Fugro/Aerodat regardi
a 1989 BP magnetic/VLF survey. Using the newlyusied geophysical data and the GSC/OGS gravity ,dat&X Ltd reinterpreted tl
gravity and magnetic properties of the Agnew Lakeukion with emphasis being put on the depth,atid shape of the basal contact
results of the study are as follows:

1. The western and southern contacts of the Agnew lraikesion represent relatively thin and flat lyipgrtions of the intrusion.

2. The northern contact of the Agnew Lake Intrusigoresents a thicker and steeper portion of the Aghake Intrusion, compared
the western and southern contacts.

3. The regional gravity data shows a 10 mgal gravighhover the centre of the Agnew Lake Intrusiorelirinary modeling suggest
a maximum thickness of 1000 metres based on a roekmlensity of 2.7 g/crh

In order to further constrain and add detail to tleeation and depth to the basal contact, JVX Lioppsed that Pacific North West Cap
Corp. perform a ground based gravity survey acitbgsAgnew Lake Intrusion. Pacific North West Caporp. in conjunction with JVX L
selected a 5.0 km NW-SE grid line (orientated at BWV) that extended from the northern contact tostnatheast contact of the Agnew L
intrusion. After further rdanterpretation of the gravity data, JVX concluddthtt the deepest part of the Agnew Lake Intrusiomich
corresponds to the centre of the regional gravitpmaly, is approximately 2,089 metres.

Based on the results provided by JVX Ltd., Pablficth West Capital Corp. planned to drill two vetli holes along the gravity survey line
order to test the depth to the basal contact. Hule22 was collared along the southwestern margin efAlgnew Lake Intrusion, a locati
corresponding to what was interpreted as the deepesion of the intrusion and the approximate cenof the large regional gravi
anomaly. Hole AL-23 was collared approximately Rnd NW of AL22, along the NW gravity survey line, and was aeoim an interprete
topographical depression within the footwall of therusion that also corresponded to a gravity high
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The primary goal of drilling A-22 and Al-23 was to gain an understanding of the location @hdracteristics of the footwall conte



Unfortunately both AL-22 and A23 failed to intersect the basal footwall conta€iriginal estimates of the depth to the footwaltevease:
on regional and local gravity surveys, both of whitave now been shown to have underestimated toaladepth to the basal footw
contact. One factor that may have contributed tis tliscrepancy in estimating the depth to footvimlthe density contrasts between
gabbroic rocks of the Agnew Lake intrusion and dghenitic footwall lithologies. Detailed rock demhsiestimations, based on wh-rock
geochemistry, have been completed providing a marie detailed estimation of the density of theuisin. Further gravity modelling bas
on this new density information could provide a enaccurate approximation of depth to basal contact.

Drill Hole AL-22

Drill hole AL-22 was terminated at a depth of 2,131.80m hauvmersected approximately 65% of the Agnew Lakeusiin. Hole AL22
intersected the Upper Series (7a, 6d and 6b) ofAtpeew Lake intrusion as well as a small portiorihaf upper Lower Series (5¢). Origi
estimates by Vogel (1996) suggested that the Ugpaes should have a maximum thickness of 1,10@8ouating for more than 50% of 1
total thickness of the Agnew Lake Intrusion, ofolvHinit 6b could reach a maximum thickness of In@Qickness of individual units var
from one location to the next). In -22 the Upper Series extends from 0.00m to a downdepth of 1,989.05m and the Lower Series ex
from 1,989.05 down to 2,131.80m (142.75m). Uni- Porphyritic Unit reaches a maximum thickness in2® of 1,439.75m, which is mq
than 400m thicker than the maximum thickness stegdxyy Vogel (1996). The reason for the thickeatigfraphic units in AL22, relative ti
Vogel (1996), can be explained by several possdsli

1. Vogel's (1996) estimations of the thickness of specifatigraphic units are possibly incorrect and thgmew Lake Intrusion
considerably thicker then observed on surface.

2. Vogel (1996) initially interpreted the Agnew Lakerlision to represent a mafic sill that has undergdolding along a NVBE axis
coincidently AL22 was collared directly on the fold axis of thedine which also coincides to the thickest parthaf intrusion. As
result of this folding, it is possible that theatigraphy along the south eastern portion of theusion has a fairly steep dip (towal
the north). Therefore, rather then cutting througthatively flat lying units, AL22 may have intersected Unit 6b at an oblique &
and drastically increased the overall apparent kmiess of the unit.

From 1865.3-1880.80m, AL-22 intersected a larger structureezoncupied by massive quartz-carbonate veins & OTZA. This structur:
zone has been interpreted to represent the -dip extension of the Camp 11 Fault, which on stefs represented by alBm wide zone
stock work quartz-carbonate veins. If this struetdoes represent the Camp 11 Fault then the siratzone has an overall dip of 68SE.

A broad mixing zone (Transition Unit Il) occurs Wween units 7a and 6b (-Ti Oxide Zone and the Upper Gabbronorite Zc
Lithologically, this unit is composed of a wide ety of rock types resembling lithologies abovdpweand foreign. Texturally the zc
resembles a breccia with contact relations rangirgn sharp to transitional. Mineralogically, theis trace to 1% disseminated sulpt
throughout the interval as pyrrhotite and chalcafsr

Drill Hole AL-23

Drill hole AL-23 was terminated at a depth of 1,570.50m, haintgysected approximately 57% of the Agnew Lakeusidn. Hole AL23
intersected the lower portion of the Upper Seri@s)(the Lower Series (5c, 5b) and the upper portbthe Marginal Series (4b). Origir
estimates by Vogel (1996) suggested that the L8®&ses could have a maximum thickness of 700m@Gm,7&ccounting for more than 3l
of the total thickness of the Agnew Lake Intrugionit 5¢ can reach a maximum thickness of 600m @nid 5b can reach a maximt
thickness of 250m). In A23, the Lower Series extends from 206.27m to a dwe depth of 1533.75m for a total thickness df7188m
Unit 5¢ — Layered Unit reaches a maximum thickmes_-23 of 667.33m. Unit 5b — Massive Unit reegla maximum thickness in 2B-o
660.15m, which is more than 400m thicker than th&imum thickness suggested by Vogel (1996). Basely on the information obtain
in AL-23, it would appear that the stratigraphic unitsthim the northern portion of the Agnew Lake Intamsiare increasing in thickne
towards the south. Vogel (1996) estimated thatheginal Series could obtain a
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maximum thickness between 700m and 800m. Thisatstsuggests that A23 may have intersected the Footwall contact atical deptt
of 2,200m to 2,300m resulting in a footwall digekcess of 60. toward the SSE.

The exact correlation of stratigraphic unit betwekln-22 and AL23 proved to be very difficult do to the apparemvement along the Cal
Eleven Fault. Using the base of Unit 6b as a maHarizon it is estimated that the vertical moveialong the Camp Eleven Fault wo
have been up to 1,800m. As a result, the Agnew Ltkusion, north of the Camp Eleven Fault, hasagparent uplift of up to 1,80(
relative to the southern parts of the intrusion.

Stage 2 Drilling

In addition to attempting to test the location loé bhasal footwall contact with holes -22 and AL23, seven short holes were drilled within
C-Zone, along the northern contact of the intrusidrhe purpose of the seven short holes was toltestdrtical and lateral extent of kno
surface mineralization within the C-Zone; Table #rdvides the details of drill holes AL-24 to AL-30

All of the Stage 2 drill holes collared in Massivait (5b) of the Lower Series and were drilled tosvéhe northern granitic contact; tl



intention was to intersect the lower stratigraphitts of Lower and Marginal Series. All of thddy with the exception of A29 intersecte
the footwall contact; AL-29 ended in the Inclusimearing Zone of the Lower Series. Sporadic, traigseminated sulphide (chalcopyrits
pyrrhotite) occurred throughout the contact enviment of each of the seven diamond drill holes. tNébshe mineralization was focus
within units 4b (Mottled Unit) and 5a (Inclusidsearing Zone), which were the primary targets floe drill program. Up to 50% of tl
prospective mineralized unit in holes -24 to AL-30 was lost due to crosstting mafic dykes and Matachewan Dykes. As altrethe
overall potential of the C-Zone contact environmierdifficult to estimate.

Precious Metal and Base Metal ResI

Narrow, highe-grade sulphide mineralization (>1.0g/t) was intected in six of the nine drill holes of the Phagg@ram. Table 4 lists the
major PGM intercepts form each of the Phase 2 diaindrill holes. Palladium and Platinum concentratsoconstitute a very high percent:
of the total PGM values: average 46.6% Pd in 4,88rples, average 43.0% Pt in 4094 samples and geelr@.3% Au in 4,094 samples.

Table 4-5. Significant PGM intercepts from Phase 2 drilling,ghiew Lake Property.

DDH From To Int. Au Pt Pd 3E* 3E* Ni Cu Pd/PtCu/Ni
m m m ppb ppb ppb  ppb g/t ppm ppm

AL-22 anomalous PGE values

AL-23425.00 426.00 1.00 6.00 1550.00 10.00 1566.001.57 25.00 45.00 0.01 1.80
AL-23733.00 734.00 1.00 62.00 263.00 778.00 1103.001.10 164.001000.002.96 6.10
AL-231177.001178.00 1.00 58.00 260.00 859.00 1177.00 1.18 167.00975.00 3.30 5.84
AL-24 147.00 149.55 2.25 15.98 451.67 1638.042105.69 2.11 152.59 56.12 3.63 0.37
AL-25 33.00 34.00 1.00 5.00 143.00 836.00 984.00 0.98 154.00138.00 5.85 0.90
AL-26 anomalous PGE values

AL-27 49.00 50.00 1.00 676.00 10.00 11.00 697.00 0.70 40.00 95.10 1.10 2.38
AL-27 128.00 129.00 1.00 39.00 411.00 2110.002560.002.56 72.00 73.80 5.13 1.03
AL-27 164.00 165.00 1.00 22.00 169.00 902.00 1093.00 1.09 324.00700.00 5.34 2.16
AL-28 46.00 50.00 4.00 12.25 164.00 273.25 449.50 0.45 109.00301.43 1.67 2.77
AL-28 57.10 58.00 0.90 29.00 343.00 1270.001642.00 1.64 59.00 229.00 3.70 3.88
AL-29215.00 216.00 1.00 11.00 124.00 539.00 674.00 0.67 149.00210.00 4.35 1.41

AL-30 anomalous PGE values
*3E=Pt+Pdwi
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Conclusions:

Stage 1 drilling of the Phase 2 drilling programdeep drilling of AL-22 and AL-23began to answer some of the questions regardin
fundamental properties of the Agnew Lake Intrusiainije at the same time posing several new questiegarding the general characterist
of the Agnew Lake Intrusiotage 2 drilling of the Phase 2 drilling programntimued to demonstrate the presence of anomaloddcaally
‘high-grade’ PGM sulphide mineralization within the contact eomiment of the Agnew Lake Intrusion. In generalesal importar

observations and conclusions can be made regarldiieg\ﬁnew Lake Property: ) ) )
1. Original estimates made by JVX Ltd. on the thickrafsthe Agnew Lake Intrusion suggested thataximum thickness of 2,089

Drill hole AL-22 confirmed that the intrusion is at least 2,18t8thick, and that it may be 1,000m to 2000m thisk#, totalling ug.
to 4,100 metres in thickness. This is certainlylde the thickness proposed by Vogel (1996).

2. Many of the main stratigraphy units and series tivate encountered in the drilling were significgnthicker than those original
proposed by Vogel (1996).

3. The drastic increase in the thickness of units iwithe vicinity of AL22 may be the result of a large regional fold a®iipreted b
Vogel et al. (1998). The folding could have re=ilin the southern margin of the Agnew Lake Intnugd be folded at a very ste
angle; any drill intersections would therefore daique and result in a large apparent thicknessliitl core.

4. The Camp Eleven Fault was intersected at depthola AL-22. Surface correlation suggests that tadtthas a SSE dip of 68.
Furthermore, stratigraphic correlation implies a ggible dip-slip movement (north side up) of up,80@m, along with a strikslip
movement of several hundred meters.

5. AL-22 and AL23 have shown that overall there is little litholcgl changes throughout the tested portion of thgnew Lak
Intrusion. The lithologies are almost entirely medi to coarsagrained leucogabbro and gabbro. Very little to nelagabbro t
pyroxenite were identified. Specifically, ‘pyroxenite poc’ were identified in either A-22 or AL-23; these pyroxenite pods, or



least the magmas that produced them, could bedahadkpotentially economic PGM mineralisation.
6. Distinct textural changes occur throughout AL-221akl-23, ranging from massive, layered, mottledphgritic and dendritic.
7. From 118.70-241.60m in AL-22, a distinct mixing eatcurs between the Hé-Oxide Zone of the Upper Series and the U

Gabbronorite Zone of the Upper Series. This zemaarked by a pronounced breccia texture. Geocladiyithe zone is marked b
distinct depletion in 3E (Pt+Pd+Au), Ni and Cu.

8. There appears to be a gradual thickening in thatgjraphic units from the northern contact southd/éo the Camp Eleven Fault.

0. The stratigraphy, as defined by Vogel (1996) dagsappear to be continuous across the entire indms

10. No significant mineralization, aside from mineralizquartz veins, was intersected in either AL-22I0123.

11. Drilling along the northern contact confirmed theepence of anomalous PGM mineralization within ¢hatact environment of t
C-Zone.

12. Much of the prospective mineralized rock unit wittiie contact environment of the C-Zone (Stagelihd) was “lost” due to cros

cutting mafic dykes; these dykes have obliteratechnof the prospective mineralized zone in thisoreg
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Recommendatior

Based on the results of the Phase 2 diamond dolyjmm, the following is recommended for the Agheke Property in 2002

1. Neither drill hole AL-22 or AL23 intersected the footwall contact and it is tHere recommended that borehole geophysic
completed on each hole. The purpose of the boretwieey would be to: i) help identify the locatiointhe footwall contact; and,
look for possible sulphide mineralization withinOb® to 200m radius of the drill holes; one possipivould be to complete boreh
‘pulse-EM’ surveys.

In order to define further targets within the Agnkake Property it is proposed that an Airbor'Electromagnetic Surveyde performed ovi
the entire Agnew Lake Property. New technologies &is MegaTem or Spectrem go far beyond the dalosudepths of conventional surf
methods and may produce targets of serassive to massive sulphides at depths of up tm40the purpose of the airborne survey woul
to identify targets that could be drill-tested ilPhase 3 program.

2003 Airborne Magnetic/Electromagnetic Survey

Based on the recommendations of the Phase 2 Dyiltnogram outlined above a decision was made topbeted at detailed airborr
magnetic and electromagnetic survey of the Agnewe lpaoperty. Kaymin, through parent group Anglo Aoam, arranged to fly the propel
with Anglo’s proprietary SPECTREM airborne system. Betweedudi® 2003 and 08 June 2003 SPECTREM Air Limitedwoted airborn
electromagnetic and magnetic surveys over the Adradw Property. A total of 1650 line kilometres eisurveyed.

Besides the two objectives of detecting the digsded sulphides associated with the known platirmmd palladium mineralization ai
mapping the geology, another main objective wasdetect any massive sulphide mineralization whiakiccbe present in the area.

Two conductive zones were identified on the prgpantd recommended for ground follow up. These aseribed in more detail below. 1
following are excerpts from a report entitl“Spectrem survey of the Agnew area for Pacific Naest Capital Corp. — July 20035y Philig
Klinkert, Marco Nyoni and Louis Polome of SpectrimLtd.

Zone 5

This moderate priority zone is probably due to ayvemall sulphide body. The conductor has a re&si low conductance value of
Siemens. Because of the small dimensions of th@éuctor, the depth estimate will be wrong and tbaductor is probably located ai
shallow depth below surface. For follow up purmgseoth anomalies in the zone are equally suitafilbey are located on line 222
fiducial 30011, X = 436043, Y = 5138237 and on 28230, fiducial 31257, X = 436130, Y = 51381

Zone 6

This is a high priority zone consisting of two aradies having conductance values of 20 Siemens etdete magnetic anomaly associati
of 27 and 28 nanoTeslas respectively. On tie 28@80 which also passes over the anomaly, the ntiagaesociation was 109 nanoTes
These are parameters typical of those to be egddeom a small massive sulphide body with a sicamit pyrrhotite content. Although 1
depth estimates returned values in the region 6frhBtres, they are probably wrong and the top efabinductor is expected to be situate
a considerably shallower depth below surface. @tweductor appears to dip southwards at approximyatl degrees. This target is hig
recommended for follow up on the ground. The destnaly is located on line 22380, fiducial 37772 A37624, Y = 5139080.

During December of 2003 and January of 2004 culgviere established over these two anomalies indhtheast corner of the property ¢



ground based magnetic and electromagnetic surveys sompleted over the two grids. This work waseuiadten to better target drill testi
of the two anomalies which was underway at the wieriting. Results of the drilling and geophydisarveys were not available to
company at the time of preparation of this report.
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Sampling and Analysit

Sampling Method and Approach

During the Phase Il exploration, program three eliffint varieties of samples were collected throughbe Agnew lake Property. They
prospecting samples, channel samples and lithogaoal samples. The following summarized the génehraracteristic of the thre
sampling programs.

Regional Prospecting: A regional sampling programswmplemented in order to test as much of the vidreke Intrusion as possible
PGM and other mineralization. A total of 2639 grseimples were collected irrespective of geologgk type, sulphide content, mineralc
composition or location. During traversing 1 kgadp samples’ were collected every 25-50m, provitied there was adequate exposure.

Channel Samples: A total of 1886 samples were ateliefrom the six stripped areas on the Agnew lpmkperty (BZ1, BZ2, BZ3, BZ4, A
and AZ4). Sample descriptions and assay resufisagailable from PFN. Samples were taken on a 2X6215 m detailed grid and samg
were collected using a cut-off saw (referred tochannel-grab samples). Each channel-grab samplesisted of approximated 1.5 kg o
material excluding the small representative santipe is kept and stored for possible future analysi

Lithogeochemical Samples: A lithogeochemical samgpgrogram was implemented in order to test thecgemical characteristics of spec
units within the ALI. A total 41 samples were attbel during four separate traverses. Samples welleated at 25m in areas that contait
as little alteration, mineralization and structuas possible (approximately 2.5 kg of material walfected at each site).

Sampling Method and ApproaelCore Samples

Core samples from drilling were generally taken tawmously from the top to the bottom of the holghwidths varying from 0.50 m to 3.
m. The sampling intervals were determined basedjewlogy and sulphide content. Longer samples-150n) were taken from non-
mineralized or weakly mineralized sections. Caeovery from the Agnew Lake Phase 1 diamond dobjiam was excellent.

A contract geologist rough logged drill core in thield, and boxes were hay wired shut and transgabtd the designated loading point. C
boxes were then hand transferred by an experiefietiperson into a 1 ton, fourheel drive truck and driven to the core shack @idig
Road in Lively, Ontaric

Once at the warehouse, the core was cut in hatfgusible mounted, wet diamond blade rock saws, euihiom made stainless steel core t
to ensure an even split. The saw blades were otkand sharpened with a dry brick after every bot clhe project geologist then log¢
holes and all data was entered into an MS Accetabdae, using an IBM Pentium Il laptop computer.

Sample intervals were selectively marked up witk pencils and a trained sampler rinsed the samgge@emove any excess material,
placed one half of the core for each sample, inastic bag containing a tag with the sample nuntharked on the outside. A sample
with the same number was also placed in the coreabthe start of each sample interval.

The individual samples were bagged together in ceroia rock bags (up to 20 kilograms per bag). ®agsample shipments were m
using, Manitoulin Transport, a bonded commerciaick carrier for transport to RouyNoranda where the samples were submitted to
(XRAL) Laboratories and assayed for Pt, Pd, Au anudti-element ICP, which includes Cu and Ni.

For the remaining half of the core, metal tags wsta@pled to the end of each core box showing tihe member and meters. Lids were t
strapped tightly onto each bassing hard plastic strapping and moved to the sedbarbed wire fenced and locked with monitoredra
system in main building) core storage compoundtieda@n the grounds of the Fielding Road core shack.
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Sample Preparation, Analyses and Secul

This section describes the analytical proceduresiua primary and check assay laboratories, and/jgies and evaluation of results.

Grab samples, channel samples and lithogeochersaalples were submitted to XRAL Laboratories, RiNyranda, Quebec and Bonc
Clegg Laboratories, Val @r, Quebec, where they were analyzed for (amornystr @lements) Pt, Pd, Au, Cu, Ni and S. Reprasigathan
and/or chip samples were taken from all collectachgles that were submitted for assay and are cgtedd and stored at the Fielding R«
location.



At both Bonde-Clegg and XRAL, concentrations of Pt-Rd-were determined using standard lead fire assethaus, followed by dissoluti
with aqua regia, and measurement with either an (@@uctively coupled plasma) finish at Bond2legg or a DCP (direct current plasnm
finish at XRAL. Lower limits of detection (in 3€gmple) are 1 ppb Au, 1 ppb Pd and 5 ppb Pt at Br-Clegg and 1 ppb Au, 1 ppb Pd :
10 ppb Pt at XRAL; both labs have upper limits efedtion of 10,000 ppb Pt, Pd, or Au. Concentratiof CuNi were determined by IC
methods and generally have lower limits of detectbl ppm Cu and 1 ppm Ni; the upper limit for t8® method for Cu and Ni is 10,C
ppm. Major elements were determined by XRF andearth elements and trace elements were deternbipédAA and ICP

Bondar-Clegg and XRAL Laboratories are both ISO-9002ified laboratories. At both Bondatlegg and XRAL Laboratories all samg
returning Pt, Pd or Au values over 1000 ppb arassayed by the laboratory, as well, in house stedglare inserted every 10 samples.

There are no drilling, sampling or recovery factdhat could materially impact the accuracy of resul

In the opinion of the author the sample qualitg@d and the samples are representative of theralination. The samples are free fr
bias.

Exploration and Developmer

At August 31, 2003, the Company had directly perfed $512,265 worth of exploration work on the Agrieake Property and had cau
further work of approximately $2,500,000 to be parfed through the joint venture arrangement withl RiRd Kaymin. Work is conduct
by PFN as project operator on an ongoing basis.

On February 17, 2004, the Company announced thatitbeen notified by PFN that a 2004 diamondindgilporogram had commenced on
Agnew Lake Project. A minimum of five diamond drilbles will be completed targeting two EM condustoriginally identified by a
airborne geophysical survey of the property conggoléh 2003.

Ground geophysical surveys completed in Decemb8B 2ihd January 2004 defined targets for drillingpahear the contact between
Agnew Lake Intrusion, a member of the River Vallatrusive Suite, and enclosing sedimentary lith@egInitial follow-up prospecting
the Company identified a sulphidearing quartz vein system in close proximity (Idéres west) to the stronger of the two EM conds«
In December 2003, the Company reported grab samegldts from a narrow, strongly oxidized portiontbé& vein system ("V Showinc
returned gold values ranging from 156 parts pdiohil(ppb) to 76.2 grams per tonne (2.45 ouncedqmane) and 0.7 to 206 grams per tc
(6.62 ounces per tonne) silver. Initial drill testiof the two geophysical anomalies is expectdazbtoompleted by the end of February 2004.
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Figure 4- Lac Des lles and Lac Des lles East Project Hajgin
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Lac Des lles Project, Thunder Bay Area, Ontario
The Company’s Lac Des lles Pt Project includes the Shelby Lake, Lac Des liegiR South Legris, Dog River, Taman, Taman Eashdga
Tib, Hottah, Wakinoo, Vande, Coldwater and ThumPesperties. During Fiscal 2003, exploration woraswconducted only on the She
Lake, Lac Des lles River and South Legris Properdie discussed below. The balance of the propertjolio is not considered material
the Company and has not been active in the lasyeaos. These properties were reported on in datad01.

The Lac Des lles Project contains no known bodgamhmercial ore. All exploration programs condudbydhe Company to date have b
exploratory in nature.

Information italicized below has been excerptedrfra Report dated January 13, 2004 entitled “Teehrmeport on the Lac Des lles Pt-
Project — Lac Des lles River, Shelby Lake and Shetlris Properties” by Darin Wagner, M. Sc., P. Geo

Location, Description and Acquisitiol

Shelby Lake Property




On June 28, 2000, a Letter of Intent was enteredliatween the Company and New Claymore Resourtckg“‘New Claymore”)with respec
to the Shelby Lake Property. The terms of thedretif Intent were subsequently formalized in ani@p#greement (the Shelby Lak
Agreement”)executed between the Company as the optionee andINgymore as the optionor effective July 26, 208Qursuant to the ter
of the Shelby Lake Agreement, the Company was gdatite sole and exclusive right and option to aequp to a 60% interest in and to
Shelby Lake Property. The Shelby Lake Propertgosiprised of 10 contiguous claim blocks encompgsgii60 hectares (5,333 aci
located approximately 75 km north-northeast of TderrBay, Ontario and 18 km southwest of North AceriPalladium’s Lac Des lles FRi-
Mine. See Figure 4.

The Company can earn a 50% interest in and to lile¢b$ Lake Property by making cash payments taiehb0,000, issuing 30,304 Comn
Shares to New Claymore and completing $500,00@ toeation expenditures over a four-year periodicdlews:

(@) Cash payment of $10,000 upon receipt of regulagppyroval; (paid)
(b) 30,304 Common Shares as follows:

0] 15,152 Common Shares upon receipt of regulatoryosaly (issued) and
(i) 15,152 Common Shares on the first anniversary (28n2001) (issued).

(c) Exploration expenditures totaling $500,000 oveowar{year period as follows:

0] $20,000 by August 31, 2000; (completed); and
(i) $480,000 within four years of the Shelby Lake Agneat (June 28, 2005) ($422,884 of which had beearied to Augu:
31, 2003).

Within 30 months of completing its 50% edm-the Company may earn an additional 10% intefesta total of 60% interest, in and to
Shelby Lake Property by expending a further $500,00he Company may also elect to stop at 50% iichvbase both parties will contribi
to the project equally.

Upon the commencement of commercial productionShelby Lake Property will be subject to a 2% maeker returns royalty in favour
the Robert Fairservice and NelsonTOble of Kenora, Ontario. The Company and New @lase may purchase, in proportion to t
ownership interest at that time, up to 50% of th& et smelter returns royalty from Robert Fairsggvéind Nelson Q'oole for the sum «
$500,000.
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The Shelby Lake Property adjoins the Comparlyac Des lles River, Vande, Thumper and South iseigroperties and forms part of
Companys Lac Des lles Project. Claim details for the Shélake Property are summarized in the table beldve Shelby Lake Property t
not been legally surveyed and no work permits Hmaen required for the work completed to date.

Shelby Lake Property Claim Information

Claim # of | Approx. |Approx.Area|Township or Original Assessment Work
Number |units| Area | Acres Mining Recording Date Due Date
Hectares District

TB-1220855 4 64 158 Shelby Lakeg December 10,|December 10, 20(
1999

TB-1220857 10 160 395 Shelby Lakeg December 10,|December 10, 20(
1999

TB-122085§ 12 192 474 Shelby Lakg December 10,|December 10, 20(
1999

TB-1220859 15 240 593 Shelby Lakg December 10, |December 10, 20(
1999

TB-122086(0 15 240 593 Shelby Lakg December 10, |December 10, 20(
1999

TB-1220864 16 256 632 Shelby Lakg December 10, |December 10, 20(
1999




TB-1220863 16 256 632 Shelby Lakg December 10,|December 10, 20(
1999

TB-1220864 16 256 632 Shelby Lakg December 10, |December 10, 20(
1999

TB-122086€4 15 240 593 Shelby Lakg December 10, |December 10, 20(
1999

TB-12208671 16 256 632 Shelby Lakg December 10, |December 10, 20(
1999

Totals 135| 2,160 | 5,333

Lac Des lles River Property

On May 5, 2000, the Company entered into an opigneement with Maple Minerals Inc. and East WestoReces Corp. to acquire up tc
undivided 60% interest in the Lac Des lles Rivaygerty. Maples Minerals Inc. and East West Ressuftorp. each hold an undivided &
interest in the property. The Lac Des lles RivaypRrty is comprised of 14 contiguous claim bloekeompassing an area of 2,554 hec
(6,281 acres) located approximately 80 km northtreast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 20 km southwebtorth American Palladiums’Lac
Des lles Pd-Pt Mine. See Figure 4.

The Company can earn a 50% interest in and to #weDes lles River Property by making cash paymeaitding $38,500 and spend
$1,000,000 on exploration over a six-year periotbsws:

(@) $38,500 in cash over a three-year period as fotllows

() $19,000 within 10 days of regulatory approval; @ai

(i) $4,500 within six months of signing (November 50@)) (paid)

(iin) $5,000 on the first anniversary of signing (JuneZ®1); (paid)

(iv) $5,000 on the second anniversary of signing (J@p2@02); (paid) and
(v) $5,000 on the third anniversary of signing (June2ZZ®3) (paid).

(b) Exploration expenditures of $1,000,000 over a frees period as follows:
0] $20,000 by October 31, 2000; (completed)

(i) $80,000 by the first anniversary of signing; (coetet) and
()] $900,000 within five years of signing ($387,418ndfich had been incurred to August 31, 2003).

The Company can then earn a further undivided Ifi¢sest by completing a feasibility study accemablthe Exchange within the followi
three years.
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Upon the commencement of commercial productiony, étaims blocks (1220808, 1220810, 1220833 and 822pwill be subjectto a 1% r
smelter returns royalty in favour of the RobertrBaivice and Nelson @bole of Kenora, Ontario. The Company and the Das lles Rive
Optionors may purchase, in proportion to their oshg interest at that time, up to 100% of the 186 smelter returns royalty from Rok
Fairservice and Nelson O'Toole for the sum of $800,

The Lac Des lles River Property adjoins the Compmahipttah, Wakinoo and Shelby Lake Properties arth$ part of the Comparg/’Lac
Des lles Project. Claim details for the Lac Dess IRiver Property are summarized in the table beldWe property has not been leg
surveyed. No work permits have been requiredifentork completed to date on the property.

Lac Des lles River Property Claim Information

Claim # of | Approx. |Approx.| Township or Original Assessment Work
Number |units| Area | Area Mining Recording Date Due Date
Hectareq Acres District

TB-1172974 4 64 158 | Shelby Lakg March 13, 2000| March 13, 2005
TB-117299] 12 192 474 | Shelby Lakg March 13, 2000| March 13, 2005
TB-1172993 12 | 240 474 | Shelby Lakg March 13, 2000 March 13, 2005
TB-1172995 16 256 632 | Shelby Lakg March 13, 2000 March 13, 2005




TB-117299§ 12 192 474 | Shelby Lakg March 6, 2000 | March 6, 2005
TB-1172999 6 96 237 | Shelby Lakg March 6, 2000 | March 6, 2005
TB-1173000 4 64 158 | Shelby Lakg March 13, 2000| March 13, 2005
TB-122080§4 16 | 256 632 | Shelby Lakg March 6, 2000 | March 6, 2005
TB-122081( 16 | 256 632 | Shelby Lakg March 6, 2000 | March 6, 2005
TB-1220833 16 256 632 | Shelby Lakg March 6, 2000 | March 6, 2005
TB-122083§ 16 256 632 | Shelby Lakg March 6, 2000 | March 6, 2005
TB-1227514 9 144 356 | Shelby Lakg March 28, 2000 March 28, 2005
TB-1240359 8 128 316 | Shelby Lakg March 13, 2000 March 13, 2005
TB-1240519 12 192 474 Orbit Lake | March 20, 2000| March 20, 2005
Totals 159| 2,544 | 6,281

South Legris Property

Pursuant to an option agreement dated April 10020@ amended October 31, 2000 (the “South Leggieément”)between the Compa
as the optionee and Canadian Golden Dragon Resoutde(“CGD”) as the optionor, the Company was granted an opi@tquire up to
60% undivided interest in and to 15 contiguousnelbiocks covering a total of approximately 2,864thees (7071 acres) (th&d6uth Legri
Property”). The South Legris Property is locatepraximately 75 km nortimortheast of Thunder Bay, Ontario and 11 km sotitNarth
American Palladium’s Lac Des lles Ri-Mine. See Figure 4. The South Legris Propadipins the Shelby Lake, and Vande Propertie:
forms part of the Lac Des lles Project.

The South Legris Property is accessed by travedingilometres north of Thunder Bay on provincialghlivay #527, and then travel
approximately 21 kilometres west along the Fensakelallweather gravel logging road. Secondary loggingisoextend southwest fr¢
here to all parts of the property.

The Company can earn a 50% interest in and to theéhSLegris Property by making cash payments tuga$48,300 and completi
$1,000,000 in exploration expenditures as follows:

85

(@) Cash payments totaling an aggregate of $48,300aperiod of 60 months as follows:

0] $10,000 within 14 days of signing; (paid)

(i) $ 9,000 within 1 month of signing; (paid)

(iii) $ 4,300 within 6 months of signing; (paid)

(iv) $ 5,000 within 12 months of signing (April 10, 200(paid)

(v) $ 5,000 within 24 months of the signing (April ZD02); (paid)

(vi) $ 5,000 within 36 months of the signing (April ZD03); (paid)
(vii) $ 5,000 within 48 months of the signing (April ZD04); and
(viii)  $ 5,000 within 60 months of the signing (April ZDO5);
(b) Completing exploration expenditures totaling $1,000 over a five-year period as follows:
0) $ 40,000 within 6 months of signing; (complgted

(i) $ 100,000 within 12 months of signing; (complgted
(iii) $ 200,000 within 24 months of the signing; (coetetl)
(iv) $ 300,000 within 36 months of the signing; (coetetl)
(v) $ 400,000 within 48 months of the signing; (coeted)
(vi) $1,000,000 within 60 months of signing

Within three years of completing its 50% eamnthe Company may earn a further 10% interestaftotal of 60% interest, by completin
feasibility study to the standards required byHEehange.

A portion of the South Legris Property, specifigatlaims 1239923 and 1205156, are the subject afraerlying agreement, dated Apri
2000, between Canadian Golden Dragon ResourcesabttiKen Fenwick, Don Leishman and Ron Tweedielgctvely the ‘Underlying
vendors”)of Thunder Bay, Ontario. Under the terms of the &thdng Agreement CGD can earn a 100% interesténtivo claims by makir
cash payments totaling $50,000 and issuing 1000@@@mon shares to the underlying vendors as indichétow. As per the terms of 1
South Legris Agreement the Company is responsdlenfaking all payments to the underlying vendorsashe time it earns an interest in



property, after which point payments are to be madboth parties according to their interest inheperty.

(@) Cash payments to the underlying vendors totalir@Gk® over a 4-year period as follows:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Issuing 100,000 common shares of Canadian GoldagddrResources to the underlying vendors as follows

(i)

(i)
(iif)
(iv)

Upon the commencement of commercial productionréigroof the South Legris Property (claims 11729472985, 1240523 and 12275
will be subject to a 2% net smelter returns royaityavour of Kenneth Fenwick, Don Leishman and Reveedie of Thunder Bay, Ontal
The Company and CGD may purchase at any time,apggtion to their ownership interest at that timp,to 0.8% of the 2.0% royalty inter
from Fenwick, Leishman and Tweedie for the sum 8 ®&000. The Company and CGD also have a first wghefusal on the sale of t
balance of the royalty interest granted in favdurenwick, Tweedie and Leishman.

$3,000 within 10 days of signing; (completed)

$3,000 upon 6 month anniversary of the date of Brgk approval; (completed)
$3,000 12 months from the approval date (April00D); (completed)

$5,000 18 months from the approval date (Octob20@1); (completed)
$16,000 36 months from the approval date (Apr2d03); (completed)

$20,000 48 months from the approval date (Apr2d04).

(b)

25,000 common shares within 10 days of the apprdatd; (completed)
25,000 common shares within 6 months of the appriate; (completed)
25,000 common shares within 12 months of the agirdate; (completed)
25,000 common shares within 18 months of the agirdate. (completed)
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The following is a summary of the claims compris®guth Legris Property. The South Legris Propedy hot been surveyed and no w
permits have been required for the work completethe property to date.

South Legris Property Claim Information

Claim # of | Approx. | Approx. | Township Original Assessment Work
Number |units| Area Area | or Mining |Recording Date Due Date
(Hectares] (Acres) | District
TB-1172971 4 64 158 |[Shelby Lakq March 6, 2000| March 6, 2005
TB-1172987 16 256 632 |[Shelby Lak¢ March 6, 2000 March 6, 2005
TB-1172983 16 256 632 |[Shelby Lak¢ March 6, 2000 March 6, 2005
TB-1172984 15 240 593 |Shelby Lakg March 6, 2000 March 6, 2005
TB-1172985 16 256 632 |Shelby Lakg March 6, 2000 March 6, 2005
TB-117298¢ 16 256 632 |[Shelby Lak¢ March 6, 2000 March 6, 2005
TB-1172989 12 192 474 |Shelby Lakd March 6, 2000| March 6, 2007
TB-117299( 16 256 632 |[Shelby Lak¢ March 6, 2000 March 6, 2005
TB-3003317 8 128 316 |Shelby Lak¢ May 9, 2003 May 9, 2005
TB-1227503 1 16 40 |Shelby Lak§ May 5, 2000 May 5, 2004
TB-1239923 16 256 632 Whitefin | January 5, 2000 January 5, 2005
Lake

TB-1240521 15 240 593 |Shelby Lakq March 24, 2000 March 24, 2004
TB-1240527 15 240 593 |[Shelby Lakq March 24, 2000 March 24, 2004
TB-1240523 12 192 474 |Shelby Lakq March 24, 2000 March 24, 2004
TB-1240524 1 16 40 Shelby Lakg March 24, 200Q March 24, 2004

Totals 179| 2,864 7,071

Infrastructure and Physiography

The Lac Des lles Project covers gently roiling, ViBaforested terrain typical of the Canadian SHieElevation within the project area rang
from 436 to 524 metres (1,430 to 1,720 feet) alsmaelevel. The area is covered by extensive glagabsits dominated by glacioflu



deposits in the south and till cover in the nottbw swampy ground is common throughout the area.

The Project area is typically heavily forested wittixed jackpine and poplar forests predominatinigleA and willow are common in a
around swampy areas and the numerous small lakekeproperty. Roughly 40% of the Project area haen logged off in the last 1%
years. Second growth stands of jackpine are exisedense and make for difficult working conditioR&cent clear cutting activities he
created greatly improved access to the southertigroof the project area (Shelby Lake, Lac Des Rager, Vande and Wakinoo Properties).
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Access to the Project area is excellent. Thundsr &aves as the regional supply center for thidiporof Ontario with a population base
excess 200,000. From Thunder Bay the main accets® twestern portion of the property is reachedlliying 95 km west along the Trans-
Canada Highway (Hwy 17) to the Dog River ForestésscRoad, an alieather main haul logging and fire access road. Diog River Roa
passes along the western edge of the project andataough the Senga, Dog River and Tib propertBecondary access roads and parti
overgrown logging trails off the Dog River road pite access to the Taman and Taman East properties.

Located 4.2 km north of the Dog River Road/Hwyutiidff is a major *shaped intersection that marks the turnoff for $telby Lake Roa
The Shelby Lake Road, and Orbit Lake road thatsuwrif the Shelby Lake Road to the south at apprieimnthe 15 km mark, are recel
constructed main haul roads that provide excelkitess to the Lac Des lles River, Hottah, Wakinopgrties and western portion of
Shelby Lake Property. The eastern portion of theltBhLake Property and the South Legris and Vandpé&ties are most easily acces
via a separate and unconnected series of loggiagisowhich turns west off regional highway 527k8bnorth of Thunder Bay.

Climate in the Thunder Bay region ranges from high&5-35 degrees Celsius in June, July and Augukiws of -30 to35 in January an
February. Summers are typically moderately warm dnd Rainfall and muddy conditions limit surfacerwin late April to early May ar
again in mid-November to early December. Extrenoalyl temperatures from midanuary to late February typically result in incres
exploration costs but in general work can be conedigear round in the project area.

Exploration History

Recorded exploration activities on the Lac Des Riser, Shelby Lake and South Legris propertieshiwithe Project boundaries, &
summarized below. The exploration histories arestasn a review of the provincial assessment recetdsed with the Mining Recorder
Thunder Bay and Sudbury, Ontario. Under the clagguasition system in effect in Ontario there isalsigation to file work completed or
property if the claim holder does not intend tochtite claims beyond the second anniversary datetefdre, the lack of recorded work
these properties does not rule out the possibiligt early stage work (i.e. mapping, prospectirgnpling) has been completed in som
these areas by other operators in the past.

Recorded exploration on these three propertiesuthes 3 airborne EM and magnetic surveys as follc

1970-72 - V.R. Henbid and T.A. Gustafs@urvey covered the western third of the South keggmoperty, northern half of the Shelby L
Property and majority of the Lac Des lles River pedy. It identified several weak EM anomalies imdammediately northeast of 1
northeastern corner of the South Legris Propertsoudd followup indicated that these anomalies were associatddthe gabbro contact
this area and topographic lineaments. No significameralization was identified.

1975 -Texas Gulf Inc. conducted a regional airborne EMl &hagnetic survey, which included the western thirthe South Legris proper
northern half of the Shelby Lake Property and mgjasf the Lac Des lles River Property. This suridgntified and defined the magnetic ¥
associated with the Shelby Lake Intrusion and teem&rs and Wakinoo intrusions to the east.

1986 - American Platinum Incorporated conducted an airlmiiBM and Magnetic survey over the western halfefltac Des lles Riv
Property and conducted ground exploration and deBting on the adjacent Demars and Wakinoo Lakgétties.

1989 —An assessment report by B. Fowler noted the presehchalcopyrite mineralization within mafic voléa rocks on the south side
Shelby Creek at the eastern edge of the Southd Pgoperty. Assays of up to 5.4% Cu, 33 ppm Ags@nppb Au were returned from seve
small pits and trenches. This is the only recordecurrence of mineralization on the three propereior to the Company’s involvement.
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2000 —In September of 2000 the Ontario government rekbaseletailed airborne magnetic and electromagnsticvey that covered t
majority of the project area. This survey cleadgitified strong magnetic highs associated withrttagor mafic intrusions in the Lac Des |



area and has proved to be an invaluable aid in ggiglal mapping and structural interpretation in thegion.

2002 —In September of 2002 the Ontario government retkbaseéetailed lake sediment survey that coverectittiee project area. The surv
identified Pt-Pd-Ni-Cu-Ci€o anomalies associated with the Lac Des lles Mihe, Towle Lake intrusive complex and several loleee
anomalies associated with the other mafic intrusiam the area. The survey resulted in the Compamuiaing the Coldwater (Pd-CAu
anomalies) and Trumper (Au anomaly) propertiehmm project area.

Geological Setting

The Lac Des lles District is defined geologically the occurrence of a number relatively undefornieate Archean mafic/ultrama
intrusions located near the southern margin of fabigoon Sulirrovince of the Superior craton. The intrusionsjclitdate at roughly 2.7
Ga, occur mainly along the margins of a crudelycualar "ring" (The Lac Des lles Ring Structure) so@&®30 km in diameter. The Lac C
lles intrusions are intruded into Mid to Late Are@meorhto and paragneiss of the Wabigoon -Province. The southern contact of
Wabigoon Sub-Province, with the metasedimentseoQtletico Sub-Province, occurs less than 2 km sofutie southermost member of t|
Lac Des lles suit

Sutcliffe (1986) considered the Lac Des lles soitmtrusions to be roughly coeval with a serieganitic-tonalitic-granodioritic intrusion:
in the Lac Des lles area. This suite of felsicustons is restricted spatially to the interior tietLac Des lles Ring Structure and appea
cut the mafic intrusions. The felsic intrusions,areturn, cut by Late Archean mafic dykes whodatimship to the Lac Des lles Suite
unknown.

Along the eastern margin of the Project area ernalademnants of the Proteroz-aged Logan diabase sill complex are locally preed
The Logan diabase sills are related to Late Proteio extension and failed rifting of the Nipigorsimasome 50 km to the east of the Pr«
area.

Lac Des lles Suite of Intrusio

The main focus of exploration in the Lac Des lléstflizt has been the Lac Des lles Suite of mafi@uiafic intrusions. The Lac Des lles S
is comprised of no fewer than 13 separate but maigally related, multiphase, mafic to ultramafic intrusions, which defmecrudel
circular structure some 30 km in diameter, the Des lles Ring Complex. Limited depth research conducted on this intrusive suitigas
a tentative date of 2.74 Ga to the mafic magmattosaly and indicates derivation from either a patty depleted mantle source or from mi
underplating of continental crust (Brugmann et2897).

Pt-Pd-Au mineralization is known from at least 10 of #f22members of the Lac Des lles Suite. The modfisatt concentration identified
date is the Lac Des lles Mine, which is owned apdrated by North American Palladium. Published mpadndicate that the mine host:
measured and indicated resource of 145.6 mT gradiB§ g/T Pt+Pd+Au. The Lac Des lles Deposit isted by a largescale gabbro t
gabbrc-norite breccia phase of the Mine Complex Intrusatomg the eastern margin of the Lac Des lles Ringn@lex. Mineralization occu

in the form of sparsely disseminated chalcopyritd pyrrhotite typically hosted by the varitextuigabbro matrix to the breccia zone. A high-
grade margin to the deposit is hosted by a stroafigred and deformed, but narrow-15 metre wide) pyroxenite unit.

The Companyg Lac Des lles Project covers all or portions of m@mbers of the Lac Des lles Suite. These incheld owle Lake, Shel
Lake, Legris Lake and Dog River Intrusive Complexas the Demars, Wakinoo, Taman, Taman East, Baké,land Tib Lake Intrusions.
all cases the mafic intrusions are dominated byopgnite and hornblende leucogabbro.

The Shelby Lake and Towle Lake Intrusive Complarxeselatively narrow, elongate gabbdsminated intrusions, which occur along
eastern and southern margins of the Lac Des llesidi, respectively. Both intrusions appear to @édeen intruded along prexisting zone
of structural weakness and exhibit marginal brecoimes and multiple intrusive events. These twasitins underlay the three properti
which are the focus of this report and host moshefknown PGM mineralized occurrences within tieen@any’s holdings.
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Emplacement of the Taman East intrusion also appeahave been controlled by a northetrending structure in the central portion of
Ring. The Wakinoo Intrusion may represent a -offset portion of the Towle Lake Complex.

The Taman, Dog River and Tib Lake Intrusions aidially zoned intrusive complexes that appear taldkimward dipping igneous layerin
Of these the Taman intrusion is the most poorlyosggd and least well understood. All three intrusidrave roughly circular magne
expressions and outcrop patterns, all exhibit ine#rmagnetically defined circular domains and allde appear to be only partially unrooft

The Demars and Bullseye Intrusion are small, stikekbodies with pyroxenite cores and gabbroic riffise Buck Lake Intrusion, which n
be an eastward extension of the Dog River Intrus®oomprised dominantly of gabbro breccia witbsker pyroxenite and leucogabbro.



Deposit Models

Primary platinum and palladium deposits can be didd into four categories: Magma-reef hosted, Contact/Contact Breccia hos
Magmatic-Hydrothermal and Lac Des lles type deposits. Tiraisions of the Lac Des lles Suite have shown piaten host all four styles
mineralization. Each style is discussed in moraitibelow along with exploration parameters and mxxdes from the Lac Des lles District.

Magmatic-reef Hosted Deposits:

This class of PGM deposits is exemplified by thesime PtPd deposits of the Bushveld Complex in South A&igathe Stillwater Compl
in Montana. Sulphide related mineralization occorger a discrete, and typically thin (< 5 metre Wjicstratigraphic interval parallel t
igneous layering within large layered mafittramafic complexes. The PGM mineralization isastorm in nature, regional extensive ¢
typically occurs near the contact between ultramafnd gabbroic phases of the host complex. PGM ralimation in these deposits
interpreted to be primary magmatic in origin andodsition is interpreted to be related to magmatiging between two or more intrus
phases within a large, relatively quiescent magtmangber. Exploration criteria include the presenddasge magmatic systems, evidenc
magmatic mixing, mulgphase intrusive activity and layer development.fRede PGM mineralization has been identified lmyrtN Americal
Palladium within the main Lac Des lles Complex. Btimger Zone, which is discussed in more detddveon the Shelby Lake Prope
exhibits some aspects of this style of PGM mirzaibn.

Contact/Contact Breccia Hosted Deposits:

This category includes two distinct solasses, massive sulphide contact deposits (Notiype) and contact breccia deposits (Platree
River Valley type). The first s-class is not relevant to the Lac Des lles distaict! will not be discussed further. Contact Breduisted PG
mineralization is a common occurrence. The mostifstgint deposits of this type are located along thestern margin of the Bushv
Complex, along the scalled Platreef trend. Here bulk mineable, loweade PGM mineralization occurs within polycyclic becea zone
developed at or near the contacts of the Bushveltlex. PGM mineralization appears to be primarygmatic in character with depositi
induced by contamination from both mafic/ultramafiocks within the breccia and/or by inclusionssodphur or ironbearing wall rocl
lithologies. The brecciated nature of the host sepe speaks to a much more active intrusive rethiare envisaged above and a possible
for volatile-laden fluids in mobilizing and distributing mineidtion. Typically the deposits in this class da, imwever, show much in
way of host or walkock alteration that is not thermally related. Hogation criteria include large magmatic systentse presence of sulphi
or iron-rich country rocks, the presence of bretziwithin 0200 metre of the intrusive contact and elevated P@Mies within the ha
intrusions. Similar occurrences within the EastIBulite of intrusions at River Valley, Agnew Lakel &ast Bull Lake in the Sudbury
located near the base of large layered gabbro dmmsite complexes. The Shelby Contact and PowddrR@M occurrences on tl
Companies Lac des lles River and Shelby Lake Ptiegesippear to fall into this deposit class (setow@ The Vande Zone exhibits elem
of both styles of mineralization.
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Magmatic-Hydrothermal Deposits:

Examples of this class of deposit are relativelerand often highly controversial. The typical Inadirks of this style of mineralization incl
it's relationship to zones of strong deformatiorthivi mafic or ultramafic host rocks, large, wellfahed chemical alteration zones ¢
typically elevated Pd:Pt ratios (>8-10:1). Thesepdsits are thought to result from the remobilizatiof low to very lowgrade magmat
PGM mineralization into zones of structure deforimatduring regional metamorphism. Under the progbs®odels the low grade, magmi
PGM mineralization is remobilized and redepositedanes of structural dilatency during regionalatefation. Pd, being the more mobile
the two main platinum group minerals, is remobilize higher percentages leading to elevated Pda®ibs. Exploration criteria include tt
presence of large mafic intrusive systems effdayagional structural deformation, wi-spread evidence of hydrothermal activity within
deformation zone in the form of veining and alteratand elevated PGM background levels in the mistision. Based on it's high Pd:
ratio and the presence of widpread alteration of the host lithology the Lac Dies deposit has frequently been assigned todlaiss o
deposits. Emerging theory, however, appears to esigtipe Lac Des lles deposit is a hybrid betweén dlass of deposit and the Coni
Breccia style of mineralizatiol

Lac Des lle-type Deposits

PGM mineralization at Lac Des lles is hosted byaé breccia zone developed within the marginalgghaf the Mine Complex, a 2.5 x
km gabbroic intrusion which is part of the Lac Dks Suite of Intrusions. Mineralization occurs migiin the form of sparsely dissemine
chalcopyrite and pyrrhotite within varitextured dab/gabbronorite that comprises the matrix to the brecciae reccia itself is matr
supported with fragments ranging is size from saivem to over 30 metres. The fragments are domiyaoimprised of gabbroic lithologi
with lesser pyroxenite and rare ultramafic and waltk fragments. The breccia body covers over aaam excess of 600 x 150 metres. A
the eastern contact of the breccia zone is a narffod5 metre wide) band of pyroxenite, which exhilitsrg alteration and shearing. Tt
pyroxenite zone hosts the higl-grade mineralization within the deposit and appetwshave acted as a chemical/structural trap
mineralized fluids. There is evidence throughowt tac Des lles deposit of hydrothermal alterationthie form of chlorite, sericite a



epidote, which were formed either during or aftepdsition of the PGM mineralization. The varitetimature of the gabbro matrix a
suggests a significant role for volatiles duringpdsit formation. In general, the Lac Des lles déjpappears to possess aspects of botl
Contact Breccia and Magmatic/Hydrothermal classési@posits. There is no clear evidence to datectortamination or mixing (exce
possibly within the pyroxenite zone) playing a Bigant role in deposition of PGM's at Lac Des lleBhe other potential depositi
mechanisms are pressure decrease and/or cooling BfGM-bearing, volatile fluid phase, which could also tesponsible for brecc
development. Additional work on modeling this dédpisson-going. Important exploration criteria include evitm for volatile activit
(varitextured/pegmatitic gabbro), breccia developmaveak but pervasive alteration and low levepkide mineralization.

Exploration and Mineralization on the Lac Des lleBroject

Since property acquisition began in early 2000 Ndillennium Metals, Platinum Group Metals and thergeal companies have conduc
eight exploration programs covering portions of theee properties. These programs and the mateesllts are summarized below.

Phase 1- Prospecting and Mapping Summer 2000

Between May and July of 2000 New Millennium empldatween 4 and 10 geologists and prospectors dertake first pass prospecting ¢
reconnaissance geological mapping over roughly 85%he Lac Des lles Project holdings. The Phasedsgecting and mapping progr:
resulted in the discovery of two significant PGMwings, the discovery of two zones of PGM mineatiim hosted in boulders and !
identification of four previously unmapped memhsrthe Lac Des lles Intrusive Suite.

This program consisted of widely spaced (800-metre) prospecting and mapping traverses adtes&nown mafic intrusions in the Proj
area and across airborne magnetic features thoughte related to mafic intrusions. Grab samplesenveollected from all mafic outcro
examined as well as from sulphide mineralized nadidders located within the Project area. In totaler 1,600 rock samples were colle
and analyzed for Pt, Pd, Au, Cu and Ni. Of the dempollected 57, or slightly over 3.5%, returneadues in excess of 100 ppb comb
Pt+Pd+Au which is taken as representative of anauaalPGM mineralizatior
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Significant zones of PGM mineralization were digged in outcrop at Powder Hill, on the Lac Des IRiser Property, and at Turtle Hill ¢
the Shelby Lake Property. At Powder Hill 9 of 18gsamples collected from an outcrop of chalcoymiineralized leucogabbro breccia €
varitextured gabbro returned values in excess ofglT Pt+Pd+Au with a high of 1.81 g/T. Mineralizai occurs over a 10 x 20 metre a
on one corner of an isolated outcrop in the midofil@ large sand plain. No other outcrops are présen over 400 metres in any direct
from the discovery outcrop. The Powder Hill mineration is hosted by the Towle Lake Intrusive Caxpivhich is marked by a promin
northeast-trending magnetic anomaly that extends¥er 16 km across ground held by the company.

PGM mineralization was also discovered in outcraprartle Hill on the Shelby Lake Property. Here Wigadisseminated chalcopyrite &
pyrite mineralization occurs in a leucogabbro cart-style breccia along the northern contact of thel®héake Intrusion. Values of up
363 ppb Pt+Pd+Au were obtained from grab samplethefTurtle Hill breccia, which covers a minimunearof 55 x 15 metres.

In the northeast corner of the Lac Des lles Rivesderty a number of sulphide mineralized P+bearing boulders, known as the Stor
occurrence, were located during the Phase 1 prograaurteen angular gabbro breccia and varitextuigabbro boulders sampled over
area of 20 x 50 metres returned values > 500 pptPEt-Au. The mineralized boulders occur in a basihbrizon, range in size from 60 «
to over 1.5 metres and are very angular. Basedheir imode of occurrence, angular nature and sinitijato locally observed lithologies th
are believed to be of local provenance.

During the summer of 2000, Platinum Group Metalgried out a program of geological mapping, line ting, geochemical sampling a
prospecting on the South Legris Property. This progfailed to locate any significant mineralizatibat did locate mafic intrusive rocks
the eastern end and along the southern margineptbperty (part of the Towle Lake Intrusion).

Phase 2- Trench and Channel Sampling Prograifall 2000

Following completion of the Phase 1 mapping andspezting program a limited program of mechanicatcoop stripping and chann
sampling was conducted by New Millennium duringftileof 2000. Areas stripped and sampled inclutieael Powder Hill Zone on the L
Des lles River Property and the Turtle Hill Zonetbe Shelby Lake Propert

Powder Hill

At Powder Hill a 25 x 30 metre area was exposethatwest end of the main outcrop, as well as a58 xnetre trench at the east end
indicated above a Pt-Pd mineralized zone was exposer a 20 (NESW) x 10 metre area on the southwest corner dPtiveder Hill outcrop
Subsequent channel sampling across this zone edummo mineralized intervals averaging 392 ppb Ri+Ru over 2.0 metres and 124 |
Pt+Pd+Au over 2.0 metres. The southern interval2(3®b) is hosted by the varitextured leucogabbrdriméo a gabbro breccia unit. It



separated by two metres of barren fioy@ined gabbro from the upper, or northern intervalhich consists of blocks of the mineral
varitextured leucogabbro within a second generatiaccia with the finggrained gabbro as matrix. Based on these results failec
attempts to locate additional outcrop, a program.8f/Mag and drill testing was recommended

Turtle Hill

Stripping of a 55 x 1%Aetre area at Turtle Hill on the Shelby Lake Prdpesxposed a gabbro breccia unit along the northesntact of th
Shelby Lake intrusion. This gabbro breccia has a@ioma-grained, varitextured leucogabbro matrix and contafragments of gabbro, gne
and pyroxenite. Low-level Fd mineralization is associated with sparsely disis@ted chalcopyrite and pyrrhotite in the matrixtioe Turtle
Hill breccia. Of 57 one metre samples collectedrfrihe Turtle Hill breccia and an adjacent pyroxenitnit 21, or 37%, returned Pd vall
above the detection limit of 10 ppb, with a highLoL ppb Pt+Pd+Au over 1 metre. Grab samples framdiscovery outcrop at Turtle F
had returned values to 363 ppb Pt+Pd+Au. Additiopedspecting and mapping along the northern contddhe Shelby Lake intrusion v
recommended.
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Phase - Powder Hill and Stocker Geophysical Survewinter 2000

Based on the results of mapping and trenching énRbwder Hill area, and on the discovery o-Pd mineralized boulders in the Stoc
area, a two phase program of limetting and geophysical surveying (IP and Mag) wasipleted in late 2000 and early 2001. Extreme
conditions and a lack of snow cover, which madep@mr ground contact conditions, hampered thesg@ms.

In December of 2000 Scott Geophysics Ltd. of Varerooompleted 26-line km of IP/Mag over the Powder Hill area and #uouester!
portion of the Lac Des lles River Property. Theslifvey was conducted using the |-dipole array, an electrode spacing of 50 metres
"n" separations of 1-6. Magnetic readings were agd at 25 metre intervals along the sample lingb #l-in at 12.5 metres in areas
steep gradients. Surveying was completed on nostheveented cut lines spaced at 200 metre intervals

The Powder Hill survey detected a moderately str60 x 200 metre chargeability anomaly located 100300 metres south of f
mineralized outcrop at Powder Hill with chargeabjlivalues ranging from 10 to 22 mV/Volt. A weakeoraaly, 810 mV/V, blankets tl
Powder Hill outcrop and extends for several hundmeetres to the east and west beyond the limitheokurvey area. The magnetic sui
detected a very strong, northeas#nhding magnetic high beneath cover immediatefhéonortheast of the Powder Hill outcrop and acse
anomaly 300 metres south of Powder Hill. The sautieagnetic anomaly correlates with the known trenturbidite-hosted iron formatiol
but the northeastern anomaly could not be correlatith any known outcropping unit. Based on thesilts drill testing of the chargeabil
features was recommended (see be- Phase 1 Powder Hill Drilling ).

The second portion of the planned IP/Mag survey e@spleted by Geosig Inc. of Saiftey, Quebec. The change in contractors
necessitated due to the high costs of the initiatesy and the availability of a Geosig crew in gugvey area. The survey was conducted 1
identical survey parameters and similar instruméiota such that the results should be directly corapke. In total Geosig completed 28.8-
line km of IP and Mag over the area that included Stocker boulder field and the Turtle Hill Zone.

The Geosig (Stocker) IP survey identified a nundfemarrow northeastrending zones of weakly anomalous chargeabilityieast four ¢
which are interpreted to be in the uge direction from the Stocker boulder field. Th®gest of these anomalies occurs 300 to 900 méd
the northeast of the Stocker boulders and is 5000 metres wide. It reaches maximum chargeabibfyes of 10.5 mV/V. This anom
appears to be coincident with the north flank ahagnetic high. No anomaly was detected over théeTHlill Zone. Trenching and detail
mapping were recommended as a follow-up to thautiey.

Phase 4 Drilling- Powder Hill Drilling — Spring 2001

Between February 1 and March 12 of 2001 -hole diamonddrilling program was carried out in the Powder Hdrea. The purpose of ti
drill program was to test the known bedrock miniziion at Powder Hill and the chargeability anonesl detected by the Scott geophy:
survey south of Powder Hill. In all 12 holes totai1,043 metres were completed in and around PoWdkerThe results of this program &
described in more detail in section 8 - Drilling

Phase &- Mapping and Prospecting Summer 2001

Based on the results of the Powder Hill drill pragr, which indicated a stratiform zone of minerai@a within the Towle Lake Intrusi
Complex, a detailed program of mapping and prospgatas undertaken along the 13 km long portiothefTowle Lake Complex on the
Des lles River and Shelby Lake Properties. In t8aimar-days were spent mapping and prospecting along chathcompass lines acr¢
the Towle Lake Complex. Lines were placed at 1afen@ervals and sample/outcrop locations weretoalied by GPS.
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This program led to the discovery of the PGM milieeal Stinger Zone. The Stinger Zone is locatetiiwithe central portion of the Tov
Lake Complex, 6-km northeast of Powder Hill. Initial grab samplestdts from the 2x3 metre discovery outcrop rangemfa low of 37 pp
Pt+Pd to a high of 7.47 g/T Pt+Pd+Au. In addition the higl-grade mineralization at the discovery showing, lewel (3575 ppb) Pt and F
mineralization was detected in several intrusivages for over one kilometer to the northeast arféli@@tres to the southwest of the Stil
Zone within the Towle Lake Complex.

Pt-Pd mineralization at the Stinger Zone is assodiatth 1-5% finegrained disseminated chalcopyrite and pyrrhotitde Tsulphid
mineralization is hosted by pyroxenite and horntkefeucogabbro. The highegtade mineralization occurs within the leucogablarbere i
is in contact with pyroxenite. The leucogabbro kdstgments of pyroxenite, and is clearly the fatiethe two phases. The rounded natui
the pyroxenite fragments and the diffuse naturi@fcontacts between the two units indicates thafptyroxenite was only partially solidifi
when intruded by the leucogabbro.

Based on the hi¢-grade nature of the Stinger mineralization and ldoek of outcrop in the immediate area a progranmachanical strippin
and channel sampling was proposed and undertaken.

At the same time as the New Millennium crews wesspecting/mapping in the Stinger area an explamtcrew working on the adjace
South Legris Property for Platinum Group Metalsodigered the Vande Zone. The Vande Zone is a gealhygcomplex series of PGE-
bearing gabbro breccias and mafic intrusive phalsested by the eastern portion of the Towle Lakeusite Complex. The Vande Zon
located 3.5 km northeast of Stinger discovery.

PGM mineralization within the Vande Zone is related1-5% disseminated pyrite and chalcopyrite, which @sthd by leucogabbi
mesogabbro and pyroxenite. There appears to beextdielationship between the abundance of chaldtgpwnd the grade of the PC
mineralization, although no statistical analysisshaeen conducted to confirm this observation.dhgrab samples from chalcopyriteearing
sections of the Vande Zone collected along stdkd®0 metres returned grades ranging between $513#38 ppb Pt+Pd+Au.

Phase ¢- Mechanical Stripping- Vande and Stinger ZonesSummer/Fall 2001

During July of 2001 Platinum Group Metals undertamKollow-up trenching and channel sampling program in thed&Zone discove
area. In total 1,750 square metres of shallow belrwenching was completed in four trenches alor®p@ metre long section of the Va
Zone. This program identified a broad zone of PGRenalization which returned 0.36 g/T Pt+Pd+Au oweb50 metre width with a high
1.22 g/T over 2.0 metres from saw cut channel sasnatross the discovery showing. Trenching and redlasampling 300 metres to
southwest of the discovery showing, along the Thale trend, also located PGE mineralized gabbrecbias which returned 11.0 met
grading 1.26 g/T Pt+Pd+Au, including 5.0 metres maging 2.28 g/T Pt+Pd+Au

PGM mineralization in the Vande Zone area is asseci with 1 to 5% fine to medi-grained disseminated pyrite+chalcopyrite. Sulpl
mineralization ranges from very fine-grained disg@tions within medium-grained gabbroic rocks t@ser<clots of pyrite and chalcopyri
within feldspathic leucogabbro and varitextured degabbro. Disseminated firgrained sulphide is also observed in the matrixate15
metre thick, complex gabbro breccia unit in the diag wall to the leucogabbro and within pyroxerfitagments within the breccia whe
pyrrhotite is also common. Within all three trenshthe sulphide content is somewhat erraticallyriisted and local gossan zones
developed in areas of heavy pyrite mineralizatibmere does, however, appear to be a zone of higregte mineralization developed at
leucogabbro/gabbro breccia contact, typically iretfirst few metres of the leucogabbro. In the discg trench the highest PGE grades
actually observed outside the area of strongessgoslevelopment while the opposite is the casemth 300E. Palladium to platinum rat
from the mineralized section in trench 300E ranpetiveen 2.96:1 and 5.20:1, averaging 4.— significantly lower than those associa
with mineralization at the Lac Des lles mine (appnoeately 8.0:1). Platinum to gold ratios from trén800E averaged 2.63:1 and are higt
in the highest-grade Pd samples.

Based on the presence of significant sulp-associated PGE mineralization over a strike lengfifB00 metres on the property a prograr
IP and magnetic surveying were proposed and camigidon a grid cut over the Vande Zone during tiedf 2001 (see below
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In October of 2001 a program of mechanical strigpiand channel sampling was completed by New MillennMetals in the Sting
Discovery area. In total five areas were excavaaed sampled. A 65 x 20 metre area was strippedgakirike (055 degrees) over
discovery showing (main trench), a 4 x 55 metradhewas cut across strike and geetion at the east end of the main trench andralasi
trench some 4 x 90 metres was cut across strikeugrskection at the east end of the main trenctaddition to these areas 3-metre wid
trenches were cut 150 metres northeast and southofidise discovery outcrop. The western trench embeoughly 90 metres of stratigrag
and the eastern trench cut across 112 metres afigtaphy.



Stripping of the main trench exposed three band3td?d mineralized leucogabbro, varying from 0.£2t6 metres in thickness, cutting fine-
grained pyroxenite over a 4 to 6.5 metre widths§b6rmetres along strike. Disseminated sulphide ralization is present throughout tl
interval and several channels were cut across taemnrench outcrop. The results of this sampling{[€ 5) are provided in the table bel
along with the channel locations relative to theadivery outcrop. Samples were collected from sawb@ducm wide, continuous chann
across the strike of the mineralized units. Sammiervals varied as a function of variations in mialization and lithology, but seldc
exceeded one metre. The mineralized stratigrapipeas to dip at 6@5 degrees to the southeast. The majority of tlaamél samples we
collected along a relative steep incline to thetheast such that sample intervals approximate wigth within 5%.

Sulphide mineralization in the discovery outcrofhéaviest at the base (northern contact) of thelmm-most leucogabbro band. This v
the location of the initial high-grade grab samplés30 cm to 1.7 metre band of heavy sulphide,-giglde PGM mineralization (> 2.9 g
Pt+Pd+Au) is present at this level across the enmtirutcrop. Individual leucogabbro bands beneath high-grade zone typically retu
grades in excess of 1 g/T Pt+Pd+Au while intervgriyroxenite intervals return several hundred ppbHRI+Au.

At both the east and western ends of the main lireteeply dipping, ductile faults were encountel#fhile these faults appear to have ¢
limited (<10 metre) horizontal displacements theoamt of vertical displacement is unknown. Only lgnede mineralization (<300 py
Pt+Pd+Au) was detected in leucogabbro west of tlestern fault. The eastern fault is located along ¢lalge of the main trench and as ¢
only six channel samples were collected to the efist Five of these samples showed anomalousi@tal values (40 to 130 ppb Pt and
to 610 ppb Pd) indicating continuity of the minézatl section across the fault to the east.

Anomalous Pt and Pd values (> 100 ppb Pt+Pd) weztected over a for-two-imetre interval stratigraphically above the leveltbé maii
zone in the cro«-strike trench at the east end of the main trenaiomalous Pt+Pd mineralization was detected in pgrate, ferrogabbr
and coarse-grained leucogabbro in this trench. alappear to correlate with the presence of verg-grained disseminated chalcopy:
+/- pyrrhotite. A continuous channel sample ran kegth of this trench.

Table 5: Stinger Channel Sample Results

Channel # Interval  Location  Au pph Pt pph P ppb PrePd+An g/T  Pd:Pi
/ 4.8m 3.5E il 159 852 108 5.36

2 25m* Il il Jni 748 212 577

3 4.7 m 13E 72 149 7HE 1.l 327
including 2.2m a7 14935 Jila I.38 538
4 0.4 m 25E s 177 az 1.35 .12

3 4.6m 45E 133 30 1389 202 528
including 1.7 m 278 639 3269 419 5.12
fi 4.1 m S5E 78 221 1131 143 5.

* Channel 2 failed to sample the entire mineralized interval

Only eight channel samples were collected fromctiossstrike trench at the west end of the main trench @utime/budget consideratic
and rapid flooding. Of these only one sample retdrstrongly anomalous values, 950 ppb Pt+Pd+Au awer metre, from a chalcopyr
mineralized pyroxenite sample.
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Samples collected from the eastern step-out treetthined elevated Pt+Pd values over a@2ire interval ranging from 50 ppb to 399 |
Pt+Pd+Au. The leucogabbro in this trench, thougbtcorrelate with the mineralized leucogabbro in thain trench, is noticeable mc
feldspathic and no pyroxenite is present. Restits the western st-out trench show only weakly elevated values locallth a high of 10
ppb Pt+Pd+Au. As in the eastern s-out the leucogabbro in the western step-out isrsjly feldspathic, locally almost anorthositic.

Based on the results obtained from the trenchirggam in the Stinger area hi-grade PtPd mineralization appears to have occurred .
result of mixing between an early Pt mineralized pyroxenitic magma and a slightletdtornblende leucogabbro magma pulse which
contained elevated PGM values. In the main trenela anixing appears to have occurred over a 4 terBedre interval. Subsequent magm
activity and later deformation and dyking have lbcdiluted and offset the mineralized sequencthédiscover area.

The high grade and apparent stratiform nature af Stinger Zone mineralization and the style of mailiation is considered to be v
encouraging. A program of additional trenching eamdmall (1000t200 metre) program of closely spaced diamondidglivas recommend
as the next step in testing this target.

Phase i— Geophysical SurveyingSouth Legris Property (Vande Zonefrall 2001




Between July and September of 2001, -line km of IP and 40ine km of magnetic surveying were completed oventagrid in the Vanc
Zone area by Platinum Group Metals. The geophysiaevey was carried out in two parts with the imlitvork completed by JVX Consult
of Toronto, Ontario and the second phase compléledPatrie Consulting of Massey, Ontario. Both sys/evere completed to simi
specifications such that the information shouldlvectly comparable.

The IP surveys identified a relatively continuowsme of elevated chargeability, > 5 mV/V, for oved 8m associated with a northeast-
trending magnetic anomaly believed to be sourcethbéyrowle Lake Intrusive Complex. Chargeabilitiuea reach a high of 13.9 mv/V in
discovery showing area. Locally there is good clatien between the chargeability anomalies and nedigrhighs. Along most of the surve
trend there is a moderate resistivity high locatesnediately north of or overlapping the chargedpilinomalies. In the discovery zone ¢
this zone of high resistivity appears to be relaiea thick leucogabbro unit near the top of whighocated the previously discussed zor
somewhat higher grade PGM mineralization.

Based on the results of the trenching and geopalypiograms along the Vande Zone on the South Equoperty a program of diamo
drilling to test geophysical and geological targetas recommended and conducted during the fallévioft 2001.

Phase 8, 9, 1- Drilling of the Vande, Stinger and Shelby Contagh&s

Between the fall of 2001 and fall/winter of 200&thprograms of diamond drilling and a limited pram of trenching were completed to
the surface mineralization discovered at the Stingande and Shelby Contact Zones. These prograendescribed in more detail below.

Diamond Drilling — Lac Des lles River, Shelby Lake and South Led¢Pimperties

Phase 4 Work Prograr Diamond Drilling— Powder Hill Zone-Lac Des lles River Property

Between February 1 and March 12 of 2001 New MilienmMetals Corp. conducted a-hole diamonddrilling program in the Powder Hi
area. The purpose of this drill program was to &t known bedrock mineralization at Powder Hilbdahe chargeability anomalies detec
by the Scott geophysical survey south of PowdérIHikll 12 holes totaling 1,043 metres were costed in and around Powder Hill.
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Nine of the twelve holes drilled intersected stomth P-Pd mineralization belonging to the Powder Hill Zoffée mineralized intercepts
holes PH 1, 2, 4 and 7-12 are shown Table 6, beléole PH3 was drilled into footwall lithologies, overshawgi the Powder Hill Zone by
matter of 23 metres. Holes PH 5 and 6 tested the previoushtioreed chargeability anomaly south of Powder Hilhese holes intersec
numerous cm-scale bands of disseminated to sensireagyrrhotite spread over a ZB metre interval in turbiditic sediments southttod
southern contact of the Towle Lake Complex. Theshaqtitic bands are interpreted to be the souré¢he IP anomaly.

All drill holes were collared to the southeast avRler Hill and drilled to the northwest at dip aeglof 45 degrees. Based on intercep
holes 1-2 and 102, which were drilled to form two small sectioti®e mineralized zone has an irregular shape and d¢iipthe southeast
between 55 and 60 degrees. As a result the mizethlntercepts in the table above likely overstagetrue thickness of the zone by an ¢
of 5-7%.

Samples of spilt drill core were collected at anetre intervals, or as dictated by changes in likgg/mineralization, throughout the sulph
mineralized portions of each drill hole. In additioone metre samples were collected from all ldh@s to aid in detection of nawphide
related mineralization. All core was mechanicalpfitson site, collected and sealed in large polgband then transported to Thunder E
From Thunder Bay samples were shipped in burlajgs lta XRAL's laboratory in Rou-Noranda, Quebec via truck. Samples were ana
for Pt, Pd, Au, Cu and N

Drilling intersected a stratiform zone of-Pd-Au<Cu mineralization across 600 metres in strike langihd to a depth of 65 metres. The :
remains open both along strike (065 degrees) avahd. The Powder Hill Zone mineralization, as dissed above, consists of figeined
disseminated chalcopyrite and pyrite hosted byvtmitextured leucogabbro matrix to a stratiform beéa unit. The mineralization occurs
the base of the breccia unit where it is in intugscontact with a younger fine-grained leucogabfioothe southwest) or a magnetliearing
ferrogabbro (to the northeast). Fragments of miiegesl breccia are observed in the younger intrusittelogies in outcrop and drill cor
The Powder Hill mineralization is located withinbeoad, lowievel chargeability anomaly, which includes therdgabbro and part of tt
metasedimentary sequence to the south. Additiofilhg was recommended to trace the mineralizedezto the southwest and northeast.

Table 6: 2001 Drill Intercepts and Results — Powdditl Zone

Hole Grid Grid Intersection Core Pd Pt Au Pt+Pd+Au
Number Easting Northing Length g/T g/T g/T g/T




PH-11 1800W 450S 35.5-37.0m 15m 059 0.05 0.08 0.72
PH-10 1900W 450S 36.5-42.15m 5.65m 0.91 0.16 0.10 1.17

including 38.1-39.7m 16m 161 0.26 0.17 2.04
PH-12 1950W 525S 92.9-97.6m 4.65m 0.76 0.14 0.06 0.96
PH-04 2000W 475S 53.2-59.8 m 6.60m 0.41 0.11 0.05 0.57
PH-02 2100W 435S 28.0-29.25m 1.25m 0.79 0.14 0.07 1.00
PH-01 2100w 475S 63.0-640m 1.0m 0.40 0.10 0.02 0.52
PH-07 2200w 450S 24.8-26.2m 14m 169 0.29 0.06 2.04
PH-08 2300W 475S 65.2-67.8m 26m 155 0.25 0.10 1.90

including 65.8-67.0 12m 240 0.29 0.14 2.83
PH-09 2400W 465S 69.2-70.2m 1.0m 0.13 0.02 0.02 0.17
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Phase & Diamond Drilling— Vande Zone, South Legris PropestiFall 2001

Platinum Group Metals completed 1,492 metres ofndiad drilling, in 6 holes, on the South Legris prdp, between August and Noven
of 2001. Drilling was conducted to test the Vande&at shallow depths and to test additional geiclicand geophysical targets.

Drill holes SLO1 and 02 were drilled in sectionprfr southeast to northwest —45 degrees, beneath the discovery showing. Holel
intersected two narrownineralized zones, as indicated in Table 7 bel@pasated by a 26.79 metre wide late gabbro dykedénthe 5
metrethick mineralized intercept reported from the digexy trench above. Hole SLO2 collared 55 metregteast of hole SLO1 failed
intersect any more than weakly anomalous Pt+Pd+Ammenalization despite intercepting similar litholieg. The somewhat erra
distribution of mineralization between the two tsofit,s with observations from surface sampling.

Drill hole SL03 tested the mineralized section obse in trench 300E (see above). While failing éturn the highe-grade mineralizatio
observed in the trench, hole 03 did intersect thiokt zones of lower grade Pt+Pd+Au mineralizatiaed table 7 below). As in hole S
PGM mineralization is present in both gabbro brecand leucogabbro unit

Drill hole SL04-06 failed to intersect anymore than weakly anom&lBGM mineralization outside one veelated zone in hole 04. Hc
SL04 tested a distinct magnetic low crassting the Towle Lake trend which appears to bateel to a zone of late vertical faulting. A nar
guartztourmaline vein encountered in the lower portiorttué hole contained strongly elevated Pd valudsl(lppb over 0.79 metres)

virtually no Au or Pt (1 and 3 ppb respectivelyhisTsuggests greater mobility of Pd in the post-maiic environment than either Au or Pt.

Holes SLO5 and 06 were drilled to test a coincideagnetic and chargeability anomaly along line 1800rhe author has not examined tt
holes but available drill logs and assays indictite holes encountered a thick section of gabbradeeand leucogabbro, as in the disco\
area, but only minor PGM mineralization (maximunteicept of 323 ppb Pt+Pd+Au over 1.2 metres at ptheof 137.75 metres in he
SLO5).

Following a re-evaluation of the available exploration data Platm Group collared three additional diamond drillles, totaling 489 metre
targeting geophysical anomalies in December of 2@l hole SLO7 was collared 35 metres northeaishole SL03 and drilled back, tow:
the collar of hole 03, under trench 300E. A reaengvaluation of the geology of this area by the authdicates that this hole was drilled
an angle of approximately 45 degrees to the sivikéhe Vande Zone in this area providing an obligué of the lower part of the zone. H
STO7 did intersect 1.45 metres grading 1.18 g/THelt-Au within a broader package of weakly anomalB@M values.

Drill hole SL08 and SL0O9 were collared near the theastern end of the area covered by the geopHysigaey. Based on a recent-
interpretation of the local geology by the authathbholes, which targeted coincident magnetic amargeability anomalies, appear to h:
been drilled downdip (to the southeast) and did test the geophysical anomalies being targetedthieiof the two holes intersected .
more than very weakly anomalous PGM values andnthjerity of hole 09 appears to have been drilleatigh a diorite dyke.

Based on the drill results to date it is eviderdttthere is an extensive zone of PGM mineralizatiosted within the Towle Lake Comple;
the South Legris Property. Drilling to date, howeveas not been able to demonstrate the presendeGdl mineralization of econon
grade/thickness. Given the extensive nature ofrtimeralized system in the Vande Zone area it ismenended that additional closely spz
(50-100 metre) diamond drilling be undertaken to tést Vande Zone both along strike and down dip teathd of 300 metres. Additior
drilling should target geophysical and geologicatgets along the Towle Lake trend including theraabtes that were not adequately te:
by holes SL0O8 and SL09. Additional consideratiauhalso be given to extending the available ggepual coverage to the northeast, ali
the Towle Lake trend to the property boundary.
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Table 7: Significant Drill Hole Intercepts from Vade Zone 2001/2002 Dirilling

Drill Intersection From To |[Width | Pd Pt Au |Pd+Pt+Au| Pt:Pd
Hole Details (m) (m) (m) | (ppb) | (ppb) | (ppb) [ (ppb) Ratio

SL-01 |Leucogabbro | 3.70 | 7.50 | 3.80 | 495 | 144 | 108 747 3.43
phase in gabbri
breccia

SL-01 |Melanogabbro | 34.29 |37.00| 2.71 | 836 | 258 | 271 1365 3.23
breccia

SL-03 |Leucogabbro | 14.74 |24.10| 9.36 82 36 17 135 2.28
breccia

SL-03 |[Leucogabbro | 36.55 |45.03| 8.48 | 143 | 54 41 238 2.65

SL-04 |Quartz- 161.55(162.34) 0.79 | 1110 3 1 1113 370
Tourmaline
Vein

SL-07 |Leucogabbro | 14.15 |15.60| 1.45 | 912 | 253 19 1184 3.60

SL02-10|Leucogabbro/ | 11.10 |24.80| 13.70 | 315 | 119 | 17 451 2.65
Leucogabbro B

Including 2.00 | 1378 | 539 | 28 1945 2.56
SL02-11|Leucogabbro 92.1 [102.4| 10.30 | 264 | 27 21 308 9.8
SL02-12|Mesogabbro 35.65|41.8 | 6.25 | 420 | 176 | 84 680 2.45

o)

One unusual aspect of the Vande Zone mineralizatimmountered to date in drilling is the relativébyv Pd:Pt ratio (2.28:13.48:1) which i
similar to the metals ratios in the Shelby Contaeta (see below) but considerably lower than thassociated with the mineralization in
Stinger area and at the Lac Des lles deposit (5and@l 8.5:1 respectively). The source/cause of thigation in Pd:Pt ratio is still bein
investigated.

Phase & Diamond Drilling and Trenching Stinger/Shelby Contact Zones, Shelby Lake Prope8tymmer 2002

Shelby Contact Trenching

Between June 21 and July 8, 2002, following thegereof Platinum Group Metals and New Millennium Metunder the Platinum Grol
Metals (PTM) banner, PTM completed 536 square rsatéshallow overburden trenching in four trenchémng the Shelby Contact Zone
the Shelby Lake and Lac Des lles River Properfiesnching was contracted to Methot Excavating afrider Bay, Ontario.

The four bedrock trenches targeted a combinatiomyexflogical and geophysical targets along the nemthcontact of the Shelby Lz
Intrusion. Previous prospecting and mapping in thisa had indicated the presence of an extensi-Pd-Au mineralized system which |
returned values of up to 2.8 g/T Pt+Pd+Au from aluglyritepyrite mineralized leucogabbro boulders locatedhet southwestern end of
mineralized trend. These boulders form the preworeported Stocker Occurrence.

The initial trench was completed over a geophysteafjet (IP anomaly #2) identified by the 2001 W&y over the Stocker grid. T
anomaly reached a peak value of 15 millisecondaagline 32+00E on which it was trenched. This gemtal anomaly can be traced
400 metres and was not known to be associatedanittsignificant bedrock mineralization.

Trenching exposed a strongly fractured, massivaitbibornblende leucocratic diorite with minor pyroxemikenoliths. The chargeabil
anomaly appears to be sourced by narrow veinlets faacturefillings of pyrite and lesser chalcopyrite, whicksskcted the diorite in tt
area. In total 34 channel samples, ranging in lénfyom 0.3 to 1.2 metres, were collected from thshed bedrock exposure and analyze
Pt, Pd and Au. No significant anomalies were neéat (max. values of 36 ppb Au, 27 ppb Pt and 153z}t
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A short trench (Shelby Contact Trench #2) was cetaglalong the northern edge of the Shelby Lakel Ruear line 3400E, across a narr
exposure of leucogabbro breccia and varitexturediga. Similar lithologies have returned stronglgwdted Pt-PdAu values throughout tl
property. Shelby Contact Trench #2 exposed 7.5awmetf coars-grained, varitextured hornblende leucogabbro cutbmth a granit
pegmatite and granodiorite dykes. The southernigomf the trenched leucogabbro contains xenolithselanogabbro, pyroxenite and w
appears to be layered pyroxene gabbro ranging z® $fom 235 cm. The fragments are typically angular and @ppde be sourced by
earlier, more mafic phase of the intrusion, whisharely observed in outcrop.

Weakly disseminated pyrite and lesser chalcopy@eur throughout the varitextured portion of theidegabbro and in the matrix to 1
gabbro breccia at the base of the interval. Ninaraiel samples were completed across the widtheofetlicogabbro interval and acros
xenolitk-bearing portion of the granodiorite. Low level Pt-Au mineralization was encountered throughout theedgiabbro with Pt+Pd+A
values ranging between 24 and 92 ppb. The minedliaterval in this trench is similar in many respeto that observed at Turtle Hill 4
metres to the northeast.

A third bedrock trench was completed along line@&f&om 525 to 575 N. This portion of Line 2400Esuwargeted due to the presence
moderate strength chargeability anomaly and thellshanature of the overburden cover. Trenching esqeh from line north to south, 1
contact between the Shelby Lake intrusion and gjagheiss to the north which is marked by an 8resevertical cliff; a 25 metre, pool
exposed section, of varitextured hornblende leubbgaand xenolithearing leucogabbro similar to that observed innth #2; and a 2
metre section of late biotite-hornblende diorits (a trench #1) cut by a eight metre wide feldgpamphyritic granodiorite dyke.

The observed chargeability anomaly is sourced byoup3% disseminated chalcopyrite and pyrite within #agitextured leucogabbro un
Sulphide content appears to increase in the coagsained and more variably textured portions of thist, which locally contains betwee
and 3% fragments of melanogabbro, pyroxenite anddrained gabbro. None of the earlier mafic intrusippeases appear to be sulph
bearing. Sulphide mineralization is observed thiomgt the exposed portion of this leucogabbro unier a width of approximately 25 met
(approximately 11 metres of which is not exposeadndy very poorly exposed).

A single grab sample of moderately well mineralirgaterial from the bottom of the trench returne@41g/T Pt+Pd+Au. Channel sampli
through the mineralized portion of the trench reted a high of only 0.81 g/T Pt+Pd+Au (232 ppb Ft1$pb Pd, 98 ppb Au), 0.12% Cu
0.03% Ni. Channel samples collected from 9.2 meaifel3.3 metres through the main mineralized irdefthe 9.2 excluding late dykes ¢
areas not amenable to channel sampling) returnede@ghted average grade of 0.268 g/T Pt+Pd+Au. Onesual aspect of the She
Contact Mineralization, in a regional context, lsetlow Pd:Pt ratios. The majority of mineralizedcorences in the Lac Des lles Disti
have Pd:Pt ratios of >4:1 and the Pd:Pt ratio atthac Des lles Mine is greater than 8:1. However $helby Contact mineralization retu
Pd:Pt ratios between 1 and 2.4:1. This may indicatéifferent source or mineralizing process for tBkelby Contact area. Additior
lithogeochemical work is required to determine these of the lower Pd:Pt ratios.

A fourth trench was completed at approximately H7This trench expanded a narrow trench complete@d01 but not sampled. 1
northern 25 metres of the trench exposed bandeditigayneiss. The contact between the gneiss am@&Helby Lake Intrusion in not expa
but appears to be at the base of a 3 metre hidh €he contact phase would appear to be, basedl thin selvage on the cliff wall, a pyroxi
porphyritic gabbro similar to that intersected imetdrilling along line 2400E (see beloy

Between 30 and 42 metres south along the trencledium-grained to locally varitextured hornblende leucobad is exposed. This unit
locally similar to the mineralized host in trencB0DL but less variable in texture and contains tigkly few xenoliths. Channel samples
through an 8metre section of this unit returned Pt+Pd+Au valuasging from below detection to a high of 118 gpiPd. The highe:
grades are associated with a zone of moderate gigpand -2% finegrained disseminated pyrite mineralization. No gedues above ti
detection limit of 5 ppb were encountered through section.
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From 4z-45 metres the trench encountered a xendiihring, varitextured leucogabbro unit identical ttte mineralized interval in tren
2400E. The contact between the upper/northern Igaigoro and the varitextured gabbro is sharp. Theteatured leucogabbro is terminat
at 45 metres south by a feldspar porphyry grandtiadyke, which appears to be the same one obsewmédg the hornblende biotite dior
in the 2400E trench. The northern contact of thkedgppears to dip steeply to the south. The dyleeexposed over a width of 8 metres
the southern contact was not encountered beforebaveen depths terminated the trenching.

Two 1.5 metre channels cut across the varitextleadogabbro returned values of 43 and 109 ppb Pt{fd below detection). A separ
one metre channel cut through a hornblendite pddiwithis interval returned 270 ppb Pt+Pd with anamnalously high (4.5:1) Pd: Pt ratio.

Based on the results of the trenching program, twitiaced PGM mineralization along a 1.73 km longteth of the northern contact of
Shelby Lake Intrusion, the decision was made t@eraklle a short drill test of the zone beneath th&00E trench.

Drilling - Shelby Contact Zone, Shelby Lake Prop



Two short diamond drill holes were collared to tést Shelby Contact Zone mineralization encounté@réidench 2400E. Drill hole SHOQ1
was collared at 590 north and drilled to the gridush, along the trace of the trench and L2400Earatangle of 45 degrees. This hole w
intended to provide an undercut of the exposed malization and a complete geological section frdra gneiss, through the mineralized 2z
and into the hornblendbiotite diorite. Unfortunately the hole passed thgh granitic gneiss (to 22.8 m), then into a pyrate gabbro un
(22.836.4 m), which is poorly exposed on surface, aed tack into granitic gneiss. This later occurreindgranitic gneiss appears to b
roll/structural high in the basement. At a depth5df9 metres the hole passed back out of the giizsa pyroxenite unit, which is r
observed on surface. The hole then passed intaxpgeogabbro and intersected a thin unit of theteatured gabbro prior to encounteri
the hornblendebiotite diorite. The hole encountered only weakipmalous mineralization with a maximum of 144 ppbHeé+Au over 1.(
metre within the pryoxene gabbro unit.

Hole SHO:-02 was collared at 550 north on L2400E and driltedhe north at an angle of 70 degrees with theritibn of testing the expos
portion of the mineralized varitextured gabbro atetermining if the lower granitic gneiss encountene hole 01 was a xenolith or basen
high. Hole 02 collared into a 5-metre thick feldigke and then cut two intervals (4.1 and 5.1 mgwémineralized varitextured and xenolith-
bearing leucogabbro separated by a dyke of horrdddgiotite diorite. Grades of the two mineralized sau$ were similar to those obsen

in the channel sampling (4.1 m @ 0.303 g/T Pt+Pd&fd 5.1 m @ 0.234 g/T Pt +Pd+Au).

Hole SHO-02 intersected granitic gneiss at a depth of 26etres and remained in gneiss till the end of thie [i62.0 metres) which indica
that the granitic gneiss intersected in hole 01 wadeed part of the gneissic basement and not gelatenolith. This is an unexpec
complication that will have to be taken into comsation in any future work on the Shelby Contach&oThe limited work on the She
Contact Zone to date has indicated the preseneenobderate thick zone of anomalous PGM minerabirativhich extends for at least 2.3
along the northern contact of the Shelby Lake kitn. Additional drill testing of geophysical andima along the contact is stron
recommended.

Diamond Drilling - Stinger Zone, Shelby Lake Property

During July of 2002 six diamond drill holes, totali 884 metres, were collared to test the StingareZbeneath and along strike of
discovery trench completed in 2001 (see above)mbial drilling was conducted by Norex drilling ofiins, Ontario. All holes, includi
those discussed above, were completed using B@ ieric drill rods. The drill crew was based inuFlder Bay and core was transpor
from site to Thunder Bay daily. The drill core wagged by the author using the core library fa@lit of the Ontario Ministry of Northe
Mines and Development in Thunder Bay. Core samplese selected, by the author, on the basis of d¢ength, mineralization ar
lithological changes. The majority of samples wapkt by a hydraulic splitter with the mineralizadervals in holes 4 and 5 being sawn. t
of the split/sawn samples were retained for fusttely and the other half submitted for analysishs Thunder Bay facilities of Accurass
All drill core samples were submitted for-Pd-Au assay and 27 element ICP analysis. Followingrdeeipt of the ICP data all drillcol
samples were also submitted for Cu-Ni AA analysistd discrepancies identified in the ICP data ByMPs quality control program (see (
program report below)
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Diamond drill holes ST(-01, 02, 04 and 05 were collared at 15N on lineg,2ZW, 100E and 100W respectively. Hole S0®2vas collare
at 11W and 44S and hole ST02-06 at 6W, 30S —thtidn of both of these latter two holes in partedimined by local topography.

The Stinger Pt-Pd-Au-Cu-Ni Zone was intersecteldoies 4, 5 and 6 (see Table &elow). Key intercepts were 19.2 metres gradin® b/
Pt+Pd+Au in hole 04, 6.5 metres @1.28 g/T in hdieahid 13.65 metres @ 1.48 g/T in hole 06. Eachethree wider intercepts contain
highergrade interval at the upper leucogabbro/pyroxemitaitact (2.6 metres @3.47 g/T Pt+Pd+Au in 04, 1&8res @ 5.48 g/T in 05 a
3.1 metres @ 4.92 g/T in hole 06).

Hole STO0-01 intersected 25.1 metres of anomalous Pt#Rdmineralization (averaging 0.14 g/T Pt+Pd+Au) biailed to intersect tr
highergrade portion of the Stinger Zone. In this hole thimeralized leucogabbro sequence is not presaghbagh the related anorthosi
gabbro unit, which in the main trench is locatedrigdiately below the mineralized leucogabbro, wésréected and occurs at the base o
mineralized interval.

In Hole ST0-02 the Stinger Zone appears to have been fauktdfi a steeply dipping brittle fault zone, whicayntorrelate with the fat
that crosscuts the central portion of the main tienHole STO2D3 was terminated above the projected depth ofStiveger horizon due
drilling difficulties associated with an unexpodtat fault also encountered in hole 06.

Phase 1(— Diamond Drilling— Stinger and Vande Zones, Shelby Lake and SoutlisLlegpperties—- Winter 2002

Between November 30 and December 3, 2002 a to®atldfl holes totaling 1,782 metres (6 holes totgl1,167 metres at Stinger (S™-07 tc
12) and 3 holes totaling 515 metres at Vande (SL@2e -12)) were collared to test the Stinger and Vandaegowithin the Towle La
Complex.



Drilling in the Stinger area was designed to tdst along strike and dow-dip extensions of the Stinger Zone mineralizatinoogntere
during the Summer 2002 drill program. Drill hole ®F07 was collared 45 metres grid south and downddipn intercept of 19.2 met
grading 1.06 g/T Pt+Pd+Au in hole ST-04. This hole intersected several northwest-si@rdbrittle-ductile faults, which effectively step)
the target stratigraphy down approximately 40 meted slide it out a similar distance to the noréistv(grid north). The hole intersected
metres grading 1.23 g/T Pt+Pd+Au including 0.7 nestgrading 3.9 g/T Pt+Pd+Au demonstrating the dalipcontinuity of both the Sting
zone and the high-grade upper contact sub-zone.

Table 8: 2002 Drill Results — Stinger Zone — Shelbgke Property

From | To |Intercept| Au Pt Pd |Au+Pt+Pd|Pd:Pt
Hole No| East | North (m) | (m) (m) (ppb) [(ppb) | (ppb) (a/t)
ST02-01 25E | 15N 418 | 669 | 25.1 13 33 | 98 0.14 2.97
ST02-02 25W | 15N 60.9 | 63.8 2.9 28 54 | 331 0.41 6.13

ST02-03 11W | 44S ** |ost in Fault Above Zone
ST02-04 100E | 15N 497 1689 | 192 | 71 |157| 827 | 1.06 |5.27
*including 2.6 3.47
ST02-09100W| 15N | 56.3 |[62.8| 6.5 | 68 |176|1033| 1.28 |5.87
*including 1.3 5.48
ST02-0§ 6E | 30S 125.3‘ 139 | 1365 | 22 |238|1219 1.48 5.2
*including 3.1 4.92
which includes 1.1 6.71
ST02-071 100E | 30S [212.3|2179| 5.6 | 59 [168|1006| 1.23 |5.99
*including 0.7 3.9
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From | To |Intercept| Au Pt Pd Au+Pt+Pd [ Pd:Pt

Hole No| East | North | (m) | (m) (m) (ppb) |(ppb) | (ppb) (g/t)
ST02-08200E | ON 80 |825| 25 26 161 892 1.08 5.54

ST02-09300E |10 S ** Failed to Intersect Stinger Zone
ST02-10200W |15N ** Stinger Zone removed by late ferrogabbro dyke
ST02-1150W |90S [190.9(196.5| 5.6 2 126 252 0.38 2

| 245.5| 253 7.5 36 134 447 0.62 3.34
ST02-12500W ON 773 | 794 | 2.1 21 245 884 1.15 3.61

Holes ST0-08 and —09 represented 100 and 200 metre stgpio the grid east from the previously mentioiméercept in hole 04. Both the
holes are located east of the zone of faultingrémteted in hole 07 and are interpreted to be pdratructurally uplifted fault block. Tl
mineralized leucogabbro unit is only weakly devebtbjn hole 08 (returning values to 437 ppb Pt+Pd}And appears to be absent in t
09. A narrow PGM mineralized interval was interggtin hole STOB8 (2.5 metres grading 1.08 g/T Pt+Pd+Au). Thieival is interprete
to occur below the stratigraphically level of thién§er Zone and is characterized by very low sudphtontent with one sample returning :
g/T Pt+Pd+Au but only 26 ppm Cu. Only weakly anamnal Pt, Pd mineralization was intersected in hal@2-09, 100 metres to the east.

Hole STO-10 was drilled 100 metres west of the mineralizéersection in hole ST0@5 (6.5 metres grading 1.28 g/T Pt+Pd+Au) and fd
to intersect the Stinger Zone. In hole 10 is appdhat the Stinger stratigraphy has been replacgdib anomalous thick portion of the |
ferrogabbro dyke, which is present in the hangiradl o the mineralized zone to the e¢

Hole ST0-12 was a 300-metre step out to the grid west firtote ST0210. This hole intersected a narrow zone of PGM nailiwation (2.1(
metres grading 1.15 g/T Pt+Pd+Au) directly benedtb ferrogabbro dyke. This mineralization appeardé a continuation of the Sting
Zone, extending the known strike length of the zor®0 metres, but the upper portion, and highexde part, of the zone appears to
been removed by dyking here.

Hole ST0-11 was collared to the south of the previous drjlin order to test both an isolated magnetic anlgniacated south of the me
ferrogabbro trend and test the Stinger Zone at ldephe isolated magnetic anomaly is sourced by petentially fault repeats of the sa
horizon, bands of semiassive magnetic within the hanging wall pyroxeesogabbro unit. These bands, 1.7 and 0.4 metrek, thontain il
excess of 60% magnetite and are related to thedatsbro dyke



Two intercepts of the Stinger Zone were returnethis hole. Between 190.9 and 196.5 metres, dyrdmtlow a brittleductile fault zon
similar to those observed in hole 07, the lowertipor of the Stinger stratigraphy was intersectetumeing 0.38 g/T Pt+Pd+Au over &
metres. The highegrade, upper contact of the zone was not observetiheas apparently been faulted off in this intetc&eneath thi
intercept a second step fault repeated the strappic section from the ferrogabbro down through $timger Zone. The lower intercept of
Stinger Zone, 245.5 to 253 metres, returned 0.82Pg+Pd+Au over 7.5 metres including 2.1 metresding 1.39 g/T Pt+Pd+Au. The Sting
leucogabbro is relatively poorly developed oves tinterval.

In summary, the 2002 drill program at Stinger hamsmnstrated the presence of strongly anomalousdally higt-grade PGM-CuNi
mineralization along strike for 700 metres and digweb a vertical depth of 180 metres. The mineelizone remains open to the west
down-dip. The mineralized zone is locally offsetdtg brittle-ductile faulting, which appears to bbaracterized by northwest directed dip-
slip movement on the scale of metres to tens ofemetate dyking has also locally disrupted the emafized stratigraphy. Based
observations to date the mineralized sequence appeastrike 065 degrees and dip to the southeabetween 55 and 65 degrees such
the mineralized intercept reported in Table 8 abexamild appear to represent 5-9% owestimates of the true thickness of the minera
zone. In all cases half of the drill core from edaie has been preserved for future study andeptkesent time all pulps and rejects from
analyzed samples are stored with Accurassay in dé&wBay, Ontario.
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Diamond Drilling— Vande Zone, South Legris Property — Winter 2002

Between December ", 2002 and January 18, 2003 three additional diamond drill holes, totaji 515 metres were collared, logged
submitted for assay from the Vande Zone area of tivde Lake Intrusive Complex.

Drill hole SLOZ10 was drilled along line OE, 100 metres west ofeh®L03 which returned two broad intercepts of Igrade PGN
mineralization (see above). The hole intersectedtvsbelieved to be a gabbro breccia zone, sintitathat observed in hole SLO3 over
upper 14.2 metres. Between 14.2 and 25.1 metreddaphthic leucogabbro hosting trace to 2% dissemeith pyrite + chalcopyrite wi
intersected. This interval is cut by a 0.8 metrdemnafic dyke and includes what appears to be gnient of melanogabbro, which is
metres thick. The sulphide-bearing leucogabbronideulain by a series of magnetite-bearing “ferrogpady's”, minor pyroxene gabbro a
mediumgrained mesocratic gabbros. A second zone of fattipleucogabbro, at a depth of 66.9 metres dolen hole overlays a thi
sequence (60 metres) of varitextured melanogahimesogabbro and diorite and related breccias. Vétle Isulphide mineralization wi
observed beneath the upper feldspathic leucogainibeoval.

Results from Hole SL-10 include a 13.7 metre section averaging 0.45RfAPd+Au and including 2.0 metres grading 1.94 @fFPd+Au.
The mineralized interval includes the lower parttloé gabbro breccia unit and the upper part of thecogabbro unit. The higheyrade
mineralization is located within the upper portiohthe leucogabbro where it is most strongly fetdbie.

Drill hole SL0Z-11 was drilled along line 300W and represents 8-8tetre step out from hole SL02-10 and a 700-nsteout to the we:
from the discovery area. This hole was drilled ¢éstta weak IP chargeability anomaly at the westedge of the existing geophys
coverage. The hole collared in a feldspar porphgrihelanogabbro unit very similar to that obsenadthe collar of hole ST021 in the
Stinger area 3 km to the southwest. The hole ttemsqu through a thin pyroxenite unit before entgr@nl6metre thick gabbro brecc
similar to that observed throughout the Vande aidmor pyrite and chalcopyrite mineralization isggent throughout the breccia. The lo
contact of the breccia zone is marked by a trachgidrite dyke, which is some 11.5 metres thick sindlar in appearance to a dyke at
northern end of the discovery trench. Beneath theds a thick sequence of varitextured gabbro mimtbr pyroxene gabbro. A leucogab
unit intersected between 92.1 and 102.4 metreshostor disseminated chalcopyrite and pyrrhotitee hole was terminated at a deptl
200 metres in granodiorite.

Results from Hole SL-11 indicate only very weak PGM mineralization asated with the gabbro breccia zone. The brecciatgabbr
contact, which hosts the higher-grade mineralizatabserved in hole SLQID, is lost to a trachytic diorite dyke in this BolThe hole di
intersect a 10.3 metre section grading 0.31 g/TARI+Au (including 0.9 metres grading 1.77 g/T Pt+#di) within the lower leucogabb
unit mentioned above. This mineralization is simtia that observed in Stinger hole ST@2-in being very poor in sulphide and low
associated Cu and Ni values (90 ppm Cu and 418 Nprassociated with 0.9 metre highgrade PGE interval noted above). It is ¢
characterized by a much higher than normal Pd:Rior#9.8:1) for the Vande Zone area.

Drill hole SL0z-12 was collared at 295 south on line 400E betwadrdhholes SLO1 and SLO2. The aim of this hole teadetermine if the re-
interpreted geological model for the dip of the WarZone and related stratigraphy was correct inesrtb guide future exploration a
drilling in the Vande Zone area. As per the re-ipteted geology Hole SLOR2 collared in a thick gabbro breccia sequence wHiost:
minor disseminated sulphide mineralization throughhdAn 11 metre thick mediugrained mesogabbro was intersected beneath a
shear, which marks the lower contact of the breeciae in this hole. The lower 5 metres of this gakbro unit is well mineralized with 1-
2% disseminated chalcopyrite+pyrite and 2% dissert@id magnetite. The mesogabbro overlays mediurnarse-grained leucogabbro ar



fine-grained pyroxene gabbro units, both of which awt through by a number of dykes of magnetite-riabbgo creating a largescale
crackle breccia. A second leucogabbro unit is pnésear the base of the hole, which can be coreelatith a similar unit in hole SLO1. T
abovementioned mesogabbro returned an intercept of @2%es grading 0.68 g/T Pt+Pd+Au, which include4 thetres within the uppt
more feldspathic portion of the leucogabbro. Onlgyan, low-grade mineralization was returned outstties intercept in hole 12.
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In general the 2002 drilling in the vicinity of théande Zone has confirmed the presence of a crigleyiform gabbro breccia unit whi
locally hosts minor PGM mineralization and a lowsomewhat variable, stratigraphy dominated by Igadibro and cut through by lai
magnetite-bearing gabbro “dykesA zone of higher grade PGM mineralization is atskelacally present at the gabbro breccia/leucogal
contact. This zone has lower Pd:Pt ratios thanrtigeralization in either the Powder Hill or Stingareas. The intrusive package strike
55 to 60 degrees and dips to the southeast at leetwb and 55 degrees. As in the Stinger area thedlelé intrusive stratigraphy is compl
and is cut by late, magnetiteeh mafic dykes, more intermediate to felsic fpltsporphyritic dykes and appears to be terminat@dhe
northwest a late granodiorite intrusion.

Phase 11-2003 Fall/Winter Diamond Drilling Stinger Zone, Powder Hill and Shelby Contact Zaas Towle Lake Regional Holes

Between October 5 and November 12, 2003 thirteamaind drill holes, totaling 3040 metres, were cathto test continuations of 1
Stinger, Powder Hill and Shelby Contact PGM Zonestle Lac des lles River and Shelby Lake properf@s of the thirteen holes wi
drilled between the mineralized zones as part cgaonal stratigraphic drilling program within th&owle Lake Intrusion. Diamond drillit
was conducted by Chibougamua Diamond Drilling ofb@bgamau, Quebec. All holes completed as parhisf frogram were complet
using NQ sized metric drill rods. A trailer campswvestablished on the Shelby Lake road near Wakia&e to house the drill crew. Drill ca
logging and sampling was completed in Thunder Bsipgithe core library facilities of the Ontario M&try of Northern Mines ar
Development. Core logging and sample selection werepleted by the author and contract geologisnJBkarson, P.Geo., on the basi
core length, mineralization and lithological charsgdhe majority of samples were split by a hyd@splitter with the mineralized intervi
in several of the holes being sawn. Half of thé/splwvn samples were retained for future study @redother half submitted for analysis to
Thunder Bay facilities of ALS-Chemex LabratoridsdAll core samples were submitted for Pt-Pdrassay and 27 element ICP analysis
extensive quality control program was conductegas of the analytical program and is discussednore detail below.

Stinger Zone Drilling

Four drill holes were completed in the Stinger Zamea to test along strike and down dip of the -grade core of the Stinger Zone. D
hole STO3t3 was collared on the south side of the unnamedkcin the Stinger Zone area to test the down dijeption of the Stinger Zor
The hole collared in tuffaceous sediments and maficaniclastics of the Lac des lles greenstoné doadl intersected a 52 metre thick bri
fault zone between 81.1 and 133.3 metres. The dapkars to dip steeply (65 degrees) to the noshwrarallel to a number of block fat
observed within the Stinger area. It may also exfsiinilar northwest side down faulting, which chaterizes the block fault. Hole STQ3-
provides the most complete section through the &dwake intrusion to date. The section indicatesapproximate true thickness of -
metres for the preserved portion of the Towle Lakeision in the Stinger area.

Low level PGE mineralization was intersected ovét. metre interval in Hole ST-13 between 392 and 399.1 metres which represe
vertical depth of approximately 265 metres and wdlip extension of the Stinger Zone to approxiipdt®0 metres once the effects of b
faulting are removed. The mineralization occursha form of weakly disseminated chalcopyrite, pyaind lesser pyrrhotite hosted by a -
grained pyroxenite unit and resembles the mineatibn in hole STC-01. The Stinger leucogabbro, which hosts the biitk® higher grad
mineralization in the Stinger Zone area, is notgamt in hole 13. As in the other deeper Stingdedhsignificant block faulting is obsen
and the mineralized intersection appears to beebffdme 130 metres down hole frons iprojected location based on the mineral
intercept in hole ST02-06 located along the same: Igie.
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Table 9 - Stinger Zone — Significant Intercepts 6@3 Drilling

From | To ([Intercept Au Pt Pd [Au+Pt+Pd|Pd:Pt
Hole No | East | North (m) | (m) (m) (ppb) | (ppb) | (ppb) (a/t)
ST03-13| OE 160S |392.0/399.1| 7.1 23 96 | 390 0.51 4.06




*including 0.52 1.33
ST03-14| 150E | 15N | 57.0| 774 | 17.4 | 44 | 90 | 734 | 0.85 |8.16
*including 1.85 2.85
TL0O3-06 1230W 20S [301.8[305.2| 3.4 | 44 | 129 [ 580 | 0.75 |4.50

All holes inclined 45 degrees and directed towas@ 3
degrees - Stinger grid

Drill hole ST0:-14 was collared between holes ST02-04 which retlirt9.2 metres grading 1.06 g/T Pt+Pd+Au and hol®208 whict
returned only 2.5 metres @ 1.08 g/T to determimectintrols on the better mineralized portions & 8tinger Zone. Hole STA3k intersecte
17.4 metres grading 0.85 g/T Au+Pt+Pd includingighigrade upper section, which assayed 2.85 g/T Au+Et+hd 0.31% Cu over 1.
metres. This section is very similar that obseriretiole ST02-04 50 metres to the grid west. Conspas with hole ST0B8 indicate th
presence of a potentially late leucogabbro unithie stratigraphic position of the Stinger mineratibn in hole 08, which may have resulte
removal of the bulk of the mineralized sequendgighole.

Drill holes ST0-15 and 16 were collared to test the along strikel @own-dip projection of the high-grade intercapthole STO5 whict
returned 1.3 metres grading 5.48 g/T Pt+Pd+Au. Bbtlles intersected only weakly mineralized gabbiiiw a complex assemblage
faulted gabbro and pyroxenite lithologie

Powder Hill Zone Dirilling

As indicated above drill testing of the Powder Hitine in 2001 had indicated the presence of an-ended stratabound PGM minerali:
zone grading between 0.20 and 2.83 g/T PGM overilkeedength of 600 metres in the Powder Hill amathe Lac des lles River Property
decision was made to drill three wide spaced dmilles to test the northeastern extension of thedeowill Zone beneath a broe
overburden-covered plain.

As with the previous Powder Hill drilling all holegere collared at an angle -45 degrees and directed grid north toward 325 degrérill
hole PH03-13 was collared 400 metres grid easthef@éastern most hole drilled in 2001 (PH-11). Titiree metres of sandy overbur
were encountered before the hole collared in befbeshole collared in hornblendagetite gabbro of the Towle Lake intrusion. The Eey
Hill mesogabbro unit, which hosts the Powder Hiling near i's base, was intersected at a depth of 42.05 mefitas.first significar
sulphide mineralization within the Powder Hill Gabbcorresponds with the beginning of a zone ofstale xenoliths of pyroxenite &
melanogabbro and with the first significant PGM wed at a depth of 68.9 metres. 8.1 metres of mineda xenolithbearing gabbrc
averaging 0.33 g/T Pt+Pd+Au were intersected ineh®H0343. As in previous drilling in the Powder Hill arghe xenoliths within t
mineralized sequence were barren; the PGM mineatibn being confined to the medium to coagsained, slightly varitextured mesogab
matrix. The PGM mineralization is related to 0.52%% disseminated pyrite and chalcopyrite mineatlon locally associated with mir
epidote and magnetite. A narrow interval between tweccia fragments of slightly heavier than nornsalphide concentration (3.5¢
returned 3.1 g/T combined Pt+Pd+Au — the highesbggo date from the Powder Hill area.
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Table 10 - Powder Hill Zone —Significant Drill Intecepts - 2003 Drilling

From| To [Intercept Au Pt Pd |Au+Pt+Pd|Pd:Pt
Hole No| East North (m) | (m) (m) | (ppb) [(ppb) |(ppb) | (g/t)
PHO3-
13 | 1400W| 525S |68.9| 77 8.1 11 | 65 | 256 0.33 3.94
*including 0.3 3.1
PHO3-
14 800W | 550S |56.5|61.15| 4.65 | 44 | 106 | 456 0.61 4.30
*including 0.45 2.00
TL03-01] oW 675S | | | 04 | 24 | 344 |1480| 185 |4.30

All holes inclined 45 degrees to 315 degrees - Rowdill Grid.

Drill hole PHOZ-14 was collared an additional 600 metres grid eashole 43 and 1000 metres grid east of the terminatiorthef 200:
drilling. Hole PH0344 also encountered a thick sandy overburden se¢#b metres) prior to collaring in a tuffaceousiseents south of tl
Towle Lake contact. The Towle Lake Intrusion wasréected at a depth of 50.9 metres. The bordes@lia hole -14 was a Bwetre thicl
pyroxene gabbro unit, which was had not been ptshoobserved in the Powder Hill area. Beneath piisoxene gabbro the hole pas



directly into Powder Hill Mesogabbro. The PowderlHjabbro section is considerably thinner in holé than in hole 13 and again t
sulphide and related PGM mineralization is concated at the base of the unit in association wittoae of xenoliths. Three separate gal
sections were encountered in hole 14 averaging §/43Pt+Pd+Au separated by largely barren xenolitsfspyroxene gabbro, anorthosi
gabbro and biotitic gabbro. Overall the mineralizederval averaged 0.61 g/T Pt+Pd+Au over 4.65 rast

Hole TLO:-01 was collared 800 metres grid east from hole B8 and was collared as the southeastern most hioke three hole dri
section across the Towle Lake Intrusion in the d@remediately southwest of Towle Lake. Hole TRQ3lso passed through a thick sa
overburden cover (13 metres) before intersectindiartaff. The contact with the Towle Lake Intrusivas intersected at a depth of 4
metres. The contact phase in this locality is anidre thick gabbro breccia phase, which is devéidutphide. The Powder Hill Gabbro w
intersected between 64.2 and 65.55 metres wittotihe significant sulphide mineralization at the basf this interval in a band of nea
massive magnetite. This 0.4 metre section retutn®d g/T Pt+Pd+Au and is correlated with the Powdl Zone due to its presence at tl
base of the Powder Hill Gabbro. Only weakly eledé®&M values were encountered above this interval.

Towle Lake Series of Drill Holes — Regional stredighic drilling

Diamond drill holes TLG-01 to 06 were collared as the first phase of awaegl stratigraphic drilling program designed to tése Towle Lak
intrusion in the area between the Powder Hill artth@r Zones — a distance six kilometres. As naigalve hole TLO® intersected tt
northeastern extension of the Powder Hill Zone béme@verburden cover south of Towle Lake. Hole T0R&nd 03 were drilled along tr
sample section as hole TL0O3-in an effort to get a stratigraphic fence acrtiss width of the Towle Lake Intrusion in the Tolwéke are:
where lake sediment results from a 2002 Ontaricegowment survey had indicated elevated PGE, Ni amd@ues. Hole TLOB1 terminate
in an equigranular, non-magnetic, medium to finekged gabbro-diorite intrusive phase of uncertaffiliation. Holes TL03-02 and03 bott
intersected the same lithology throughout theirgben(210 metres) with little variation and no sificént sulphide mineralization in eitr
hole. Based on the results of two holes, surfacpping and other drilling in the Powder Hill areaithmonotonous gabbrdiorite unit i<
assigned to the Shelby Lake Intrusion. Contactti@ighips between the Shelby gabbiorite and the more varied and mafic phases o
Towle Lake sequence suggest that the Shelby isireggo intrusive event or at the very least a youndese of magmatism than the Tc
Lake Intrusion
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Drill holes PH0:-13 to TL0303 were all accessed via existing logging roadslong skidder trails through existing clear cutsilDholes
TLO3-04 to 06 were located in a heavily forested area nortthefexisting road network and necessitated constm of a trail roughly 1 ki
in length. Holes -04 and -05 are located on the Has lles River Property while hol86- is located on the southwestern most portiorhe
Shelby Lake Property. The goal of these three heesto test the Towle Lake Intrusion for the qumtions of the Stinger and Powder |
mineralized zones.

TLO3-05 was collared 1.25 km northeast of hole F00@3and was intended to test the Towle Lake conthet,Powder Hill and Sting
stratigraphy and a broad crackle breccia zone idfead in surface mapping northwest of the collarhil®& the hole did intersect a thi
gabbroic sequence it failed to intersect any sigaift mineralization

Hole TLO-04 was collared 900 metres northeast of h6le along the Towle Lake intrusion. The hole wagd#sed on a prominent magne
anomaly, similar to the one in the Stinger and Pemiill areas, located along the Towle Lake trerthle 04, drilled to a depth of 2:
metres intersected a strongly fractured and vasabhlorite-potassium altered granodiorite intrusidimroughout its length and failed -
intersect the Towle Lake Intrusion. No evidencenafnetism was detected within the granodiorite iargbpears likely that the granodior
is either a small plug or dyke dipping in the diien of the drill hole. Additional testing of theagnetic feature in this area is warranted.

Drill hole TLOZ-06, drilled 920 metres to the northeast was coliat® test the strike extension of the Stinger Zdhe. hole had to be plac
south of a small unnamed lake and collared in tdtus sediments of the Lac des lles greenstone Thedt Towle Lake intrusion w
intersected at a depth of 273 metres. As with predrilling in the Stinger area the border phadete Towle Lake intrusion is a wea
feldspar porphyritic mesogabbro. However in holetbé stratigraphic sequence in the upper portiothef hole is considerably compres:
Only 5 metres of feldspar porphyritic gabbro waseigsected prior to passing into Powder Hill Leucbbeo. Leucogabbro was intersec
over a width of 12 metres, including a narrow (®tre intercept of ferrogabbro) before the holeggakinto pyroxenite and mesogabbro
Stinger stratigraphy. Weakly disseminated pyritel @halcopyrite were observed in both the mesogalasim@ pyroxenite over a width
approximately 20 meters before the marker anortiiogabbro unit was intersected. The hole was teat@id at a depth of 339 metres wii
a fine-grained pyroxenite unit.

Hole TLO-06 returned a strongly anomalous intercept of 3etres grading 0.75 g/T Pt+Pd+Au centered around itihesogabbro/pyroxen
contact as in the core of the Stinger area. Thig ltlous extends the PGM mineralized Stinger strafigy to slightly over 1400 metres. Gi
the nature of this intercept additional drilling pgars to be warranted along the Towle Lake trenthis area.

Sampling Methodology and Data Verificatio



Several types of rock samples have been colleciedgdthe Lac Des lles Project work to date. Oufcgrabs samples were collected from
majority of mafic intrusive outcrops mapped wittiie Project area. Sample location was oft@sed on the availability of an angular face
many of the outcrops in the project area are sttgmgunded and difficult to sample. Once a samptation was selected a B cm samp
was hammered off, taking care to include as liitlathered material as practical, and then placed Btandard plastic sample bag along \
an assay tag. The assay tag number was also widitethhe sample bag with waterproof marker. Eachgantocality was noted along w
GPS coordinates, sample number, rock type samphel mesence of obvious mineralization (includinguna of mineralization ar
percentage) in a wat-resistant field book. The recorded information wrasscribed into a digital database on a nightlysisa Samples we
sealed with flagging tape in the field, transportedhe base camp and then delivered to Accura@rdiie case of materials collected by !
Millennium Metals) or Chemex Labs (in the case afamals collected by Platinum Group Metals priorthe merger in February of 2002)
Thunder Bay by truck in batches of 1808 samples. In the case of the work completedesy Millennium Metals prior to the February 2(
merger and for all work since the 2002 merger aitihe author or another of the project geologistsiducted sample delivery. The authc
not aware of the chain of custody for samples ctadig by Platinum Group Metals on the South LegrigpBrty prior to the merger but has
reason to believe that sampling and delivery proced varied significantly from those described ahovhis is true for all types of sam
materials collected.

108

Assay results were delivered by hand to the autiroemailed to a private email account to which ot author has access. As
certificates were mailed to the New Millennium/iRlatn Group Metal's Vancouver offices once the autied been contacted and
reviewed the assay data for completeness and acguisee quality control procedures described beldwithin the areas held by N
Millennium Metals prior to the merger float samplesre collected and treated in the same manner aiitli angular to su-angular mafit
intrusive boulders > 20 cm in size being selectedsdmpling. There appears to have been little dampmf similar materials by the Platint
Group Metals crews prior to the merger.

Channel samples collected from stripped outcrop®dityr companies were cut using a gesvered diamond blade saw. Typically chan
were cut continuously across strike in the expased. Samples range in length from 30 cm to 2.0remeds a function of variations
lithology, mineralization and structure. A typicethannel is 5 cm wide and 6 to 7 cm deep. Samplectioh and delivery are the same
described above.

Core samples were collected from split, or in s@ames sawn, halves of drill core. In all caseshatiof the drill core wasetained for futur
study/sampling. Drill core from all of the drillingompleted to date is currently stored at the hahdield technician Ron Tweedie
Kaministiqua, Ontario. Core samples also variedéngth as a function of lithology, mineralizationdastructure, but in all cases did |
exceed 2.0 metres.

Drilling at Powder Hill in 2000 was completed by SDirilling of Timmins, Ontario using E-sized core. The core samples were split anc
collected and transported by the author to Manitodlransports docking facility in Thunder Bay. lasvthen shipped by transport to XF
Assay labs in Rou-Noranda, Quebec. Outside of the check assayingdapticate analysis (every T0sample) normally completed by
XRAL no systematic program of data verification wasdertaken on this group of samples. Analysisanflomly inserted duplicate samg
did not yield any significant discrepancies andregke batch of twelve samples collected from thieug the project area and submitted 1
third analytical facility (Chemex) returned valuedthin 3-4% of those obtained from the two facilities uéitiz(XRAL, Accurassay) for
bulk of the samples collected prior to 2002.

Effective February 2002 the Company institute a&stiuality control and assurance program to coairsampling conducted or’'s projects
This program in outlined, and the results as thetgte to the 2003 drilling and sampling programe atescribed in more detail below.

Sample Preparation and Securi

The majority of samples collected by New MillennMetals prior to the merger, and by the combineshpanies between February 2002
January 2003, were submitted to Accurassay in Taumhy, Ontario. Accurassay is an ISO/IEC 17025redited facility with an extr
accreditation (AL4APP) for Au, Pt, Pd fire analygigh atomic absorption finish and ALACNC accretida for Cu, Ni, Co analysis by ator
absorption.

Drill core samples from the 20-drilling program were submitted to XRAL Labs inugoNoranda, Quebec, which is also an ISO/IEC 1}
accredited facility but without separate PGM acdtation.

Samples collected by Platinum Group Metals priotht® February 2002 were submitted to ALS-Chemé&kunder Bay preparation lab wh
initial preparation was completed. Prepared samplesse then shipped by Alhemex to their analytical facilities in Vancouv@jtish
Columbia for analysis. The Vancouver facility isalSO/IEC 17025 accredited with no apparent sefgasecreditation of PGM. Based ¢
the results of the 2002 Quality Control program andgoing evaluation of analytical facilities byetikompany and #' directors a decisic
was made to use ALS-Chemex for all analytical vdoming the 2003 season.

Standard sample preparation techniques were appbeall samples collected from the Lac Des llesjétb Both XRAL and Accurassay



chrome steel crushers and milling equipment to cedield collected samples. Samples are initiatlgadiand then crushed to 90% 40 mes
(2 mm). Both labs then riffle a subsample of betw2is0 and 450 grams for grinding to 90% -200 me&b({ mesh in the case of Accuras
Both facilities utilize chron-steel grinding ring and puck mills to grind the gden In both labs sample crushing and grindingipment it
cleaned with silica sand between each sample tinmida cross-contamination.
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Samples sent to the Accurassay facilities in ThuBdg underwent Lead Fire Assay. Prior to 2002 agtm sample mass was used
analysis. As a result of an early review of the @AQrogram initiated by the Company in 2002 it watedmined that for higher gra
materials (> 3 g/T Pt+Pd+Au) more accurate and regucible results were achieved with a smaller sengize and at present, and for
majority of the 2002 sampling program, a 20.2 grsample was used. Thus a 20.2 gram sampld®® mesh material was weighed out
mixed with premixed basic flux (supplied by AnadheBtience Mines Assay Supply). Samples were tised for 1.25 hours at 18@BOC
degrees F in batches of 24 samples plus lab duglicdlanks and standards. Samples were then egpfl 50 minutes at 1000 degree:
The resultant precious metal beads are then digesséng nitric/hydrochloric acid digestion and batkup to 3 ml with a lanthanum waz
solution (1% lanthanum). For base metals aqua retjgestion was used and the samples bulked up talMith distilled, deionized wat
Analysis was then done by Flame Atomic Absorptiith @etection limits of 5 ppb, 15 ppb and 10 ppbAa, Pt and Pd respectively ani
ppm for Ni and Cu

XRAL utilized similar preparation techniques, lefigt assay, 30 gram splits, with an instrumentaltnen activation finish to achie
detection limits of 1 ppb, 10 ppb and 1 ppb for Ruand Pd. Ni and Cu results from XRAL were thmilteof ICP analysis, rather than fi
assay and are thus anticipated to be somewhatlessrate.

Sample preparation procedures at ALS Chemex fsilitonsist of grinding and dry sieving to —80 med#Hing of a 200-300 gram sub-
sample and pulverizing using a chrome-steel ringtee> 95% 4150 mesh. Although times were not specified inntagerials provided 1
Platinum Group by Chemex the basic preparation tigiothe bead collection is believed to be simitathte process described above. C
the bead has been recovered it is digested for iBOtes in dilute nitric acid. Hydrochloric acid then added and the bead allowed to di
for an additional hour. The digested solution isrilcooled, diluted to 5ml with demineralized watemnogenized and then analyzed for
Pt and Pd by inductively coupled plas— atomic emission spectrometry (IQ#S). Resulting detection limits are 2 ppb for Ad &d and
ppb for Pt with upper limits of 10,000 ppb (or 10 gfor all three element:

The bulk of the samples collected by Platinum Grotigr to the merger, and all samples from the 2@@Bloration program on the Lac ¢
lles Project, were also submitted to ~Chemex for 32 element ICP analysis. Preparationegain that 1.00 gram of prepared sample is
digested with concentrated nitric acid for at leaste hour. Then after cooling, hydrochloric acidadded to produce aqua regia and
mixture digested for 1.5 hours. The resulting sotuis diluted to 25 ml with demineralized watedaanalyzed by ICRAES with correctio
for inter-element spectral interferences. Detection linotsGu and Ni, the main elements of interest aretegias 1 ppm.

Sample collection and delivery has been discusbedea At the current time pulps and rejects froinsamples collected from the Lac |
lles Project are stored with the analytical fadé# in question. To the best of the au’s knowledge the samples collected and the s:
collection methods employed by both New Millennlietals and Platinum Group Metals have been of ljghlity and are representative
the geological materials being sampled.

Data Verification and Analytical Quality Control Recedures

The author has personnel directed the collectioaraf reviewed all exploration data for the Lac Dles Project obtained by New Millenni
Metals Corporation prior to the February 2002 mergad by the Company since February 2002. He hss ebnducted a thorough reviev
all of the available data collected by Platinum @poMetals prior to the merger and believes thatagddiut necessarily the previc
interpretation of said data, to be of moderate ighhquality. Grab samples collected by the autlonf the Vande Zone area have verifiec
presence of anomalous PGM mineralization on thdlSbegris property. The author has also examinedhmaf the available drill core fro
the diamond drilling program completed in 2001 ¢w tSouth Legris Property and the related geophysieda. There are some mir
concerns with the quality and presentation of theahd magnetic data collect by Patrie Consulting dilnerwise no serious concerns ar
from the authc’s review.

Prior to February 2002 New Millennium Metals didtri@ave in place a quality control and assurancegoaon. On a random basis blank ¢
duplicate samples were collected and insertedtimtosample stream for analysis but there was nisyatic process for insertion of samples.
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The only significant discrepancies in sample analys reporting noted during this period of time reveclerical in nature relating 1
transposition of sample numbers and omission ofpfamesults. Of the two facilities more errors bisttype were noted in the data recel
from Accurassay. A more detailed chain of custauty more consistent method of reporting was estadtidy the lab due to the compla
received from New Millennium and other companiésgithe facilities and these errors decreased maiskbetween late 2000 and 2002.

Beginning in February of 2002 the Company instilutedetailed QAQC program which involves insertana blind blank and duplica
samples one in every 20 samples and insertionrtified reference materials once in every 24 sampertified reference materials for
Pd, Au and Cu were supplied by Canadian Resourberagories of Burnaby, British Columbia. These nueas were taken in addition to 1
internal quality control procedures followed by thealytical facilities. As well the analytical féities being used have been requested t
fire other compani€¢ materials with samples from the PTé&projects. This to insure that each assay batcludes at least one blank, ¢
duplicate sample and one reference standard.

Very early on in the 2002 QAQC program it becamgaaent that the platinum and palladium results ttoe higher grade of the two refere
standards being utilized were being significanthder-reported when a 4§ram sample was assayed. Discussions with CaneRlémourc
Labs determined that the certification of the I-grade analytical standard had been completed ogrEdn charges due to incomplete fus
of the highgrade sample material at larger sample sizes. Aesallt of this information it was decided to redube standard analytic
sample size from 40 to 20.2 grams for all materfedsn the Lac Des lles Project. This is in keepivith procedures developed by Accuras
for the Lac Des lles FPt mine. Once this change was implemented thedadfermance improved markedly.

Overall the 2002 QAQC program found the assay tedubm Accurassay to be of only moderate qualifyo of the blank samples (8 of
samples) returned values significantly above theed®n limits. Of these two were found to be htitable to clerical errors, which a
difficult to detect in nor@C samples and thus a very serious concern. 17#teofluplicate samples showed variations beyondwinath wa
expected for what are, admittedly, highly variabfaterials. Of greater concern is the fact that 28¥8 of 48 samples) of the certif
reference standards analyzed returned at leastvahge outside the accepted two standard deviatioma the mean, this after adjustmen
the sample size as discussed above. Only one sahaplever, fell outside the three standard deviatiange used by the lab to detern
unacceptable results. There was a significant imprneent in analysis of the reference materials b@gmin mid2002 after internal chang
to Accurassay's fire assay system. However, reBolts the December drilling program were again cheterized by a failure rate of > 25
The Pt results appear to demonstrate the greasdsiré rate.

Beginning in February of 2002 all drill core sampleollected and assayed by Accurassay were alsmitteld for 27 element ICP analy:
Initial ICP results indicated that the Cu and Nilwas being reported for the ICP analysis (performedAccurassa’s Kirkland Lak
laboratory after sample preparation in Thunder Bawgre significantly below results from surface shngpat the Stinger Zone. The lab v
requested to assay the first batch of samples tr@2002 Stinger drill program for Cu and Ni. Thesults indicated that the assay val
were in keeping with the results from the surfammp@ling and much more accurate with respect todiified reference materials bei
used. A complete program of assaying all of the drill core from the summer 2@0#l program for Cu and Ni was completed, at
expense, and should the ICP to be under-reportirgQu and Ni values by between 16-35% for Cu ar8622 for Ni. Subsequent to
companies notifying Accurassay of this problem ldie undertook an internal review of their procedsirevhich has resulted in a re-
calibration of the Kirkland Lake-based ICP unitl 8lu and Ni values reported above are from assaddes.

The 2002 QAQC program clearly demonstrated the rieedlose examination of all PGkelated analytical data. While there are obviot
some concerns with the absolute accuracy of thdytioal data it is the authors opinion that the uéts can be used with some confide
given the relatively early stage of explorationtbe properties. In no instance was anomalous miigzigon not detected due to analyti
error nor were any anomalous results returned wtdohld not be replicated.
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As a result of the concern with the accuracy amtaducibility of the data being provided by Accuwsag and decision was made to subm
materials from the 2003 exploration program at ldes lles to the Thunder Bay facilities of ACBemex. A review of the 2003 quality cor
data indicates that only one standard fell outside 2 standard deviation level considered accegtdly the company (slightly below
lower 2 SD limit) and that sample batch was beiagassayed at the time of writing. No significant a#ions were noted in the blanks
duplicate samples submitted by the company andutier believes that the 2003 data from the Laclssprogram is of good quality.

Recommendation

Results to date have demonstrated the presenceafstve PGM mineralized systems within the Towleland Shelby Lake Intrusions
the Lac Des lles River, Shelby Lake and South sd@pdperties. In the opinion of the author the prdjes are of sufficient merit to justify
minimum $250,000, drill program for the 2004. Teeommended program is outlined below with a gdaxtending and better defining
known zones of mineralization on the properties exjpanding the search for additional zones of naheation. Information collected fra
this on-going exploration program should also bl&d to exploration activities on the balance loé tCompany holdings in the Lac D
lles area.

Phase 1:— Spring/Summer 2004 Exploration Propo




Drilling Program - $250,000

Based on current rates 20-2500 metres of drilling can likely be completechivitthe recommended budget. Given the immediatelijadnle
drill targets it is recommended that the drilling divided as follows:

Vande Zone- 800 metres — drilling to include 4 filling holes (100 metre centers, 150 metre holeshe immediate vicinity of the Discov
Showing and mineralized intercept in hole Sl1@Pand two holes to test the chargeability anonsadiethe west end of the current geophy
survey which were adequately tested by holes @ Q#h Consideration should also be given to testingchargeability feature to t
northwest of hole SLO8 which appears to occur alting southern flank of a moderate strength magneitih in an area of extensi
overburden. Additional testing of the low sulphiRf@M mineralized zone intersected in hole SL02-blukhalso be considered.

Powder Hill Zone— 600 metres — six 100-metre drill holes are recemaed as irfill drilling between the widely spaced drilling mpleted ii
2003. The goal of these holes is to test the Powlikerone for increases in grade and thicknesss lecommended that the hole spacing
of the 2001 drilling be closed up to 200 metrestoutole TLO391. This area is readily accessible and best a@kssthe summer once we
levels have receded. Winter drilling is not as meooended at the majority of water supply localessirallow and likely to freeze comple
during the winter months. Although not part of greposed budget consideration should also be giwdnsting the Powder Hill stratigrap
to the southwest of the 2001 drilling and down-afiphe higher grade intercept in hole PH-08.

Stinger Zone and Extension— 600 metres +our drill holes are recommended to test the nedibcovered southwestern extension o
Stinger Zone centered on Hole TLOB- It is recommended that four 150 metre longl tidles be spotted 200 and 400 metres northeas
southwest of hole TL03-06 to test for continuatiohthe higher grade mineralization encounterethia discovery area.

A contingency budget of $50,000 is also recommetazlt additional drill targets generated by eittongoing geological studies or drillii
of the targets recommended. Based on the resutteed2003 program it is recommended that the commantinue to use ALShemex &
it's analytical facility in 2004.

East Lac Des lles Project, Ontario
The Companys East Lac Des lles Project includes the Pebblegalth PS Overlap and Farmer Lake Properties. &dnioil and strea

sediment sampling programs were undertaken onrisjegh during Fiscal 2003 with negative results émel East Lac Des lles Project is
considered material to the affairs of the Compadrthia time.
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Lakemount Property, Ontario

On November 6, 2003, the Company entered into sioropgreement with Western Prospector Group ladiaquire up to a 62% interes
the 3,017 hectare Lakemount property located neaw&y Ontario. The Lakemount Property is not caergid material to the affairs of 1
Company at this time.

Item 5 — Operating and Financial Review and Prospés

The following discussion of the financial conditiathanges in financial conditions and results adrapions of the Company for each of
three years ended August 31, 2003 should be readnjunction with the consolidated financial stagents of the Company and related n
included therein. The Compamsytonsolidated financial statements are presenté&hnadian dollars and have been prepared in oo
with Canadian GAAP. Differences between Canadia®\B and U.S. GAAP, as applicable to the Compang,sat forth in Note 14 to t
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys accounting policies are set out in Note 2 andflthe accompanying Consolidated Financial Statésnefhere are tw
policies that, due to the nature of the mining bess, are more significant to the financial resofithe Company. These policies relate tc
capitalizing of mineral exploration expendituresldine use of estimates.

Under Canadian GAAP, the Company deferred all cadting to the acquisition and exploration of ibéneral properties. Any revent
received from such properties are credited agaimstcosts of the property. When commercial pradactommences on any of !
Company'’s properties, any previously capitalizedtsovould be charged to operations using a ungrofiuction method. The Compe
regularly reviews deferred exploration costs teeasgheir recoverability and when the carrying gadfia property exceeds the estimatec
recoverable amount, provision is made for impairnieralue.

Management reviews the carrying value, for accagngiurposes, of mineral rights and deferred exfitmracosts on at least a quarterly b



for evidence of impairment. This review is genlgrahade with reference to the project economicsluiing the timing of the explorati
work, work programs proposed, exploration resuttsieved by the Company and others in the related af interest and any changes in
status of the property. When the results of tleigiew indicate that a condition of impairment exjsthe Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the deferred explorationscast related mining rights by reference to themtial for success of further explorat
activity and the likely proceeds to be receivedhfra sale or assignment of rights. When the cagrymlues of mineral rights or defer
exploration costs are estimated to exceed theiraoetverable amounts, a provision is made for gadigk in the value.

When assessing for evidence of impairment, the Gomplso refers to the other factors relevant tanganies in the extractive industr
These factors include unfavourable changes inpttoperty (including disputes as to title), inalyilito access the site, environme
restrictions on exploration or development andtjwali instability in the region in which the propeiis located. Furthermore, the Comp
concludes an event of impairment has occurred vaingrof the following conditions exist:

a. the Companys work program on a property has significantly adexh such that previously identified resource targmt worl
programs are no longer being pursued;

b. exploration results are not promising and no mooekvis being planned in the foreseeable future; or

C. remaining lease terms are insufficient to condecessary exploration work.

The existence of uncertainties during the explorasitage and the lack of definitive empirical ewice with respect to the feasibility
successful commercial development of any explongtimperty does create measurement uncertaintyecoing the calculation of the amo

of impairment. The Company relies on its own alependent estimates of further geological prospetcts particular property and a
considers the likely proceeds from a sale or assat of the rights.
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The latter will often be indicated by offers thaetCompany or others have received for exploratigits in the same or similar geologi
area. In many cases, the identified conditiommfairment will result in a determination that netlier exploration activity be performed ¢
the amount of the writedown is the entire carryiafpie of the interest.

Under U.S. GAAP, the Company expensed all costding] to the exploration of its mineral properter to the establishment of proven .
probable reserves. After that point, these castisapitalized as development costs. When comalgrodbduction commences on any of
Company’s properties, any previously capitalizestsavould be charged to operations using a ungroéluction method

The Companys financial statements are based on the selectidnaaplication of significant accounting policies®me of which requil
management to make estimates and assumptionsnéissi are based on historical experience and ofutwre expectations that are belie
to be reasonable; the combination of these fadtorss the basis for making judgments about theyaagrvalues of assets and liabilities 1
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actsults are likely to differ from our current imsates and those differences may be mat

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2003, ns$ lunder US GAAP was $2,580,499 (2002 - $2,466,726@1 - $60,202), which we
$831,506 (2002 - $965,134; 2001 - $477,515) highen the net loss under Canadian GAAP. Of thiedihce, $921,778 (2002 350,237
2001 - $76,265) relates to the fact that under US GAARJaration costs are expensed as incurred ratherdapitalized until managem:
has determined that an impairment exists in thgyicay value of the property, under Canadian GAA¥so, $15,185 (2002 - $204,600; 2001 -
$nil) of the difference relates to the fact thag thiccounting for income taxes on the issuanceavé-through shares is different betw:
Canadian GAAP and US GAAP. Furthermore, $105,48¢ojery) (2002 -$42,747) of the difference relates to the fact tinader U:
GAAP, stock options which have been repriced abgesti to variable accounting. In 2002 and 2001 Jogs was $286,000 and $1,250 hig
due to the expensing of stock options granted tsaltants, under US GAAP.

Overview

The Companys main objective was to acquire mineral propertie®nce their exploration and, if warranted, depeland bring them in
commercial production either directly or by way jofnt venture or option agreements or through a lwoation of the foregoing. TI
Company was aiming to develop its properties ttageswhere they could be exploited at a profit.thst stage, its operations would to s
extent be dependent upon the world market prigngfminerals mined.

The Company has mineral properties and deferretbeatipn expenditures of $3,891,653 at August 310 compared to $2,951,08¢
August 31, 2002 and $1,067,357 at August 31, 20lHe recoverability of these amounts is dependpnhuhe existence of economici
recoverable reserves, securing and maintainiregaitd beneficial interest in the properties, thétalo obtain the necessary financing to n
its obligations under various agreements and thaptetion of the development of its properties, dature profitable production,

alternatively, upon its ability to dispose of itstérests on an advantageous basis. The Companindarsed losses since inception
$4,439,853 and has a working capital surplus atuati1, 2003 of $984,333; in light of these fattiere is some doubt as to the ability of



Company to continue as a going concern.

Future writedowns of properties are dependent on many factocduding general and specific assessments of mingsources, ti
likelihood of increasing or decreasing the resosiréend costs, estimates of future mineral pripesential extraction methods and costs
likelihood of positive or negative changes to theimnment, taxation, labor and capital costsis hot possible to assess the monetary in
of these factors at the current stage of its prtggeer The dollar amounts shown as mineral propedind deferred exploration expenditure:
direct costs of acquiring, maintaining and explgrjgroperties, including costs of structures andigggant employed on the properties
allocations of administrative management salari@sed on time spent and directly related to spegifaperties. These amounts do
necessarily reflect present or future values.

Additional financing will be required for furthexploration and development of the Companptoperties. Although the Company has |
successful in the past in raising funds, thereisssurance that it will be able to raise the resmgscapital to meet its funding obligations.
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The Company has not been required to make any ima¢ependiture for environmental compliance toedathe operations of the Comp:
may in the future be affected from time to timevarying degrees by changes in the environmentallagigns. Both the likelihood of ne
regulations and their overall effect upon the Conypare not predictable. See “ltem 3 — Key InforioratRisk Factors.”

Operating Results

Year Ended August 31, 2003 Compared to the Year Erdl August 31, 2002

During Fiscal 2003, the Company incurred a los$bf748,993 (Fiscal 2002 -1$%01,620). Included were mineral property writevd
expenses of $815,714 (Fiscal 2002 - $1,090,871)aapdovision for future income tax recoveries ofl$200 (Fiscal 2002 -4%53,600)
General and administrative expenses totaled $13082Fiscal 2002 - $835,540) before interest athéroincome of $177,068 (Fiscal 2002 -
$23,028). General and administrative costs thaeamsed in Fiscal 2003 include management and ttimystees of $274,252 (Fiscal 2002 -
$154,562), rent of $41,896 (Fiscal 2002 — $18,8%a)aries and benefits of $167,115 (Fiscal 200Z5,%84), and travel and promotion
$92,924 (Fiscal 2002 -49,966). Several general and administrative itestsally decreased in Fiscal 2003. The Companwgrbecmor
active acquiring property and conducting exploraiio the Republic of South Africa in Fiscal 2008eteby increasing costs in general.
Company also remained active in Canada. The inetkactivity level necessitated the addition ofesalstaff members in Canada,
appointment of consultants in Africa, and the asitjoin of additional office space in Canada. Thempany hired one qualified employet
manage investor relations as of April 2003. Assult, shareholder relations expenses were redocktb9,532 in Fiscal 2003 (Fiscal 2002 -
$203,138). The Company incurred an investmentdd$487,000 on Active Gold Group Ltd. during Fis2803 (Fiscal 2002 — nil).

During Fiscal 2003 the Company focused most o&dsuisition efforts on properties within the Busliv€omplex of South South Afric
Exploration activities were conducted in both Gdmand South Africa during Fiscal 2003. Combinequasition and exploration costs
the year, net of recoveries, totaled $1,756,278cf#i2002 - $,974,603). Of that amount, approximately $653,84% incurred on tt
Companys Thunder Bay properties, approximately $(23,69@} wecovered on the properties near Sudbury andxdpmtely $1,126,65
was incurred on the Company’s South African prapsrt During Fiscal 2003, $815,714 (Fiscal 20021;080,871) in net deferred cc
relating to mineral properties were written off. d&tailed breakdown of these costs can be seerpia 6l of the Consolidated Finant
Statements.

The Company is not adversely affected by inflatanthe present time, and is not likely to be in tiear future. However, there is
guarantee that this will remain to be the caseghtéir extreme rates of inflation would adverselgeifthe Company.

The Company may be adversely or favorably affettgdoreign currency fluctuations. The Company isnarily funded through equi
investments into the Company denominated in Canadi@lars. Several of the Compagsydptions to acquire properties in the Republ
South Africa may result in option payments by thempany denominated in South African Rand to be nmada the next three yes
Exploration and development programs to be cormliby the Company in South Africa will also be faddn South African Rand. Th
fluctuations in the exchange rate between the Ganadbllar and the South African Rand may have @weese or favorable affect on
Company.

Year Ended August 31, 2002 Compared to the Year Erdl August 31, 2001
During Fiscal 2002, the Company incurred a loss$bf501,620 (Fiscal 2001 -482,687). Included were mineral property write d

expenses of $1,090,871 (Fiscal 2001 - $7,325) gmebésion for future income tax recoveries of $48® (Fiscal 2001 +il). General an
administrative expenses totaled $835,540 (Fiscal 2(6486,269) before interest and other incont&28{028 (Fiscal 2001 - $60,582).
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General and administrative expenses for Fiscal 20@#ed $812,512 (Fiscal 2001 425,687), net of interest and other income of $28
(Fiscal 2001 - 60,582). Shareholder relations expense, consisfingeb site hosting and maintenance, investoscaihil outs, printing ar
news releases totaled $203,138 (Fiscal 2001 - $24,4Transfer agent and listing and sustaining fetaled $28,277 (Fiscal 20012%353)
Professional fees of $184,209 (Fiscal 2001305311) were incurred for legal, audit and accimgnservices. Other taxes of $47,391 (Fi
2001 -nil) were incurred relating to Part XII.3 Tax. $Hiax is calculated as interest on the unspennbalaf flow through funds held ur
December 31, 2001. Management fees expense t@ael562 (Fiscal 2001 8$,453). The Amalgamation in February 2002 andease
activity in Canada and South Africa have resultetligher costs in Fiscal 2002 as opposed to F&@@a1.

On February 18, 2002, the Company acquired marits dfhunder Bay and Sudbury properties throughAhwlgamation with NMM. A
February 18, 2002 these properties had a net atguisost to the Company of $1,930,444. Includthg properties from NMM, propel
acquisition costs incurred and deferred during ythar totaled $2,195,517 (Fiscal 2001 £7%,722). Exploration and development c
deferred for the year totaled $977,795 (Fiscal 208¥83,590). Of that amount, approximately $72@,&vas incurred on the Compasy’
Thunder Bay properties, approximately $112,000 wesrred on the properties near Sudbury and apprabely $114,000 was incurred on
Companys new South African properties. Approximately $8D, was spent in the Northwest Territories. Cesioveries on miner
properties during the year amounted to $198,708céFi2001 - $300,000). During the year, $1,090&#4cal 2001 - $,325) in net deferre
costs relating to mineral properties were writtdh A breakdown of these costs can be seen in Notaf the Consolidated Financ
Statements.

Year Ended August 31, 2001 Compared to the Year Erdl August 31, 2000

The net loss for Fiscal 2001 was $482,687 or $@&9share compared to a net loss of $39,956 03§00 share for Fiscal 2000. T
Company was incorporated on January 10, 2000 andnemced operations as a private company named@atGroup Metals Ltd. ¢
March 16, 2000. The Company later became a reywpitsuer and was listed for trading on the Exchang-ebruary of 2001. The net |
for the year ended August 31, 2001 was $442,73hehighan for Fiscal 2000 primarily because its apens during Fiscal 2000 we
conducted for less than six months. During thatoge the Company conducted only limited field agg@ns. General and administra
expenses in Fiscal 2001 totaled $486,269 of whiafegsional fees for legal and audit work amourtted130,311, management F
amounted to $86,453, shareholder relations expessesinted to $74,452, and travel and promotion mesg® amounted to $55,710.
comparison, total general and administrative exgeis Fiscal 2000 totaled $41,518 of which profassi fees amounting to $22,171 were
single largest expense.

Mineral property acquisition and exploration codéferred in Fiscal 2001 totaled $706,744, net 88@0,000 advance from a joint vent
partner. In Fiscal 2000, mineral property acqigsitand exploration costs deferred totaled $419,370

Liquidity and Capital Resource

The working capital of the Company is a direct testithe excess of funds raised from the salequfity shares and the receipt of prop
payments over expenditures into acquisition andogapon costs as well as administrative expenddse working capital balance at the
of the following periods were: August 31, 200388,333; August 31, 2002 - $1,284,919; and AuglisP801 — $,526,798. Fluctuations
working capital stem from timing differences betweghen money is raised from equity issues and whgenditures are committed
exploration.

Cash and cash equivalents at August 31, 2003 tb$864,650 compared to $898,907 at August 31, 2002$1,544,546 at August 31, 2C
The cash and cash equivalents are attributabteapity to the issue of share capital, although @Gempany did receive a recovery
exploration expenditures of $300,000 during Fig01 from a joint venture partner. Aside from casld cash equivalents, the Company
no material unused sources of liquid assets at siugfly 2003, 2002 or 2001.
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During Fiscal 2003, the Company issued 5,605,63%@on Shares. Of this, 5,557,939 shares were iSsuezash proceeds of $2,558,¢
A further 47,696 shares were issued for mineraperties for a value of $16,140. Subsequent tér®d, the Company completed pri
placements for net proceeds of approximately $20D@and received approximately $1,400,000 uporetegcise of share purchase warr
and stock options.

During Fiscal 2002, the Company issued 12,435,1&@@on Shares. Of this, 6,864,001 shares wereddsueash proceeds of $1,951,1



A further 102,728 were issued for mineral progartior a value of $36,509. In February 2002 al toké,486,421 shares were issue
acquire NMM. These shares were valued at $1,350,3%&e “The Amalgamation”.

During Fiscal 2001, the Company issued 3,195,3%hi@on Shares at $0.50 per share pursuant to aal ipitblic offering for net proceeds
$1,356,532 (after deducting expenses of the is§#241,164). During Fiscal 2001, the Company igsBg883,090 flow through shares
$0.55 per share for net proceeds of $1,107,77&r(d&tducting expenses of $202,929). The ftompugh shares issued were priced at m
and did not bear a premium as a result of theiw florough nature. The proceeds of these sharemplacts were used to fund general
administrative expenses, new property acquisitiorsexploration expenditures in Ontario and thetiNeest Territories.

Research and Development, Patents and Licences,

The Company does not engage in research and develtctivities.

Trend Information

Factors which may have a material effect on the @ung’s future financial condition are set forth “item 3 — Key Information, Ris
Factors”.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

There are no off-balance sheet arrangements thvat draare reasonably likely to have a current ¢urki effect on the Comparsgy/financia
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaegxpenses, results of operations, liquidity itedyexpenditures or capital resources th
material to investors.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

Payments due by period
Contractual Obligations Totall <1 VYea] 1-3Yeary 3-5Yeary >5 Yearg
Office lease $85,297 $45,36¢ $39,92¢ $0 $0
Totals $85,297 $45,36¢ $39,92¢ $0 $0
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Item 6 — Directors, Senior Management and Employees

Directors and Senior Managemel

The following table sets out certain informatiomcerning the directors and executive officers & @ompany. Each director holds of
until the next annual general meeting of the Corgpanuntil his successor is elected or appointedess his office is earlier vacatec
accordance with the Articles of the Company, otwiite provisions of the Company Act. The officars appointed at the pleasure of
board of directors.

Name, Position, Age and Principal Occupation or Employment Date Appointed
Country of Residence
R. MICHAEL JONES Professional Geological Engineer February, 2000
Chairman, President, CEO and Director Chairman, President and CEO of the Company
Age: 40
Resident of Canada
BARRY SMEE D (@ Geologist and geochemist February, 2000
Secretary and Director President of Smee & Associates, a consulting,
Age: 57 geological and geochemistry company; Directgr
Resident of Canada and Secretary of the Company
JAIN McLEAN D@ Vice-President and General manager of Total (ceober, 2000
Director and Consultant of Corporate Developmenechnologies, a division of Ad Opt Technologi¢s
Age: 48 Inc.; Director of the Company
Resident of Canada
DOUGLAS S. HURST® @ Geologist October, 2000



Director President of D.S. Hurst Inc., a company offering
Age: 41 corporate, evaluation and financing consulting
Resident of Canada services to the mining industry; Director of the
Company
FRANK R. HALLAM Chartered Accountant February, 2002
CFO and Director CFO and Director of the Company
Age: 45
Resident of Canada
DENNIS GORC Geologist January, 2000
Manager, Research and Project Acquisitions Manager, Research and Project Acquisitions o
Age: 51 Company
Resident of Canada
JOHN GOULD Geologist June, 2003
Managing Director of PTM-RSA Managing Director of PTM-RSA
Age: 46
Resident of South Africa

Notes:

(1) Member of the Audit Committee
(2) Member of Compensation Committee

No Director and/or Executive Officer has been thigject of any order, judgment, or decree of anyegomental agency or administrator o
any court or competent jurisdiction, revoking orspending for cause any license, permit or othehaity of such person or of a
corporation of which he is a Director and/or ExéeiOfficer, to engage in the securities
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business or in the sale of a particular securityeanporarily or permanently restraining or enjogqiany such person or any corporatio
which he is an officer or director from engagingoincontinuing any conduct, practice, or employniardonnection with the purchase or :
of securities, or convicting such person of angifiglor misdemeanor involving a security or any aspéthe securities business or of the
of any felony.

While the Directors and Executive Officers of then@pany are involved in other business venturesaitd the exception of Dennis Gorc,
not spend full time on the affairs of the Compatimg Company believes that each devotes as muchtaitie affairs of the Company as
required to satisfactorily carry out their duty

There are no family relationships between any twanore Directors or Executive Officers. There atearrangements or understand
between any of the Directors or Executive Officengjor shareholders, customers, suppliers or ofhumsuant to which any person referre
above was selected as a Director or Officer.

R. Michael Jones, P.Eng, Chairman, President, CEOrwl Director

Mr. Jones holds a Bachelor of Applied Science (@gichl Engineering) from the University of Torontb985). Mr. Joneskxperienc
includes mineral exploration in Canada, the U.$Mlyana, and Honduras for base and precious métaks $985 and includes the formai
and management, as a senior executive, of mingpdbration, development and mining companies. 3dmes has been a senior office
public mineral exploration and development compausiace 1987. He was a founder of Glimmer Resaguhte. that was involved in t
discovery and exploration of the Glimmer Gold mirear Timmins, Ontario, he was the President of &itid Gold Corporation, a produc
gold mining company from 1992 to 1997, and he wa&ce President of Aber Resources, a mining comphay is developing a diamo
mine, from 1997 to 1999. Mr. Jones has not expldoed®GE deposits prior to his work with the ComparCurrently Mr. Jones sper
approximately 90% of his time devoted to the Conypaldis responsibilities include management oftledl Companys business and the fii
review of exploration programs and budgets.

Mr. Jones is also a director of Radar Acquisiti@usp., a public company with a coal and heavy naihproject in Colorado, and MAG Silv
Corp., a public company with silver properties iehto.

Frank R. Hallam, BBA, CA, Chief Financial Officer and Director

Mr. Hallam received his Bachelor of Business Admsiird@tion from Simon Fraser University in 1990. ir@989 to 1994 Mr. Hallam was
Senior Associate with Coopers & Lybrand (now PricggvhouseCoopers) where he specialized as an auditbe mining practice. M
Hallam qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1998 Hallam left public practice in 1994 and sintteen has served at the se
management level with several publicly listed reselcompanies. His experience includes mineraloeapon and operations in Canada,



U.S.A. and several countries in East and SouthcAfriMr. Hallam is the former founder, PresiderEGCand Director of NMM. Mr. Halla
currently devotes 90% of this time on the affairthe Company.

Mr. Hallam is also a Director of Sydney Resourcepooation, a public company with gold propertiesOanada and Mexico, and the Cl
Financial Officer of MAG Silver Corp., a public cgraany with silver properties in Mexico.

Barry Smee, PhD., PGeo, Secretary and Director

Dr. Smee received his PhD from the University ofdN&runswick in 1982 and received his B.Sc. from ltheversity of Alberta in 1969. F
holds the professional designation of P.Geo fronE@GBC. Since 1990, Dr. Smee has been the Preside®inee & Associates, offeri
consulting, geological and geochemical servicethéomining industry. Dr. Smee has been a direataZolony Pacific Explorations Ltd.,
public company listed on The Toronto Stock Excharsjiece 1997 and has acted as a director of sewdrat public companies includi
Getchell Resources, Leeward CapitalC&F Resources and Cross Lake Minerals. CurrentlyShee spends approximately 10% of his
devoted to the Company. His responsibilities idela role as an independent director and a conguttie as a geochemist as required.

Dr. Smee is also a director of Colony Pacific Exatmns Ltd.
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lain McLean, BSc Eng (ARSM), MBA, MIMM. CEng, Director and Consultant of Corporate Development

Mr. McLean received his M.B.A. from Harvard Busiaedchool in 1986 and received his B.Sc (Eng.) iniij from the Imperial College
Science and Technology (London, England) in 19v8. McLean holds the professional designations &r@. and MIMM from the Institu
of Mining and Metallurgy. Mr. McLean has actedtlas Chief Operating Officer of several private htghhnology companies since 1995
was the Vice President of Operations at Ballard &d8ystems from 1993 to 1995. Currently Mr. Mabaaends approximately 10% of
time devoted to the Company. His responsibililieslude assisting the President in all aspects isfwork and focusing on strate
partnerships and new businesses.

Douglas S. Hurst, BSc, Director

Mr. Hurst received his Bachelor of Science in Ggglfrom McMaster University in 1986. Since 1995,.Mturst has been the Presider
D.S Hurst Inc., offering corporate, evaluation dindncing consulting services to the mining indystMr. Hurst has previous experience
mining analyst for Sprott Securities (from 19941895) and for McDermid St. Laurence (from 1987 $94). Mr. Hurst has been a directo
International Wayside Gold Mines Ltd., a public qmamy listed on the Exchange, since June 2000.e@uUyrMr. Hurst spends approximat
10% of his time devoted to the Company. His resjlilities include a role as an independent directo

Mr. Hurst is also a director of International WalssiGold Mines Ltd., a public company with gold pedpes near Wells, British Columbia.

Dennis Gorc, B.Sc, PGeo, Manager, Research and Peot Acquisitions

Mr. Gorc holds a Bachelor of Science in EngineefiBdsc Eng.) from Queens University (1976). Mr.rGbas been self employed si
1995 and has been Vice President, Exploration@fbmpany since May 25, 2000. Mr. Garexperience includes exploration in most |
of Canada and foreign experience in Indonesia,r@eAmerica, Guyana and Siberia. His experienda B variety of geological settings ¢
environments but not specifically for PGE depopiter to work with the Company. Currently Mr. Gaspends approximately 100% of
time devoted to the Company. His responsibiliiiedlude oversight of the Compasyexploration programs and execution of Sud
programs.

John Gould, Managing Director of PTM-RSA

Mr. Gould is a senior mining executive with over 21rgeaf experience working for companies in Southigsfrsuch as Goldfields of Soi
Africa, Johannesburg Consolidated Investments aamidny Gold Mining Company Ltd. Mr. Gould servedagproduction geologist f
Rustenburg Platinum Mines’ Amandelbult Section ba Western Bushveld Complex where he gained extershiaftsinking experienc
Mr. Gould served as Mine Manager of a Witwaterdr&wld Mine for Harmony and then moved to the NewgiBess Division where he w
involved in target generation, optimization of dgabus properties, and mergers and acquisitions.
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Compensation

The following table sets forth all compensationdpaii accrued by the Company to its directors anchbegs of its administrative, supervis
or management bodies for Fiscal 2003.

Long Term Compensation
Annual Compensation Awards Payouts
Other
Annual Securities Under Restricted All Other
Compen- Options/ SARs Shares / Units LTIP Compen-
Name and Principal Bonus sation Granted Awarded Payouts sation
Position Year | Salary (%) (%) %) # %) (%) $)

R. Michael Jones
Chairman, President,| 2003 $Nil $Nil $132,587 Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil
CEO and Director
E:Lré;’:;e:n i Directdr 2003 | 8Nl $Nil $1,475 Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil
Dougias Hurst 2003 | $Nil $Nil $450 Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil
lain McLean . . . . . . .

) 2003 $Nil $Nil $Nil Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil
Director
Frank Hallam
Chief Financial Officet 2003 $Nil $Nil $49,600 Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil
and Director
Dennis Gorc
Manager, Research | 5405 | gy $Nil | $74,750 Nil $Nil $Nil $Nil
and Corporate
Acquisitions
John Gould
Managing Director, 2003 $Nil $Nil $15,000 150,000(1) $Nil $Nil $Nil
PTM-RSA
Q) Stock options granted on June 27, 2003 are exéteisa $0.50 per share and expire on June 27, 2008.

During Fiscal 2003, there were two consulting agrerts outstanding with its directors and officers.

Effective February 27, 2001, the Company entertmlanmanagement services agreement (the “Joneegre”)with R. Michael Jones, tl
President, Chief Executive Officer and a directérttee Company pursuant to which Mr. Jones is paithanthly fee of $10,000 f
management and administrative services. The lirtiélan of the Jones Agreement is one year commgnftiom February 27, 2001 a
thereafter the Company may renew the Jones Agraeimefurther oneyear terms by providing Mr. Jones with written getat least 30 da
prior to the expiration of the current term.

Effective February 27, 2001, the Company enteréol énmanagement services agreement (the “Gorc Agre#) with Dennis Gorc, tF
Manager of Research and Corporate Acquisitions@fGompany pursuant to which Mr. Gorc is paid adie®325 per day for geological &
exploration management services. The initial tefrthe Gorc Agreement is one year commencing fretréary 27, 2001 and thereafter
Company may renew the Gorc Agreement for furthesygrar terms by providing Mr. Gorc with written naiat least 30 days prior to
expiration of the current term.
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The Company has no pension plan and no other amaggt for non-cash compensation to the directotseoCompany except stock options.
Board Practices
The Board of Directors presently consists of fivieebtors. Each Director was elected at the angaaéral meeting of the shareholders o
Company held on February 19, 2004. Each Direadttshoffice until the next annual general meetifthe Company or until his successc

elected or appointed, unless his office is eavi@rated in accordance with the Articles of the Camyp or with the provisions of the Compi
Act (British Columbia). SefDirectors and Senior Managem” for the dates on which the current Directors of @@mpany were fir:



elected or appointed.
The Company has not entered into contracts progiftin benefits to the directors upon terminatioreofployment.
Board Committee:

Audit Committee: Pursuant to Section 187 of the Company Act (Brit&lumbia), the Company is required to have an Audit Comm|
As at the date hereof, the members of the Audin@dtee are Barry Smee, lain McLean and Douglassti®@f the members of the Au
Committee, Barry Smee serves as Secretary andtBiraied lain McLean and Douglas Hurst serve aspaddent directors.

Section 187(1) of the Company Act requires theatlines of a reporting company to elect from amorajrthumber a committee compose!
not fewer than three directors, of whom a majonityst not be officers or employees of the compangroaffiliate of the company. T
election must occur at the first meeting of thexctiors following each annual general meeting, aode elected will hold office until the ni
annual general meeting. Section 187(4) provides biefore a financial statement that is to be stibthito an annual general meetin
considered by the directors, it must be submittethe audit committee for review with the auditand, after that, the report of the a
committee on the financial statement must be subthib the directors. Section 187(5) provides thatauditor must be given notice of,
has the right to appear before and to be hearevaty meeting of the audit committee, and must appefore the audit committee wit
requested to do so by the committee. Finally,ieect87(6) provides that on the request of thetaudihe chair of the audit committee
convene a meeting of the audit committee to consadg matters the auditor believes should be brotmlthe attention of the directors
members.

Compensation CommitteeThe Companys Compensation Committee is composed of threetdigadhe majority of whom are not officers
employees of the Company. The responsibilitiethef Compensation Committee are to review the adsgaad form of compensation
directors, and to supervise the granting of emmsystock options. As at the date hereof, the neesnbf the Compensation Committee
Barry Smee, lain McLean and Douglas Hurst. Ofrtteambers of the Compensation Committee, Barry Smae@s as Secretary and Direl
and lain McLean and Douglas Hurst serve as indeg@rdirectors.

Employees

At August 31, 2003, the Company had 9 full time @ypes and 2 part time employees. In comparido®m,Gompany had two futlme
employees and no part-time employees at Augus2@®12 and 2001.

Share Ownershig
With respect to the persons listed in “Compensdtiabove who are current directors, officers or empésyof the Company, the followi

table discloses the number of Common Shares amgmeof the Common Shares outstanding held by thessons, as of February 27, 2(
The Common Shares possess identical voting rights.
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Name and Title No. of Shared?) @) | percent of Shares Outstanding of the Clad®)

ghg/i“r(r;l:]:ril ;?g:ifient, CEO and Director 1218,56%4) 3.8%
g:;:rr};tsa?;e:nd Director 9,000 <1.0 %
irector 118,839 <1.0%
orector 0 0.0 %
CRO and Direor 655,081 2.0 %
Eﬂz:r;;e(rz,olgcesearch and Project Acquisitions 199,500 <1.0 %
‘;/?::agi?lglcé)irector, PTM-RSA 86,000 <1.0%
Notes:

(1) Includes beneficial, direct and indirect sharehaidi

2) Does not include stock options and other eghtpurchase or acquire shares.



) There are 32,116,208 Common Shares issuedwsthnding as of the date of this Annual Report.
(4) Of these shares, 950,500 are held by 5991&3IBd., a company 50% owned by Mr. Jones and 5@4ted by Mr. Jones’ wife.

The following table discloses the incentive stopkians outstanding to the aforementioned persomnd Bsbruary 27, 2004:

Date of Grant or | # Common Shares| Exercise
Name of Person(s) Issuance Subject to Issuancg Price Per Expiry Date
Share

R. Michael Jones Jan. 31, 2001 225,000 $0.55 Jan. 31, 2005
Chairman, President, CEO and Director March 6, 2002 120,000 $0.35 March 6, 2007
Barry Smee Jan. 31, 2001 125,000 $0.55 Jan. 31, 2005
Secretary and Director March 6, 2002 60,000 $0.35 March 6, 2007
lain McLean Jan. 31, 2001 100,000 $0.55 Jan. 31, 2005
Director March 6, 2002 60,000 $0.35 March 6, 2007
Douglas S. Hurst Jan. 31, 2001 100,000 $0.55 Jan. 31, 2005
Director March 6, 2002 60,000 $0.35 March 6, 2007
Frank R. Hallam March 6, 2002 42,000 $0.35 March 6, 2007
CFO and Director March 6, 2002 60,000 $0.55 March 6, 2007

July 16, 2002 50,000 $0.75 July 16, 2007

Sept. 17, 2003 75,000 $0.70 Sept. 17, 2008
Dennis Gorc Jan. 31, 2001 150,000 $0.55 Jan. 31, 2005
Manager, Research and Project Acquisitiops March 6, 2002 40,000 $0.35 March 6, 2007
John Gould June 27, 2003 150,000 $0.50 June 27, 200§
Managing Director, PTM-RSA Sept. 17, 2003 75,000 $0.70 Sept. 17, 2009

The Company has no arrangements for involving thpleyees in the capital of the Company. The Compioes not have a share purct
plan, dividend reinvestment plan or a share opgitam for its directors, officers and employees.wdwer, the Company will, from time
time, grant individual stock options to its direrstoofficers or employees as an incentive.

No share purchase warrants were outstanding taftttementioned persons as of February 27, 2
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Item 7 — Major Shareholders and Related Party Tranactions

Major Shareholders

To the best of the Comparyknowledge, it is not directly or indirectly owned controlled by another corporation(s) or by daseigr
government.

There are presently no arrangements known to timep@oy, the operation of which may at a subsequata iiésult in a change in contro
the Company.

The following table discloses the significant chesign the percentage ownership held by any mapmesiolders during the past three years.

Identity of Person or Group Date Amount Owned| percent of Clas<y)
Prudent Bear Funds’ |n@) (3) 4) February 2004 1,853,750 57%
Suite 300, 8140 Walnut Hill Lanle  February 2003 2,585,000 9.5%
Da”aS, Texas February 2002 N/A N/A
USA 75231
GM |\/||n|ng Services Ltd(S) (6) February 2004 2,400,000 7.5%
P.O. Box 901 February 2003 N/A N/A




| Road Town, Tortola, BV! |  February 2002 | N/A | N/A

Notes:
(1) Shares outstanding at February 2004 - 32,116,208nbn Shares
February 2003 - 27,140,767 Common Shares
2) Prudent Bear Funds, Inc. is a mutual fundvi®&V. Tice & Associates, LLC is the investment &dv to Prudent Bear Funds, Inc.
) Not including 100,000 common shares held byi®&V. Tice & Associates, LLC.
4) Not including 468,750 warrants exercisable gtice of $0.75 per share on or before Decembge2@4.
5) GM Mining Services Ltd. is beneficially ownégt African Minerals Ltd. of Whitehorse, Yukon Teaiy, Canada.
(6) Not including 1,200,000 warrants exercisatila price of $1.10 per share on or before Octohe2804.

As at February 27, 2004, the only person or grougw to the Company to own more than 5% of the Gaomgjs issued and outstand
Common Shares is as follows:

Identity of Person or Group Amount Owned Percent of Clasd?)

GM Mining Services Ltd{@ ) 2,400,000 7.5%
P.O. Box 901
Road Town, Tortola, BVI

Notes:

(1) There are 32,116,208 Common Shares issued anduoditsg as of the date of this Annual Report.

2) GM Mining Services Ltd. is beneficially ownégt African Minerals Ltd. of Whitehorse, Yukon Teaiy, Canada.

) Not including 1,200,000 warrants exercisatila price of $1.10 per share on or before Octohe2804.
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Holders of Record in the United Sta

Based on the Comparsyknowledge, after reasonable inquiry as of Felgr@dr 2004, the most recent practicable date foidaoting suc
search in the light of the time required for resges) the total number of Common Shares held ofdduy 46 residents in the United State
6,808,277 Common Shares representing approximafeRfs of the 32,116,208 Common Shares then issugd@tstanding. The foregoi
is comprised of the following:

1. According to the records of the Companyegistrar and transfer agent, Pacific CorporatestfCompany, there are 1,484,
Common Shares held of record by 9 residents ofUthiseed States, one of which is Cede & Co. with &ltof 502,920 Commc
Shares.

2. Through a search conducted by the Company, the @oynlpas ascertained that there are no Common Shelcbby residents of tl

United States through CDS & Co. in Canada.

3. A search conducted through Cede & Co. in the Un8ates by the Company revealed there are 38 lsotdeecord resident in t
United States owning 5,826,778 Common Shares (Gibahdeficit of 5,783,056 Common Shares).

The Company is required to file annual reports om#20-F and periodic reports on FornkK6-As a foreign private issuer, the Compar
not subject to the reporting obligations of Exchadgt Section 14's proxy rules or Section 16'sd@sshort-swing profit rules.

Related Party Transaction

Certain of the Company's directors and officersesears directors or officers of other reporting camps or have significant shareholding
other reporting companies and, to the extent thelt ®ther companies may participate in ventureghith the Company may participate,
directors of the Company may have a conflict ofliest in negotiating and concluding terms respgdtie extent of such participation. In
event that such a conflict of interest arises mie@ting of the Company's directors, a director Wwhs such a conflict will abstain from vot
for or against the approval of such participationsach terms. From time to time several compamay participate in the acquisitic
exploration and development of natural resourc@enties thereby allowing for their participationlarger programs, permitting involvem
in a greater number of programs and reducing filsdmxposure in respect of any one program. It map occur that a particular comp.
will assign all or a portion of its interest in arpicular program to another of these companiestdube financial position of the comps
making the assignment. Under the laws of Britishu@bia, the directors of the Company are requicealct honestly, in good faith and in
best interests of the Company. In determining fmaeor not the Company will participate in a partée program and the interest therein t



acquired by it, the directors will primarily considthe degree of risk to which the Company mayxposed and its financial position at
time.

Management believes that the transactions refedelbel®w were on terms at least as favorable taCibmpany as it could have obtained fi
unaffiliated parties.

Other than disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Repane of the directors, senior officers, printiplaareholders named in “Item 7Major
Shareholders and Related Party Transactioos’any relative or spouse of the foregoing, have ha interest, direct or indirect, in ¢
transaction, during the current financial year agdhugust 31, 2003, or in any proposed transactibich has materially affected or v
materially affect the Company or any of its sulsiis except for the following:

1. R. Michael Jones, Chairman, President, Chief ExeeuOfficer and Director of the Company provided magement ar
administrative services. During Fiscal 2003, Mmds was paid and/or accrued $132,587 for manageandradministrative servic
rendered pursuant to the terms a management seagceement. See “ltem 6 — Directors, Senior Mamamt and Employees”.

125

2. Frank Hallam, Chief Financial Officer and Directmirthe Company provided consulting services. Dgifiiiscal 2003, Mr. Halla
was paid and/or accrued $49,600 for consultingisesvrendered. Mr. Hallam did not have an agreérhah was paid by tt
Company upon the rendering of services and reogipxpense reports and/or invoices. See “ltemDbrectors, Senior Managemi
and Employees”.

3. Barry Smee, Secretary and Director of the Compaayiged geological consulting services. DuringcBi2003, Mr. Smee was p:
and/or accrued $1,475 for consulting services nmtleMr. Smee did not have an agreement but wigshyathe Company upon t
rendering of services and receipt of expense re@ord/or invoices. See “ltem 6 — Directors, SekManagement and Employees”.

4. Douglas Hurst, Director of the Company, providedpooate, evaluation and financing consulting sesicDuring Fiscal 2003, N
Hurst was paid and/or accrued $450 for corporat@uation and financing consulting services. Murst did not have an agreem
but was paid by the Company upon the renderinggnfices and receipt of expense reports and/or t@goi See “ltem 6 Birectors
Senior Management and Employees”.

5. Dennis Gorc, Manager, Research and Project Acapisiof the Company provided geological and expioramanagement servic
During Fiscal 2003, Mr. Gorc was paid and/or aedr$74,750 for geological and exploration managenservices render:
pursuant to the terms of a management servicegmagrg. See “ltem 6 — Directors, Senior ManagerapdtEmployees”.

6. John Gould, Managing Director of PTRISA provided management and consulting serviceabe¢dCompany. During Fiscal 20
Mr. Gould was paid and/or accrued $15,000 for mamant and consulting services rendered. Mr. Gdiddnot have a form
agreement, but was paid by the Company upon treeramg of services and receipt of expense repodgoa invoices. See “ltem-6
Directors, Senior Management and Employees”.

7. Pursuant to an escrow agreement dated FebruarQD4, (the " Escrow Agreement”) among Pacific CoaporTrust Compar
(“PCTC"), the Company and the escrow holders listedhe table below (the “Principals”an aggregate of 1,000,000 Comr
Shares, 145,000 Special Warrants and 45,454 Flawugih Special Warrants were placed in escrow (Escrfow Securities"yith
PCTC for the benéefit of:

Principals Escrow Securities

Dennis Gorc 150,000 Common Shares

599143 B.C. Lid) 850,000 Common Shares

599143 B.C. Lid) 50,000 Special Warrants

599143 B.C. Lid) 45,000 Special Warrants

lain McLean 45,454 Flow Through Special Warrants
516383 B.C. Ltd®@ 50,000 Special Warrants

(1) 599143 B.C. Ltd. is a corporation beneficially owr&% by R. Michael Jones and 50% by his wife, Bkdlips;
(2) 516383 B.C. Ltd. is a corporation beneficiallyned by Cyrus Driver, a former Chief FinanciafiGdr of the Company.

The 150,000 Common Shares placed in escrow for Béborc and the 850,000 Common Shares placed nowdor 599143 B.C
Ltd. were issued at an ascribed value of $0.01spare while the Special Warrants and Flow Througéctl Warrants were isstL



pursuant to private placements at prices of $0685pecial Warrant and $0.55 per Flow Through $p&arrant, respectively.

The Escrow Securities are subject to a thyes- automatic time release in equal tranchesxahenths intervals (ie. 15%) with 1(
of each Principal’s holdings being exempt from esceffective on the date of listing on the Exchafthe “Listing Date”) (0%). i
the Company meets certain criteria within 18 momth¢he Listing Date, all of the Escrow Securitigd#l be immediately releas:
from Escrow. This criteria includes listing on fheronto Stock Exchange or meeting Tier 1 requirgsen the Exchange.
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The Escrow Securities can generally not be traresfeor otherwise dealt with during escrow. Pemdittransfers or dealings witl
escrow would include: (i) transfers to continumg upon their appointment, incoming directors emier officers of the Company
of a material operating subsidiary, with the appitaf the Company board of directors; (ii) transfers to an RRSRionilar trustee
plan provided that the only beneficiaries are thegferor or the transferarspouse or children; (iii) transfer upon bankrypte the
trustee in bankruptcy; and (iv) pledges to a finaninstitution as collateral for a bona fide logmopvided that upon realization -
securities remain in escrow. Tenders of the Esetb&ecurities to a takarer bid would be permitted provided that, if teederer i
a principal of the successor issuer upon completibthe takeever bid, securities received in exchange for tesdleescrowe
securities are substituted in escrow on the bdgsecsuccessor issuer’s escrow classification.

During Fiscal 2002, 300,000 Common Shares, 43,5@#¢i8l Warrants and 13,636 Flow Through Specialrdfas of the Compal
were released from escrow upon the Company readherdl status:

Principal

Escrowed Securities Released during Fiscal 2002

Dennis Gorc

45,000 Common Shares

599143 B.C. Ltd.

255,000 Common Shares

599143 B.C. Ltd.

28,500 Special Warrants

lain McLean

13,636 Flow Through Special Warrants

516383 B.C. Ltd.

15,000 Special Warrants

During Fiscal 2003, the remaining securities haldscrow pursuant to the Escrow Agreement werasek:

On November 26, 2002, the Company entered intoeSBabscription Agreement with Active Gold Group .L{tActive Gold”)
pursuant to which the Company acquired 1,461,9@deshat an average price of $0.11 per share fotah gubscription price

$160,327. This represented approximately a 27%rest in Active Gold at November 30, 2002. ActiBeld is related to tt
Company by way of a common director and officer Michael Jones. Active Gols'Republic of South Africa subsidiary, Act
Gold Group RSA (Pty) Limited ("AGG RSA"had been working to acquire and successfully peanif000 hectare exploration
development project named the Rooderand Gold Rroj€he project is located near the town of Potstiebm in the centr
Witwatersrand Basin and is known to host gold bepdonglomerates of the Kimberly Reef Formatiorseohon the work of pe
operators. Subsequently, AGG RSA failed to ach@&permit for the Rooderand Gold Project and hagldd to abandon the proj
through liquidation and termination of all existirights and assets related to the project. Asaltighe Company has written off
investment and advances totaling $211,725 at Auglis2003.

Pursuant to a term sheet dated April 21, 2003p@nded August 12, 2003, the Company entered intnace agreement with MA
Silver Corp. (“MAG”) to provide office space and administrative suppervices to MAG at a cost of $12,000 per month
expenses. MAG is related to the Company by wagoofimon directors and officers: R. Michael Jonesjifdhan, President, Ch
Executive Officer and Director of the Company ardrik Hallam, Chief Financial Officer and Directdrtbe Company. Durir
Fiscal 2003, the Company received $38,525 from MA@suant to this arrangement. Furthermore, the gaom received $100,0
in finder's fees in the form of 200,000 MAG shares during#®i®003 for assistance in locating mineral prapsrin which MAC
now has interests.

No director, senior officer, relative or associatesuch persons was indebted to the Company diiggal 2003 other than for travel expe
advances in the normal course of business.

Interests of Experts and Couns

Not applicable
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ltem 8 — Financial Information

Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Finaatinformation

See the audited consolidated financial stateméstedlin Item 17 hereof and filed as part of thisndal Report. These financial statem
include the consolidated balance sheets of the @agnps at August 31, 2003 and 2002 and statemémsoand cash flows for the th
years ended August 31, 20(

These financial statements were prepared in acooedavith accounting principles generally acceptedCanada. Differences betw
accounting principles generally accepted in Caratthin the United States, as applicable to the Gmypare set forth in Note 14 to
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Legal Proceeding:

There are no pending or material proceedings tehvtiie Company is or is likely to be a party odiich any of its properties is or is lik
to be the subject. However, the Elandsfontein @rgpin South Africa is the subject of a bindindpitration process with the Vendor. !
“Significant Changes” below.

Dividend Policy

The Company has not declared any dividends and daeanticipate that it will do so in the foreseleafuture. The present policy of 1
Company is to retain future earnings for use imfierations and the expansion of its business.

Significant Changes

Since August 31, 2003, the following significantiolges have occurred:

1. On September 23, 2003, the Company agreed to diatgbsettlement of the title dispute on the Wearii®s property by reducii
joint venture partner AW participation in the project from a 30% partitipg interest to a 15% interest carried to bank
feasibility, and then granting claimant Taung a 1f¥rest carried to bankable feasibility. The Qamy’s 70% interest remain
unchanged. For more details, see Note 6(c)(ih@Qonsolidated Financial Statements.

2. According to the terms of the Elandsfontein opteEgreement, the Company tendered a required payfoerit0% of the bas
purchase price of the property in the amount of.R rhillion prior to October 1, 2003, subject to thase purchase price be
adjusted according to the terms of the agreemeradtual UG2 open cast resource on the properhe Mendors refused to acc
the payment, claiming that an adjustment was rotvable. The Company is of the view that the dcti@2 open cast resource
the property falls below that amount which wouldui¢ in the minimum purchase price for the mineigits being set at the R -
million minimum and has, therefore, referred theterdor settlement under the binding arbitratioovisions of the agreement. |
more detail, see Note 6(c)(iii) of the Consolidafédancial Statements.

3. On November 5, 2003, the Company announced théngla$ a private placement for proceeds of $2,0d0,0A total of 2.4 milliol
units were issued at a price of 85 cents per Baith unit consisted of one common share anchaifesf one share purchase warr
Each whole warrant is exercisable into one Com@bare at a price of $1.10 per share until Octoie2804. No findes fee o
commission was paid with respect to this privateement.
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Item 9 — The Offer and Listing
Offer and Listings Details

There is no offer associated with this Annual Répor
Trading History

The following table sets forth the high and low kedrprices for the Common Shares on the Exchangeafth full quarterly period within t



two most recent fiscal years ended August 31, 20@Bthe current year to date period:

CDN $ CDN $

Period High Low
Fiscal 2004

Second Quarter $1.95 $1.22
First Quarter $1.74 $0.58
Fiscal 2003

Fourth Quarter $0.62 $0.25
Third Quarter $0.67 $0.28
Second Quarter $0.80 $0.46
First Quarter $1.04 $0.42
Fiscal 2002

Fourth Quarter $0.98 $0.43
Third Quarter $0.65 $0.25
Second Quarter $0.40 $0.25
First Quarter $0.49 $0.21

The following table sets forth the high and low kedrprices of the Common Shares for the three mezsint fiscal years ended August
2003:

CDN $ CDN %
Period Ending Aug. 31 High Low
2003 $1.04 $0.25
2002 $0.98 $0.21
2001® $0.73 $0.33

Notes:

(1) The Common Shares commenced trading on March @,.200

The following table sets forth the high and low k&rprices for the most recent six months:

CDN $ CDN $
Month High Low
February 2004 $1.75 $1.34
January 2004 $1.95 $1.50
December 2003 $1.65 $1.22
November 2003 $1.74 $0.87
October 2003 $1.68 $0.63
September 2003 $0.80 $0.58
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The closing price of the Company’s shares on Febr2a 2004 was $1.39
There have been no trading suspensions in the thiriee years.

Plan of Distribution

Not applicable

Markets



The Common Shares trade on the Exchange undeyititeos“PTM”.

Selling Shareholder:

Not applicable

Dilution

Not applicable

Expenses of the Issu

Not applicable

ltem 10 — Additional Information

Share Capital

The authorized capital of the Company consists,00@,000,000 Common Shares without par value, a€lwB2,116,208 Common Sha
were issued and outstanding as at February 27,.2804of the issued Common Shares are fully paiche Company does not own
Common Shares.

The holders of Shares are entitled to one votedmh Share on all matters to be voted on by theesbllers. Each Share is equal to e
other Share and all Shares participate equallyiquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Comgamwhether voluntary or involuntary,
any other distribution of the assets of the Compampng its shareholders for the purpose of windingts affairs after the Company has |
out its liabilities. The holders of Shares areitkut to vote for each share held and are entiiberbceivepro rata such dividends as may
declared by the Board of Directors out of fundsalggavailable therefore and to recep® ratathe remaining property of the Company u
dissolution. No shares have been issued subjemdlt@mr assessment. There are nogmrtive or conversion rights, and no provision:
redemption, purchase or cancellation, surrendakirgy fund or purchase fund. Provisions as todteation, modification, amendment
variation of such rights or such provisions aretamed in the Company Act

Memorandum and Articles of Associatic
Objects and Purposes of the Company

The Memorandum of the Company places no restristiggon the Company’s objects and purposes.
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Directors’ Powers

Section 15.1 of the Articles of the Company (thati@es”) provides that a director who is in any way diredalyindirectly interested in
proposed contract or transaction with the Companytm holds any office or possesses any propergreldy directly or indirectly, a duty
interest might be created to conflict with his dotyinterest as a Director shall declare the natine extent of his interest in the contrac
transaction or of the conflict or potential confligith his duty and interest as a Director, asdage may be, in accordance with the provis
of the Company Act.

Furthermore, Section 15.2 provides that a Direstall not vote in respect of any contract or tratiea with the Company in which he
interested and if he shall do so his vote shallbeotounted, but he shall be counted in the qugmesent at the meeting at which such vc
taken. Subject to the provisions of the Compant; the foregoing prohibitions shall not apply to:

(@) any such contract or transaction relating to a lmathe Company, which a Director or specified cogbion or specified firm i
which he has an interest has guaranteed or joingdaranteeing the repayment of the loan or anygfdine loan;

(b) any contract or transaction made or to be made, witfor the benefit of an affiliated corporatiofivehich a Director is a director
officer;

(c) determining the remuneration of the Directors;

(d) purchasing and maintaining insurance to cover Darscagainst liability incurred by them as Direstamder Section 128 of t

Company Act; o



(e) the indemnification of any Director by the Compamgder Section 128 of the Company Act.

The exceptions may from time to time be suspendedrended to any extent approved by the Compaggieral meeting and permitted
the Company Act, either generally or in respedrof particular contract or transaction or for aaytigular period.

Section 16.6 of the Articles provides that the guernecessary for the transaction of the businegheDirectors may be fixed by 1
Directors and if not so fixed shall be a majorifyttoe Directors in office or, if the number of Diters is fixed at one, shall be one Director.

Section 12.2 of the Articles provides that the rapmation of the Directors as such may from timértm be determined by the Directors o
the Directors shall decide, by the members. Theursration may be in addition to any salary or offeenuneration paid to any officer
employee of the Company as such who is also a @iredhe Directors shall be repaid reasonablectiag, hotel and other expenses as
incur in and about the business of the Companyifaarty Director shall perform any professional tiner services for the Company that in
opinion of the Directors are outside the ordinanties of a Director or shall otherwise be speciabcupied in or about the Compat
business, he may be paid a remuneration to be fhyetthe Board, or, at the option of the Director,the Company in general meeting,

such remuneration may be either in addition tanaubstitution for any other remuneration thatniey be entitled to receive. The Direc
on behalf of the Company, unless otherwise detexchioy ordinary resolution, may pay a gratuity ongien or allowance on retirement
any Director who has held any salaried office @cplof profit with the Company or to his spous@ependents and may make contribut
to any fund and pay premiums for the purchase ovigion of any such gratuity, pension or allowandehere are no restrictions in

Articles upon the directorgower, in the absence of an independent quorunot® compensation to themselves or any memberkeir
body.

Section 8.1 of the Articles provides that the divex may from time to time on behalf of the Company

(@) borrow money in such manner and amount, on sudrisgdrom such sources and upon such terms anditons as they think fi
and may authorize the guaranteeing of any obligataf any other person;

131
(b) issue bonds, debentures and other debt obligagitimsr outright or as security for any liability obligation of the Company or ot}
person; and
(©) mortgage, charge, whether by way of specific aatftoy charge, or give other security on the unéerta or on the whole or any p

of the property and assets of the Company (botbepteand future).

The borrowing powers of the directors set forththe Articles can be varied by amending the Articl&ection 219 of the Company
provides that a Company may alter its Articles tind with the registrar of companies a certifieopy of a special resolution altering
Articles. A special resolution is a resolution g&d by a majority of not less than three quartérthe votes cast by those members
company who, being entitled to do so, vote in persoby proxy at a general meeting of the compamnyconsented to in writing by eve
member of a company who would have been entitlate in person or by proxy at a general meetinthefcompany. Under the Comp:
Act, an ordinary resolution of shareholders requapproval by a majority of the votes cast at atmmgef shareholders, present in perso
represented by proxy.

Qualifications of Directors
There is no provision in the Articles imposing guigement for retirement or non-retirement of diogs under an age limit requirement.

Section 12.3 of the Articles provides that a divechall not be required to hold a share in thetabpf the Company as qualification for
office but shall be qualified as required by ther@any Act, to become or act as a Director.

Section 114 of the Company Act provides that ne@eis qualified to act as a director if that perso

(@) under the age of 18 years;
(b) found to be incapable of managing the person’s affairs by reason of mental infirmity;
() a corporation;

(d) an undischarged bankrupt;

(e) unless the court orders otherwise, convicted ofoience in connection with the promotion, formation management of
corporation, or involving fraud, unless 5 yearséhalapsed since the expiration of the period fik@dsuspension of the passing
sentence without sentencing or since a fine was#®eg, or the term of imprisonment and probationdsegl, if any, was conclud:



whichever is the latest, but the disability imposgdhis paragraph ceases on a pardon being granthet theCriminal Records A
(Canada); or

() in the case of a reporting company, a person whezgstration in any capacity has been cancellec¢zund
0] the Securities Act by either the British Columbgc8rities Commission or the executive director, or
(i) the Mortgage Brokers Acby either the Commercial Appeals Commission or rtbgistrar, unless the commission,

executive director or the registrar, whichever jpplecable, otherwise orders, or unless 5 years h&apsed since tl
cancellation of the registration.

Pursuant to Section 114(3) of the Company Act,yeperson who acts as a director of a company aralisvhot qualified to act as a direc
of the company because of section 114 (1) commitsff@nce.

Section 108 of the Company Act provides that eweryppany must have at least one director, and atiega@ompany must have at least tt
directors. Section 109(1) states that the majaftghe directors of every company must be persmdiarily resident in Canada, wt
section 109(2) specifies that one director of exemypany must be ordinarily resident in British @uobia.
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Section 13.8 of the Articles provides for the remaf a Director, which states that the office afdator shall be vacated if the Director:

€)) resigns his office by notice in writing delivereathe registered office of the Company; or
(b) is convicted of an indictable offence and the ofheectors shall have resolved to remove him; or
(c) ceases to be qualified to act as a Director putdoahe Company Act.

Section 13.9 of the Articles provides that the Campmay by special resolution remove any Directfote the expiration of his period
office, and may by an ordinary resolution appoimitaer person in his stead.

Rights, Preference and Restrictic

All of the authorized shares of common stock of @mmpany are of the same class and, once issuad egually as to dividends, voti
powers, and participation in assets and in all othspects, on liquidation, dissolution or windimg of the Company, whether voluntary
involuntary, or any other distribution of the assef the Company among its shareholders for thpqa& of winding up its affairs after
Company has paid out its liabilities. The issuedn@on Shares are not subject to call or assessigéig or any preemptive or conversic
rights. The holders of Common Shares are entitlashe vote for each share on all matters to bedvoh by the shareholders. There ar
provisions for redemption, purchase for cancelfgtsurrender or purchase funds.

To change the rights of holders of stock, wheréhgights are attached to an issued class or sefigisares, section 226 of the Company
requires the consent by a separate resolutioneohdtfiders of the class or series of shares, asatbe may be, requiring a majority of 75%
the votes cast.

Annual General Meetings and Extraordinary Generadtings

The Company Act provides that the Company must halénnual general meeting at least once in evaendar year and not more thar
months after the date that the last annual gengzating was held. If the Company fails to holdaanual general meeting, the Supreme (
of British Columbia may, on the application of astholder of the Company, call or direct an anmesleral meeting. The Company n
give to its members entitled to receive notice gfeaeral meeting not less than 21 dayatice of any general meeting of the Company
those members may waive or reduce the period aéenéidr a particular meeting by unanimous consentriting. The Company Aaequire:
the directors of a reporting company to providehwibtice of a general meeting a form of proxy fee by every member entitled to vot
such meeting as well as an information circulartaiming prescribed information regarding the mattebe dealt with and conduct of

general meeting. Prior to each annual general inteetf its members the directors of the Company tnplace comparative financ
statements, made up to a date not more than 6 sdattore the annual general meeting, the repothefauditor, and the report of

directors to the members.

The directors of the Company may, whenever theyfiégeeonvene an extraordinary general meeting.e @n more shareholders of
Company may also requisition an extraordinary ganereeting so long as such shareholders own nettlean 5% of the issued ¢
outstanding shares at the date such shareholdprisiteon an extraordinary general meeting. Afegeiving such requisition, the Compasy’
directors must immediately give notice of the eatdinary general meeting, which must be held wifloir months after the date of deliv
of the requisition to the Company.



Limitations on Ownership of Securiti

There are no limitations on the right to own setgesj imposed by foreign law or by the charter thieo constituent document of the Compe
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Change in Control of Company

No provision of the Compars Articles, charter or bylaws would have the effefctlelaying, deferring, or preventing a changeantrol o
the Company, and operate only with respect to @ereacquisition or corporate restructuring of @@npany or any of its subsidiaries.

Ownership Threshold
There are no bylaw provisions governing the owniprireshold above which shareholder ownership restisclosed.
Changes to Capital

There are no conditions imposed by the Compamemorandum and articles governing changes inapial where such conditions are m
stringent than is required by the law of Britishl@uobia.

Material Contracts

The following material contracts have been entéméalby the Company within the past two years, esgf which may be inspected betw
the hours of 10:00 am and 5:00 p.m. at the heaideofif the Company located at Suite 800, 409 Gtendtreet, Vancouver, Briti
Columbia, V6C 1T2.

(@) Letter agreement dated March 14, 2002 between ¢imnep@ny and GeoActiv Dynamic Geological Servicehwaispect to a potent
sale and acquisition of a specific set of farmstlmm Bushveld Complex of South Africa. This agreemeas terminated effecti
August 15, 2003.

(b) Option Agreement dated April 12, 2002, as amendaduat 14, 2002, between the Company and Wheatoer Rinerals Ltd
whereby Wheaton River can earn up to a 25% intémagbe Shelby Lake and Lac des lles River Progerti

(c) Agency Agreement dated April 24, 2002 with Padifiternational Securities Inc. as lead agent forakéred private placement of
to 4,000,000 Common Shares at $0.25 per CommoreShar

(d) Option agreement dated June 3, 2002, as amende@, 2002, between the Company and Rory Mitcheffrdy Alexander Howar
James Robert Home Whitehouse and Christopher And/hitehouse pursuant to which the Company was gdatfite right to earn
100% interest in two properties located in terthern Limb or Platreef area of the Bushveld Cxmear Johannesburg. -
properties are comprised of the 2,38&tare War Springs Property and the 2,177 hedwarespalk Property, both located on
postulated extension of the Platreef near the PPRatinum Mine operated by Anglo American Platin@orporation Limited. Se
“ltem 4 — Information on the Company, Republic oush Africa Properties”.

(e) Option agreement dated September 9, 2002 betweeGdmpany and Ledig Minerale Regte 909 JQ (Pty) (tcedig Minerale’)
whereby the Company may earn a 55% interest ind &tinerales holdings on the Ledig Farm Property located i \Hester
Bushveld area near Sun City, RSA, approximately Kifinorthwest of Johannesburg. See “ltem ldfermation on the Compar
Republic of South Africa Properties’As at February 28, 2003, the contingencies weresatisfied and the Ledig Agreement
terminated.

) Letter Agreement dated October 17, 2002 betweerCtirapany and East West Resource Corporation anmgrdenterms of tt
March 29, 2000 option agreement on the Pebble Psope
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@) Share Subscription Agreement dated November 262 2@@ween the Company and Active Gold Group Ltdictive Gold”)
pursuant to which the Company acquired 1,461,9@¢eshat an average price of $0.11 per share fotah subscription price
$160,327. This represented approximately a 27%rést in Active Gold at November 30, 2002. Act@eld is related to tf
Company by way of a common director and officerctive Gold’s Republic of South Africa subsidiary, Active Gditoup RS/
(Pty) Limited “AGG RSA") had been working to acquire and successfully pearit000 hectare exploration and developi



project named the Rooderand Gold Project. Theeptag located near the town of Potchefstroom endéintral Witwatersrand Ba:
and is known to host gold bearing conglomerateb@Kimberly Reef Formation, based on the workastmperators. Subsequer
AGG RSA failed to achieve a permit for the Roodédr&old Project and has decided to abandon the qirtsjeough liquidation ar
termination of all existing rights and assets emlato the project. As a result, the Company hagtenr off its investment ar
advances totaling $211,725 at August 31, 2003.

(h) Agency agreement dated November 27, 2002 betwee@dmpany and Pacific International Securities &md Haywood Securiti
Inc. as co-lead agents for a private placemenpdbul,600,000 flow through units at $0.65 per flinmough unit and 3,000,000 non-
flow through units at $0.50 per unit.

0] Joint Venture Agreement dated August 15, 2002 betvibe Company and Africa Wide Mining (Pty) LtdAffica Wide”), a largely
black-owned South African mining company, on thee®gpalk and War Springs Properties. See “ltem Idfermation on th
Company, Republic of South Africa Properties”.

) Option Agreement dated December 13, 2002 betweé-RTA and Marthinus Johannes Erasmus, Casela Boef@iBiyS) BPk
and Limbson Properties CC to purchase 100% of @feh2ctare Elandsfontein property located adjattetite Bafokeng Rasimo
Platinum Mine in the Western Bushveld area of Sd\ftica. See “ltem 4 dnformation on the Company, Republic of South Ad
Properties”.

() Term sheet dated April 21, 2003, as amended Autis003 between the Company and MAG Silver CAAG”) pursuant t
which the Company provides office space and aditnaiige support services to MAG at a cost of $18,0@r month plus expens
MAG is related to the Company by way of commoreciors and officers: R. Michael Jones, Chairmaasigent, Chief Executi
Officer and Director of the Company and Frank Hall€hief Financial Officer and Director of the Coamy. During Fiscal 200
the Company received $38,525 from MAG pursuanhte arrangement. Furthermore, the Company receft@®,000 in findeg
fees in the form of 200,000 MAG shares during Hif203 for assistance in locating mineral propsriie which MAG now he
interests.

()] Lease Expansion and Amending Agreement dated Fgbiita 2003 between the Company and Morguard Rst& Investme
Trust for the expansion of office space at Suité 8@09 Granville Street, Vancouver, B.C.

(m) Amendments dated October 10, 2003 and Novembe&(fR to the Agnew Lake Farm-Agreement among Kaymin Resources |
Platinum Group Metals Ltd. and Pacific North Wesip@al Corp. See “ltem 4 taformation on the Company, The Agnew L
Property, Ontario”.

Exchange Controls

There are no governmental laws, decrees or regofain Canada relating to restrictions on the expoimport of capital, or affecting t
remittance of interest, dividends or other paymémtsonsesident holders of Common Shares. Any remittanéekvidends to United Stat
residents are, however, subject to a 15% withhgldax (5% if the shareholder is a corporation ownat least 10% of the outstand
Common Shares) pursuant to Article X of the reaiptdax treaty between Canada and the United St&es “Taxation”.

Except as provided in tHavestment Canada Aéthe “Act”), which has provisions which govern the acquisitiéra @ontrol block of votin
shares by non-Canadians of a corporation carrying €anadian business, there are no limitationsifapéo the rights of norCanadians
hold or vote the Common Shares under the laws nb@aor the Province of British Columbia or in gmarter documents of the Company.
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The following describes those provisions of the pettinent to an investment in the Company by agemwho is not a Canadian resider
“non-Canadian”).

The Act requires a no@anadian making an investment which would resutheacquisition of control of the Canadian bussnesnotify th
Investment Review Division of Industry Canada, fisderal agency created by the Act; or in the cdsmacquisition of a Canadian busin
the gross value of the assets of which exceedaicdttreshold levels of the business activity ofchhis related to Canadatultural heritac
or national identity, to file an application foview with the Investment Review Division.

The notification procedure involves a brief stataimef information about the investment on a présamtiform, which is required to be fil
with Investment Canada by the investor at any tipeo 30 days following implementation of the intveent. It is intended that investme
requiring only notification will proceed without gernment intervention unless the investment is épecific type of business activity rela
to Canada’s cultural heritage and national identity

If an investment is reviewable under the Act, apligption for review in the form prescribed is ré@ga to be filed with Investment Can:
prior to the investment taking place and the inwestt may not be implemented until the review hasnbeompleted and the Minis
responsible for the Investment Canada Act is setighat the investment is likely to be of net lférie Canada. If the Minister is not satisf



that the investment is likely to be of net bentfiCanada, the noBanadian must not implement the investment ohdfibvestment has be
implemented, may be required to divest himselfaftol of the business that is the subject of thvestment.

The following investments by non-Canadians areestttip notification under the Act:
1. an investment to establish a new Canadian busiaass;
2. an investment to acquire control of a Canadianrass that is not reviewable pursuant to the Act.

The following investments by a non-Canadian argestlto review under the Act:

1. direct acquisitions of control of Canadian busiesswith assets of $5 million or more, unless thguisition is being made by
World Trade Organization (“WTO”") member country @stor (the United States being a member of the WTO)

2. direct acquisitions of control of Canadian busiesssith assets of $172,000,000 or more by a WT@stor;

3. indirect acquisitions of control of Canadian busses with assets of $5 million or more is suchtasspresent more than 50% of

total value of the assets of the entities, the robraf which is being acquired, unless the acdjoisiis being made by a W1
investor, in which case there is no review;

4, indirect acquisitions of control of Canadian busees with assets of $50 million or more even ihsagsets represent less than
or the total value of the assets of the entities, dontrol of which being acquired, unless the @ition is being made by a W1
investor, in which case there is no review; and

5. an investment subject to notification that would otherwise be reviewable if the Canadian busireggages in the activity
publication, distribution or sale for books, mag&s, periodicals, newspapers, film or video recaysli audio or video mus
recordings, or music in print or machine-readabtent

An acquisition is direct if it involves the acquien of control of the Canadian business or ofGenadian parent or grandparent an
acquisition is indirect if it involves the acquieit of control of a norGanadian parent or grandparent of an entity cagrgin the Canadi:
business. Control may be acquired through the aitopri of actual voting control by the acquisitiohvoting shares of a Canadian corporé
or through the acquisition of substantially alltbé assets of the Canadian business. No changetiafy control will be deemed to he
occurred if less than one-third of the voting cohtf a Canadian corporation is acquired by ansitwe
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A WTO investor, as defined in the Act, includesiadividual who is a national of a member countntteé World Trade Organization or w
has the right of permanent residence in relatiothtd WTO member, a government or government agenh@ WTO investocontrollec
corporation, limited partnership, trust or jointere and a corporation, limited partnership, targbint venture that is neither WTivesto
controlled or Canadian controlled of which twords of its board of directors, general partnerstrustees, as the case may be, are
combination of Canadians and WTO investors.

The higher thresholds for WTO investors do not gpplthe Canadian business engages in activitieseittain sectors such as urani
financial services, transportation services or camications.

The Act specifically exempts certain transactioren® either notification or review. Included amotids category of transactions is
acquisition of voting shares or other voting ingtseby any person in the ordinary course of thasqes business as a trader or deal
securities.

The Regulations under the Act specifies the rensediffences and punishment applicable. Sectiost&@s that "When the Minister belie
that a noncanadian, contrary to this act (a) has failed i@ giotice; or (b) has implemented an investmenthvlis prohibited”, then tt
Minister may send a demand requiring the defaulid@emedied and if this demand is not compliedh vitie Minister may apply for a Co
Order require divestiture or other remedies, ascthmumstances require. Civil penalties apply fion-compliance with any provision, a
criminal penalties may also apply.

Taxation

Canadian Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following is a discussion of the material Caaadederal income tax consequences applicablehioléger of Common Shares who |
resident of the United States and who is not alezgiof Canada and who does not use or hold, amot ideemed to use or hold, his Comi
Shares in connection with carrying on a businesS€dnada (a “non-resident holder’Accordingly, shareholders and prospective inve
should consult their own tax advisors for adviogareing their individual tax consequenc



This summary is based upon the current provisiohghe Income Tax Act (Canada) (the “ITA”Yhe regulations thereunder (
“Regulations”),the current publicly announced administrative asskasing policies of Revenue Canada, Taxationakmsgecific proposa
(the “Tax Proposals”fo amend the ITA and Regulations announced by tiaskér of Finance (Canada) prior to the date Heréidhis
summary assumes that the Tax Proposals will betemhat their form as of the date of this Annual Bep

Dividends

Dividends paid on the Common Shares to a non-resit@der will be subject to withholding tax. T@anadad.S. Income Tax Conventi
(1980) (the “Treaty)provides that the normal 25% withholding tax rateler the ITA is reduced to 15% on dividends paidsbares of
corporation resident in Canada (such as the Conmgariyeneficial owners of the dividends who aradests of the United States, and i
provides for a further reduction of this rate to Bfftere the beneficial owner of the dividends iogporation that is a resident of the Un
States which owns at least 10% of the voting shafréfse corporation paying the dividend.

Capital Gains

Under the ITA, a taxpayes’capital gain or capital loss from a dispositidm&ommon Share is the amount, if any, by whichgroceeds
disposition exceed (or are exceeded by) the agtgarfahis adjusted cost base of the share and mabko expenses of disposition. Three-
quarters of a capital gain (the “taxable capitahas included in income, and three-quarters afpital loss in a year (thaltowable capite
loss”) is deductible from taxable capital gainslizesl in the same year. The amount by which aedt@ders allowable capital loss excel

his taxable capital gains in a year may be dedufited a taxable capital gain realized by the shaldgr in the three previous or ¢
subsequent year, subject to certain restrictiortkércase of a corporate shareholder and subjedjtistment when the capital gains inclu
rate in the year of disposition differs from thelirsion rate in the year the deduction is claimed.
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A non+esident of Canada is not subject to tax undedTiein respect of a capital gain realized upon tligposition of a share of a put
corporation unless the share represents “taxabiadian propertyto the holder thereof. The Company is a publipooation for purposes
the ITA and a Common Share will be taxable Canagiaperty to a nomesident holder if, at any time during the periddfige year:
immediately preceding the disposition, the noneest holder, persons with whom the non-residerdérotlid not deal at arm’length, or th
non-resident holder and persons with whom he diddeal at arns length together owned not less than 25% of theeid shares of any cli
of shares of the Company.

Where a norresident holder who is an individual ceased todstdent in Canada, and at the time he ceased aoddamadian resident elec
to have his Common Shares treated as taxable Ganpdbperty, he will be subject to Canadian tayaoy capital gain realized on disposit
of the Common Shares, subject to the relieving igions of the Treaty described below. The Commbar& may also be taxable Cana
property to a holder if the holder acquired thermmspant to certain “rollovertransactions. This would include transactions urgkxtions 8
and 87 of the ITA, which apply to share for shard amalgamation transactions.

Where a U.S. resident holder realizes a capital gaia disposition of Common Shares that constiasable Canadian property, the Tre
relieves the non-resident shareholder from ligbftir Canadian tax on such capital gains unless:

(@) the value of the shares is derived principally frtm@al property”in Canada, including the right to explore for oplkit natura
resources and rights to amounts computed by referenproduction from natural resources. It is astjon of fact as to whether-
value of the Common Shares results principally freal property in Canada. Although a tax opinientbis matter has not be
obtained, given the nature of the Company's busiaes its stage of development, we have concludadtie value of our sha
would likely fall into this category;

(b) the nonresident holder is an individual who was residen€anada for not less than 120 months during aripgpef 20 consecuti\
years preceding, and at any time during the 10syimamediately preceding, the disposition and thevehwere owned by him wt
he ceased to be resident in Canada or are propgrstituted for property that was owned at thaetior

() the shares formed part of the business property ‘permanent establishmentt pertained to a fixed base used for the purpd
performing independent personal services thatlaestiolder has or had in Canada within the 12 nsomtbceding the disposition.

Notwithstanding the potential exemption from Caaadiax provided under the Treaty, where a-resident of Canada disposes of Com
Share that are taxable Canadian property, the esident is required to file a Canadian income &mrn in respect of such dispositions.

United States Federal Income Tax Consequences
The following is a discussion of all material UnitStates Federal income tax consequences, undentilaw, that may be applicable t

U.S. Holder (as defined below) of Common SharethefRegistrant. This discussion does not addiépstentially relevant Federal incol
tax matters and it does not address consequencaligodo persons subject to special provisionsedfleral income tax law, such as tf



described below as excluded from the definitioradd.S. Holder. In addition, this discussion does cover any state, local or foreign
consequences. (See "Canadian Federal Income TrasseGoences" above.)

The following discussion is based upon the sectiohthe Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amenddtie date hereof (the "Code
Treasury Regulations, published Internal Revenugi&e ("IRS") rulings, published administrative gamns of the IRS and court decisic
that are currently applicable, any or all of whimbuld be materially and adversely changed, possibly retroactive basis, at any time,
addition, this discussion does not consider them! effects, both adverse and beneficial, of fayre legislation, which, if enacted, co
be applied, possibly on a retroactive basis, atteng. Shareholders and prospective investorsidremnsult their own tax advisors for ady
regarding their individual tax consequences.
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U.S. information reporting requirements may applthwespect to the payment of dividends to U.S.ddad of the Company's shares. Ui
Treasury regulations currently in effect, noorporate holders may be subject to backup withhgldt a 31% rate with respect to divide
when such holder (1) fails to furnish or certifg@rect taxpayer identification number to the payothe required manner; and (2) is noti
by the IRS that it has failed to report paymentintérest or dividends properly; or (3) fails, undertain circumstances, to certify that it
been notified by the IRS that it is subject to hgrkithholding for failure to report interest anidtidend payments.

U.S. Holders

As used herein, a "U.S. Holder" is a holder of Camrghares of the Registrant who or which is aaitiar individual resident (or is treatec
a citizen or individual resident) of the United t8&for federal income tax purposes, a corporatiopartnership created or organized
treated as created or organized for federal incax@urposes) in or under the laws of the UniteteStor any political subdivision thereof
a trust or estate the income of which is includabliis gross income for federal income tax purgos@hout regard to its source, if, (i) a cc
within the United States is able to exercise primsupervision over the administration of the traistl (i) one or more United States trus
have the authority to control all substantial diecis of the trust. For purposes of this discussiot).S. Holder does not include pers
subject to special provisions of Federal incomeléax, such as tagxempt organizations, qualified retirement plamsarfcial institutions
insurance companies, real estate investment treegsilated investment companies, brollealers and Holders who acquired their s
through the exercise of employee stock optiongteravise as compensation.

Distributions on Common Shares of the Regist

U.S. Holders receiving dividend distributions (unding constructive dividends) with respect to ComnStares of the Registrant are reqt
to include in gross income for United States Fddat@mme tax purposes the gross amount of suchlmisions to the extent that the Regist
has current or accumulated earnings and profithhout reduction for any Canadian income tax witdhigbm such distributions. Su
Canadian tax withheld may be credited, subjectettain limitations, against the U.S. Holder's Uditgtates Federal income tax liability
alternatively, may be deducted in computing the. l8lder's United States Federal taxable incoméhbge who itemize deductions. (:
more detailed discussion at "Foreign Tax Creditowg. To the extent that distributions exceed entror accumulated earnings and profil
the Registrant, they will be treated first as ameof capital up to the U.S. Holder's adjusteddasthe Common Shares and thereafter as
from the sale or exchange of the Common Sharesfef@ntial tax rates for longrm capital gains are applicable to a U.S. Holdgich is au
individual, estate or trust. There are currentypneferential tax rates for long-term capital gdior a U.S. Holder, which is a corporation.

Dividends paid on the Common Shares of the Registréll not be eligible for the dividends receiveé@duction provided to corporatic
receiving dividends from certain United States ooations. A U.S. Holder which is a corporation mawyder certain circumstances,
entitled to a 70% deduction of the United Statas@® portion of dividends received from the Registr(unless the Registrant qualifies
"foreign personal holding company" or a "passiveeiign investment company”, as defined below) ifhsut.S. Holder owns shai
representing at least 10% of the voting power asdes of the Registrant. The availability of thisddiction is subject to several comg
limitations, which are beyond the scope of thicdssion.

Foreign Tax Credi

A U.S. Holder who pays (or has withheld from distiions) Canadian income tax with respect to theership of Common Shares of
Registrant may be entitled, at the option of th8.Wolder, to either a deduction or a tax creditsiach foreign tax paid or withheld. It will
more advantageous to claim a credit because a cegllices United States Federal income taxes atiax-@or-dollar basis, while a deducti
merely reduces the taxpayer's income subject to Téms election is made on a yearywar basis and applies to all foreign taxes paidok
withheld from) the U.S. Holder during that yearhefe are significant and complex limitations, whagply to the credit, among which is
general limitation that the credit cannot exceeal phoportionate shares of the U.S. Holder's Un8&ates income tax liability that the U
Holder's foreign source income bears to his owitsldwide taxable income. In the determinationtloé application of this limitation, tl
various items of income and deduction must be ifledsnto foreign and domestic sources. Compieles govern this classification proce

There are further limitations on the foreign tamdit for certain types of income such as "passigeme”, "high withholding tax interes

"financial services income", "shipping income", arattain other classifications of
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income. The availability of the foreign tax credihd the application of the limitations on the dremte fact specific and holders ¢
prospective holders of Common Shares of the Regisghould consult their own tax advisors regardisjy individual circumstances.

Disposition of Common Shares of the Regist

A U.S. Holder will recognize gain or loss upon Hade of Common Shares of the Registrant equaktdlifference, if any, between the amc
of cash plus the fair market value of any propeegeived, and the Holder's tax basis in the ComBiwares of the Registrant. This gail
loss will be capital gain or loss if the Common &isaare a capital asset in the hands of the U.Bledanless the Registrant were to becol
controlled foreign corporation. For the effect the Registrant of becoming a controlled corporatsee "Controlled Foreign Corporat
Status" below. Any capital gain will be a shontateor longterm capital gain or loss depending upon the hgldieriod of the U.S. Holde
Gains and losses are netted and combined accotalingecial rules in arriving at the overall capgain or loss for a particular tax ye
Deductions for net capital losses are subjecigifecant limitations. For U.S. Holders which aralividuals, any unused portion of such
capital loss may be carried over to be used irr f@be years until such net capital loss is thereklgausted. For U.S. Holders, which
corporations (other than corporations subject tocBapter S of the Code), an unused net capitainhagsbe carried back three years fron
loss year and carried forward five years from theslyear to be offset against capital gains unthsiet capital loss is thereby exhausted.

Other Considerations for U.S. Holders

In the following circumstances, the above sectiohshis discussion may not describe the UnitedeStétederal income tax conseque
resulting from the holding and disposition of Commfhares of the Registrant:

Foreign Personal Holding Compai

If at any time during a taxable year more than Sff%he total combined voting power or the totalueabf the Registrant's outstanding sh
is owned, actually or constructively, by five omfer individuals who are citizens or residents @& thnited States and 60% or more of
Registrant's gross income for such year was derir@d certain passive sources (e.g., from dividerat®ived from its subsidiaries),
Registrant would be treated as a "foreign persbolling company.” In that event, U.S. Holders thalid Common Shares of the Regist
would be required to include in income for suchnybair allocable portion of the Registrant's passhcome which would have been tre:
as a dividend had that passive income actually destributed. To the best knowledge of the Regigirit is not and has never been a Fol
Personal Holding Company.

Foreign Investment Compa

If 50% or more of the combined voting power or kotalue of the Registrant's outstanding shareshatd, actually or constructively,

citizens or residents of the United States, Un8émtes domestic partnerships or corporations, tatessor trusts other than foreign estats
trusts (as defined by the Code Section 7701(a)(H)Y the Registrant is found to be engaged priynari the business of investir
reinvesting, or trading in securities, commaodities,any interest therein, it is possible that thegiRtrant might be treated as a "fore
investment company" as defined in Section 124thefGode, causing all or part of any gain realizga lJ.S. Holder selling or exchang
Common Shares of the Registrant to be treateddasasy income rather than capital gains. To the kaowledge of the Registrant, it is
and has never been a Foreign Investment Company.

Passive Foreign Investment Compi

A U.S. Holder who holds stock in a foreign corpamatduring any year in which such corporation diedi as a passive foreign investrnr
company ("PFIC") is subject to U.S. federal inca@reation of that foreign corporation under onevad alternative tax methods at the elec
of each such U.S. Holder. The directors of theifemnt believe that the Company has and doesfyuadi a Passive Foreign Investr
Company for U.S. shareholders.
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Section 1296 of the Code defines a PFIC as a cafiparthat is not formed in the United States dodany taxable year, either (i) 75%
more of its gross income is "passive income," whigtiudes interest, dividends and certain rentsragdlties or (ii) the average percent:
by value (or, if the company is a controlled foreigprporation or makes an election, adjusted taisheof its assets that produce or are
for the production of "passive income" is 50% oreoFor taxable years of U.S. persons beginniteg &ecember 31, 1997, and for tax y:



of foreign corporations ending with or within suietx years, the Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 provittest publicly traded corporations m
apply this test on a fair market value basis oflijze Registrant believes that it is a PFIC.

As a PFIC, each U. S. Holder must determine undectwof the alternative tax methods it wishes totdseed. Under one method, a L
Holder who elects in a timely manner to treat thegjiBtrant as a Qualified Electing Fund ("QEF")dained in the Code, (an "Electing L
Holder") will be subject, under Section 1293 of tbede, to current federal income tax for any tagagladar in which the Registrant's quali
as a PFIC on his pro-rata share of the Registréipt'set capital gain" (the excess of net longsterapital gain over net shagrm capite
loss), which will be taxed as lorigrm capital gain to the Electing U.S. Holder aid"¢rdinary earnings” (the excess of earnings prafits
over net capital gain), which will be taxed as oedy income to the Electing U.S. Holder, in eackecdor the U.S. Holder's taxable yee
which (or with which) the Registrant taxable yead® regardless of whether such amounts are actliattibuted.

A QEF election also allows the Electing U.S. Holtte(i) treat any gain realized on the dispositidrhis Common Shares (or deemed t
realized on the pledge of his Common Shares) asatggin; (ii) treat his share of the Registran&s capital gain, if any, as lorigrm capite
gain instead of ordinary income, and (iii) eithgoid interest charges resulting from PFIC stattsgather (see discussion of interest ch
below), or make an annual election, subject toagerimitations, to defer payment of current taxeshis share of the Registrant's an
realized net capital gain and ordinary earninggesitphowever, to an interest charge. If the Hhect.S. Holder is not a corporation, suct
interest charge would be treated as "personalastéthat is not deductible at all in taxable ydaginning after 1990.

The procedure a U.S. Holder must comply with in mgla timely QEF election will depend on whethee trear of the election is the fi
year in the U.S. Holder's holding period in whidte tRegistrant is a PFIC. If the U.S. Holder ma&eQEF election in such first ye
(sometimes referred to as a "Pedigreed QEF Elégtitmen the U.S. Holder may make the QEF elechgrsimply filing the appropria
documents at the time the U.S. Holder files itsregtarn for such first year. If, however, the Regint qualified as a PFIC in a prior year, |
in addition to filing documents, the U.S. Holder shalso elect to recognize as an "excess distabutfi) under the rules of Section 1:
(discussed below), any gain that he would otherngsegnize if the U.S. Holder sold his stock ondpglication date or (ii) if the Registri
is a controlled foreign corporation ("CFC"), the Ither's pro rata share of the corporation's earnamgs profits. (But see "Elimination
Overlap Between Subpart F Rules and PFIC ProviSjorisither the deemed sale election or the deediedend election will result in tt
U.S. Holder being deemed to have made a timely €l&tion.

With respect to a situation in which a Pedigreed=@fection is made, if the Registrant no longerlifjga as a PFIC in a subsequent y
normal Code rules and not the PFIC rules will apply

If a U.S. Holder has not made a QEF Election attang (a "Nonelecting U.S. Holder"), then special taxation rulesler Section 1291 of t
Code will apply to (i) gains realized on the distios (or deemed to be realized by reason of ag#eaf his Common Shares and (ii) cer
"excess distributions”, as specially defined, by [Registrant.

A Non-electing U.S. Holder would be required to jpate all gains realized on the disposition of hisntnon Shares and all exc
distributions over the entire holding period foe tBommon Shares. All gains or excess distributédiogated to prior years of the U.S. Hol
(other than years prior to the first taxable yefathe Registrant during such U.S. Holder's holdiegiod and beginning after January 1, 1
for which it was a PFIC) would be taxed at the leigtttax rate for each such prior year applicablertiinary income. The Noelecting U.<
Holder also would be liable for interest on theefgwing tax liability for each such prior year cddtad as if such liability had been due v
respect to each such prior year. A Naaeting U.S. holder that is not a corporation nitesit this interest charge as "personal intenghtth,
as discussed above, is wholly ndeductible. The balance of the gain or the exdessbution will be treated as ordinary incometlie yea
of the disposition or distribution, and no interelsarge will be incurred with respect to such bedan

141

If the Registrant is a PFIC for any taxable yearirdywhich a Norelecting U.S. Holder holds Common Shares, thenRégistrant wil
continue to be treated as a PFIC with respect¢h &lommon Shares, even if it is no longer by dé@inia PFIC. A Norelecting U.S. Holde
may terminate this deemed PFIC status by electngtognize gain (which will be taxed under theesutliscussed above for N&mhecting
U.S. Holders) as if such Common Shares had bedrosathe last day of the last taxable year for Whiievas a PFIC.

Under Section 1291(f) of the Code, the Departméth® Treasury has issued proposed regulationsatbald treat as taxable certain trans
of PFIC stock by Norelecting U.S. Holders that are not otherwise tasedh as gifts, exchanges pursuant to corporatgarizations, ar
transfers at death.

If a U.S. Holder makes a QEF Election that is nBedigreed Election (i.e., it is made after thstfyrear during which the Registrant is a F
and the U.S. Holder holds shares of the Regist{antNonPedigreed Election"), the QEF rules apply prospebtibut do not apply to yez
prior to the year in which the QEF first becomeedive. U.S. Holders should consult their taxiadks regarding the specific conseque
of making a Non-Pedigreed QEF Election.

Certain special adverse rules will apply with respge the Common Shares while the Registrant iBl&€ Rvhether or not it is treated as a G
For example under Section 1297(b)(6) of the Cadeir{ effect prior to the Taxpayer Relief Act 009, a U.S. Holder who uses PFIC st



as security for a loan (including a margin loan)i,veixcept as may be provided in regulations, kbated as having made a taxable dispos
of such stock.

The foregoing discussion is based on currentlycéffe provisions of the Code, existing and propossglilations thereunder, and cur
administrative rulings and court decisions, alludfich are subject to change. Any such change caffiddtt the validity of this discussion.

addition, the implementation of certain aspectshef PFIC rules requires the issuance of regulatignish in many instances have not kt
promulgated and which may have retroactive effd@ttere can be no assurance that any of these @ispasitl be enacted or promulgated,

if so, the form they will take or the effect thaey may have on this discussion. Accordingly, dod to the complexity of the PFIC rul
U.S. Holders of the Registrant are strongly urgeddnsult their own tax advisors concerning thedotf these rules on their investmer
the Registrant. For a discussion of the impadhefTaxpayer Relief Act of 1997 on a U.S. Holdead?FIC, see "Mark-tdAarket Electiol
For PFIC Stock Under the Taxpayer Relief Act of '98nd "Elimination of Overlap Between Subpart Hd3wand PFIC Provisions" below.

Mark-to-Market Election for PFIC Stock Under the Taxpay Relief Act of 1997

The Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 provides that a.UHSIder of a PFIC may make a marksmrket election with respect to the stock of
PFIC if such stock is marketable as defined beldis provision is designed to provide a curremugsion provision for persons that
Non-Electing Holders. Under the election, any excdgb@ fair market value of the PFIC stock at thesel of the tax year over the Hold
adjusted basis in the stock is included in the Eiiddincome. The Holder may deduct any excesseoatljusted basis of the PFIC stock
its fair market value at the close of the tax yeldowever, deductions are limited to the net markaairket gains on the stock that the Ho
included in income in prior tax years, or so calledreversed inclusions."

For purposes of the election, PFIC stock is matitetd it is regularly traded on (1) a national seties exchange that is registered with
SEC, (2) the national market system establishe@u8dction 11A of the Securities Exchange Act &41r (3) an exchange or market
the IRS determines has rules sufficient to endwuaethe market price represents legitimate anddéainmarket value.

A Holder's adjusted basis of PFIC stock is incrdalsg the income recognized under the markatrket election and decreased by
deductions allowed under the election. If a U.Blddr owns PFIC stock indirectly through a foreamtity, the basis adjustments apply to
basis of the PFIC stock in the hands of the foreigtity for the purpose of applying the PFIC ruleghe tax treatment of the U.S. owt
Similar basis adjustments are made to the badlseqgbroperty through which the U.S. persons hae¢dRFIC stock.
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Income recognized under the markaarket election and gain on the sale of PFIC switk respect to which an election is made is treai
ordinary income. Deductions allowed under thet@eacand loss on the sale of PFIC with respect Ihictv an election is made, to the ex
that the amount of loss does not exceed the net-tnanarket gains previously included, are treated dgary losses. The U.S. or fore
source of any income or losses is determined the iamount were a gain or loss from the sale aksitothe PFIC.

If PFIC stock is owned by a CFC (discussed beldwd,CFC is treated as a U.S. person that may niekmark-tomarket election. Amour
includable in the CFC's income under the electimnteeated as foreign personal holding companynrgoand deductions are allocabli
foreign personal holding company income.

The above provisions apply to tax years of U.Ss@es beginning after December 31, 1997, and tyé¢axs of foreign corporations end
with or within such tax years of U.S. persons.

The rules of Code Section 1291 applicable to nolifipch funds do not apply to a U.S. Holder for tg&ars for which a mark-tovarke
election is in effect. If Code Section 1291 is lggb and a mark-tanarket election was in effect for any prior tax yethe U.S. Holder
holding period for the PFIC stock is treated asifi@igg immediately after the last tax year of tihecdon. However, if a taxpayer make
mark-tomarket election for PFIC stock that is a nonquediffund after the beginning of a taxpayer's holdimgiod for such stock,
coordination rule applies to ensure that the tagpdpes not avoid the interest charge with resjpeatounts attributable to periods before
election.

Controlled Foreign Corporation Status

If more than 50% of the voting power of all classéstock or the total value of the stock of thegR&ant is owned, directly or indirectly,
U.S. Holders, each of whom own 10% or more of thtaltcombined voting power of all classes of stofkhe Registrant, the Registr
would be treated as a "controlled foreign corpordtior "CFC" under Subpart F of the Code. Thissifécation would bring into effect ma
complex results including the required inclusionsigh 10% U.S. Holders in income of their pro stares of "Subpart F income" (as defi
by the Code) of the Registrant and the Registraat'aings invested in "U.S. property” (as defingdh®e Code). In addition, under Sec
1248 of the Code, gain from the sale or exchangéamfimon Shares of the Registrant by such a 10% Hbfler of Registrant at any tir
during the five year period ending with the saleerchange is treated as ordinary dividend incont@ecextent of earnings and profits of
Registrant attributable to the stock sold or exgealh Because of the complexity of Subpart F, aechbse the Registrant may never
CFC, a more detailed review of these rules is béyarthe scope of this discussic



Elimination of Overlap Between Subpart F Rules BRIC Provisions

Under the Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997, a PFIC ikatlso a CFC will not be treated as a PFIC wipeet to certain 10% U.S. Holders.
the exception to apply, (i) the corporation mustab€FC within the meaning of section 957(a) of @wle and (ii) the U.S. Holder must
subject to the current inclusion rules of Subpawtih respect to such corporation (i.e., the U.8lddr is a "United States Shareholder,"
"Controlled Foreign Corporation,” above). The et only applies to that portion of a U.S. Holdeholding period beginning af
December 31, 1997. For that portion of a Unitezte&dt Holder before January 1, 1998, the ordinatZ RRd QEF rules continue to apply.

As a result of this new provision, if the Registrarere ever to become a CFC, U.S. Holders who amectly taxed on their pro rata share
Subpart F income of a PFIC which is also a CFC wilt be subject to the PFIC provisions with resgecthe same stock if they he
previously made a Pedigreed QEF Election. The R¥ft®isions will however continue to apply to PRBELC U.S. Holders for any periods
which they are not subject to Subpart F and to Bi&ders that did not make a Pedigreed QEF Eleatioless the U.S. Holder elects
recognize gain on the PFIC shares held in the Ragisas if those shares had been sold.

Dividends and Paying Agent

Not applicable
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Statement by Expert

Not applicable

Documents on Displa

The material contracts listed herein may be ingzebetween the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.thedtead office of the Company loce
at Suite 800, 409 Granville Street, Vancouver,ighiColumbia.

Subsidiary Information

The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary incorgorainder the laws of The Republic of South Africader the name Platinum Gr¢
Metals (RSA) (Proprietary) Limited (“PTM-RSA”). Bhregistered and records offices of PTM-RSA arattedt at 4" Floor, Aloe Grove, 18
Louis Botha Avenue, Houghton Estate, Johannesi20@0, South Africa. The principal business addisBTM-RSA is Suite 800, 4(
Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6T2L

Item 11 — Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

Not applicable

Item 12 — Description of Securities Other than Equy Securities
Not applicable
Part 11

Item 13 — Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delingencies

Not applicable

Item 14 — Material Modifications to the Rights of ®curity Holders and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable

Part 1l



Iltem 15 — Controls and Procedures

The directors of the Company are elected annuailtl leold office until the next annual general megtii the members of the Company
until their successors in office are duly electedgpointed. The Company does not have an execatinmittee. All directors are elected
a one-year term. All officers serve at the pleasifrthe Board.

The Companys Board of Directors has two committees, the A@dimmittee and the Compensation Committee. The raesnif the Aud
and Compensation Committees do not have any figesis for holding their positions, are appointed asplaced from time to time
resolution of the Board of Directors and do noeree any separate remuneration for acting as meqndfehe committee.
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The Audit Committee, comprised of Barry Smee, IsioLean and Douglas Hurst, has the responsibilityeviewing with the Company’
Auditor all financial statements to be submittechtoannual general meeting of the shareholderseo€ompany, prior to their considera
by the Board of Directors. Section 187(1) of thenipany Act requires the directors of a reportinmpany to elect from among their num
a committee composed of not fewer than three direcbf whom a majority must not be officers or éogpes of the company or an affili
of the company. Of the members of the audit cotemjtBarry Smee is Corporate Secretary and Direstdriain McLean and Douglas Ht
are independent directors.

On December 30, 2003, management concluded itsiaiah of the effectiveness of our disclosure aulstand procedures. As of that d
the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdricial Officer concluded that the Company maintafisctive disclosure controls &
procedures relating to transactions, assets, itielsil accounting and other records and public mémp and disclosure that ensure informa
required to be disclosed in the Company's reportieuthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is reahrgeocessed, summarized and repc
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sudad forms. Specifically, the disclosure contanisl procedures assure that informatic
accumulated and communicated to the Company's rearay, including its Chief Executive Officer andi€fhFinancial Officer, &
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure. There have been no significhahges in the Company's internal con
or in other factors that could significantly affélsese controls subsequent to the date of managsnegaluation.

Iltem 16 — Reserved

Item 16A — Audit Committee Financial Expert

The board of directors has determined that theke fisancial expert on its audit committee: lairclMan, Director of the Company. |
McLean has an M.B.A. from Harvard Business Schaal a B.Sc (Eng.) in Mining from the Imperial Coliegf Science and Technolc
(London, England). In addition to his educatiorr, McLean has gained relevant experience actinha£hief Operating Officer of seve
private high technology companies since 1995 antiea¥ice President of Operations at Ballard Po8ystems from 1993 to 1995.

Iltem 16B — Code of Ethics

The Company has a Code of Business Conduct (thee'Gohat applies to the Chief Executive Officer and e€htinancial Officer of th
Company that includes provisions covering confliofsinterest, ethical conduct, compliance with égadle government laws, rules
regulations, and accountability for adherence ® @ode. A copy of the Code is posted on the Conigawgbsite. Any waiver of al
provision of the Code granted to a Senior Officaynonly be granted by the full Board of Directorsits Audit Committee. If a waiver
granted, information concerning the waiver willfiested on the Company’s website www.platinumgroupfasetfor a period of 12 montt
A copy of the Code of Ethics may be obtained ftbmSecretary of the Company at no charge uporestqu

Item 16C — Principal Accountant Fees and Services

(@) Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed for professional serviegslered by the Company’s principal accountantttier audit of the Compang’annue
financial statements for the fiscal years endedust@1, 2003 and 2002 included in the Company’'snBa@0F during those fiscal years wi
$30,000 and $28,486, respectively.

(b) Audit Related Fees

The Company incurred fees of $16,642 during thé ta® fiscal years for assurance and related sesvizy the Compang’ principa
accountant that were reasonably related to the@peence of the audit or review of the Com’s financial statement
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(©) Tax Fees

The Company incurred fees of $nil during the lasi fiscal years for professional services rendéngdhe Company principal accounta
for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

(d) All Other Fees

The Company incurred other fees of $nil during il two fiscal years for products and servicedeeed by the Company’principa
accountant.

Item 16D — Exemptions from the Listing Standards fo Audit Committees

Not applicable

Item 16E — Purchases of Equity Securities by the $sier and Affiliated Purchasers

There were no purchases made by or on behalf af tinepany or any “affiliated purchaser” of the Comya equity securities.

Part IV

Item 17 — Financial Statements
See the Consolidated Financial Statements and Exligied in Item 19 hereof and filed as partto§tAnnual Report.
These financial statements were prepared in acooedavith accounting principles generally acceptedCanada. Differences betw

accounting principles generally accepted in Caratthin the United States, as applicable to the Gmmp@re set forth in Note 14 to
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

Iltem 18 — Financial Statements

Not applicable

Item 19 — Exhibits
(@) Financial Statements

1. The audited consolidated financial statements wiriclude the consolidated balance sheets of thep@ognas at August 31, 2C
and 2002 and statements of loss and cash flowtbdéoyears ended August 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001théthotes thereto.

(b)  Exhibits

1.1 Certificate of Incorporation, Name Changes andchet/By-Laws of New Millennium Metals Corporation
- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 1999 AhRegport --
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1.2 Certificate of Incorporation, Certificate of Amalgation, Name Changes and Articles/By-Laws of PlatirGroup Metals Ltd.
- Incorporated by Reference to Forn-F 2001 Annual Repo--



2. Instruments defining the rights of holders of eguit debt securities being registered: Not Apjiilea

3. Voting Trust Agreements: Not Applicable

4. Material Contracts:

4.1 Option Agreement dated March 27, 2000 as amendéob&c31, 2000, between Platinum Group Metals atdl Canadian Gold
Dragon Resources Corporation in respect of thetShagris Property. See “ltem 4laformation on the Company, Lac Des
Project, Ontario”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2001 AhReport --

4.2 Option agreement dated effective May 5, 2000 batwéew Millennium Metals Corporation as the optiosee East West Resou
Corp. and Maple Minerals Inc. as the optionors pans to which the Company was granted the solecanltisive right and option
acquire up to a 60% interest in and to the Lac EsRiver Property. See “ltem 4lnformation on the Company, Lac Des
Project”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2000 AhReport --

4.3 Option Agreement dated June 28, 2000, as amende@8u2000, between New Millennium Metals Corpamatas the optionee a
New Claymore Resources Ltd. as the optionor putsigawhich the Company was granted the sole antusixe right and option
acquire up to a 60% interest in and to the Shelalel Property near Thunder Bay, Ontario. See “lem Information on th
Company, Lac Des lles Project”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2000 AhReport --

4.4 Option Agreement dated August 15, 2000, as ameAdegist 16, 2001, between New Millennium Metals Qogtion and Pacif
North West Capital Corp. pursuant to which PFN raaguire 50% of all of the Compasytights and interests in the Agnew L
Property. See "ltem 4 — Information on the Compdarme Agnew Lake Property, Ontario".

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2001 AhReport --

4.5 Heads of Agreement dated December 19, 2000 purdoawhich New Millennium Metals Corporation and RiacNorth Wes
Capital Corp. proposed to option a 65% intereshinAgnew Lake Property to Kaymin Resources Ltde Stem 4 -nformation ot
the Company — The Agnew Lake Property, Ontario e-Das lles Project”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2000 AhiReport --

4.6 Escrow Agreement dated February 14, 2001 betweatin®in Group Metals Ltd., Pacific Corporate Trugintpany and PTG’
Principals. See "ltem 7 — Major Shareholders aeldhted Party Transactions".

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2001 AhiReport --

4.7 Management Services Agreement dated February 201 Metween Platinum Group Metals Ltd. and R. Mith3enes fo
management and administrative services. See “Bem Directors, Senior Management and Employees” 'digin 7 — Major
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions".

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2001 AhReport --

4.8 Management Services Agreement dated February 27, Bétween Platinum Group Metals Ltd. and Dennisc@ar geological an
exploration management services. See “ltem 6 edirs, Senior Management and Employees” and "fteaMajor Shareholde
and Related Party Transactions".

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2001 AhReport --
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4.9 Farmin Agreement dated May 25, 2001 among Kaymin Ressuktd., New Millennium Metals Corporation and fladNorth Wes
Capital Corp. which sets out the definitive earierms and legally binding obligations of the tfgs with respect to the Agnew L:
Property. See “ltem 4 — Information on the Compdrhe Agnew Lake Property, Ontario”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2000 AhReport --

4.10 Lease Agreement dated September 20, 2001 betwagnuph Group Metals Ltd. and Morguard Real Estateestment Trust for tl

lease of office space located at Suite 800 - 4Gth@He Street, Vancouver, BC.
-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2001 AhReport --
411 Memorandum of Understanding dated October 21, 20@dng New Millennium Metals Corporation, Pacific itoWest Capits

Corp. and ProAm Explorations Corporation pursuamwhich NMM and PFN were granted the sole exclusigiet and option to ea
a 100% interest in and to three claim blocks irdkta the Agnew Lake Property. See “ltem #formation on the Company, T
Agnew Lake Property, Ontario”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Forrr-F 2001 Annual Repo--
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4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

Letter agreement dated October 22, 2001 between M#lennium Metals Corporation and Platinum Groupetslls Ltd., whic
proposed the terms of the Amalgamation. See “Timal§amation”.
-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2001 AhReport --

Amalgamation Agreement dated as of December 191 2f¥iween Platinum Group Metals Ltd. and New Mitieim Metal:
Corporation. See “The Amalgamation”.
-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2001 AhReport --

Agency Agreement dated April 24, 2002 between Rlati Group Metals Ltd. and Pacific International Béies Inc. as lead age
for a brokered private placement of up to 4,000,00hmon Shares at $0.25 per Common Share.
-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2002 AhReport --

Option agreement dated June 3, 2002, as amendg®,JaD02, between Platinum Group Metals Ltd. amdyRMitchell, Jeffre
Alexander Howard, James Robert Home Whitehouse Glmistopher Andrew Whitehouse pursuant to which @mmpany we
granted the right to earn a 100% interest in twapprties located in the Northern Limb or Platreefaof the Bushveld Complex n
Johannesburg. The properties are comprised 02 ,8@86hectare War Springs Property and the 2,177 hedtarespalk Propert
both located on the postulated extension of thérddfnear the PPRust Platinum Mine operated byld\dgnerican Platinur
Corporation Limited. See “Item 4 — Information the Company, Republic of South Africa Properties”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2002 AhiReport --

Joint Venture Agreement dated August 15, 2002 betwRlatinum Group Metals Ltd. and Africa Wide Migi{Pty) Ltd. (“Africa
Wide”), a largely black-owned South African minimpmpany, on the Tweespalk and War Springs Progertigee “ltem 4-
Information on the Company, Republic of South Adreroperties”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2002 AhReport --

Agency agreement dated November 27, 2002 betwestiinih Group Metals Ltd. and Pacific Internatiosscurities Inc. ar
Haywood Securities Inc. as co-lead agents for aafeiplacement of up to 1,600,000 flewough units at $0.65 per flow throt
unit and 3,000,000 non-flow through units at $0080 unit.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2002 AhReport --

Option Agreement dated December 13, 2002 betwesimein Group Metals Ltd. and Marthinus Johannesiates, Casela Boerde
(EDMS) BPK and Limbson Properties CC to purchas@%d®f the 296 hectare Elandsfontein property latatdjacent to tt
Bafokeng Rasimone Platinum Mine in the Western Bakharea of South Africa See “ltem 4 -nformation on the Compar
Republic of South Africa Properties”.

-- Incorporated by Reference to Form 20-F 2002 AhReport --

4.19

4.20

4.21
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Term sheet dated April 21, 2003, as amended Aujs2003 between Platinum Group Metals Ltd. and M&iBer Corp. (“MAG”)
pursuant to which the Company provides office spamkadministrative support services to MAG atst b $12,000 per month pl
expenses. MAG is related to the Company by wagoofimon directors and officers: R. Michael Jonesihan, President, Ch
Executive Officer and Director of the Company amdrik Hallam, Chief Financial Officer and Directdrtbe Company. Durir
Fiscal 2003, the Company received $38,525 from MA@suant to this arrangement. Furthermore, the gaom received $100,0
in finder’s fees in the form of 200,000 MAG shares during&@i®003 for assistance in locating mineral prapsrin which MAC
now has interests.

Lease Expansion and Amending Agreement dated Febti0a 2003 between Platinum Group Metals Ltd. Mutguard Real Esta
Investment Trust for the expansion of office spac8uite 800 — 409 Granville Street, Vancouver,.B.C

Amendments dated October 10, 2003 and Novembe& (g to the Agnew Lake Farm-Agreement among Kaymin Resources |
Platinum Group Metals Ltd. and Pacific North Wesip@al Corp. See “ltem 4 iformation on the Company, The Agnew L
Property, Ontario”.

Foreign Patents: Not Applicable.

Statement Explaining Calculation of Earnings Pear8hnformation: Not Included

Statement Explaining Calculation of Ratio of Eagito Fixed Charges, Ratio of Combined Fixed Chamyesd Preferred Sto
Dividends or any other Ratios: Not Included

Diagram of Parent and Subsidiaries: Not Included.

Statement Regarding Financial Statements Fileceigis®ration Statements for Initial Public OfferiofjSecurities: Not Applicable



10. Notice Required by Regulation BTR Concerning Eq@iecurities Subject to Blackout Periods. None

11. Code of Ethics

12. Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1380Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@mnés Act of 2002
13. Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1280Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@més Act of 2002

14. Other Exhibits: None
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Signature Page

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets &lthe requirements for filing on Form Z0-and that it has duly caused and authorize
undersigned to sign this Annual Report on its biehal

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(Registrant)

March 12, 2004 /s/ R. Michael Jones

Date R. Michael Jones, President, CEO and irect
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CERTIFICATION
I, R. Michael Jones, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-Platinum Group Metals Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or om#ttde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletding with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andtfierperiods presented in this rep

4. The companys other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(&)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company hade:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurbs tbesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the company, including its consokahsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, paitidy during the period in which this report it prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahceporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenassurance regarding the reliability of finandieporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;



(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the comy's disclosure controls and procedures and presémtéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contmals procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtlis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the compginternal control over financial reporting thatooed during the peric
covered by the annual report that has materiafigcéd, or is reasonably likely to materially atfethe companys interna
control over financial reporting; and

The companys other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @braver financis
reporting, to the company’s auditors and the awodinmittee of the company’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

€)) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect doenpanys ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveg@magement or other employees who have a signifioaet in the
company’s internal control over financial reporting

Date: March 12, 2004

/sl R. Michael Jones

R. Michael Jones
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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CERTIFICATION

I, Frank Hallam, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-Plafinum Group Metals Ltd.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coragajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omitade a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletding with respect to t
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andffier periods presented in this rep

The companys other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15()) and internal control over financial repagtitas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company hade:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurbs tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the company, including its consokhsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahceporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenaksurance regarding the reliability of finanai@porting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

() Evaluated the effectiveness of the compardisclosure controls and procedures and presémthis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contmals procedures, as of the end of the period coueydtlis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the compginternal control over financial reporting thatooed during the peric
covered by the annual report that has materiafigcédd, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe companyg interna
control over financial reporting; and

The companys other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @bragver financie



reporting, to the company’s auditors and the awodinmittee of the compary’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect doenpanys ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifigaet in the
company’s internal control over financial reporting

Date: March 12, 2004

/s/ Frank Hallam

Frank Hallam
Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Financial Officer)
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of PlatinunmoGp Metals Ltd. (the "Company") on Form E(er the fiscal year ended August 31, 2
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio the date hereof (the "Report"), we, R. Michkeies, Chairman, President and C
Executive Officer and Frank R. Hallam, Chief Finahdfficer of the Company, certify, pursuant to U8S.C. Section 1350, as adog
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4 @%d
2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 12, 2004

/s/ R. Michael Jones

R. Michael Jones
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Frank R. Hallam

Frank R. Hallam
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Consolidated Financial Statements of

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

August 31, 2003 and 20(

Independent Auditors ' Report

To the Shareholders of
Platinum Group Metals Ltd.
(An exploration stage company)

We have audited the consolidated balance shedbathum Group Metals Ltd. (an exploration stagenpany) as at August 31, 2003 and 2002 an
consolidated statements of operations, shareholégmity and cash flows for each of the years intlinee year period ended August 31, 2002
the cumulative period from March 16, 2000 to AugB&t 2003. These financial statements are theonsdpility of the Companys
management. Our responsibility is to express amapon these financial statements based on atditsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canagiarerally accepted auditing standards and auditigdards generally accepted in the United Std
America. Those standards require that we planpertbrm an audit to obtain reasonable assuranceéhehéhe financial statements are free of mal
misstatement. An audit includes examining, onst basis, evidence supporting the amounts andodis@s in the financial statements. An audit
includes assessing the accounting principles usedsignificant estimates made by management, ak agekvaluating the overall financial staten
presentation. We believe that our audits provideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial staeta present fairly, in all material respects, fthancial position of the Company as at August Z103 an
2002 and the results of its operations and its flasis for each of the years in the three yearqueended August 31, 2003 and the cumulative pdrad
March 16, 2000 to August 31, 2003 in accordanch ®anadian generally accepted accounting principles

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
October 31, 2003

Comments by Auditors on Canada - United States of erica
Reporting Differences

In the United States of America, reporting standdot auditors require the addition of an explanafaragraph when financial statements are affeloy
conditions and events that cast substantial donlthe Companys ability to continue as a going concern, sucthase described in Note 1 to
consolidated financial statements. Although we cabeld our audits in accordance with both Canaderemlly accepted auditing stand:



and auditing standards generally accepted in thetliStates of America, our report to the Sharetrsldlated October 31, 2003 is expre
in accordance with Canadian reporting standardsiwto not permit a reference to such conditions erehts in the auditorsreport whe
these are adequately disclosed in the consolidetadcial statements.

In the United States of America, reporting standdad auditors also require the addition of an arptory paragraph (following the opinion paragraphgr
there are changes in accounting principles that lzamaterial effect on the comparability of the @amy's financial statements, such as the che
described in Note 2 (f) to the consolidated finahatatements. Our report to the shareholders daidber 31, 2003 is expresset
accordance with Canadian reporting standards wdhchot require a reference to such changes in atioguprinciples in the auditorsépor
when the changes are properly accounted for anguadiely disclosed in the financial statements.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, Canada
October 31, 2003

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

August 31
2003 2002

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash and cash equivalents $ 994,650 $ 898,907

Marketable securities (market value - $124,000) 58,000 93,500

Amounts receivable (Note 4) 76,411 345,442

Prepaid expenses 24,820 58,498
Total current assets 1,153,881 1,396,347
MINERAL PROPERTIES (Note 6) 3,891,653 2,951,089
FIXED ASSETS (Note 7) 40,887 25,611
Total assets $ 5,086,421 $ 4,373,047
LIABILITIES
CURRENT

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 169,548 $ 111,428
Total current liabilities 169,548 111,428
FUTURE INCOME TAXES (Note 10) 359,000 431,400
Total liabilities 528,548 542,828
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 8) 9,005,078 6,430,482
Contributed Surplus (Note 8 (c)) 42,051 -
Deficit accumulated during the exploration stage (4,489,256) (2,600,263)
Total shareholders' equity 4 557,873 3,830,219
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 5,086,421 $ 4,373,047

CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Note 1)



APPROVED BY THE DIRECTORS:

(Signed) R. Michael Jones
R. Michael Jones, Director

(Signed) Frank Hallam
Frank Hallam, Director

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinhBtedements

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Cumulative
amount fron
Year endec Year ende Year ende March 16, 200
August 31, August 31 August 31 to August 31
2003 200z 2001 2003
EXPENSES
Amortization $ 15,464 $ 10,256 $ 7,070 $ 35,051
Annual general meeting 27,060 3,717 - 30,777
Corporate finance fees - - 25,000 25,000
Filing and transfer agent fees 37,986 28,277 27,353 93,616
Insurance 9,938 7,863 3,404 21,204
Management and consulting fees 274,252 154,562 86,453 520,742
Office and miscellaneous 64,263 43,585 47,523 158,720
Professional fees 143,357 184,209 130,311 480,048
Rent 41,896 18,870 9,160 74,176
Salaries and benefits 167,115 75,584 12,201 254,900
Shareholder relations 159,532 203,138 74,452 437,122
Telephone 18,654 17,122 7,632 45,306
Travel and promotion 92,924 40,966 55,710 191,715
Other taxes 29,875 47,391 - 77,266
(1,082,316 (835,540) (486,269) (2,445,643)
Less interest and other income 177,068 23,028 60,582 262,240
Loss before other items (905,248 (812,512) (425,687) (2,183,403)
Other items:
Property investigations 41,508 30,467 49,675 121,650
Mineral property costs written off 815,714 1,090,871 7,325 1,913,910
(Gain) loss on sale and write-down
of marketable securities (12,802 21,370 - 8,568

Equity in loss of Active Gold
Group Ltd. (Note 5) 187,000 - - 187,000



Write-down of investment in and
advances to Active Gold Group Ltd.

(Note 5) 24,725 - - 24,725
1,056,145 1,142,708 57,000 2,255,853
Loss for the period before income taxes (1,961,393 (1,955,22C (482,687) (4,439,256)
Future income tax recovery 212,400 453,600 - 666,000

Loss for the period $(1,748,993) $ (1,501,62C

$ (482,687) $ (3,773,256)

Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.07 $ (0.10) $ (0.09)
Weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding 25,982,475 14,821,633 5,544,487

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinaStiements

PLATINUM GROUP
METALS LTD.

(An exploration
stage company)

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders'
Equity

From commencement of operations, March 16, 2000, #sugust 31,
2003

Deficit
Flow-through accumulate
Common shares Obligatior Special Additional during Total
without par value to issue Warrants Paidin  exploratior Shareholder
Share: Amount share: Numbel Amount Capita stage Equity
Issued for cash 1,395,001 $ 89,000 $ - 2,605,000 $ 521,000 $ - $ - $ 610,000
Issued for
mineral
properties - - 20,000 - - - - 20,000
Net loss - - - - - - (39,956 (39,956)
Balance, August
31, 2000 1,395,00: 89,00( 20,000 2,605,00( 521,000 - (39,956 590,044
Issued for cash 3,195,391 1,356,533 - 2,383,09( 1,107,77: - - 2,464,303
Issued upon
exercise of share
purchase warran 2,000 1,10¢( - - - - - 1,100
Issued for
mineral
properties 210,000 57,05 (17,400 - - - - 39,650

Issued upon



exercise of
special warrants
Issued upon
exercise of flow
through

special warrant
Future income
taxes relating to
exploration

expenditures
applicable to
flow-through
shares
Net loss

2,605,000

2,383,090

521,00( -

1,107,77. -

(2,605,000 (521,000

(2,383,090 (1,107,771

(310,000
(482,687

(310,000)
(482,687)

Balance at
August 31, 2001
Issued for cash
Issued for
mineral
properties
Issued to acquire
New Millennium
Metals
Future income
taxes relating to
exploration
expenditures
applicable to
flow-through
shares
Net loss

9,790,482
6,864,001

102,728

5,468,421

3,132,45 2,600
1,951,13! -

36,509 (2,600

1,310,38! -

(832,643

(266,000
(1,501,620

2,302,410
1,951,135

33,909

1,310,385

(266,000)
(1,501,620)

Balance, August
31, 2002
Issuance of flow-
through common
shares for cash
Issuance of
common shares
for cash

Issued on
exercise of
mineral property
option (Note 6)
Issued on
exercise of
warrants

Issued on
exercise of stock
options

Issued for
mineral
properties
Future income
taxes relating to
exploration

expenditures

22,225,63.

1,181,346

3,062,500

571,603

645,990

96,500

47,696

6,430,48. -

678,589 -

1,411,34. -

200,061 -

233,389 -

35,075 -

16,14( -

(2,600,263

3,830,219

678,589

1,411,342

200,061

233,389

35,075

16,140



applicable to
flow-through

shares - - - - - (140,00C  (140,000)
Stock options

granted to

consultants - - - - 42,05, - 42,051
Net loss - - - - - (1,748,993 (1,748,993)
Balance, August

31, 2003 27,831,26° $9,005,07¢ $ - $ - $ 42,05 $(4,489,256 $4,557,873

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinaBtéements

PLATINUM GROUP METALS
LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

Consolidated Statements of Cash

Flows

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the period
Add items not affecting cash

Year endec
August 31,
200z

Cumulative

amount fron

March 16

Year ende Year ende 200C
August 31 August 31  to August 31
200z 2001 2003

$(1,748,993)

$ (1,501,620) $ (482,687) $ (3,773,256)

Amortization 15,464 10,256 7,070 35,051
Equity in loss of Active Gold Group Ltd. 187,000 - - 187,000
Write-down of investment in and
advances to Active Gold Group Ltd. 24,725 - - 24,725
Future income tax recovery (212,400) (453,600) - (666,000)
(Gain) loss on disposal and write-down
of marketable securities (12,802) 21,370 - 8,568
Mineral property costs written-off 815,714 1,090,871 7,325 1,913,910
Finders fee received in shares (Note 8) (100,000) - - (100,000)
Non-cash share compensation expense 42,051 - - 42,051
Net change in non-cash working
capital (Note 12) 309,431 (202,266) (156,847) 17,557
(679,810) (1,034,989) (625,139) (2,310,394)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of common shares 2,558,456 1,683,461 1,357,632 5,688,549
Issuance of flow-through special warrants - - 1,107,771 1,107,771
Issuance of special warrants - - - 521,000
2,558,456 1,683,461 2,465,403 7,317,320




INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Costs to acquire New Millennium Minerals - (231,325) - (231,325)
Acquisition of capital assets (30,740) (13,915) (9,160) (72,241)
Acquisition cost of mineral properties (443,669) (111,488) (139,072) (863,120)
Acquisition and exploration costs recovered - - 300,000 300,000
Exploration expenditures (1,341,969) (954,263) (669,234) (3,195,945)
Investment in Active Gold Group Ltd. (160,327) - - (160,327)
Proceeds on sale of marketable securities 193,802 16,880 - 210,682
(1,782,903) (1,294,111) (517,466)  (4,012,276)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 95,743 (645,639) 1,322,798 994,650
Cash, beginning of period 898,907 1,544,546 221,748 -
Cash, end of period $ 994,650 $ 898907 $ 1,544,546 $ 994,650

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON NON-CASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
(i) During the year ended August 31, 2003, then@any issued 47,696 common shares with a value
of $16,140 (2001 - $36,509) in connection with dequisition of mineral properties.
(i) During the year ended August 31, 2003, @mnpany issued 571,603 shares on exercise of &nopt

in exchange for previous reimbursement of expionagéxpenditures in the amount of
$200,061.

(iif) During the year ended August 31, 2003, @empany received marketable securities with avaliue

of $45,500 relating to the recovery of mineral
properties costs.

(iv) During the year ended August 31, 2002, tlhenpany issued 5,468,421 common shares with a value

of $1,310,385 in connection with the
Amalgamation (Note 3).

(v) During the year ended August 31, 2001, tbhenBany issued 2,605,000 common shares with a
value of $521,000 on conversion of previously ékapecial warrants (Note 6 (b)).

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON CASH
FLOWS:

During the periods disclosed no interest or incoaxeexpenses were
paid.

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinhBtedements

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2003

1. CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated on February 18, 2§0@nborder by the Supreme Court of British Colurmdyigroving
an amalgamation by plan of arrangement betweerinBiat Group Metals Ltd. (" Old Platinum ") and Nev
Millennium Metals Corporation ("New Millennium)! Old Platinum was incorporated on January 10024
599141 B.C. Ltd. and changed its name to Platinunou Metals Ltd. on March 16, 2000, at which tirt
commenced operations. New Millennium Metals Coaion was incorporated in British Columbia on Me
11, 1983 under the name Harvey Creek Gold Placeéds &and later renamed New Millennium Me
Corporation. As a result of the amalgamation Bdgw Millennium and Old Platinum ceased to exisioé
February 18, 2002. However, as a result of thelganaation, a new company also named Platinum C
Metals Ltd. was formed as of February 18, 2002 iradsumed all of the rights and obligations of tive



predecessor corporations. As described in No@ @ Platinum was identified as the acquirer andahgines
combination was recorded as a purchase of New ivhiilten by Old Platinum.

The Company is an exploration company conductingkvam mineral properties it has staked or acquiigdvay o
option agreements principally in Ontario and th@@R#ic of South Africa. The Company has not yeedmined whethe
its mineral properties contain ore reserves that exonomically recoverable. The Company defersaedjuisition
exploration and development costs related to min@a@perties. The recoverability of these amoustdependant upt
the existence of economically recoverable reserihes,ability of the Company to obtain the necesdarsincing tc
complete the development of the property, and anyré profitable production, or alternatively, uptthe Company
ability to dispose of its interests on an advantagebasis.

These financial statements have been preparedcordgance with Canadian generally accepted accapumimciple:
applicable on a going concern basis, which presuimesealization of assets and discharge of ligdsliin the normi
course of business for the foreseeable future. Gtmmpany has incurred losses from inception and dad¢ currentl
have the financial resources to sustain operatiorthe long-term. The Comparg ability to continue as a goi
concern is dependent upon its ability in the futtoreachieve profitable operations and, in the meamttc
obtain the necessary financing to meet its obliyetiand repay its liabilities arising from normaisimes
operations when they become due. External finang@ngdominately by the issuance of equity to thblipy
will be sought to finance the operations of the @any; however, there is no assurance that suffidierds
will be raised.

These financial statements do not include any #ujests to the amounts and classification of assedsliabilities the
might be necessary should the Company not be abteritinue as a going concern. If the going camtesis was n
appropriate for these consolidated financial stat@s) then significant adjustments would be necgdsathe carryin
values of assets and liabilities, the reported egps, and the balance sheet classifications used.

Although the Company has taken steps to verifg til mineral properties in which it has an interastaccordance wi
industry standards for the current stage of expitmaof such properties, these procedures do natagiee the Company
s title. Property title may be subject to unregistieprior agreements and noampliance with regulato
requirements.

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2003

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepareccordance with Canadian generally accepted accayptiimciples ('
Canadian GAAP ') and include the following significant policiestioed below. These policies conform
all material respects, with accounting principlenerally accepted in the United States of AmericdJ$
GAAP "), except as described in Note 14.

@) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tbeants of the Company and its whotiyned subsidiar
During 2002, the Company formed a 100% South Africsubsidiary named Platinum Group Me
(RSA) (PTY) Ltd. for the purposes of holding minetights and conducting operations on behalf ofGleenpan:
in the Republic of South Africa. All significanbtercompany balances and transactions have baamatec
upon consolidation.

(b) Mineral properties and deferred exploration costs

Mineral properties consist of exploration and mininoncessions, options and contracts. Acquisitiod
leasehold costs and exploration costs are capthland deferred until such time as the propertguis intc
production or the properties are disposed of eithesugh sale or abandonments. The estimated yvalfial
properties are assessed by management on a cdnbiass and if the carrying values exceed estin
recoverable values, then these costs are writtem do the estimated recoverable values. If pu productior



()

the costs of acquisition and exploration will betten off over the life of the property, based tie estimate
economic reserves. Proceeds received from theo§ary interest in a property will first be creditagainst th
carrying value of the property, with any excesduded in operations for the period. If a propedyabandone
the property and deferred exploration costs willbigten off to operations.

In March 2000, the Accounting Standards Board ef@anadian Institute of Chartered AccountanSICA ")
issued Accounting Guideline No. 11 entitled Entesgs in the Development Stage - ("AcG 11 The
guideline addresses three distinct issues includigcapitalization of costs/expenditures,
impairment and (iii) disclosure. The Emerging EswCommittee issued Abstract 12&counting b
Mining Enterprises for Exploration Costsvhich provided further guidance on AcG 11. Abstrl2¢
concluded that a mining enterprise that has notheented operations or objectively established mi
reserves is not precluded from considering explomatosts to have the characteristics of prop@ign!
and equipment. The Company has reviewed and dieiednthat implementation of this Abstract ha
material effect on the results of operations ocaticial position of the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash andtgmrtmoney market instruments which are readilyeatible
to cash and have original maturities of 90 dayless.

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2003

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Marketable securities
Marketable securities are recorded at the loweosf or fair market value.
Fixed assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and are amodizdte declining balance basis at the followinguai rates:

Computer equipment 30%
Computer software 30%
Office furniture and equipment 20%

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company has adopted the recommendations ohée CICA Handbook section 387&tockBasel
Compensation and Other Stock-Based Paymegftective September 1, 2002. This section eisfadd standar:
for the recognition, measurement and disclosurstaék-based compensation and other stubed paymer
made in exchange for good and services. The stdndajuires that all stock-based awards made to
employees be measured and recognized using adie based method. The standard encourages thef a
fair value based method for all awards grantednpleyees, but only requires the use of a fair vdlase:
method for direct awards of stock, stock appremiatights, and awards that call for settlementashcor othe
assets. Awards that a company has the abilityetibesin stock are recorded as equity, whereas dsvidnat th
entity is required to or has a practice of settimgash are recorded as liabilities. For stockoms granted 1
employees and directors, the Company has adoptedishlosuresnly provisions whereby pro forma net incc
and pro forma earnings per share are disclosedeimotes to the financial statements as if theViaine base
method of accounting had been used.

Compensation expense is recognized when stockrgptice issued to employees and directors for thessx i
any, of the quoted market price at the date oftgoaar the exercise price. Any consideration gmicemployee
and directors on the exercise of stock optionsadited to share capital.

nol



Compensation expense is determined when stocknspére issued to naamployees and is recognized over
vesting period of the option. The compensatioreesp is determined as the fair value of the opidhe date ¢
grant using an option pricing model.

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2003

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

(h)

(i)

0

Income taxes

Future income taxes relate to the expected fuaxednsequences of differences between the carayimaunt o
balance sheet items and their corresponding taregal Future tax assets, if any, are recognizedtorthe exter
that, in the opinion of management, it is more lifkéhnan not that the future income tax assets ballrealizec
Future income tax assets and liabilities are aelflifor the effects of changes in tax laws andsratethe date
enactment or substantive enactment.

Earnings (loss) per common share

Basic earnings per share calculations are basdbeoweighted average number of common shares adistg
excluding contingently returnable shares held oras.

The Company uses the treasury stock method focdlmilation of diluted earnings per share. Dilugzaning
per share is computed using the weighted averagdeuof common and common equivalent shares oulisig
during the year. Common equivalent shares coaosiste incremental common shares upon the assurezdis
of stock options and warrants, but are excludenhftioe computation if their effect is anti-dilutive.

Financial instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalentepats receivable and accounts payable and actal@iies
reflected in the balance sheet approximate thepeaetive fair values.

Price risk is the risk that the value of the Companfinancial instruments will vary from fluctuatioms
foreign exchange rates and the degree of volatiftyhese rates. The Company does not ust
derivative instruments to reduce its exposureuottiations in foreign exchange rates.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftynwith generally accepted accounting principleguiees
management to make estimates and assumptions fteat #he reported amount of assets and liabilites
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the datetloé financial statements, and the reported amooievenue
and expenditures during the reporting period. Aktasults could differ from those reported.

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2003

3.

AMALGAMATION

The Company was incorporated on February 18, 2@0@nborder by the Supreme Court of British Colurdgigroving
an amalgamation by plan of arrangement betweeimBtatGroup Metals Ltd. and New Millennium Metalsr@oration
Under the terms of the arrangement, in exchang&d0% of the issued and outstanding shares of M&l@nnium, the



shareholders of New Millennium each received orareslof the new company for each 1.65 shares of Mékwnnium.
The new Platinum Group Metals Ltd. issued andveedid 5,468,421 shares to the shareholders of Nélgndium.
Shareholders of the old Platinum Group Metals kfath received one share of the new company inaegehfor ever
one share of the old company. All of the continuiidigations of New Millennium with regard to shanerchase option
warrants and share payments, with fair values of, #kre converted according to a ratio of 1.65This busines
combination has been accounted for as a purchassairtion with the predecessor company, PlatinuouGMetals Ltd
identified as the acquirer and New Millennium idéetl as the acquiree. Consideration to the shadehns of Ney
Millennium Metals Corporation consisted of 5,468, 4&hares of the Company at a price of $0.24 paesh@osts of tr
amalgamation totalled $231,325. The total coshéoCompany was therefore $1,541,710. The restibperations ar
financial position of New Millennium were consolidd with the accounts of the Company with effeotfrFebruary 1t
2002.

The fair value of assets acquired is as follows:

Current assets $81,20¢
Mineral properties 1,930,44-
Capital assets 3,697

Accrued liabilities (164,637
Future income liability (309,000
$1,541,71

4, AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE
200z 200z
Advances receivable (a) $35,02: $35,35¢
Goods and Services Tax recoverable 16,90: 31,87
Interest receivable 14,15: 4,322
Subscriptions receivable (b) - 267,67«
Active Gold Group Ltd. (Note 5) - 5,911
Other 10,33: 30C
$76,41: $345,44;

(@) Advances receivable consist of funds advancedfioen$, directors and consulting geologists forlergtion an:
corporate activities conducted in the normal cowfdeusiness, bear no interest and are due on déman

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2003

4.

AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(b) At August 31, 2002, 340,211 common shares of the@my were issued upon the conversion of 340,2afe
purchase warrants. Proceeds on the exercise s tharrants were received subsequent to Augu(RP.

INVESTMENT IN ACTIVE GOLD GROUP LTD.

Active Gold Group Ltd. ( AGG Canada ‘) was incorporated under the Canada Business CGurpos Act wit
one share issued to Platinum Group Metals Ltd. wreJL1, 2002. In August 2002 AGG Canada acq
100% of a private corporation in the Republic oliBoAfrica and reaamed it Active Gold Group RSA (P
Limited ("AGG RSA "). This subsidiary company serves AGG Canada aparating and holding entity.
2003 the Company, along with other foanders and commercial investors, subscribed ddahér commo
shares of AGG Canada. In total the Company hasimach 1,461,905 shares of AGG Canada at a cc



$160,327 and now owns 26.79% of AGG Can:

AGG RSA has been working to acquire and succegsfdlmit a 5,000 hectare exploration and developgrpenjec
named the Rooderand Gold Project. The projeaidated near the town of Potchefstroom in the cekitiibwvatersran
Basin and is known to host gold bearing conglonesraif the Kimberly Reef Formation, based on thekwafr pas
operators.

AGG Canada is currently a private corporation anshares common directors and officers with theifian Grouj
Metals Ltd. Advances by the Company to AGG Canadarelated to commercial activity in the normalrmse o
business, are repayable upon demand and do noinbexa@st (Note 4).

Subsequently, AGG RSA has failed to achieve a geionithe Rooderand Gold Project and has decidembemdon tr
project through liquidation and termination of alkisting rights and assets related to the projés. a result, th
Company has written off its remaining investmentaid advances to AGG Canada after its equity is iSAGC
Canada. A summary of the Company's investmemdhaalvances to AGG Canada is as follows:

Advances, at August 31, 2002 $5,911
Investment 160,32"
Advances 45,487
211,72¢
Equity in loss of AGG Canada (187,000
Write-down of investment in and advances to AGG ddkn (24,725
Balance, at August 31, 2003 $-
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6.

MINERAL PROPERTIES

Details of mineral properties are as follows:

Costs
Propertie: Costs (Recoveries
Acquired Incurrec Propertie: Incurrec Propertie:
August 31 February 1€ Year Written August 31 Year Written August 31
Property 2001 2002 to Date Off 2002 to Date Off 2003
SUDBURY
Agnew Lake $- $413,243 $(28,675) $- $384,568 $(33,571) $- $350,997
Pro Am 3,125 - - 3,125 14,699 - 17,824
Other Sudbury 545,846 12,676 120,872 (499,363) 180,031 (4,825) (55,415) 119,791
545,846 429,044 92,197 (499,363) 567,724 (23,697) (55,415) 488,612
THUNDER BAY
Shelby Lake - 307,345 1,290 - 308,635 247,696 - 556,331
Taman 102,088 27,273 - 129,361 30,211 - 159,572
Taman East - 40,075 13,637 - 53,712 15,732 - 69,444
Senga 59,646 781 - 60,427 - - 60,427
Dog River 118,146 29,195 - 147,341 65,293 - 212,634
LDI River 528,248 8,389 - 536,637 58,305 - 594,942



S Legris 225,850 248,870 474,720 84,332 559,052
Pebble 39,220 23,903 63,123 68,199 131,322
Stucco 368,159 368,159 26,519 (394,678)
PS Overlap 18,660 18,660
Thread 23,328 23,328
Farmer Lake 12,559 12,559
Other -Thunder Bay 24,379 327,294 4,326 (281,777) 74,222 2,483 (60,737) 15,968
289,449 1,482,842 725,823 (281,777) 2,216,337 653,317 (455,415) 2,414,239
OTHER
CANADIAN 232,062 18,558 59,111 (309,731)
SOUTH AFRICA
Bushveld 56,939 56,939
Tweespalk 19,282 - 19,282 106,144 125,426
Sharp Arab 31,709 (31,709)
Ledig 25,578 - 25,578 247,597 (273,175)
Elandsfontein 571,248 571,248
Onderstepoort 91,661 91,661
Zandriver 3,769 3,769
War Springs 122,168 122,168 17,591 139,759
167,028 167,028 1,126,658 (304,884) 988,802
Total $1,067,357 $1,930,444 $1,044,159 $(1,090,871) $2,951,089 $1,756,278 $(815,714) $3,891,653
PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
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6. MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)
2003 2002 2001
Mineral property acquisitions $459,80¢ $2,195,51 $171,72.
Assays 220,33¢ 156,32« 34,94¢
Drilling 365,78( 232,44 374,20¢
Geological 460,87: 300,01( 270,08
Geophysical 80,44( 129,96 64,47
Maps, fees and licenses 37,31¢ 22,78: 10,07(
Research - - 4,22~
Site administration 35,27¢ 52,53¢ 11,89:
Surveys - - 11,82(
Travel 56,10¢ 83,741 1,87t
1,715,94. 3,173,31: 955,31
Less recoveries (adjustments) (40,335 198,70¢ 300,00(
1,756,27! 2,974,60: 655,31:
Total, beginning of year 2,951,08! 1,067,35 419,37(
Less amounts written off 815,71 1,090,87: 7,32%
2,135,37! (23,514 412,04t




Total, end of year $3,891,65: $2,951,08! $1,067,35

At August 31, 2003, mineral properties consisthef following:

200z 200z 2001

Acquisiton costs $1,585,16! $1,631,06 $-
Option fees to earn mineral interests 327,72¢ 263,04 360,61:
Deferred exploration costs 1,978,75! 1,056,98: 706,74
$3,891,65: $2,951,08! $1,067,35

Pursuant to an agreement dated April 12, 2002Ctmpany optioned Wheaton River Minerals Ltd. thghtito earn u
to a 25% interest in the Shelby Lake and Lac des River properties in exchange for funding up 49000 i
exploration expenses on the two properties. Ferititial $200,000 worth of the required expendituiVheaton Rivi
could earn a 10% interest in the two propertieeweler, once the initial $200,000 was spent, eithbeaton River ¢
the Company could elect to convert all of WheativeR' s rights and interests to the properties into comstocl
of the Company at a price of $0.35 per share fervibrk funded to date. During the period $200,06Work
was completed by Wheaton River. Wheaton River tbeercised its option and converted their rights
interests into 571,603 common shares of the Comphng terminating the option agreement. As altethe
Company recorded net additions to mineral propeiti2003 of $200,061.

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2003

6. MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)

@) Sudbury

(i)

Agnew Lake

Pursuant to an agreement dated March 1, 1999, Ndlenkium acquired an option to earn a ¢
interest in 38 claims located near Sudbury, Ontlnown as the Agnew Lake property in exchang
option payments of $170,700 (of which $90,700 resnbpaid) and 60,606 shares (all of which have
paid) over a fiveyear period. In addition, New Millennium, or itssignee, must complete a total w
commitment of $2,000,000 over an unspecified peabtime. The vendors retain a 2% royalty inte
The Company staked an additional 182 contiguousnsldhat are also included under the terms o
above-noted agreement.

At August 31, 2003, the Company had directly pernfed $512,265 worth of exploration work
caused further work of approximately $2,500,00®¢operformed through a joint venture arrangel
with Pacific North West Capital Corporatio’ PFN ") and Kaymin Resources Limited ("Kayr
"), a subsidiary of Anglo American Platinum Corgioon Limited.

New Millennium optioned the Agnew Lake propertyRBN on June 18, 2000. PFN may acquire 50
the Company's rights and interests in Agnew Prgpaytissuing 50,000 shares to the Company, (v
have been received), making cash payments to thep&ay totaling $200,000 over four years, (of w
$145,000 has been received) and completing $500r0@Qploration over four years. In the event
PEN does not incur the required $500,000 in exgilmmeexpenses on its own account, they may exe
their option by payment to the Company of any rerimg unspent balance in PFN common shares.

In 2001, New Millennium and PFN agreed to amendAbeew Lake Option Agreement so that PFN
make annual payments of 75,000 PFN shares towhedgxercise of their option. It was agreed
these shares not be valued at less than $0.6thper for the purpose of exercising P's option. Ti



date, the Company has received three payments,0003%FN shares towards the exercis
PFN 's option. PFN has not reported any exploratioreegfures spent on the project tc
own account.

PFN is the project operator and will be responsitde completion of all assessment and fi
requirements as long as it remains operator.
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6. MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)

@) Sudbury (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Agnew Lake (continued)

On June 22, 2001, New Millennium and PFN optionkdirt interests in the property to Kayr
Resources Limited '(Kaymin " ). Kaymin may acquire a 50% interest in the comirights an
interests of New Millennium and PFN by making cgelyments of $200,000 to each p
(which have been received) and incurring explorat@gpenditures of not less than $6,000
by December 31, 2004. Kaymin 's work expendituvidissatisfy the balance of the Compaisy
total work commitment to the original vendors. Kagrnsan earn an additional 10% interes
completing a bankable feasibility study and arraggfinancing for any development
construction.

On November 1, 2001, New Millennium and PFN enter#ttd an option agreement with Pro,
Explorations Corporation to acquire a 100% inteiasthree additional claims adjacent to the Ag
Lake property by making cash payments of $30,082.1,600 paid), issuing 29,090 shares of
Company, (18,181 of which have been issued to ALgls2003 and 10,909 issued subsequently
the issue of 21,000 shares of PFN over two yeatdscampleting $400,000 in exploration expendit
over a four-year period.

Under the terms of the agreement, these claimsnhbeqmart of the Agnew Lake property and are su
to the PFN and Kaymin option agreements existinghan property. The claims are subject to a :
NSR royalty.

West Sudbury Basin

Pursuant to an option agreement executed in 2002nzended, the Company granted an optic
Goldrush Resources Ltd. (formerly Arcata Resoufo@$.) whereby they could acquire a 60% intere
the Company's Levack, Windy Lake and Cascaddmistic properties located in the W
Sudbury basin of Ontario. During the term of thatian, Goldrush Resources Ltd. m
payments to the Company of $3,000 and 200,000 shanel a further payment of $2,000 to
underlying vendors. The Company has remaininggabibns to make option payments
$90,000 over four years in order to complete itgugition of this property.
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6. MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)



(b) Thunder Bay

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Pebble

Pursuant to an agreement dated March 30, 200G ahgpany acquired an option to earn a 51% int
in 96 mineral claims located near Thunder Bay, @ntknown as the Pebble property in exchang:
cash payments of $34,000 (of which $24,000 has kged) and the expenditure of $500,00(
exploration within 5 years from the date of theeggnent. The Company was originally obligated tg
$5,000 (paid) and incur $100,000 ($103,722 incyriadexploration expenditures prior to March
2001 in order to keep the option in good standifie Company has been granted an extension ti
31, 2003. The Company can earn an additional 3% dat in the property by completing a feasik
study within 36 months of earning the 51% intedestcribed above.

South Legris

Pursuant to an April 2000 agreement, the Compaigyised an option to earn a 50% interest in
mineral claims located near Thunder Bay, Ontariovkm as the South Legris property in exchang:
cash payments of $98,300 (of which, $68,300 has hmEd) and the expenditure of $1,000,
($489,013 incurred) in exploration expenditureshwmit5 years of the date of the agreement.
Company also has an option to acquire an additibd® interest by completing a feasibility studyhiri
36 months of earning the 50% interest describedabo

Stucco

During the year ended August 31, 2003, the Compamyinated its option agreement to acquire a
undivided interest in 298 units known as the Stymmperty located in the Thunder Bay Mining Didl
Ontario and recognized a write-down of cumulatigets incurred to date of $394,678.

Shelby Lake

On June 28, 2000, the Company entered an opticgeagnt to earn up to 60% interest in the St
Lake property in the Lac des lles area in Ontaff@. earn a 50% interest the Company is requir
make cash payments to the optionor of $10,000 IpteBeber 28, 2000 (which have been paid), i
30,303 shares to the optionor (which have beenetjsiand complete $500,000 in explora
expenditures over a foyear period, $422,884 of which has been incurreAugust 31, 2003 (Augu
31, 2002 - $275,602). Further work is scheduletherproperty in late 2003.
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6. MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Thunder Bay (continued)

(iv)

v)

Shelby Lake (continued)

The Company may earn a further 10% interest, fimta of 60%, by expending a further $500,000
an additional 30nonth period. The property is subject to a 2% N8ylty, of which the Company ¢
purchase back one half for $500,000.

Taman Lake Project

Pursuant to option agreements dated February @ 268 amended on June 24, 2002 and Marc
2003 the Company has acquired an option to easmdivided 100% interest in the Taman and Ta
East properties. To exercise its option the Companst make payments of $97,500 over five y
($73,500 of which has been paid to August 31, 2@0®) issue 89,183 shares over five years (71,1



(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

which have been issued to August 31, 2003). Theeprds subject to a 3% NSR royalty, of which
Company may buy one half for $1,000,000.

Senga and Tib

The Company acquired these claims by staking orcMa0, 2000. They are located in the Lac de
region of Ontario and consist of 6,384 hectaress phoperty is contiguous with the Company's Ta
and Dog River holdings in the same area. The Tdpgry has been dropped as of August 31, :
resulting in a write-off of cumulative costs to eatf $29,726.

Dog River
The Company has a 100% interest in the Dog Rivapety located in the Lac Des lles area.

The property remains subject to a 2.5% NSR royaltiavour of the vendor. The Company has the
to purchase on half of this NSR royalty for $1, 50D,

Lac des lles River

On May 5, 2000, New Millennium entered into an optiagreement to acquire a 50% interest ir
property by making payments to the optionors of,$38 over three years, all of which has been pa
August 31, 2003, and completing exploration expemds of $1,000,000 over five years, $387,41
which has been incurred to August 31, 2003. Then@my can earn an additional 10% interes
completion of a feasibility study within a furthéaree years. Further work programs are scheduidte
property for late 2003.
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6. MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)

(© Republic of South Africa

(i)

War Springs and Tweespalk

On June 3, 2002, the Company entered an optiorerngnet with a vendor group of mineral rights hol
whereby it may earn a 100% interest in two properbcated in the Northern Limb or Platreef arethe
Bushveld Complex near Johannesburg, Republic ofhSAfrica. The properties are comprised of
2,396 hectare War Springs property and the 2,1¢Tahe Tweespalk property. The two properties
both located on the postulated extension of theeddfnear the PPRust Platinum mine operated byo
American Platinum Corporation Limited. Costs ofé@stigation and acquisition amounting to $265
had been incurred and deferred to August 31, 2003.

The agreement allows the Company to purchase 100%tese mineral rights at any time within tF
years from the date of grant for a prospecting jtesmeach property for US$475 per hectare in ypee
or US$570 per hectare in year two, or US$690 petdne in year three. In addition, subsequent ¢
grant of a prospecting permit, the Company haseabte pay prospecting fees to the mineral ri
holders of US$2.50 per hectare in year one, US$2erShectare in year two and US$3.25 per hect:
year three. The mineral rights holders retain aNN\S®R Royalty on the property, subject to the Cony
's right to purchase the NSR at any time for US$iillon. A 5% finder 's fee on paymer
made to the mineral rights holders is payable atSadrican consulting group retained by
Company in 2002.

In November 2002, the Company entered into a je@ntture agreement with Africa Wide Mining" (
AW "), a Black Economic Empowerment group in South &sfyiwhereby they may acqt
30% of both the War Springs and Tweespalk propeitieexchange for contributing 30% of



costs. By doing so, the Company immediately exedethe te-year objective of tr
Government of South Africa for at least 26% papition in mining activities in South Africa
historically disadvantaged South Africans.

Shortly after acquiring its option to acquire theaMSprings and Tweespalk properties, the Com
found that another Black Economic Empowerment camgp@aung Minerals (Pty) Ltd. (“Taurlg), hac
obtained a prospecting permit over portions of Wiar Springs property. Taung purporte
own a one third interest to portions of the minerghts on the property. The Compi
contested Taung's position through a formal appaigss in the Republic of South Africa.
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6.

MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)

()

Republic of South Africa (continued)

(i)

(ii)

War Springs and Tweespalk (continued)

In September 2003, the Company, Taung and AW agmadegotiated settlement of the title disput
the War Springs property by reducing AW/ participation in the project from a 30% partatipc
interest to a 15% interest carried to bankableildddg, and then granting Taung a 15% inte
carried to bankable feasibility. The Company % dfterest remained unchanged.

The Company has not recorded a receivable for '8\80% participating interest in the Twees|
property, which at August 31, 2003 is calculated¢o$37,628, as AW is not currently abls
tender such amounts due. The Company expect@AWaill achieve its own financing in tt
near future, and when it does so, the Companyredbrd a receivable from AW and subrr
cash call to AW for settlement. The amount recedgdrom AW will be treated in a reduction
the Company ' s costs relating to the Tweespalggrtyg when received.

Ledig

The Company entered into an option agreement waitidMinerale Regte 909 JQ (pty) Ltd"l(edig
Minerale " ) whereby the Company could earn a 568rest in Ledig Minerales holdings o
the Ledig Farm property located in the Western Bakharea near Sun City, South Afri
approximately 100km northwest of Johannesburg. Fébruary 28, 2002 the Company

incurred $273,176 in costs relating to the propeffurther payments by the Company v
contingent upon completion of certain title confation procedures by Ledig Minerale and
granting of a valid prospecting license by the Gomeent of the Republic of South Africa
February 28, 2003. These conditions were not me:ttlae Company refused to waive them.
agreement was therefore terminated and all coktsng to the project were written off by 1
Company.
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6.

MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)

()

Republic of South Africa (continued)



(iii) Elandsfontein

In December 2002, the Company entered into an m@atgpeement to purchase 100% of the 296 he
Elandsfontein property located adjacent to the Bafig Rasimone Platinum Mine in the Wes
Bushveld area of South Africa. The Company madigial payment to the Vendors of ZAR 150,(
(approximately C$29,500 at the time of paymenthe Tompany must also pay a base price of ZA
(approximately C$8.50) per tonne of open castabmemic Upper Group 2'UG2 ") reef resourc
on the property, to a minimum of ZAR 4,000,000 (@pgmately C$791,000). A furth
payment of ZAR 4.30 (approximately C$0.85) per @i due on any economic undergrao
resource. The purchase price is payable 90 dagsthk grant of a mining authorization. -
Company was obligated to a minimum exploration pgog which was completed before
end of the period. The Company also acquired kt rig purchase the surface rights to
property at a price of R 6,500 (approximately C85)2per hectare.

The Company exercised its option to purchase tl@dsfontein property by way of written notice
June 26, 2003. The initial 10% of the purchaseepfor the mineral rights was later tendered urie
terms of the option agreement. The Vendors novmclhat the purchase price is unascertaine
unascertainable and that the agreement is theretide The parties have agreed to refer the mébn
Expert Determination as provided for in the optegreement. PTM RSA intends to enforce its ri
under the terms of the option agreement and is@tgy by the Company in this regard. PTM RSA
the Company have sought legal advice and are camtfiof their prospects of successfully defendiragr
position. The alternative dispute resolution pescprovided for in the contract is expected to cemek
at the beginning of 2004 and should be completedhbyend of the first quarter. Time limits for
dispute resolution have not been set.
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6.

MINERAL PROPERTIES (Continued)

(e) Write-down of mineral properties
During 2003 the carrying values of certain of then(pany's mineral properties were determined tc
impaired, resulting in a write-down of mineral pesfles costs of $815,714 (2002 - $1,090,871; 2001
$7,325).

)] Acquisition of New Millennium Metals Corporation
On February 18, 2002 the Company completed an ameltion with New Millennium Metals Corporation. €

Company acquired nineteen properties through thalgamation. These properties have been recordetie
books of the Company at a fair value of $1,930 dgdlescribed in Note 3.

CAPITAL ASSETS

2003 2002
Accumulate Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
Computer equipment and
software $56,33¢ $27,580 $28,75¢ $20,71(
Office furniture and
equipment 18,25¢ 6,122 12,13: 4,901

$74,58¢ $33,702 $40,88" $25,61!




8.

SHARE CAPITAL

(@)

(b)

Authorized

1,000,000,000 common shares without par value

Issued and outstanding

During the year ended August 31, 2003:

(i)

(ii)

the Company issued 47,696 common shares in coonewith the acquisition of mineral properties
fair value of $16,140.

the Company issued 571,603 common shares in exefan§200,061 worth of exploration work on
Shelby Lake and Lac des lles River properties mnstio an Option Agreement with Wheaton R
Minerals Ltd. dated April 12, 2002 and describedlote 6.
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8.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

Issued and outstanding (continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
(vii)

the Company completed a private placement for tptateeds of $500,000 through the issuanc
1,000,000 units at a price of $0.50 per unit. Eauih consisted of one common share and lwadéof one
common share purchase warrant. Each whole waisaekercisable into one common share of
Company at a price of $0.75 until December 17, 2084 finders' fee or commission was paid w
respect to this private placement.

the Company completed private placements for furgveceeds of $1,799,125. Proceeds of $76°
were from the sale of 1,181,346 Flow-Through Urdts$0.65 per unit. Each FloWArough Uni
consisted of one flow-through common share andrmmeflow-through common share purchase wal
exercisable at a price of $0.85 for a period ofri@nths from the date of closing. The Comg
renounced $767,875 in Canadian exploration expetosdge purchasers of the flothrough shares a
was required to incur the required expendituresnimeral properties in Canada by December 31, :
At August 31, 2003, approximately $595,000 of tbisligation remained outstanding. Proceed
$1,031,250 were received from the sale of 2,062/860-Flow-Through Units at a price of $0.50

unit. Each unit consisted of one common sharecaredhalf of one common share purchase warran
addition, 304,385 share purchase warrants wereedssa brokers in connection with these pri
placements, where one share purchase warrant lisigdgle into one common share at a price of §
until December 23, 2004. Costs of issuing theseeshtotalled $209,193.

during fiscal 2003, 645,990 share purchase warnaate exercised for proceeds of $233,389 and 9
stock options were exercised for proceeds of $3b,02

share issue expenses amounted to $209,18dngko the various issuances throughout the year.

during the year ended August 31, 2003, 714,272eshaf the Company were released from esc
relating to the balance of 1,190,453 shares prelyobeld in escrow and not released, pursuant
arrangement where these shares would be released layer than three years, based on a predeted
schedule for release.

The Company also has 199,308 shares held in estréwgust 31, 2003 which are to be released st
to the terms of release as required by the TSX (WerExchange, which are related to the performaif
exploration and development work on the Comp's mineral properties. These rules provide



pro rata release of escrow shares on the basi®%f df the original number of performai
escrow shares for every $100,000 expended on edfmorand development, subject to cel
limitations.
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8.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

Issued and outstanding (continued)

During the year ended August 31, 2002:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

the Company issued 102,728 common shares in caanegith the acquisition of mineral properties
fair value of $36,5009.

the Company issued 1,327,500 common sharesupat to a flowthrough private placement at $0.25
share, less issue costs of $12,000 for net procee@3819,875. These placements were complet
market value and there was no premium obtained &y @f their flowthrough nature. The Compe
renounced $331,875 in Canadian exploration expetastge purchasers of the flothrough shares a
was required to incur the required expendituresnimeral properties in Canada by December 31, :
At August 31, 2002, approximately $236,000 of thidigation remained outstanding. This requirer
was met by December 31, 2002.

On January 30, 2002 the Company issued 28D, ommon shares pursuant to a hookered privat
placement at $0.25 per share for total procee@62500.

On February 18, 2002 the Company completed an a@meltjon by plan of arrangement with N
Millennium Metals Corporation. The Company acquirat of the 9,022,895 issued and outstan
shares of New Millennium in exchange for 5,468,4Bares of the Company (Note 3).

the Company issued 1,403,572 common shares purkuangrivate placement at $0.28 per share fof
proceeds of $393,000. There were 701,286 mon share purchase warrants issued with the om
shares which are exercisable at $0.36 per shaileMayt 30, 2003.

On June 6, 2002 the Company closed a private plaeof 3.2 million common shares at $0.25
common share. In connection with the placementGbmpany issued broketsvarrants to purcha
319,000 shares at $0.25 per share until June 63.208sue costs related to this placer
totalled $70,038 and are recorded as a reductitimeodross proceeds.

During the year ended August 31, 2001:

(i)

the Company issued 3,195,391 common shares at p@56hare pursuant to initial public offering
net proceeds of $1,356,532 (after deducting expen$ahe issue of $241,164). The agents rec
319,539 share purchase warrants exercisable & $ersshare up to March 22, 2003.
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8.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

Issued and outstanding (continued)



(i) the Company issued 2,383,090 fldlrough shares at $0.55 per share for net procee&4,107,77
(after deducting expenses of the issue of $202,928e Company renounced $1,310,700 in Cani
exploration expenses to the purchasers of the flomugh shares and was required to incur the rec
expenditures on mineral properties in Canada byeBber 31, 2002. This requirement was met in 2
The agents received 238,309 share purchase waegeatcisable at $0.55 per share up to Decemb

2002.

(iii) 210,000 common shares were issued in connectidm tvé acquisition of mineral properties at a

value of $57,050, at the date of issuance.

(© Incentive stock option agreement

The Company has entered into Incentive Stock Optigreements [Agreements ") with directors, officer
and employees. Under the terms of the Agreemémsexercise price of each option is set at the
value of the common shares at the date of grahe fdllowing table summarizes the outstanding ¢

options:
Weightec
Average
Number Exercise
of
Shares Price
Granted in the year ended and balance
at August 31, 2001 840,000 $0.55
Granted 1,804,37! 0.64
Exercised (54,000) 0.48
Expired (39,694) 0.71
Cancelled (489,685 0.96
Options outstanding at August 31, 2002 2,061,00( 0.53
Granted 465,000 0.57
Exercised (96,500) 0.67
Cancelled (162,500 0.36
Options outstanding at August 31, 2003 2,267,001 $0.53
PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2003
8. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
(© Incentive stock option agreement (continued)
The following table summarizes options outstanding exercisable at August 31, 2003:
Weighted
Number Average Number
Outstandini Exercisabls
at Remaining at
August August
Exercise 31, Contractua 31,
Life
Prices 2003 (Years) 2003




0.35 422,000 3.52 422,000
0.50 305,000 4.76 305,000
0.55 1,065,000 1.84 877,500
0.60 300,000 3.80 300,000
0.75 125,000 3.88 125,000
0.95 50,000 2.01 50,000
2,267,000 3.24 2,079,500

The Company granted 330,000 stock options to enggloyand 135,000 to consultants during the year
Company has recorded $42,051 of compensation egpeteting to stock options granted to consultamtthe
year ended August 31, 2003. The Company has dldotaneasure compensation costs for employee
options whereby no compensation expense is recegriar the excess, if any, of the quoted marketepat th
date of grant over the exercise price. Had comprmsaosts been determined based on the fair valube
options granted using the Black-Scholes oppoicing model, additional compensation expense dialve bee

recorded as follows:

Loss for the year as reported

$(1,748,993

Pro forma compensation expense (77,000)
Pro forma loss $(1,825,993
Pro forma basic and diluted loss per share $(0.07)

The following weighted average assumptions wer@ fisethe Black Scholes valuation of stock optignantet

during the year:

Risk-free interest rate

Expected life of options
Annualized volatility
Dividend rate

3.18%
anc
3.97%
2
years
and £
years
87%
0.00%

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
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8. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
(d) d )Share purchase warrants
Weightec
Average
Number
of Exercise
Warrants Price
Issued to agents on issue of flow-through
special warrants 238,309 $0.55
Issued to agents on initial public offering 319,539 0.50
Exercised and converted to common shares (2,000) 0.55
Balance at August 31, 2001 555,848 0.52

Purchase warrants on amalgamation with



New Millennium 1,114,69! 0.88

Issued to private placement placees (Note 8 (B) (v) 701,786 0.36
Issued to agents on brokered financing (Note 8 (b)

(vi)) 319,000 0.25
Exercised and converted to common shares (628,929 0.66
Expired during the period (753,878 0.92
Balance at August 31, 2002 1,308,52. 0.38
Issued to private placement placees (Note 8 (b)) 2,712,59I 0.79
Issued to agents on brokered financing (Note 8 (b)

(iv)) 304,385 0.75
Exercised and converted to common shares (645,990 0.36
Expired during the period (662,532 0.39
Balance at August 31, 2003 3,016,98: $0.79

(e)

Of the 3,016,981 common share warrants outstanalinrfugust 31, 2003, 500,000 are exercisable at5$pei
warrant expiring on December 17, 2004; 1,335,685%aercisable at $0.75 per warrant expiring on Der 24
2004, and 1,181,346 are exercisable at $0.85 peamteexpiring on December 24, 2003.

At August 31, 2002, the Company entered into a fiotigation to issue 30,000 shares (20010;000 share
with a value of $9,000 (2001$2,600) in connection with acquisition of minepabperties. These shares w
issued during 2003.

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, transactions with related paniese recorded as follows:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Management and consulting fees of $184,112320$163,229) were incurred with directors. As at Asl
31,2003 an amount of $9,723 owing was includeccgoants payable (2002 - $4,858).

Accounting services of $4,100 (200222,500) were incurred with a partnership in whacformer officer has ¢
interest.

Geological and administration fees of $74,78002 -$64,025) were incurred with an officer. As at Asg31
2003, an amount of $Nil owing was included in agdsypayable (2002 - $6,260).

On November 26, 2002 the Company purchased 1,46k88res of seed capital in Active Gold Group [td
an average price of $0.11 per share. This reptesgproximately a 27% interest in Active Gold Groal
November 30, 2002. Active Gold Group is a privatempany incorporated in Canada and which
conceptualized and formulated by the Company. blisiness plan is to acquire and develop mature
properties in South Africa. Active Gold is relatedthe Company by way of a common director and raror
officer. Active Gold Group has no earnings or &ssfrom its operations. At August 31, 2003, Activeld owel
the Company an amount of $51,398 for business.c&s Note 4 and 5 (a) to these financial statésnen

During 2003, the Company entered into a serviceegent with MAG Silver Corp.'MAG " ), a compan
with a common director and common officer. Durithge year the Company received from M
$38,525 (2002 - $Nil; 2001 - $Nil). Furthermotiee Company received $100,000 in findefses ir
the form of 200,000 MAG common shares during 20f3afsistance in locating mineral propertie
which MAG now has interests in.



10.

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes reported differsvfrthe amounts computed by applying cumulative Ciamaigéderal an
provincial tax rates to the loss before tax praisilue to the following:

200z 2002
Statutory tax rates 0% 0%
Recovery of income taxes computed at standard rates $804,17: $801,64(
Tax losses not recognized in the period that the
benefit arose (591,771 (348,040
Future income tax recovery $212,40( $453,60(

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
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10. INCOME TAXES (Continued)
The approximate tax effect of each type of tempodifference that gives rise to the Compasyfuture income te
assets and liability are as follows:
200z 2002
Future income tax assets
Operating loss carryforwards $1,148,67! $840,18
Fixed assets 15,42¢ 7,151
Valuation allowance on future income tax assets (1,164,104 (847,338
Net future income tax assets $- $-
Future income tax liability
Mineral properties $359,00( $431,40(
Net future income tax liability $359,00( $431,40(
The Company has norapital loss carryforwards available to offset fattaxable income in the amount of approxime
$3.3 million and expire at various dates from 2692010.
11. COMMITMENT
The Companys minimum lease payments under its office agre¢srame as follows:
2004 $45,36¢
2005 23,699
2006 16,227
$85,29:
12. NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL

Cumulative

amount
from



March

Year Year Year 16,
ended ended ended 2000
to
August August August August
31, 31, 31, 31,
2003 2002 2001 2003
Amounts
receivable $217,633 $43,097 $(115,909) $144,821
Prepaid
expenses 33,678 (41,601) (16,896) (24,820)
Accounts
payable 58,120 (203,762) (24,042) (102,444)
$309,431 $(202,266) $(156,847) $17,557

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
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13. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company operates in one operating segment,btsing exploration on mineral properties. Capitedi costs fc
mineral rights and deferred exploration relatermpprties situated as follows:

2003 2002
Canada $2,902,851 $2,784,061
South Africa 988,802 167,028
$3,891,653 $2,951,089

14. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENE RALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES

These consolidated financial statements have besgaped in accordance with Canadian GAAP, whicfedifin certai
respects from US GAAP. The material differenceswben Canadian and US GAAP affecting the Comparsy
consolidated financial statements are summarizédllasvs:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

2003 200z
Total assets under Canadian GAAP $5,086,42. $4,373,04
Decrease in mineral properties due to expensing
of exploration costs (a) (1,978,759 (1,056,981
Marketable securities (e) 66,000 -
Total assets under US GAAP $3,173,66; $3,316,06!
Total liabilities under Canadian GAAP $528,54¢ $542,82¢
Liability relating to issuance of flow-through skar 39,987 -

Decrease in future income tax liability due to exgiag



of exploration costs (a) (359,000 (371,400
209,53t 171,42¢
Shareholders' equity under Canadian GAAP 4 557,87: 3,830,21!
Cumulative mineral properties adjustment (a), (b) (1,978,759 (1,056,981
Cumulative future income taxes adjustment (c) 359,00( 371,40(
Liability recorded upon issuance of flow-througlasts (c) (39,987 -
Marketable securities (e) 66,000 -
Shareholders' equity under US GAAP 2,964,12 3,144,63!
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity under GSAP $3,173,66; $3,316,06!

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
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14. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENE RALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING

PRINCIPLES (Continued)

Consolidated Statement of Loss and Deficit

Cumulative
from
March 16,
Year Year Year
ended ended ended 2000 to
August August August August
31, 31, 31, 31,
2003 2002 2001 2003
Net loss under
Canadian GAAP $(1,748,992 $(1,501,62C $(482,687 $(3,773,25€
Mineral property costs
written off (a) 815,714 1,090,871 - 1,906,585
Acquisition costs
included in write off
€)) (309,786) (505,837) - (815,623)
Mineral property
exploration
expenditures (a) (1,427,706) (935,271) (476,265) (3,069,721)
Future income taxes
(b) (15,185) (204,600) - (292,785)
Consulting (c) - (286,000) (1,250) (287,250)
Stock based
compensation (c) 105,457 (142,747) - (37,290)
Write-down of
"available for sale"
securities (d) - 18,450 - 18,450
Net loss under US
GAAP $(2,580,49¢ $(2,466,754 $(960,202 $(6,350,89C

Basic loss per share



under US GAAP

$(0.10)

$(0.17)

$(0.17)
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14. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENE RALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (Continued)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cumulative
from
March 16,
Year Year Year
ended ended ended 2000 to
August August August August
31, 31, 31, 31,
2003 2002 2001 2003
Operating activities
Operating activities
under
Canadian GAAP $(679,810) $(1,034,98¢ $(625,139 $(2,307,394
Deferred exploration
(a) (1,427,706) (954,263) (369,234) (2,935,945)
Operating activities
under US GAAP $(2,107,51€ $(1,989,252 $(994,373 $(5,243,33¢
Financing activity
Financing activities
under
Canadian and US
GAAP $2,558,456 $1,683,461 $2,465,40:. $7,317,320
Investing activities
Investing activities
under
Canadian GAAP $(1,782,902 $(1,294,111 $(517,466 $(4,012,81€
Deferred exploration
(a) 1,427,706 954,263 369,234 2,935,945
Investing activities
under US GAAP $(355,197) $(339,848) $(148,232 $(1,076,871

(@) Exploration expenses

Canadian GAAP allows exploration costs to be céipéd during the search for a commercially minedigdy o
ore. Under US GAAP, exploration expenditures oneral property costs can only be deferred subsedaehe
establishment of mining reserves. For US GAAP psegs the Company has expensed exploration expest

in the period incurred.

(b) Flow-through shares



Under Canadian GAAP, flowhrough shares are recorded at their face valuegfrrelated issuance costs. W
eligible expenditures are made, the carrying valfithese expenditures may exceed their tax vallige ta
effect of this temporary difference is recordeca®st of issuing the shares.

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(An exploration stage company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
August 31, 2003

14.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENE RALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (Continued)

(b)

()

Flow-through shares (continued)

The Financial Accounting Standards BoatdKASB ") staff has taken the view that under SFAS No.
Accounting for Income Taxegshe proceeds from issuance should be allocatedela the offering «
shares and the sale of tax benefits. The allatasionade based on the difference between the d
price of the existing shares and the amount thesitor pays for the shares. A liability is recoguaiZol
this difference. The liability is reversed whem tzenefits are renounced and a deferred tax lighd
recognized at that time. Income tax expense isdifference between the amount of deferrec
liability and the liability recognized on issuanc€he flowthrough shares issued during the year "
granted at the fair value of existing non flthwough shares. As such, no liability was recogaifol
the difference between the quoted price of thetiegshares and the amount paid for the fibwougt
shares.

Furthermore, under US GAAP, the amounts receivedutih the issuance of flottwough shares and not
expended on the related mineral exploration costssaparately classified as restricted cash. Sunbunt
unexpended at August 31, 2003 and 2002 totallecbappately $595,000 and $236,000, respectively.

Accounting for stock-based compensation

For US GAAP purposes the Company accounts for shasled compensation to employees and directorsr
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No 2&¢counting for Stock Issued to Employe€#PB No. 25" ), using
the intrinsic value based method whereby compemsatbsts is recorded for the excess, if any, c
guoted market price at the date granted over thecese price. As at August 31, 2002 no compens
cost has been recorded for any period under thikode

SFAS No. 123Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatiorquires the use of the fair value based metH
accounting for stock options. Under this methaampensation cost is measured at the grant datel lmaséhe
fair value of the options granted and is recogniaedr the vesting period. During the year endedusa 31
2003, the Company issued options to individualiothan employees and directors, which, under SKA!
123, resulted in $42,051 (2002 - $286,000) of ctimguexpenses.

SFAS No. 123, however allows the Company to comtit measure the compensation cost of employe
accordance with APB No. 25. The Company has addpte disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123.
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14.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENE RALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (Continued)



()

Accounting for stock-based compensation (continued)

The following pro forma financial information prege the net loss for the year ended August 31, 200@Bth
loss per share had the Company adopted SFAS 123aillf@tock options issued to directors, officersd

employees.

Year Year Year
ended ended ended
August August August
31, 31, 31,
2003 2002 2001
Net loss for the
period under
US GAAP $(2,580,49¢ $(2,466,754 $(960,202
Additional stock
based
compensation cost (97,600) (176,000) (32,500)
Pro forma net loss $(2,678,09¢ $(2,642,754 $(992,702
Pro forma basic an
diluted
loss per share $(0.10) $(0.18) $(0.18)

Using the fair value method for stock based comaims, additional costs of approximately $97,60002 -
$176,000; 2001 $32,500) would have been recorded for the yeae@mugust 31, 2003. These amounts
determined using an option pricing model assumioglividends are to be paid, a volatility of the Guany'
share price of 87% (2002 - 60%; 2001 - 60%) andrarual risk free interest rate of 3.97% (2002 8%02001 -
4%).

FASB Interpretation 44 states that when fixed stopkon awards to employees and directors are neallithe
stock options must be accounted for as variable filee date of modification to the date the stockoms ar
exercised, forfeited or expire unexercised.

Consequently, the 313,028 stock options issuednpl@yees and directors that were repriced on Mé&rc200:
are now considered to be variable and any incremsge market price over the reduced exercise priast b
recognized as compensation cost. As at Augus@Qd3, the market price of the Compasycommon shar
was $0.62 per share resulting in compensation ssgayf $105,457 (2002 - expense of $142,747).
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14. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENE RALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (Continued)

(d)

Comprehensive income

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standardar&dssued SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehe
Income, which requires that an enterprise repgrtnhjor components and as a single total, the ahamg@s ne
assets during the period from non-owner sourcd®e impact of SFAS No. 130 on the Comparg/financia
statements is as follows:

Year Year Year

ended ended ended

August August August
31, 31, 31,



2003 2002 2001

Net loss under US

GAAP $(2,580,499 $(2,466,754 $(960,202
Other

comprehensive

income:

Unrealized gain

(loss) on

marketable

securities 84,450 (18,450) -

Comprehensive net
loss under

US GAAP $(2,496,049 $(2,485,204 $(960,202

Comprehensive loss
per share $(0.10) $(0.17) $(0.17)

(e)

(f)

Accounting for derivative instruments and hedgiot\dties

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 18&ounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgingivities ,
which standardizes the accounting for derivativarimments. SFAS No. 133 is effective for all fisgaarters c
all fiscal years beginning after June 15, 1999e Tompany does not engage in hedging activitiéewast ir
derivative instruments. Therefore, adoption of SA0. 133 has no significant financial impact.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standardar8¢” FASB " ) issued SFAS No. 143ccounting fo
Asset Retirement Obligatiorf$SFAS 143 "), which addresses financial accounting and repgrior
obligations associated with the retirement of Idimgd assets that result from the acquisi
construction, development and (or) the normal dpmraof longlived assets, except for cert
obligations of leases. SFAS 143 requires entittesecord the fair value of a liability for an at
retirement obligation in the period in which itirscurred. When the liability is initially recordear
entity capitalizes the cost by increasing the ¢agyamount of the related loriyed assets. Over tir
the liability is accreted to its present value epehiod, and the capitalized cost is amortized dikie
useful life of the related asset. Upon settlentéribe liability, an entity either settles the @altion fol
its recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss upettiesnent. SFAS 143 is effective for finan
statements issued for fiscal years beginning aftere 15, 2002 with earlier application encoure
The Company has determined that the Statememtadidave any impact on its financial statements.
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14. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENE RALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (Continued)

(f)

Recent accounting pronouncements (continued)

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 1Adcounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lonigdd Assets
SFAS 144 replaces SFAS 124 counting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Asseatd for Longkived Assets
be Disposed of The FASB issued SFAS 144 to establish a singt®unting model, based on the framev
established in SFAS 121, as SFAS 121 did not addhesaccounting for a segment of a business ateddiol
as a discontinued operation under APB B@porting The Results of OperationdReporting The Effects

Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and ExtraargdinUnusual and Infrequently Occurring Events

Transactions. SFAS 144 also resolves significant implementaigsues related to SFAS 121. Companie
required to adopt SFAS 144 for fiscal years begigrafter December 15, 2001, but early adoptioreisnitted



The Company adopted SFAS 144 as of January 1,.2062 Company has determined that the applicaif
SFAS 144 will not have a material effect on its smiidated financial position or results of operasio

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1A6¢counting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disgosi
Activities. SFAS No. 146 requires that the liability for ast associated with an exit or disposal activi
recognized at its fair value when the liabilityitecurred. Under previous guidance, a liability fartain exi
costs was recognized at the date that managememhitied to an exit plan, which was generally beftire
actual liability had been incurred. As SFAS No6 14 effective only for exit or disposal activitigstiated afte
December 31, 2002, the Company does not expeetdigtion of this statement to have a material impadhe
Company's financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued FAS No. 1A8¢counting for Stock-Based Compensation - Tramsiiod Disclosure
SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 128;counting for Stock-Based Compensatjoto provide alternative methods
transition for an entity that voluntarily changeshe fair value based method of accounting fotlstmased compensation.
also amends the disclosure provisions of thatsi@te. The disclosure provisions of this statenagateffective for financi
statements issued for fiscal periods beginningr dtecember 15, 2002. The Company does not cuyrémrave plans 1
change to the fair value method of accountingt®siock-based compensation.

In April 2003, SFAS No. 1499 mendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instrusnamd Hedging Activities
was issued. In general, this statement amendscharifies accounting for derivative instrumentsclirding
certain derivative instruments embedded in othatreat, and for hedging activities under SFAS N28.1 Thi
statement is effective for contracts entered imonodified after June 30, 2003, and for hedgingtiehship
designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption AfSSN0. 149 is not expected to have a material impacthe
Company's consolidated financial position or results oé@tions.
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14. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENE RALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES (Continued)

(f)

Recent accounting pronouncements (continued)

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1B0counting for Certain Financial Instruments withaacteristic:
of both Liabilities and Equities SFAS No. 150 requires certain financial instratsehat were accounted for
equity under previous guidance to now be accoufedas liability. SFAS No. 150 applies to manday
redeemable stock and certain financial instrumthvasrequire or may require settlement by transfgrchase ¢
other assets. SFAS No. 150 is effective for finarnastruments entered into or modified after May 2003, an
otherwise is effective at the beginning of thetfinderim period beginning after June 15, 2003.e Tompany h
not issued any financial instruments that fall unthee scope of SFAS No. 150 and does not expectttia
adoption of this statement will have a material atipon the Companis financial position or results
operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB InterpretafNo. 45,Guarantor's Accounting and DisclosL
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect anéees of Indebtedness of Othe(s"FIN 45 ™).
FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guaramtegjarantor must recognize a liability for ther
value of an obligation assumed under a guaranked.45 also requires additional disclosures |
guarantor in its interim and annual financial stagats about the obligations associated with guaes
issued. The recognition provisions of FIN 45 vii# effective for any guarantees that are issu
modified after December 31, 2002. The Company do¢&xpect that the adoption will have a mat
impact on the Company 's results of operationghantial position.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. @énsolidation of Variable Interest Entities, andryretation o
ARB No. 51 FIN No. 46 requires certain variable intereditiers to be consolidated by the primary benefit



of the entity if the equity investors in the entity not have the characteristics of a controllingricial interest «
do not have sufficient equity at risk for the gntib finance its activities without additional sutimated financie
support from other parties. FIN No. 46 is effeetior all new variable interest entities createcoquired pric
to February 1, 2003, the provisions of FIN No. 4@strbe applied for the first interim or annual pdrbeginnin
after June 15, 2003. It is not expected that tepaon of FIN No. 46 will have a material effeet the Compar
's financial position or results of operations.
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15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(&) On September 23, 2003, the Company agreedagatiated settlement of the title dispute onWer Springs

(b)

property by reducing joint venture partner AW/ participation in the project from a 30% partatipg
interest to a 15% interest carried to bankableilbdag, and then granting claimant Taung a 15%
interest carried to bankable feasibility. The Camp' s 70% interest remained unchanged. For more
details, see Note 6(c)(i).

According to the terms of the Elandsfonteirtiap agreement, the Company tendered a requirech@aty
for 10% of the base purchase price of the propertiie amount of R 1.5 million prior to October2003,
subject to the base purchase price being adjustearding to the terms of the agreement for actuakU
open cast resource on the property. The Venddissed to accept the payment, claiming that an
adjustment was not allowable. The Company is efuilew that the actual UG2 open cast resource en th
property falls below that amount which would resalthe minimum purchase price for the mineral tgh
being set at the R 4.0 million minimum and hasyrdfae, referred the matter for settlement under th
binding arbitration provisions of the agreementr fmore detail, see Note 6(c)(iii).

\l: i © l: :M 800 - 409 Granville Streetvancouver BC, V6C 1T2
: = = = T: (604) 899-5450 F: (604) 484-4710

Platinum Group Metals Ltd. E: info@platinumgroupmetals.net W: www.platinumgpmetals.net

April 21, 200:

OFFICE SERVICES TERM SHEET
between
PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD. (the "Company" or PTMnd
MAG SILVER CORP. ("MAG")

PTM to Provide to MAG

Oppxe ot Xe — ATUPOEIMOTEAY 250 cOL O PE QEET;

>TOPOYE OTIXE, ONEAWIVY AVO @ALVY;

O X€ QUPVITUPE TO IVXALOE BUT VOT ALUITED TO: OEOK, OECK XNalp, OUOAA Boapd TaPAg, 4 yueot
XNaipo & XapPIvert;

AXXEOO TO O GEXUPE OEPWEP VETWOPK POP XOUTIUTEP VEEDT;

AXXEOO TO XOUHUOV OPED AV KITXNEV;

YoE 0@ TPIVTEPT AV TN OTOXOTIEP;

AXXEOO 10 a Boapdpooy;

SEXPETAPIOA CEPWIXED TO IVXAUOE BOOK—KEETUVY OV YEVEPOA OOUIVIOTPATIOV



Compensation to PTM

RENT - $1,500 which includes:

approximately 250 sq ft corner office furnished KRchael Jones' former office)
kitchen and common area

computer network space and secure server

printers, photocopier & fax machine

storage and filing space as needed

office furniture (desk, chairs, cabinet)

ADMINISTRATION -$200/day, ~7.5 days a month (onegmar's time) = $1,500 includes:

manning the phones
general correspondence
typing/word processing
organization and filing

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING SERVICES - $4,000/month incled:
Bookkeeping, Accounting and Accounts Payable Adstiiation

payment and maintenance of corporate accounts [gayab
printing cheques

maintaining general ledger

data entry and bookkeeping

.12

Preparation of Financial Statements

services of qualified accountant for preparatioa dfaft of financial statements for
management approval on a quarterly and annual.basis
review of management's draft of Discussion and ysialon a quarterly and annual basis.

REGULATORY FILING SERVICES - $1,000/month includes:

assistance with filing statements
news and material change reports on SEDAR andtiviExchange and Commissions

*outside costs in addition to this

TOTAL RETAINER CHARGE = $8,000

Additional Costs

UTILITIES and GENERAL OFFICE EXPENSE - per usaggliudes:

phone line (one with a roll over lines and voicessaging) and long distance
stationary (individual items purchased by MAG atated accordingly, larger quantity items



i.e. paper, will be split based on percentage efs)s

OVERHEAD CHARGE - 5% on top of monthly invoice bdsen:

o monitoring inventory and billing for whole officeems
. maintenance of work environment
. coordination of shared staffing/associates

Duration, Termination and Adjustments

The initial service for April will include Rent anéidministration for $2,000. May and June will beabunted $1,000
from the Financial Accounting Services for a tatb$7,000. As of July 1, 2003 the agreement feelil$8,000 per
month.

This arrangement will endure on a month-to-montsisdf time or charges are found to be inequitéableither party,
they will negotiate amendments in good faith. MAG0t authorized to order or authorize expenditurésTM's nam
for PTM to bill later.

In the event that either PTM or MAG wishes to terate the arrangement, 3-month notice must be stdahii the
other party in writing.

Agreed and accepted thié“iday, May 2003.

Platinum Group Metals Ltd. MAG Silver Corp.

/sl R. Michael Jones /sl George Young

R. Michael Jones George Young

President President

Platinum Group Metals Ltd 20f2

800 - 409 Granville Street, Vancouver BC, V6C 1T2

PEL ‘M 800 - 409 Granville Streetvancouver BC, V6C 1T2
T: (604) 899-5450 F: (604) 484-4710

Platinum Group Metals Ltd. E: info@platinumgroupmetals.net W: www.platinumgpmetals.net

August 12, 200

AMMENDED
OFFICE SERVICES TERM SHEET
between
PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD. (the "Company" or PTMnd



MAG SILVER CORP. ("MAG")

PTM to Provide to MAG

o O xe otoXe — ATuPOEIHaTEAP 250 oBuapeE (eeT;

. >TOPOYE OTIXE, ONEAWIVY OVO @ALVY;

O X€ QUPVITUPE TO IVXALOE BUT VOT ALUITED TO: 00K, OECK XNalp, OUOAA Boapd TaPAg, 4 yueot
XNa1po & XaPIver,

AXXEOO TO O GEXUPE OEPWEP VETWOPK (POP XOUTIUTEP VEEDT;

AXXEOO TO XOUHUOV OPED AV KITXNEV;

Yo€E 0@ TPIVIEPT AV TN OTOXOTIEP;

AXXEOO 10 a Boapdpooy;

SZEXPETAPIOA EPWIXED TO IVXAUOE FOOK—KEETUVY OV YEVEPOA AOUIVIOTPATIOV

Compensation to PTM
RENT - $1,500 which includes:

approximately 250 sq ft corner office furnished Rchael Jones' former office)
kitchen and common area

computer network space and secure server

printers, photocopier & fax machine

storage and filing space as needed

office furniture (desk, chairs, cabinet)

ADMINISTRATION -$200/day, ~17.5 days a month (onegom's time) = $3,500 includes:

manning the phones
general correspondence
typing/word processing
organization and filing

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING SERVICES - $5,000/month incled:
Bookkeeping, Accounting and Accounts Payable Adstiiation

payment and maintenance of corporate accounts [gayab
printing cheques

maintaining general ledger

data entry and bookkeeping

.12

Preparation of Financial Statements

o services of qualified accountant for preparatioa dfaft of financial statements for



management approval on a quarterly and annual.basis
. review of management's draft of Discussion and ysialon a quarterly and annual basis.
REGULATORY FILING SERVICES - $2,000/month includes:

. assistance with filing statements
. news and material change reports on SEDAR andtivtfiexchange and Commissions

*outside costs in addition to this
TOTAL RETAINER CHARGE = $12,000

Additional Costs
UTILITIES and GENERAL OFFICE EXPENSE - per usageludes:

. phone line (one with a roll over lines and voicessaging) and long distance

. stationary (individual items purchased by MAG atated accordingly, larger quantity items
i.e. paper, will be split based on percentage efs)s

OVERHEAD CHARGE - 5% on top of monthly invoice bdsen:

. monitoring inventory and billing for whole officéeims
. maintenance of work environment
. coordination of shared staffing/associates

Duration, Termination and Adjustments

This arrangement will endure on a month-to-montsisdf time or charges are found to be inequitéableither party,
they will negotiate amendments in good faith. MAGot authorized to order or authorize expenditurésTM's nam
for PTM to bill later.

In the event that either PTM or MAG wishes to terate the arrangement, 3-month notice must be stdahia the
other party in writing.

Agreed and accepted this 1st day, august 2003.

Platinum Group Metals Ltd. MAG Silver Corp.

/sl R. Michael Jones /sl George Young

R. Michael Jones George Young

President President

Platinum Group Metals Ltd 20f2

800 - 409 Granville Street, Vancouver BC, V6C 1T2



MORGUARD REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(Landlord)
-and-
PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.

(Tenant)

LEASE EXPANSION AND AMENDING AGREEMENT

ORIGINAL PREMISES: Suite 800 - 409 Granville Street, Vancouver, Bhitolumbia
United Kingdom Building

EXPANSION PREMISES: Suite 801 - 409 Granville Street, Vancouver, Bhit@olumbia
United Kingdom Building

LEASE EXPANSION AND AMENDING AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT is dated 10th day of February 2003.

BETWEEN:
MORGUARD REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

(the “Landlord™)

OF THE FIRST PAR
-and -

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
(the “Tenant”)
OF THE SECOND PAR

\. WHEREAS by a lease dated the ! day of September, 2001 (the “Leasethde between the Landlord and the Tenant, the beshdlic
demise and lease unto the Tenant certain premésggrdited as Suite 800, comprising a certified af€ne Thousand One Hundred and
(1,101) square feet (the “Original Premises”) ie firoject known as United Kingdom Building (the éfrct”) municipally located at 4(
Granville Street, in the City of Vancouver, in tReovince of British Columbia, for and during thente(the “Term”) of Three (3) year
commencing on the 1st day of December, 2001 anitiegpunless earlier terminated, on the®™@ay of November, 2004, subject to the te
and conditions contained therein.

3. AND WHEREAS the Landlord and the Tenant hagesad to amend the Lease by documenting the exgapsemises adjacent to
Original Premises known as Suite 801 containing@gmately One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-Eigh88) square feet (theexpansiol
Premises”), and otherwise upon the terms and donditontained herein.

-

Z. United Kingdom Building Limited holds registertitle to the Project as nominee for the Landl

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in sieration of the mutual covenants and agreemeatsir
contained, other good and valuable consideratichtb@ sum of Two Dollars ($2.00) now paid by eatkhe parties to the other (the rec
and sufficiency whereof is hereby acknowledged),farties do hereby agree as follows:



L. The parties hereby acknowledge, confirm andagrat the foregoing recitals are true in substamd in fact
2. Effective as of the 1st day of March, 2003 (thefégfive Date”), the Lease is hereby amended asvist|
(@) by deleting Item 4 - Leased Premises of the TergeSand substituting therefor as follows:

“4. LEASED PREMISES:

Attached as Schedule “Ab the Lease is a plan of the Project showing thgigal Premises hatched and the Expansion Pre
crosshatched.

Except as otherwise noted herein, prior to thedast of March, 2003, the term “Leased Premisgsdll be deemed to refer to

Original Premises only and commencing on thédhay of March, 2003, the Original Premises and tkpaEision Premises shall
collectively referred to as the “Leased Premisd=ir purposes of this Lease, the Leased Premisdidbshdentified as Suite 800 a
801.”

(b) by deleting Item 5 - Rentable Area of Leased Premid the Term Sheet and substituting therefoolkeis:

“5. RENTABLE AREA OF LEASED PREMISES:

(@ prior to the 18tday of March, 2003, comprising a certified are@oke Thousand, One Hundred and One (1,101) squel
(the “Original Premises”); and

(b) commencing on the $day of March, 2003, comprising the Original Prersisad One Thousand, Two Hundred and Fifty-
Eight (1,258) square feet of expansion space @Expansion Premisesfpr a combined aggregate of Two Thousand, T
Hundred and Fifty-Nine (2,359) square feet, colledy referred to as the “Leased Premises”.

(c) by deleting Item 6(a) and (b) - Security Deposit ather Deposit of the Term Sheet in its entiretgt aubstituting therefor as

follows:
“6. (@) SECURITY DEPOSIT: $2,288.50 existing for suite 800
$2,728.01 suite 801
$5,016.51 (Section 4.02)
(b) OTHER DEPOSIT: $2,728.01 (Schedule E).”
(d) by deleting Item 8 - Basic Rent of the Term Sheets entirety and substituting therefor as follows

“8. BASIC RENT:
The Tenant shall pay to the Landlord as annuaktbrasit (the “Basic Rent”), without any deductioet-sff or abatement, as follows:
(@) From December 1, 2001 to February 28, 2003; $142588er annum, $1,215.69 per month; and
(b) From March 1, 2003 to November 30, 2004; $31,25fat5annum, $2,604.73 per month.”
(e) By deleting Schedule D - Landlord’s Work and suthstig therefor as follows:

“Conditions of Premises and LandltsdVork- Suite 801

Suite 801 shall be delivered by the Landlord toTkeeant on an “as idjasis and the Landlord shall not be required taup work
prior to delivering possession of Suite 801 toTkeant except for the following:

i) Re-paint Suite 801 throughout in a complimentadpeoof the Tenant’s choice.

ii) Install an open entryway connecting Suites 800 &0 in a location indicated on Schedule A of théeOfo Lease datt
January 1%", 2003.

iii) At the Tenant’s option, remove the existing ponyliraSuite #801 provided matching carpeting is available ttcipahe
area underneath the pony wall.

Any other changes to the Leased Premises requiyettheb Tenant shall be performed in accordance tithLease and shall
completed at the Tenant’s sole expense.”

® by deleting Schedule E - Additional Covenants, A&gnents and Conditions of the Term Sheet and sutistjttherefor as follows:

“ Other Deposit Suite 801




The amount of $2,728.01 shall be held by the Laudlwithout interest, as a deposit to be appliecaocount towards gross r
charges including GST for March 2003.

Signage Suite 801

The Landlord shall provide Building standard sigmaq the request of the Tenant and at the Tenaxense. No other signe
other than the Building standard signage shalldyenited without the Landlord’s prior written apped.

Early Access Suite 801

Upon execution of this Lease Expansion and Amendigigement by the Tenant, and completion of thedlamd’s work, the Tena
shall be permitted access to the Leased Premigethdopurpose of performing any improvements raexgliby the Tenant a
commencing business. The Tenant agrees that dtltimgeriod, all the provisions of the Lease shalply to the Tenant except
liability for payment of Basic Rent, Taxes and CGytigrg Costs. All Tenant’s Work shall be perfornieéccordance with the Lease.

Limitation

The parties acknowledge and agree that the oldigaiof Morguard Real Estate Investment Trust hateuand under all docume
delivered pursuant hereto (and all documents tochwhthis document may be pursuant) or which giveafto, or amend
supplement, the terms of this Lease are not pellgdriading upon any trustee hereof, any registesetieneficial holder of units
“Unitholder”) or any annuitant under a plan of which a Unitholaets as a trustee or carrier, or any officers,ley@@s or agents
Morguard Real Estate Investment Trust and resall slot be had to, nor shall recourse or satisfacbe sought from, any of t
foregoing or the private property of any of theefgoing, but the Project only shall be bound by solsligations and recourse
satisfaction may only be sought from the revenuthefProject.”

3. The parties confirm that in all other respetts, terms, covenants and conditions of the Leas®in unchanged, unmodified and in
force and effect, except as modified by this Agreetnlt is understood and agreed that all termsepdessions when used in this Agreen
unless a contrary intention is expressed hereig tize same meaning as they have in the Lease.

1. This Agreement shall enure to the benefit af Be binding upon the parties hereto, the successwl assigns of the Landlord and
permitted successors and assigns of the Tenant.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have duly executesl Agreement, by affixing their respective corgerseals under the hands of t
proper signing officers duly authorized in that &k¢h

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED

in the presence of:
LANDLORD:
MORGUARD REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
by its agent MORGUARD INVESTMENTS LIMITED

By: /sl J.T. Johnston
Authorized Signatory

I/We have authority to bind the Corporation whigsauthority to bind the Trust

WITNESS to the signature of Tenant: TENANT:
PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD.
Signature: s/ C. Staglgles By: /s/ Dennis Gorc
; or ancouver, BC Name: Dennis Gorc .
éch%Sastion: Exec. Assistant Title:” V.P. Exploration

I/We have the authority to bind the Corporation

SCHEDULE "A”

FLOOR PLAN OF LEASED PREMISES

3168 — United Kingdom Building —8Floor — Master Drawing (Current)



FIRST ADDENDUM TO

AGNEW LAKE FARM -IN AGREEMENT

LET IT HEREBY BE KNOWN :

That on thel0 ™M day of October in the year of our Lord Two Thousandand Three (2003)the following partie

have agreed to this amendment of the Agnew LakenfiarAgreement, dated for reference May 25, 2001:

PACIFIC NORTH WEST CAPITAL CORP., a corporation incorporated under the laws of AbétPacific")

-and-

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD. (formerly known as New M illennium Metals Corporation), a corporatio

incorporated under the laws of British ColumbiaT(MP')

(collectively the "Optionors")

-and-

KAYMIN RESOURCES LIMITED, a corporation incorporated under the laws of OatéiKaymin™)




NOW, THEREFORE, WHEREAS :

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

AMENDMENT OF FARM -IN AGREEMENT

The Optionors and Kaymin concluded a famagreement (the "Agreement") for the property wnaas
the Agnew Lake Property (the "Property") locatecam&udbury, Ontario on May 25, 2001 whet
Kaymin could earn an undivided 60% interest in greperty in exchange for certain payments
commitments, including a cumulative work commitmehfnot less than C $6,000,000 to be complete

the Property by December 31, 2004.

According to Article 2.01 of the Agreement Kayminasvrequired to complete a cumulative w

commitment on the Property of not less than C $1a® by December 31, 2003.

The Optionors and Kaymin have mutually agreed teradrthe said Agreement in a certain respect ins

of Article 2. of the Agreement.

The requirement under the Article 2.01 (d) of thgg®ement that Kaymin complete a work commitmer
"a cumulative amount of not less than $4,150,00@bgember 31, 2003;" is hereby replaced with a
requirement under Article 2.01 (d) of the Agreemtrdt specifies that Kaymin must complete a v

commitment for "a cumulative amount of not lesstd,150,000 by December 31, 2004;"

1.5

The requirement under the Article 2.01 (e) of thggeement that Kaymin complete a work commitmer
"a cumulative amount of not less than $6,000,00@bgember 31, 2004;" is hereby replaced with a
requirement under Article 2.01 (e) of the Agreemiat specifies that Kaymin must complete a v

commitment for "a cumulative amount of not lesstB&,000,000 by December 31, 2005;"



1.6

1.7

The requirement under the Article 2.02 (3) of A&ggeement that "Based on its evaluation of theltesi
Earnin Expenditures funded in each of 2001, 2002 araB2@espectively, Kaymin in its sole discret
by Withdrawal Notice to the Optionors not laterrihine following March 31 of 2002, 2003 and 2
respectively, may elect to withdraw from fundingther Earnin Expenditures under this agreement
hereby replaced with a new requirement under AxtitD2 (3) that specifies "Based on its evaluatit
the results of Earin Expenditures funded in each of 2001, 2002, 2803 2004, respectively, Kaymin
its sole discretion, by Withdrawal Notice to thetiOpors not later than the following March 31 of02
2003, 2004 and 2005 respectively, may elect todwaw from funding further Earm Expenditures und

this agreement.”

The requirement under the Article 2.05 (3) of A&greement that "Proposed Work Plans for each og;
2003 and 2004 shall be prepared by Pacific andepted to Kaymin and Millennium for discussi

review and approval no later than three monthsreeach Work Plan is to commence, but in any

1.8

1.9

1.10

event not later than January 15 of the particukary is hereby replaced with a new requirementet
Article 2.05 (3) that specifies "Proposed Work i3ldor each of 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005 she
prepared by Pacific and presented to Kaymin andeRhium for discussion, review and approval nor
than three months before such Work Plan is to comeebut in any event not later than January lthe

particular year."

The Optionors and Kaymin have agreed to amendditeAggreement in certain further respects as mi
required solely for the terms and conditions of Agreement to remain internally consistent, faid

reasonable given the amendments now affected tolégt2.01 (d), 2.01 (e), 2.02 (3) and 2.05 (3).

All other provisions of the said Agreement shathegn unaltered.

No further amendment or variation of the FamAgreement is valid or binding on a party unlessde i



writing and executed by all parties.

111 This Agreement may be executed in as many countsrpa may be necessary or by facsimile and

such facsimile or counterpart so executed shatldeamed to be an original and such counterpartghei
shall constitute one and the same instrument atwlithgtanding the date of execution shall be deetn

bear the date as set out on the first page oftpisement.

THUS DONE AND SIGNED at Vancouver, British Columbia on the day, month and year first aforewritten by

the noted competent signatories for Pacific North Wst Capital Corp.:

Date this day of January, 2004 Signature:

Name:

Position:
-and-

THUS DONE AND SIGNED at Vancouver, British Columbia on the day, month and year first aforewritten by

the noted competent signatories for Platinum GrougMetals Ltd.:

Date this day of January, 2004 Sigaatu
Name:
Position:
-and-
THUS DONE AND SIGNED at on the day

month and year first aforewritten by the noted comptent signatories for Kaymin Resources Limited:

Date this day of January, 2004 Sigeatu

Name:

Position:




SECOND AMENDMENT TO

AGNEW LAKE FARM -IN AGREEMENT

LET IT HEREBY BE KNOWN :

That on the25 TH day of November in the year of our Lord Two Thousad and Three (2003)he following partie
have agreed to an amendment of the Agnew Lake ©ptgreement dated for reference August 15, 2000fast

amended on August 16, 2001:

PACIFIC NORTH WEST CAPITAL CORP., a corporation incorporated under the laws of AbéPFN")

-and-

PLATINUM GROUP METALS LTD. (formerly known as New M illennium Metals Corporation), a corporatio

incorporated under the laws of British ColumbiaTMP")

NOW, THEREFORE, WHEREAS :

L. AMENDMENT OF OPTION AGREEMENT

1.1 PFN and PTM concluded an option agreement (the é&ment") for the property known as the Ag

Lake Property (the "Property") located near SudpbOnytario on August 15, 2000, and amended Augu,
2001, whereby PFN could exercise an option to aarandivided 50% interest in the Property in excfe

for certain payments and commitments, including tmmpletion of net aggregate Explora



1.2

Expenditures on the Property, after anymé&ursements by third parties, of not less tharb@G0F000 to b
completed on the Property by the fourth anniversdithe Effective Date of the Agreement, that Efifez
Date being December 20, 2000. For greater clantprder to exercise its option PFN may electntcui

net Exploration Expenditures of $500,000 at its @xpense on the Property by December 20, 2004; or

according to the terms and conditions of the amér&igreement, PFN may satisfy in whole or par
obligation to incur $500,000 in Exploration Expendés on the Property by December 20, 2004 by ng
necessary payments of PFN shares to PTM in foocles of 75,000 shares commencing in October
and then being made annually within 45 days ofajeroval of each successive year's annual expio
program by Kaymin Resources Limited. At the tinfievating PFN has made three share payments |
this amendment each of 75,000 shares to PTM. haees paid to PTM in accordance with these trat

will be applied against the aggregate

1.3

Exploration Expenditure requirement at the highiethe 10day average trading price preceding issu

and $0.60 per share.

PFN and PTM have mutually agreed to amend the/Agidement for a second time in a certain respe
terms of the August 16, 2001 amendment. The laggwd Section 3.7 of the the August 16, 2001

amendment document will be reworded as follows:

PFEN has issued or will issue to PTthe following PFEN share paymentghich have already receiv
regulatory approval:

L. 75,000 PFN shares on or before October 31, 2080t

2 75,000 PFN shares within 45 days of Kaymin electmgroceed with the 2002 explorat
program (Issued)

3.

75,000 PFN shares within 45 days of Kaymin electmgroceed with the 2003 explorat

program (Issued)



75,000 PFN shares within 45 days of Kaymin electmgoroceed with a 2004 explorat

program

The shares paid would be valued at the 10 daynigaalverage prior to their dates of issue
the number of shares to be issued under 1, 2, 84aabove woulhe capped at that tof
number which would have a total value of $500,8Q@h that not all the sharesin 1, 2, 3, a
above would necessarily be issued. It is understbatithe minimum price that shares will

valued at is $0.60 per share.

If Kaymin elects to fund the project past DecemB&rSt, 2005 , within 90 days of PF

receiving notice that Kaymin has elected to cortitsufund the project, PFN will issue to P
that number of PFN shares the value of which wowltgn totalled together with the value

the previous shares issued under 1, 2, 3, andvedbdTM, equal $500,000.

If Kaymin does not proceed to fund exploration {235 , PFN would be required, in orde
exercise its option, to spend a total of $500,080egploration less the calculated valut
previously issued PFN shares under 1, 2, 3, ando#eato PTM, over a period of time to
agreed between PFN and PTM. Alternatively, PFNvaive the right to satisfy the Option

paying the same number of shares as would be szfjuirder 5. above.

6.

The above would all be subject to PFN having tigatrio terminate the Option under sec

11.1 of the original Agreement.



PFN acknowledges that under the terms of the Agee¢an Option payment of $45,000 is
to be paid by PFN to PTM on December 20, 2003. B&MNow committed to make tt
payment to PTM on or before November 30th, 200Zansideration of PTM agreeing
amend both the Agreement and the Agnew Lake Harfgreement between PFN, PTM i

Kaymin Resources Limited.

14 All other provisions of the said Agreement, as adeeh shall remain unaltered.

1.5 No further amendment or variation of the Agreemsntalid or binding on a party unless made in \wg
and executed by all parties.

1.6

This Agreement may be executed in as many counterpa may be necessary or by facsimile and
such facsimile or counterpart so executed shatldemed to be an original and such counterpartghei
shall constitute one and the same instrument atwlithstanding the date of execution shall be deetn

bear the date as set out on the first page oRtpisement.

THUS DONE AND SIGNED at Vancouver, British Columbia on the day, month and year first aforewritten by

the noted competent signatories for Pacific North Wst Capital Corp.:

Date this day of January, 2004 Signature:

Name:

Position:
-and-

THUS DONE AND SIGNED at Vancouver, British Columbia on the day, month and year first aforewritten by

the noted competent signatories for Platinum GrougMetals Ltd.:

Date this day of January, 2004 Sigeatu

Name:




Position:

PLATINUM GROUP METALS CORPORATION
(the “Company”)

CODE OF ETHICS FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i©éf are responsible for full, fair, accurate, tiynanc
understandable disclosure in the periodic repegsired to be filed by the Company with the U.Susigies an
Exchange Commission, British Columbia SecuritiesnBossion, and the TSX Venture Exchange. Accordi)
it is the responsibility of the CEO and the CFQptomptly bring to the attention of the Disclosuren@nittee (o
in the event that the Company has not establisigidadosure Committee, to the Board of Directonsy enateria
information of which he or she may become awaredffacts the disclosures made by the Companysiptiblic
filings or otherwise assist the Disclosure Commaiftefulfilling its responsibilities.

The CEO and CFO shall promptly bring to the atamif the Disclosure Committee and the Audit Cortee
any information he or she may have concerning itp)ificant deficiencies in the design or operatafrinterna
controls which could adversely affect the Compamghility to record, process, summarize and refioaincia
data or (b) any fraud, whether or not materialt til@olves management or other employees who h:
significant role in the Company’s financial repogj disclosures or internal controls.

The CEO and CFO shall promptly bring to the atmtbf the General Counsel or the CEO and to theit
Committee any information he or she may have cariegrany actual or apparent conflicts of interesteel
personal and professional relationships, involvmy management or other employees who have a is@m
role in the Company’s financial reporting, discloesior internal controls.

The CEO and CFO shall promptly bring to the atemtbf the General Counsel or the CEO and to theit
Committee any information he or she may have cariegrevidence of a material violation of the setiesi ol
other laws, rules or regulations applicable to @lmenpany and the operation of its business, by thgany o
any agent thereof, or of violation of these procedu

The Board of Directors shall determine, or desigregipropriate persons to determine, appropriateracto b
taken in the event of violations of these procedurg the CEO and the CFO. Such actions shall asoreabl
designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote acedility for adherence to these procedures, and siclide
written notices to the individual involved that tBeard has determined that there has been a \@olatensure t
the Board, demotion or rassignment of the individual involved, suspensiatihwr without pay or benefits (
determined by the Board) and termination of theividdal's employment. In determining what actior
appropriate in a particular case, the Board of @es or such designee shall take into accounteddivan
information, including the nature and severity be tviolation, whether the violation appears to héeei
intentional or inadvertent, whether the individialquestion had been advised prior to the violatsnto th
proper course of action and whether or not theviddal in questions had committed other violatiomghe past.

End of Filing
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